Lowell Joint School District
11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
December 13, 2021 — 6:30 p.m.

II.

AGENDA

Call to Order

A.

B.

C.

Comments from the Public

1.

Board Agenda Items: Any member of the audience may speak to any
agenda item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply located on
the table near double exit doors). Please hand the completed card to
the secretary. When the item is considered by the Board, individuals
submitting presentation cards will be called upon prior to Board
action. Speakers must limit their comments to three (3) minutes. The
Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 30
minutes. With Board consent, the president may increase or decrease
the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and
the number of persons wishing to be heard.

Topics Not on Agenda: Anyone in attendance may address any issue
by following the same identification process as shown in I-A-1 above.
Since the Board cannot take action on items which are not on the
agenda, such items will be referred to the Superintendent for handling.
Individuals interested in speaking to items which are not on the
agenda will be called upon under Item III.

Closed Session

1.

Pupil Personnel Matters/Advice from Legal Counsel — Existing and
Anticipated Litigation (Disclosure of Case Name Would

Jeopardize Potential Settlement Negotiations)/Real Property/Liability
Claims/Negotiations/ Public Employee Appointments — Discipline —
Dismissal — Release (Government Code Section 54957)/
Employer/Employee Relations

Public Employee Negotiations — Certificated School Employees
Association (LJEA)/ Classified School Employees Association
(CSEA); Agency Negotiator: Mr. Coombs

Superintendent’s Evaluation (Pursuant to Government Code Section
54957)

Regular Session

Preliminary Procedural — Board President

A.

Salute to the Flag

6:30 p.m.

INFORMATION

6:30 p.m.

Approximately
7:30 p.m.



C.

Meeting of the Board of Trustees

Reporting Out Action (if any) Taken in Closed Session

Introductions and Welcome of Guests

Comments from the Public

1.

Board Agenda Items: Any member of the audience may speak to any
agenda item by submitting a “Presentation Card” (supply located on
the table near double exit doors). Please hand the completed card to
the secretary. When the item is considered by the Board, individuals
submitting presentation cards will be called upon prior to Board
action. Speakers must limit their comments to three (3) minutes. The
Board shall limit the total time for public input on each item to 30
minutes. With Board consent, the president may increase or decrease
the time allowed for public presentation, depending on the topic and
the number of persons wishing to be heard.

Topics Not on Agenda: Anyone in attendance may address any issue
by following the same identification process as shown in II-D-1
above. Since the Board cannot take action on items which
are not on the agenda, such items will be referred to the
Superintendent for handling. Individuals interested in speaking to
items which are not on the agenda will be called upon under Item III.

Acknowledgement of Correspondence to the Board

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes from the November 1, 2021, Board Meeting

Organization of the Board of Trustees

1.

Election of President
Election of Vice President

Election of Clerk

Adoption of the Schedule of Regular Meetings of the Board of
Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District, 2022 Organizational
Year and the Regular Meetings of the Citizens Bond Oversight
Committee of the Lowell Joint School District, 2022 Year

Election of a Member to Serve on the Orange County Nominating
Committee for School District Organization for One Year

December 13, 2021
Page 2

INFORMATION

INFORMATION
ACTION

ACTION

ACTION
ACTION

ACTION
ACTION

ACTION



Meeting of the Board of Trustees
December 13, 2021

Page 3

II.

IV.

VL

VIIL

VIIL

IX.

6.  Election of an Alternate Member to Serve on Orange County
Nominating Committee on School District Organization for
One Year
7. Resolution - Approval of “Certification of Signatures”
8.  Election of Two Members to Serve on the Board of Directors of the
Lowell Joint Education Foundation
Topics Not on the Agenda
Reports

A. Timely Information from Board and Superintendent — Board President

B. School Reports
(School Reports will be the First Meeting of the Month)

General — Jim Coombs
A. Resolution 2021/22 No. 847, Support of First Amendment Right of
“Freedom of Speech” and “the right of the people to assemble, and to

petition the Government for redress of grievances.”

B. Los Angeles County Office of Education (LACOE), Contract to
Participate in School-Based COVID-19 Testing 2020-2023

Business Services — Andrea Reynolds

A. Approval of a Positive Certification for the First Interim Reporting
Period to comply with the December 15, 2021 Education Code Deadline

B. Ratification of Scope Amendment No.2 to Provide Architectural
/Engineering Services for Meadow Green Elementary and Rancho
Starbuck Intermediate Schools with Ghataode Bannon Architects (GBA)
for Anticipated Modernization Projects

Human Resources — Jim Coombs

No Items Except on Consent

Education Services — Sheri McDonald

A. Approval of The Plan for Educator Effectiveness Block Grant

Facilities/Operations — David Bennett

ACTION

ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

ACTION

INFORMATION

INFORMATION
ACTION/
(RESOLUTION)

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

INFORMATION/
ACTION

ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

ACTION



Meeting of the Board of Trustees
December 13, 2021
Page 4

A. Authorization to Utilize National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance ACTION
Agreement with Howard Technology Solutions, a Division of Howard
Industries, Inc., (RFP #11-15, Contract 01-45) for the Purchase of
Electronic Display Technology at Jordan Elementary

B. Ratification of Change Order No. 3 with Silver Creek Industries for ACTION/
Relocation of Gas Line on the Modular Building Project at Jordan (RATIFICATION)
Elementary School

Consent Calendar

Action by the Board in adoption of the “Consent Calendar” means that all items
appearing in this section are adopted by one single motion, unless a Member of the
Board or the Superintendent requests that any such item be removed from the
“Consent Calendar” and voted upon separately. Generally, “Consent Calendar”
items are enacted upon in one action to conserve time and permit focus on other-
than-routine matters.

A. General — Jim Coombs

L Approval of Agreement with California School Boards Association, ACTION
for Gamut Services (Gamut Meetings and Policy) and Policy
Development Workshop for the District Beginning in the
2021/2022 School Year

B. Business Services — Andrea Reynolds

Il Purchase Order Report 2021/22 #5 ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

2. Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2021/22 #4 ACTION/
(RATIFICATION)

C. Human Resources — Jim Coombs

L, Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021/22 #5 ACTION/
Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, Contract Adjustments, and (RATIFICATION)
Retirements for Certificated, Classified, and Confidential
Employees

2, Approval of the Classified Salary Schedule to reflect the State of ACTION
California Minimum Wage Increase for Step 1, effective January
1,2022

3. Approval of the 2021/2022 Revised Confidential Salary Schedule, ACTION/
Clerical Error in Unit Range F, Column #3 (RATIFICATION)



Meeting of the Board of Trustees
December 13, 2021

Page 5
D. Education Services — Sheri McDonald
1. Approval of Agreement with Orange County Department of ACTION
Education for GATE Certification Training during the 2021-22
School Year
XL Board Member/Superintendent Comments INFORMATION
XII.  Adjournment ADJOURNMENT

Recess and/or closed session to be called at the discretion of the Board. Meetings of the Board shall adjourn at or
before 11:00 p.m. unless approved by a majority vote of the Board.

Materials related to this agenda submitted to the Board of Trustees less than 72 hours prior to the meeting are available
for public inspection by contacting the Superintendent’s Office at 11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603,
or (562) 902-4203 during normal business hours.

The next scheduled Lowell Joint School District Board of Trustees Meeting is Monday January 10, 2022.



136

Lowell Joint School District
11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier, CA 90603

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
November 1, 2021

Call to Order President Hinz called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m. at Lowell Joint School
District, 11019 Valley Home Avenue, Whittier CA 90603. In compliance with
Government Code 54953, Mr. Coombs joined open session Board meeting of
the Board of Trustees using video conference via zoom Meeting ID: 812 0815
1784.

Topics Not on the Agenda None.

Closed Meeting President Hinz declared the meeting recessed to closed session at 6:33 p.m. In
compliance with Government Code 54953, Mr. Coombs joined closed session
Board meeting of the Board of Trustees using video conference via zoom
Meeting ID: 812 0815 1784.

Call to Order President Hinz reconvened the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m.

The flag salute was led by Mr. Anthony Zegarra, Board of Trustees Member,
Lowell Joint School District.

Trustees Present: William A. Hinz, Melissa A. Salinas, Karen L. Shaw,
Anastasia M. Shackelford, Anthony A. Zegarra

Trustees Absent: None.

Staff Present: Sheri McDonald, Assistant Superintendent of Instruction,
and Andrea Reynolds, Assistant Superintendent of
Administrative Services, David Bennett, Assistant
Superintendent ~ Facilities & Operations

Reporting Out Action (if This evening in closed session, pursuant to Education Code section 44920, the
any) Taken in Closed Board took action in a unanimous roll call vote (5-0) to suspend Employee #
Session 9900000444 for two (2) days without pay, and delegated the authority to the

Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.
This evening in closed session, pursuant to Education Code section 44920, the
Board took action in a unanimous roll call vote (5-0) to suspend Employee #
9900000273 for fifteen (15) days without pay, and delegated the authority to the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.
This evening in closed session, pursuant to Education Code section 44920, the
Board took action in a unanimous roll call vote (5-0) to suspend Employee #
9900000135 for ten (10) days without pay, and delegated the authority to the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.



Introduction / Welcome

Acknowledgement of
Correspondence

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes

Topics Not on the Agenda

Timely Information from
Board and Superintendent —
Board President

School Reports

Establishment of December
13, 2021, as Annual
Organizational Meeting of
the Board of Trustees

Educator Effectiveness
Block Grant

November 1, 2021
Page 137

President Hinz welcomed the many guests in attendance, staff members
present, LJEA President Allison Fonti, guests, and CSEA President, Darleene
Pullen.

None.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5 0) to approve the
November 1, 2021, Board agenda

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote, (5-0) to approve the
minutes from October 4, 2021, Regular Board Meeting.

Erin Rodiguez, Macy parent, spoke regarding the COVID 19 vaccine mandate.
She thanked the Board of Trustees for standing behind parents to make the
decision for their families. She wanted to make it known that if the vaccine
mandate is mandated on their children that they will be pulling their kids out of
the school district.

Mrs. Shackelford wanted to make a comment as part of the public record. In
addition to some of the issues that Mrs. Rodrigez brought up in topics not on
the agenda, she referred to the letter that the National School Board Association
said that parents could be termed domestic terrorists. This school Board has
never been associated with the National School Board Association, never paid
fees nor are they members. They condemn that letter and any action that the
DOIJ decides to take on that. Parents have a right. Her job as a Board member
is to listen, hear, and then make decisions after being well informed.

Mr. Hinz stated that his belief that this Board is the antsiest of other school
boards that do not respect parents. Mrs. Salinas added that we have our first
amendment rights and we respect that. Parents have rights and the Board
respects that. Mrs. Shackelford stated that the stakeholders are the students,
staff and the parents; it is not just the administration. Everyone makes the best
decisions for the community of learners that we have.

Each Board member shared highlights of their respective schools.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote (5— 0) to establish
Monday, December 13, 2021, at 7:30 p.m. as the Lowell Joint School District
Annual Organizational meeting to be held in the Board Room, 11019 Valley
Home Avenue, Whittier, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized
to execute the necessary documents.

The Educator Effectiveness Block Grant authorized under Assembly Bill 130,
Section 22, Ch. 44, as amended by AB 167, Sec. 9, Ch. 252 provides funding to
school districts for:

e Coaching and mentoring of staff.



November 1, 2021
Page 138

2020-2021 Capital
Facilities Report —
Developer Fees

Approval of Resolution
2021/22 No. 846 to
Approve Request for
Proposals for
Preconstruction and
Lease-Leaseback
Services, Preconstruction
Services Agreement,
Lease-Leaseback

e Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and
improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas.

e Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated

learning.

Strategies to implement social-emotional learning.

Practices to create a positive school climate.

Strategies to improve inclusive practices.

Instruction and education to support implementing effective language

acquisition programs for English learners.

e New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in
an education-related professional learning network.

e Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate curricula adopted
pursuant to Section 51226.7.

e Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified
educators in early childhood education, or childhood development.

Funds are allocated based on a formula related to District FTE with our
apportionment being $633,906. As a condition of receiving Educator
Effectiveness Block Grant funds, the District is required to:

e Develop and adopt a plan, on or before December 30, 2021, delineating
how funds apportioned pursuant to this section will be spent. The plan
shall be presented in a public meeting of the governing board of the school
district before its adoption in a subsequent public meeting.

e Report detailed expenditure information to the Department of Education
on or before September 30, 2026.

The plan is intended to address identified needs within the District. As such,
actions developed within the LCAP to meet District Goals and State Priorities
that align with the criteria for the Educator Effectiveness Block Grant have
been identified and prioritized for the professional development plan.

This is an information item and a first reading.

Mr. Bennett shared that pursuant to Government Code Section 66006(b), for
Capital Facility fees collected, it is required to report a description of the fee and
use; amount of current fees; beginning and ending balances; fees, interest

and other income; date project will be completed (if applicable); description of
inter-fund transfer loan (if applicable); and refunds issued (if applicable). The
full PowerPoint presentation is available on the district website.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous roll call vote (5— 0) to adopt
Resolution 2021/22 No. 846 to Approve Request for Proposals for
Preconstruction and Lease-Leaseback Services and Form of Preconstruction
Services Agreement and Lease-Leaseback Agreements, and that the
Superintendent, or his designee, be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.



Agreements, and Delegation
of Authority

Ratification of Agreement
with Suburban Water
Systems for Deposit
Balance for the Installation
of Water

Facilities at Jordan
Elementary School

Approval of Change Order
No. 1 with Silver Creek
Industries for the Modular
Building Project at Jordan
Elementary School

Approval of Deductive
Change Order No. 2 with
Silver Creek Industries
for the Modular Building
Project at Jordan
Elementary School

Consent Calendar

Approval of Ratified
Consultant Agreement with
Paul Luna to Provide
Graphic Design Work for
District Communication of
Programs and Facilities for
the 2021/22 School Year

Approval of Consultant
Agreement with Melissa
Overton to Provide Graphic
Design Work for District
Communication of
Programs and Facilities for
the 2021/22 School Year

November 1, 2021
Page 139

The work at Jordan required the installation and payment to Suburban Water for
a fire hydrant.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote (5— 0) to ratify the
agreement with Suburban Water Systems for deposit balance for the installation

of water facilities at Jordan Elementary School, effective November 2, 2021
through November 1, 2022 not to exceed $44,993.01, (21.0-00000-0-00000-
85000-6230-0040000), Measure LL Bond Fund, and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote (5— 0) to approve
Change Order No.1 with Silver Creek Industries for the Modular Building Project
at Jordan Elementary School, effective November 2, 2021, through November 1,
2022, not to exceed $221,558.40, (21.0-00000-0-00000-85000-6230-0000400),
Measure LL, (21.0 Bond Fund), and that the Superintendent or designee be
authorized to execute the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote (5— 0) to approve Change
Order No.2 with Silver Creek Industries for the Modular Building Project at
Jordan Elementary School, effective November 2, 2021, through November 1,
2022, not to exceed <$459,110.40>, (21.0-00000-0-00000-85000-6230-
0000400), Measure LL, (21.0 Bond Fund), and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

It was moved, seconded, and carried by unanimous vote (5 — 0) to approve/ratify
the following items, under a consent procedure.

Approved the ratified consultant agreement with Paul Luna to provide graphic
design work for District communication of programs and facilities for the
2021/22 school year, for an amount not to exceed $5,000.00, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Approved the consultant agreement with Melissa Overton to provide graphic
design work for District communication of programs and facilities for the
2021/22 school year, for an amount not to exceed $3,000.00, and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.



November 1, 2021
Page 140

Approval of Consultant
Agreement with Ms. Jennifer
Church to Provide After-
School Coaching Services
for the 2021/22 School Year

Approval of Consultant
Agreement with Ms. Yaniel
Jiron to Provide After-
School Coaching Services
for the 2021/22 School Year

Purchase Order Report
2021/22 #4

Consolidated Check Register
Listing Report 2021/22 #3

Employer-Employee
Relations/Personnel Report
2021/22 #4 Which Includes
Hiring, Resignations,
Contract Adjustments, and
Retirements for Certificated,
Classified, and Confidential
Employees

Board
Member/Superintendent
Comments

Adjournment

Date Approved:

Approved the consultant agreement with Ms. Jennifer Church to provide after-
school coaching services for the 2021/22 school year, not to exceed $700.00, to
be paid from the monies secured by the Lowell Joint Education Foundation
donation, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
agreement.

Approved the consultant agreement with Ms. Yaniel Jiron to provide after-
school coaching services for the 2021/22 school year, not to exceed $700.00, to
be paid from the monies secured by the Lowell Joint Education Foundation
donation, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the
agreement.

Approved Purchase Order Report 2020-21 #4, as attached, which lists all
purchase orders issued September 22, 2021, through September 30, 2021.

Approved the consolidated check register, as attached, which lists all warrants
issued September 1, 2021, through September 30, 2021.

Ratified Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021/22 #4 which
Includes Hiring, Resignations, Contract Adjustments, and Retirements for
Certificated, Classified, and Confidential Employees

Mrs. Shackelford would like a copy of the letter that the parent referred to that
East Whittier sent to the Governor.

President Hinz declared the meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. in accordance with
Government Code Section 54956.9 (a, b, ¢) and indicated no further public
action would be taken

Clerk/President/Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

RESOLUTION NO. 846

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
TO APPROVE REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION AND
LEASE-LEASEBACK SERVICES AND FORM OF PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES
AGREEMENTAND LEASE-LEASEBACK AGREEMENTS

WHEREAS, the Lowell Joint School District (“District”) plans to construct the
following projects using the lease-leaseback construction delivery method whereby the District
will lease the site that the District owns, to a contractor who will construct improvements thereon
and lease the projects and the underlying site back to the District: Meadow Green Elementary
and Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School Projects (singularly, “Project” and collectively,
“Projects™);

WHEREAS, Education Code Section 17406 authorizes the governing board of a school
district to let to any person, firm or corporation any real property belonging to the District if the
instrument by which the property is let requires the lessee therein to construct on the demised
premises, or provide for the construction thereon of, a building or buildings for the use of the
school district during the term of the lease, and provides that title to that building shall vest in the
school district at the expiration of that term;

WHEREAS, any lease-leaseback contract pursuant to Education Code section 17406
shall be based on a competitive solicitation process and awarded to the proposer providing the
“best value” (as defined in Education Code section 17400), taking into consideration the
proposer’s demonstrated competence and professional qualifications necessary for the
satisfactory performance of the services required;

WHEREAS, pursuant to Education Code section 17406(a)(2), the District’s Board of
Education (“Board”) will adopt and publish required procedures and guidelines for evaluating
the qualifications of proposers to ensure the best value selections by the District are conducted in
a fair and impartial manner;

WHEREAS, in order to ensure that moneys sufficient to pay all costs will be available
for the Projects, the District will appropriate funds for the lease-leaseback Projects from the
current fiscal year the lease-leaseback contract is awarded,;

WHEREAS, in order to construct the Projects using the lease-leaseback delivery
method, it is necessary that the District enter into a site lease for each Project, in which the site
will be leased to a contractor, and a sublease which provides for the sublease of the site and the
lease of the Project by the contractor to the District, and that certain other action be taken and
authorized,

005632.0011324

875288.1



WHEREAS, the sublease for each Project will include construction provisions with
which contractor shall comply with respect to construction of the Project (“Construction Services
Agreement”);

WHEREAS, in accordance with Education Code section 17406(b)(1), the District may
have the selected lease-leaseback contractor for each Project perform preconstruction services
for a Project pursuant to a “Preconstruction Services Agreement” attached hereto as Exhibit “B”;

WHEREAS, before written approval of the plans and specifications for a Project by the
Department of General Services’ Division of the State Architect, the selected lease-leaseback
contractor shall perform no preconstruction services for which a contractor is required to be
licensed in accordance with Article 5 (commencing with Section 7065) of Chapter 9 of Division
3 of the Business and Professions Code, and for which Division of the State Architect approval is
required;

WHEREAS, the District desires by a majority of the vote of the Board and pursuant to
Education Code section 17604 and similar statutes, to delegate authority to the District’s
Superintendent, or his or her designee, to evaluate the qualifications of the proposers based
solely upon the criteria and evaluation methodology set forth in the attached Request for
Proposals (which will be issued for each Project or group of Projects), to assign a best value
score to each proposal, and once the evaluation process is complete, to rank all responsive
proposals from the highest best value to the lowest best value to the District, and to otherwise
carry out the intent of this Resolution. The Board further delegates authority to the District’s
Superintendent, or is or her designee, to make revisions to the form agreements and documents
attached hereto including the “Site Lease”, “Sublease”, “Construction Services Agreement”, and
“Preconstruction Services Agreement”, and to determine which Project or Projects the District
will require preconstruction services to be provided by the selected lease-leaseback contractor;
and

WHEREAS, the Board has been presented with the form of each document referred to
herein relating to the transaction contemplated hereby and the Board has examined and approved
each document as to form and desires to authorize and direct evaluation of proposals in
accordance with Education Code section 17406.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE LOWELL JOINT
SCHOOL DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS
FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Recitals. All of the recitals herein contained are true and correct.

Section 2. Request for Proposals. The form of the Request for Proposal to be issued
for each Project to proposers meeting the requirements set forth in Education Code section 17406
and attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby approved and adopted by the Board.

Section 3. Site Lease and Sublease. The form of agreements entitled, “Site Lease”,
“Sublease” and “Construction Services Agreement”, each attached to the Request for Proposal

2

005632.0011324

875288.1



and presented during this meeting and each to be entered into by and between the District and the
proposer providing the best value to the District for a Project, are hereby approved and adopted
subject to any further revisions which are acceptable to both the District and its legal counsel.

Section 4. Preconstruction Services Agreement. The form of agreement entitled,
“Preconstruction Services Agreement” attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and presented during this
meeting to be entered into by and between the District and the selected lease-leaseback
contractor proposer providing the best value to the District, is hereby approved and adopted
subject to any further revisions which are acceptable to both the District and its legal counsel.

Section 5. Approval of Process and Documents. The Governing Board hereby
approves the lease-leaseback process, the competitive solicitation process as set forth in the
Request for Proposal and the “Site Lease”, “Sublease” and “Construction Services Agreement”
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and the form “Preconstruction Services Agreement” attached
hereto as Exhibit “B”.

Section 6. Other Acts; Delegation. The District’s Board hereby approves a
delegation of authority and appoints its Superintendent, or his or her designee, who is hereby
authorized and directed, to evaluate the qualifications of the proposers based solely upon the
criteria and evaluation methodology set forth in the attached Request for Proposals (which will
be issued for each Project or group of Projects), to assign a best value score to each proposal, and
once the evaluation process is complete, to rank all responsive proposals from the highest best
value to the lowest best value to the District, and to otherwise carry out the intent of this
Resolution. The Board further delegates authority to the District’s Superintendent, or his or her
designee, to make revisions to the form agreements and documents attached hereto including the
“Site Lease”, “Sublease”, “Construction Services Agreement”, and “Preconstruction Services
Agreement”, and to determine which Project or Projects the District will require preconstruction
services to be provided by the selected lease-leaseback contractor. All actions taken pursuant to
this delegation of authority shall be subject to ratification of the Board. Said delegation shall be
valid until otherwise rescinded by the Board.

Section 7. Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.

APPROVED, PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Lowell Joint
School District this 1 day of November, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:

ABSTAINED:

005632.0011324

875288.1



EXHIBIT “A”

LLB RFP AND LLB AGREEMENTS (SITE LEASE, SUBLEASE & CSA

005632,0011324
875288.1



EXHIBIT “B”

PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

005632.0011324
875288.1



[, William “Bill” Hinz, President of the Lowell Joint School District Governing Board, do hereby
certify that the foregoing is a full, true, and correct copy of the resolution passed and adopted by
said Board at a regularly scheduled and conducted meeting held on said date, which resolution is
on file in office of said Board.

4. L.

President of the Board of Educafio
Lowell Joint School District

I, Karen Shaw, Clerk of the Board of Education of the Lowell Joint School District, do
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was introduced and adopted by the Board of
Education of the Lowell Joint School District at a regular meeting thereof held on the 1% day of
November, 2021, by the following forgoing vote.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of
the Lowell Joint School District this 1% day of November, 2021.

K ol Lipis
\ AN~ NN
Clerk of the Board of Education

Lowell Joint School District

005632.0011324

875288.1



EXHIBIT “A”

LLB RFP AND LLB AGREEMENTS (SITE LEASE, SUBLEASE & CSA

005632.0011324
875288.1



EXHIBIT “B”

PRECONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

005632.0011324
875288.1



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

FOR

PRE-CONSTRUCTION AND LEASE-LEASEBACK
SERVICES FOR HVAC, ROOF REPLACEMENT,
FIRE ALARM, ADA, SEWER, AND RELATED
WORK AT MEADOW GREEN ELEMENTARY AND
RANCHO STARBUCK INTERMEDIATE SCHOOLS
RFP#202122-01

Proposal Deadline Date
December 6, 2021 at 3:00 PM

Submit to:
Lowell Joint School District

11537 Grovedale Drive
Whittier, CA 90604

Attn: Denise Soto

005632.0011325
146152.1



IL.
III.

Iv.

VL

VIL

VIIL

IX.

XL

005632.0011325

146152.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
PURPOSE OF THE RFP: .......ooovvvrvvrrerrereesssessssessssesoseesssssessesssssssssssesseessssssssssssssees e I
BACKGROUND INFORMATION ...ooooooeooeeesseeeresccccsossssssesssssesssssssssesssesssssessesseeesssnes 1
RFP TIMELINEX: ..........cocoovmviomssosooseeseesessssssssssssesssossesssssseseessssessssssssssesssesssessssssss s 2
QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION OF THE RFP ...ooovvvvorooooo oo 3
PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES ........coovoososoetsesccorersereeseeesesseeeseesessessesssssssssssessessssees 3
DIR REGISTRATION AND PREVAILING WAGES......ooovveoooooesrereeeereeeseesssssesseoressssen 3
SUBCONTRACTOR DESIGNATIONS .....c.ocoovereerereeesessesssssonseessssesssseesesssseessesssenene 4
CONTENTS OF THE PROPOSAL ......cooooeeeeeeeeessecreeeeesseseesessessssesessessssssssssssseesessessees 5
PREPARATION AND SUBMITTAL OF THE PROPOSAL ....oovovovoooooeoroeeeoeoo 11
PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND BEST VALUE SCORE ........ooovoovorooressesesessceossn 14
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS .....oooromeeeovecomrenesseseessesesessesessssesssesssssessesseseee 15



005632.0011325

146152.1

I PURPOSE OF THE RFP:

By way of this Request for Proposals (“RFP”), the Lowell Joint School (“District”) seeks
proposals from lease-leaseback contractors (“Contractor” or “Firm”™) to provide pre-construction
services and lease-leaseback construction services for the District’s #202122-01 to perform
HVAC, roof replacement, fire alarm, ADA and related work at various schools throughout the
District (“Projects™). The purpose of this RFP is to obtain information that will enable the
District to select a lease-leaseback Contractor using the “best value” competitive procurement
process under Education Code section 17400 et seq., that can assist the District with both pre-
construction services and construction services. The “best value” competitive procurement
process is an evaluation process whereby a Firm is selected by the District on the basis of
objective criteria for evaluating the qualifications of Firms, with the selected Firm representing
the best combination of price and qualifications. Each Contractor responding to this RFP should
be prepared and qualified to provide the pre-construction services and lease-leaseback
construction services described in this RFP to the District in an expeditious and timely manner
and on relatively short notice so as to enable the District to meet critical time deadlines and
schedules.

II. BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

The Lowell Joint School District is located in the southeastern portion of the County of Los
Angeles (“Los Angeles County”) and the northwestern portion of the County of Orange
(“Orange County”) and serves families from the cities of La Habra, La Habra Heights, La
Mirada, and Whittier and unincorporated areas of Los Angeles County and Orange County. The
District operates five elementary schools, serving transitional kindergarten through sixth grade,
and one intermediate school, serving seventh through eighth grade.

The District is governed by a Board of Trustees consisting of five members who are elected by
trustee area to staggered four-year terms at elections held every two years. The District’s affairs
are administered by the Superintendent of the District, who is appointed by the Board of
Trustees. Jim Coombs has served as Superintendent of the District since 2017. Enrollment is
approximately 3,100 students for fiscal year 2021-22.

This Project will be constructed using the lease-leaseback project delivery method authorized by
Education Code section 17400 et seq. The District has contracted with architects for the Projects,
and the lease-leaseback Contractor will be expected to provide both pre-construction services
and lease-leaseback construction services for the Project as described herein.

The District will use a vacant elementary campus, Maybrook Elementary, to house students from
each of the schools for the Projects during each Project’s duration. The District intends to begin
Meadow Green Elementary in June, 2022. The District has plans for Meadow Green submitted
to DSA. These plans will be available on the district website, www.]jsd.org, or in the District
plan room by appointment when the project is approved. Rancho Starbuck is planned to begin
construction in June, 2023.

Below is the estimated schedule and estimated construction costs for the Projects:

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 1 of 16
I —



Meadow Green Elementary School $5,600,000 June, 2022 — August, 2023
Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School $8,800,000 June, 2023 — August, 2024
The selected lease-leaseback Contractor will enter into separate lease-leaseback contracts for
each school site. A list of proposed services and work to be provided by the lease-leaseback

Contractor are noted below. Please note that this is not a comprehensive list of services and work
to be provided for the Projects.

Meadow Green Elementary School Pre-Construction Services, HVAC, Roofing
Replacement, ADA, Fire Alarm, Sewer

Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School Pre-Construction Services, Roofing
Replacement, ADA, Fire Alarm, Sewer

III. RFP TIMELINE*:

Request for Proposals Issued.........cccoeeeveervrecnnnnnne November 8, 2021
Prequalification Application Due............ccoeeuuee.e. November 15, 2021 by 4:00 p.m.
Mandatory Project Walk-Through..............covn.... November 18, 2021 at 4:00 p.m.
Deadline for Submittal of Questions..........cc........ November 23, 2021 at 10:00 a.m.
Responses to the Questions Submitted................. November 29, 2021 at 4:00 p.m.
Due Date for Submittal of Proposals..........c..c...... December 6, 2021 by 3:00 p.m.
Short List INtErvIEWS .......ccccvveivieinvrenneeiieeerinnnees December 10, 2021

Due Date for Fee Proposals..........ccccceeecveevveeenneenns At interview (December 13-17)
Anticipated Board Approval Date..............cocveuene January 10, 2022

Notification of Selected Firm ..........cccceeueveeeneennens January 11, 2022

* Estimated deadlines subject to revision at the District’s discretion.

IV.  QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION OF THE RFP

All questions, requests for explanation or clarifications of any kind in regard to this RFP shall be
made in written form, submitted via email to Denise Soto at dsoto@ljsd.org; by no later than
10:00 a.m., November 23, 2021. A response will not be provided to any late questions, or
requests for explanation or clarifications. All addenda and clarifications will be posted on the
District’s website, www.ljsd.org (Facilities and Operations Department), and provided to those
Firms that have registered with the District. Any interpretation, clarification, or correction of this
RFP will only be made by addendum as noted above. No person or Firm is authorized to make
any oral interpretation of any provision in this RFP, nor shall any oral interpretation be binding
on the District.

V. PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

The District anticipates that the successful Contractor will provide pre-construction services for
the Projects noted in Section II above including, but not limited to, reviewing the Project’s plans
and specifications during the design of the Project to identify and note all deficiencies,

005632001 1325 T R
146152.1 Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 2 of 16
e —————  —— —  — — ——————————— ]



incongruities and inconsistencies that may affect constructability of the Project including, but not
limited to, design and specification omissions, incomplete and/or inconsistent plans, details and
specifications, and any lack of coordination, together with all other appropriate, necessary and/or
required services to facilitate and prepare for the successful development and construction of the
Project.

The pre-construction services will also include, but not be limited to, the following tasks: design
meetings with the architects and engineers, and the Project team; review and validation of
estimates prepared by the architect; preparation of a master critical path method schedule for the
Project; preparation of cost estimates based on the final construction documents, including
allowances, contingencies, general conditions, costs and fees; constructability reviews; value
engineering; construction planning and phasing, and cost proposal strategies all with the goal that
the DSA-approved plans and specifications for the Project will be complete such that the Project
can be constructed by a competent licensed general building contractor in strict accordance with
the DSA-approved plans and specifications without change orders, delays, or additional charges
to District.

The form of the “Lease-Leaseback Contract” and “Pre-construction Services Agreement” is
attached to this RFP as Attachment 3.

The successful Contractor shall not provide any pre-construction services or work that requires a
contractor’s license pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7065 et seq.

VI. DIR REGISTRATION AND PREVAILING WAGES

DIR Registration. Contractors and their subcontractors (of any tier) shall not be qualified to
submit or be listed on a proposal, or engage in the performance of any contract for public work,
as defined in the Labor Code, unless currently registered and qualified to perform public work
pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the Labor Code. It is not a violation of this section for an
unregistered contractor to submit a proposal that is authorized by Section 7029.1 of the Business
and Professions Code or by Section 10164 or 20103.5 of the Public Contract Code, provided the
contractor is registered to perform public work pursuant to Section 1725.5 of the Labor Code at
the time the contract is awarded.

Prevailing Wages. The Contractor and all subcontractors shall comply with the requirements set
forth in Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 of the Labor Code. Pursuant to Labor Code section 1770 et
seq., the District has obtained from the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations the
general prevailing rate of per diem wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and
overtime work in the locality in which this work is to be performed for each craft, classification
or type of worker needed to execute the contract. Copies are available from the District to any
interested party on request and are also available from the Director of the Department of
Industrial Relations.

005632.0011325

146152.1

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 3 of 16
_——---- -



005632.0011325

146152.1

VII. SUBCONTRACTOR DESIGNATIONS

After award of the Lease-Leaseback Contract for the Project, and in accordance with Education
Code section 17406(a)(4)(B), any subcontractor that was not identified in the Contractor’s
proposal and whose subcontract value exceeds one-half of one percent of the price allocable to
construction work must be awarded a subcontract in accordance with the following process:

A. Provide public notice of availability of work to be subcontracted in accordance
with publication requirements applicable to the competitive bidding process of the
District, including a fixed date and time on which qualifications statements, bids,
or proposals will be due.

B. Establish reasonable qualification criteria and standards.
C. Award the subcontract either on a best value basis or to the lowest responsible
bidder.

The process above may include prequalification or short-listing. The process shall not apply to
subcontractors listed in the Contractor’s original proposal. Subcontractors awarded subcontracts
as set forth above shall be afforded all the protections of the Subletting and Subcontracting Fair
Practices Act (Public Contract Code section 4100 et seq.)

All subcontractors (of any tier) performing any portion of the Work must comply with Labor
Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 and must be properly and currently registered with the
California Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to perform public works pursuant to
Labor Code section 1725.5 throughout the duration of the Project.

VIII. CONTENTS OF THE PROPOSAL

Firms must submit one original, four hard copies and a digital copy (on a thumb drive) of the
proposal. All proposals should address the requested information for each of the evaluation
categories below. The proposal shall demonstrate the qualifications, competence, and capacity
of the Firm:

A, Cover Letter/Letter of Interest - Include a cover letter, addressed to Denise
Soto, stating the eligibility of the Firm to respond to this RFP, a brief description
and history of the Firm, and a statement of interest.

B. Table of Contents - The table of contents shall reflect the order stated herein and
shall include section titles and page numbers.

C. Evaluation Categories

L Mandatory Requirements — The following requirements are mandatory
and must be satisfied. The mandatory requirements will be scored on a
pass/fail basis. Failure to meet any one of the mandatory requirements
specified in this Section VIII(C)(1) will disqualify your Firm from any
further consideration for this RFP.

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 4 of 16




005632.0011325
146152.1

Lease-Leaseback Contractor and Subcontractor
Prequalification — All Firms submitting a proposal to this RFP
must be prequalified with the District pursuant to Public Contract
Code section 20111.6 (b)-(m) without exception prior to
submitting a proposal. Any Firm that submits a proposal and is not
prequalified will be deemed non-responsive and that Firm’s
proposal will be rejected and returned to the Firm unopened.

Prequalification is done through PQBids at
https://pgbids.com/lowell/. Prequalification documents must be
submitted and uploaded to PQ Bids’s website by November 7,
2021, 4:00 p.m. Contractors will be notified by telephone, email,
or mail of their prequalification rating within a reasonable period
of time after submission of their prequalification documents, but
not less than five business days prior to the proposal submission
deadline.

All mechanical, electrical or plumbing (“MEP”) subcontractors
(defined as contractors that hold a C-4, C-7, C-10, C-16, C-20, C-
34, C-36, C-38, C-39, C-43 or C-46 license) must also be
prequalified prior to the award of their respective subcontract.
This prequalification requirement applies even if the subcontractor
will perform, or is designated and identified to perform, work that
does not require one of the licenses listed above, but the
subcontractor holds one of the licenses listed above.

A list of currently prequalified MEP subcontractors will be made
available by the District upon request, but not less than five
business days prior to the proposal submission deadline. However,
it is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure that all MEP
subcontractors holding any of the licenses listed above are
properly prequalified.

Contractor Responsibility — Identify if your Firm has ever had
the following occur in the past seven (7) years. For the purposes of
this paragraph, “Firm” shall include any present or past (over the
last five years), officers, owners, principals, partners, or any
qualifying individuals including any RME or RMO. Any
occurrence of the following in the past seven (7) years shall render
the Firm not qualified to submit a proposal:

e Found to be a non-responsible contractor by any public
agency;

e Convicted for false claims;

e Firm’s license revoked or suspended even if such
revocation or suspension was stayed at any time;

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page S of 16




e Debarred or otherwise ineligible to bid on or be awarded a
public works contract;

e Terminated for cause or defaulted on a construction
contract; or

e Convicted of a crime involving the awarding of a
construction contract, or the bidding or performance of a
construction contract.

License Requirements — Pursuant to Business and Professions
Code section 7028.15 and Public Contract Code section 3300, the
Contractor must possess a California Contractor’s Class “B”
license at the time of submittal of its proposal, and for the duration
of the contract, if awarded. Subcontractors must possess the
appropriate license for the work to be performed on the Project.

Performance and Payment Bonds — All Firms submitting a
proposal to this RFP must be able to provide separate faithful
payment and performance bonds, each in an amount equal to 100%
of the total contract amount. All bonds must be issued by a
California admitted surety as defined in California Code of Civil
Procedure section 995.120. Firms must provide a letter from their
surety indicating the Firm’s current and overall bonding capacity,
and the ability to meet the bond requirements in Section 35 of the
Construction Services Agreement.

Insurance Requirements — The District has elected, in its sole
discretion, to implement an Owner Controlled Insurance Program
(“OCIP”). The provided coverages may include Workers’
Compensation, Employer’s Liability, Commercial General
Liability (excluding Automobile Liability), Excess Liability,
Contractor’s Pollution Liability, and Builder’s Risk (for operations
conducted on-Site) Insurance for all Enrolled Contractors (and
their Enrolled Subcontractors) and other designated parties for
work performed at the Project Site. The District agrees to pay all
premiums associated with the OCIP, unless otherwise stated in this
section and in other Contract Documents. Contractor’s GMP and
Subcontractors’ bids/ proposals shall not include any cost of
insurance for coverage provided under the OCIP. Contractor and
all Subcontractors shall carefully review Exhibit “J” (OCIP
Insurance Requirements) and Exhibit “K” (OCIP Project Manual)
attached to the form Construction Services Agreement (“CSA”) set
forth in Attachment 3 herein.

All Firms submitting a proposal to this RFP must be eligible to
enroll in the OCIP as solely determined by the OCIP
Administrator. Any Firm that is not eligible to enroll in the OCIP
will be deemed non-responsive. All Firms and all Subcontractors

005632,001 1325 R ——————

146152,1

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 6 of 16




005632.0011325
146152.1

are to carefully review Section 35 and Exhibits “J” and “K” of the
CSA prior to submitting a proposal. By submitting a proposal, all
Firms agree to provide any additional insurance information or
related documents as reasonably requested by the District and/or
the OCIP Administrator to determine whether the Firm is eligible
to enroll in the OCIP. Failure to provide any requested information
or documents may render the Firm’s proposal non-responsive.
Prequalification by the District of Contractor and any
Subcontractor pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111.6
does not automatically mean that the Contractor or any
Subcontractor is qualified or eligible to be enrolled in the OCIP.

2. Firm Personnel, Capacity, and Methodology — Attachment 1. Each
Firm must completely answer all questions in Attachment 1 of the RFP.
Note: Questions may be answered in other sections of the proposal if
clearly and conspicuously identified and referenced in the proposal.
The following shall be stated:

a. Description of Firm — Include a description of the Firm’s
qualifications for providing pre-construction and lease-leaseback
services on California school construction projects. Include
information regarding the size of the Firm, location of the office
from which the required services will be performed, nature of all
work performed, and the number of years in this particular
business. The Firm shall provide an affirmative statement that it is
independent of the District as defined by generally accepted
standards.

b. Firm’s Personnel and Staffing Resources — Submit resume(s) or
profiles for each key staff who will be proposed to provide the
requested services, including their qualifications and recent
relevant experience providing similar services. Each resume shall
include, without limitation, the following information; (a)
education; (b) years of relevant experience; (¢) professional
registrations, certifications and affiliations (d) project-specific
experience with focus on public works projects and emphasis on
K-12 projects providing pre-construction and lease-leaseback
services, including dates and durations of each project listed and
the name of the firm where employed. Include a discussion on the
Firm’s philosophy and approach for providing outstanding
customer service.

el Capacity & Methodology — Describe how the Firm will provide
services and fulfill the requirements and expectations of the
District and this RFP. Use this section to address the ability of your
Firm to undertake and accomplish the required scope of services
while meeting deadlines, the Firm’s record of meeting schedules

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 7 of 16
=_=_—————_—_———— e __—_——_—_—__—_—_—___—_—————————————



005632.0011325
146152.1

and deadlines of other clients, advantages over other firms in the
same industry, strength and stability as a business, and supportive
client references. Describe the Firm’s ability to provide pre-
construction and lease-leaseback services exclusively and in a
timely manner for the District and the Firm’s commitment to
providing experienced personnel assigned to District’s Project.

d. Litigation — Furnish and provide specific information on any
termination for convenience, litigation settled or judgments entered
within the last five (5) years, as well as any civil judgments within
the last five (5) years. Identify if the Firm or any employee of the
Firm is a party to an existing dispute with an owner, or owner’s
consultants, related to any project for which the Firm provided
construction services. If so, please describe the nature of the
dispute and its anticipated outcome.

Identify if the Firm has ever filed a petition for bankruptcy. If so,
please provide the date the petition was filed and identify the
jurisdiction in which it was filed.

Relevant Experience and Past Performance — Description of past
performance and related experience. Each Firm is required to submit a list
of its most relevant pre-construction and lease-leaseback services provided
in the past five (5) years that are of the approximate size of the Project
described in the RFP. The list shall include: (1) a description and size of
the project, (2) scope of the work, (3) dates services were performed for
pre-construction services and for lease-leaseback services, (4) total price
for the project (please state amounts separately for pre-construction
services and for lease-leaseback services and include the final guaranteed
maximum price and all contingencies and allowances), and (5) owner’s
name, address, and phone number.

Pre-construction Services — Describe your methodology in providing
pre-construction services for the Project, specifically discussing value
engineering, constructability review, estimating, and scheduling. Provide
examples of constructability reviews that you performed that resulted in
the identification of significant design conflicts or omissions, and of value
engineering that resulted in significant savings of money or time. State
whether your firm has building information modeling capability and use of
BIM on prior lease-leaseback projects.

Labor Compliance/Skilled and Trained Workforce — Describe your
ability to comply with statutory requirements for the payment of
prevailing wages, including the monitoring and enforcement of your
subcontractor’s payment of prevailing wages. Provide copies of any DIR
Civil Wage and Penalty Assessment issued against the Firm, explain the

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 8 of 16
_ee-- e



005632.0011325
146152.1

circumstances for the Civil Wage and Penalty Assessment, and the final
resolution.

Further describe your plan and methodology to comply with the
requirements for the use of a “skilled and trained workforce” as defined in
Education Code section 17407.5 and Public Contract Code section 2600 et
seq., for each apprenticable occupation that will be used on the Project,
including all subcontractors of any tier. Include in your discussion your
plan and methodology to comply with the percentage requirements for the
use of “skilled journeypersons” for each apprenticable occupation and the
required monthly report demonstrating compliance. Please include a copy
of a sample monthly report prepared by your firm for another owner.
Finally, identify and discuss which apprenticable occupation(s) will be the
most difficult to meet the percentage requirements for skilled
journeypersons on the Project and state why.

Safety — Discuss your plan to maintain a safe worksite. In your discussion,
include whether your Firm has an Injury and Illness Prevention Program
that complies with 8 CCR § 1509, whether your Firm has a safety program
that meets Cal/OSHA requirements, and whether your Firm will provide a
full-time person dedicated to safety on the Project.

Please state whether you have had any accidents in the past five years that
resulted in a construction fatality on any of your projects and provide any
details for each incident.

Please state whether you have had any recordable injuries in the past five
years and provide the average total recordable injuries for the past five
years.

Please provide an EMR verification from the State of California or an
insurance company for each of the past five years.

7. Local Business Qutreach and Participation - The District is vitally
interested in promoting the growth of small and local businesses within the
boundaries of the District and the city or cities where the District has schools
by means of increasing the participation of these businesses in the District’s
purchase of goods and services. The District has a goal of ten (10) percent of
all contracts for these services be awarded to local businesses. A locally-
owned business, for purposes of satisfying the locality requirements of this
provision, is one which holds a valid business license issued by the city where
the District is located or the city or cities where the District has schools.
Describe the Firm’s plan for inclusion of local businesses in the services to be
provided for the District.

Exceptions to the Pre-construction Agreement, and/or Lease-
Leaseback Agreement — The form of both the Pre-construction Services

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 9 of 16




005632.0011325
146152.1

Agreement, and Lease-Leaseback Agreement (Site Lease, Sublease, and
Construction Services Agreement) are attached to this RFP as Attachment
3. Please review each agreement and provide any proposed exceptions to
those agreements on Attachment 1, Firm Questionnaire, Section E.

Fee Proposal — Pre-construction Fee, Lease-Leaseback Fee, and General
Conditions — “Attachment 2”

DO NOT SUBMIT THIS FORM WITH THE PROPOSAL. ATTACHMENT 2
MUST BE BROUGHT TO THE INTERVIEW IN A SEALED ENVELOPE.

The fee proposal, “Attachment 2”, must be submitted in a separate, sealed
envelope with your company name, proposal title, “Fee Proposal, Attachment 2”,
labeled on the outside of the envelope and brought to the interview. Only those
Firms that are invited to interview will be required to complete the Fee
Proposal (Attachment 2).

Provide a lump sum fee to provide pre-construction services, the lease-leaseback
fee, and a monthly general conditions fee on Attachment 2. The proposed fees
should include all direct labor costs, fringe benefits, insurance, overhead, profit,
and all other expenses the Contractor will incur in providing the pre-construction
services and the lease-leaseback construction services.

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 10 of 16



005632,0011325

146152.1

IX. PREPARATION AND SUBMITTAL OF THE PROPOSAL

A. Proposal Submittal and Deadline

One original, four hard copies and a digital copy (on a thumb drive) of the proposal must be
submitted under sealed cover by no later than 3:00 p.m. on December 6, 2021. Label the
outside of the sealed proposal envelope or box with your company name, proposal title and RFP
deadline.

Proposals shall be delivered to the attention of:

Denise Soto

Secretary Technician, Facilities & Operations
11537 Grovedale Drive

Whittier, CA 90604

It is the sole responsibility of the Firm submitting the proposal to ensure that its proposal is
actually received in the office prior to the deadline time and due date. Unless this RFP is
extended by a written amendment, proposals received after the time on the due date will not be
considered. Faxed or emailed proposals will not be accepted.

B. Proposal Completeness

Proposals shall be completed in all respects as required by the instructions herein. A proposal
may be rejected if it is conditional or incomplete, or if it contains alterations of form or other
irregularities of any kind as determined by the District. A proposal will be rejected if, in the
opinion of the District, the information contained therein was intended to mislead the District in
the evaluation of the proposal.

C. District Not Responsible For Preparation Costs

All costs incurred in the preparation, submission and/or presentation of Firms responding to the
RFP including, but not limited to, the Firm's travel expenses to attend any pre-conferences,
presentations, interviews, and negotiation sessions, shall be the sole responsibility of the Firm
and will not be reimbursed by the District. The District shall not pay for any costs incurred for
proposal or contract preparation as a result of termination of this RFP or termination of the
contract resulting from this RFP. By submitting a proposal in response to this RFP, the Firm
agrees and acknowledges that it will not be entitled to any payment or costs for any work or
services without entering into a Pre-construction Services Agreement and/or Lease-Leaseback
Contract approved and ratified by the District’s governing Board of Education.

D. Right to Use Ideas

All proposals and other materials submitted become the property of the District. District reserves
the right to use any ideas presented in any response to the RFP. Selection or rejection of the
proposal shall not affect this right.

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 11 of 16




005632.0011325

146152.1

E. Modification or Withdrawal Of Proposal

A Firm may modify or withdraw a proposal after submission by written request of withdrawal
and re-submission, provided that the proposal withdrawal is prior to the proposal deadline
specified.

F. Amendments

Firms are advised that the District reserves the right to amend this RFP at any time. Amendments
will be done formally by providing written amendments to all potential Firms known to have
received a copy of the RFP and/or by publishing the amendment on the District’s website.

G. Equal Opportunity

The Firm shall certify that it is an Equal Opportunity Employer and has made a good faith effort
to improve minority employment and agrees to meet federal and state guidelines. Legal residents
of the United States of America shall be used in providing all services under this RFP.

Firm shall not discriminate nor permit discrimination against any person because of race, color,
religion, age, national origin, ancestry, creed, handicap, sexual orientation, or union membership
in the performance of the work, including but not limited to preparation, manufacturing,
fabrication, installation, erection and delivery of all supplies and equipment. In the event of
receipt of such evidence of such discrimination by the Firm or its agents, employees or
representatives, District shall have the right to rescind and terminate the contract.

The successful Firm agrees to include the paragraph above with appropriate adjustments in all
subcontracts, which are entered into for work to be performed pursuant to the contract.

H. Waiver or Breach Thereof

No term or provision of this RFP shall be deemed waived and no breach excused, unless such
waiver or consent shall be in writing and signed by an individual authorized to so waive or
consent. Any consent by either party to, or waiver of, a breach by the other, whether express or
implied, shall not constitute a consent to, waiver of, or excuse for, any other breach or
subsequent breach, except as may be expressly provided in the waiver or consent.

I. Covenant Against Gratuities

The Firm warrants that no gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were
offered or given by the Firm or any agent or representative of the Firm, to any officer or
employee or consultant of the District with a view toward securing the resultant contract or
securing favorable treatment with respect to any determinations concerning the award of the
contract. For breach or violation of this provision, the District shall have the right to terminate
any negotiation or the resultant contract, either in whole or in part, and any loss or damage
sustained by the District in procuring on the open market any items which the Firm agreed to
supply shall be borne and paid for by the Firm. The rights and remedies of the District provided

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 12 of 16




005632.0011325

146152.1

in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided
by law.

J. Indemnification and Insurance

The Firm, at its own expense and without exception, shall indemnify, defend and pay all
damages, costs, expenses, including attorney fees, and otherwise hold harmless the District, its
employees and representatives, from any liability of any nature or kind in regard to the delivery
of these services. (See, Construction Services Agreement Section 35 for insurance requirements
and Section 36 for hold harmless and indemnify requirements.)

K. Conflict of Interest

The Firm is in agreement that it presently has no interest and will not acquire any interest,
directly or indirectly, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the
services hereunder. The Firm further agrees that no person having any such known interest or
conveyed an interest shall be employed, directly or indirectly, in the delivery of services under
this RFP.

L. Independent Contractor

The Firm represents itself as an independent contractor offering such services to the general
public and shall not represent him/herself or his/her employees to be an employee of the District.
Therefore, the Firm shall assume all legal and financial responsibility for taxes, FICA, employee
fringe benefits, workers compensation, employee insurance, minimum wage requirements,
overtime, and other expenses.

M. Precedence of Documents

The contract between the District and the successful Firm(s) shall consist of (1) this Request for
Proposals (RFP) and any amendments thereto, (2) the Agreements included herein to be executed
with the successful Firm(s); and (3) the proposal submitted by the Firm to the District in
response to the RFP. In the event of a conflict in language between the documents referenced
above, the provisions and requirements set forth and/or referenced in the Agreements shall
govern. However, the District reserves the right to clarify any contractual relationship in writing
with the concurrence of the Firm, and such written clarification shall govern in case of conflict
with the applicable requirements stated in the RFP or the Firm’s proposal. In all other matters not
affected by the written clarification, if any, the RFP shall govern.

N. Compliance with Laws

In connection with the furnishing of services or performance of work under this RFP, the Firm
agrees to comply with the Fair Labor Standards Act, Equal Opportunity Employment Act, and all
other applicable federal and state laws, regulations and executive orders to the extent that the
same may be applicable.

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 13 of 16



X. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND BEST VALUE SCORE

A. Proposal Evaluation Committee

The District’s Proposal Evaluation Committee will consist of at least three (3) members and will
score each proposal based on the evaluation categories and points set forth in the RFP (See,
Section X.B.). Each Firm’s proposal will be evaluated and scored only on the information that is
included in the Firm’s proposal. If any information is missing or incomplete in your proposal,
you will not be provided the opportunity to supply the missing or incomplete information, nor
will the District seek clarification of any information included in the proposals. Each proposal
must be capable of being evaluated independently based solely on the information contained in
the proposal.

B. Evaluation Categories, Points, and Scoring

Each member on the Proposal Evaluation Committee will independently score each proposal and
each Firm’s initial score will be equal to the average score from the Evaluation Committee (i.e.,
the total number of points from the Proposal Evaluation Committee divided by the number of
Proposal Evaluation Committee members: initial score = sum total of points/number of
committee members). The initial score will be calculated to two decimal places. Although the
Proposal Evaluation Committee will independently score each proposal, the members reserve the
right to discuss the RFP process and information in any proposal with other members.

The RFP contains nine (9) Evaluation Categories, as discussed in Section VIII.C., and the
maximum number of points for each category is shown in the table below. There are 1500
possible points.

EVALUATION CATEGORY POINTS
Mandatory Requirements Pass/Fail
Firm Personnel, Capacity, and Methodology 200
Relevant Experience and Past Performance 350
Pre-construction Services 150
Labor Compliance/Skilled and Trained Workforce 100
Safety 100
Local Business Outreach and Participation 100
Exceptions to Pre-construction/LLB Agreements 150
Price* (Attachment 2) 350

MAXIMUM TOTAL SCORE 1500
* To be Scored After Interviews

C. Short List Interviews

After each Firm’s initial score is calculated, the Proposal Evaluation Committee will determine
the short list of Firms that will be invited to interview with the Proposal Evaluation Committee.
The number of Firms to be interviewed shall be in the District’s sole discretion. Firms invited to

005632.0011325 E
146152.1 Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 14 of 16
o ——— — ——————— = ———————rrr————eee— =]



005632.0011325

146152.1

interview with the Proposal Evaluation Committee will be required to bring their fee proposal
(Attachment 2) in a sealed envelope to the interview. The interview will consist of a presentation
(15 minutes) followed by a question and answer period (30 minutes). After the interview, the
Proposal Evaluation Committee will add the points for the “Interview” Evaluation Category
based on the information presented at the interviews and the Firm’s performance to determine
the Firm’s total final score. If the Firm provides information during the Interview that differs
from, or otherwise clarifies any information in the proposal submitted, the Proposal Evaluation
Committee reserves the right to adjust any previous points given to the Firm in the appropriate
Evaluation Category. Any adjustments in points will be a decrease and no increase in points will
be given. Therefore, it is critical all Firms provide all required and detailed information in the
Firm’s proposal. The total final scores will be used to determine the Best Value Scores (as
defined in Education Code section 17400). Best Value Score = sum total of points/number of
committee members. A Best Value Score will not be calculated for those Firms not invited to
interview with the Proposal Evaluation Committee.

XI. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

District Obligation

Receipt of proposals and responses to this RFP does not obligate the District in any way. The
District reserves the right to accept or reject any or all proposals, and to waive any irregularities
or informalities in any proposal or in the RFP process. Firms will not be entitled to any payment
or costs for any work or services without entering into a Pre-construction Services Agreement
and/or Lease-Leaseback Contract approved and ratified by the District’s governing Board of
Education.

Award of Contract

This RFP implies no obligation to award contracts to any Firm. If it is in the best interest of the
District, the District retains the sole and absolute right to select the Firm that best meets the
District requirements. The award is subject to acceptance by the Governing Board of the District.

Approval to Start Work

The successful Firm may perform lease-leaseback services once a Lease-Leaseback Agreement
(Site Lease, Sublease, and Construction Services Agreement) has been fully executed and
approved by the parties and the District’s Board, and all appropriate documentation has been
received and approved by the District, and a purchase order has been issued. The District shall
not be responsible for any costs or compensation for work done, even in good faith, prior to
approval of the agreements and purchase order issuance by the Governing Board of the District.

Ownership of Documents

All proposals and materials submitted in response to this RFP shall become the property of the
District and shall be considered a part of public records and subject to disclosure under the
California Public Records Act, unless exempted by law. In addition, all designs, drawings,
specifications, notes and other work developed in the performance of any services resulting from
this RFP shall be the sole property of District and may be used by District for any purposes
without additional compensation to the selected Firm. The selected Firm agrees not to assert any
rights or to establish any claim under the design patent or copyright laws.

_—_ — — e . ——  — .  ————

Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 15 of 16
e ——




Joint Ventures

Where two or more Firms desire to submit a single response to this RFP, they should do so on a
prime-subcontractor basis rather than as a joint venture or informal team. The District intends to
contract with a single Firm and not with multiple Firms doing business as a joint venture.

Fingerprinting

Per the provisions of Education Code section 45125.1, the District has a zero tolerance policy for
all Firms having any contacts with students without clearance from the State Department of
Justice. All assigned personnel shall comply with the fingerprinting clearance law prior to
providing services at the school sites.

#
0056320011325 T e e e e
146152.1 Lowell Joint School District Lease-Leaseback RFP Page 16 of 16

—
e ————————————



ATTACHMENT 1 — FIRM QUESTIONNAIRE

The Respondent shall furnish all the following information accurately and completely for the
Respondent and each of the proposed staff and submit this with the proposal. Failure to comply
with this requirement may cause rejection of the Respondent’s qualifications. Additional sheets
may be attached if necessary. “You” or “your” or “Respondent” as used herein refers to the
Respondent and/or any of its owners, officers, directors, shareholders, parties, principals, or any
qualifying individuals including any RME or RMO.

If the same information is provided elsewhere in your qualification and qualification materials,
then please clearly identify such in the following questions.

Please be advised that the District may request verbal or written clarifications, additional
information, an interview or presentation at any time regarding this questionnaire.

SECTION A - GENERAL INFORMATION

() Respondent name, address and contact information:

(2)  Telephone: Facsimile:

Email and Internet Addresses:

3) Type of Respondent: (check one)
Individual Partnership Corporation

(4)  Names and titles of all principals/officers of the Respondent:

Name Title Phone Number

005632.0011325

146152.1



()

(6)

)

®

)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

005632.0011325

1461521

Please list any applicable certifications and licenses and their associated numbers:

Have you or any of your principals ever conducted similar services under a different
name or certification or different license number?

(a) If yes, give other name, address and certification or license number.
Name

Address

License No. (if any)

How many years has Respondent been in business under its present business name?

How many years of experience does Respondent have providing similar services?

For how many public agencies has Respondent provided similar services?

Please list the public agencies, including any school districts that Respondent has
provided similar services for:

Please attach a short history of the Respondent including whether it is local, national, or
international as well as approximate number of employees. Also provide the number of
offices and locations.

Identify pre-construction and lease-leaseback construction services performed for other
school districts in accordance with parameters described above.

Describe how Respondent has successfully provided pre-construction and lease-leaseback
construction services such as those described herein.

2



(14) Describe the unique or innovative pre-construction and lease-leaseback construction
services utilized on previous projects.

SECTION B — LEGAL

(15) Have you or any of your principals been in any claim, litigation or arbitration of any kind
on a question or questions relating to similar services involving a school or community
college district during the prior five (§) years?

(a) If yes, provide the name of the public agency and briefly detail the dispute:

(16) Have you ever had a service agreement terminated for convenience or cause in the prior
five (5) years?

(a) If yes, provide details including the name of the other party:

(17) 1Is Respondent, owners, and/or any principal or manager involved in or is Respondent
aware of any pending litigation regarding professional misconduct, bad faith, discrimination, or
sexual harassment?

(a) If yes, provide details:

005632.0011325
146152.1



(18) Is Respondent, owners, and/or any principals or manager involved in or aware of any
pending disciplinary action and/or investigation conducted by any local, state or federal
agency?

(a) If yes, provide details:

(20) Will Respondent comply with all District, local, state and federal legal requirements,
regulations and laws?

SECTION C — ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

(21) Please provide any other information that may assist the District in ascertaining your
qualifications, capability and customer service under any resultant agreement.

SECTION D - CONFLICT OF INTEREST

(22) Have you ever had any direct or indirect business, financial or other connection with any
official, employee or consultant of the District? Identify any conflict of interest in (a):

(a) Please elaborate and discuss any potential, apparent or actual conflict of
interest:

SECTION E. Exceptions to Agreement Forms

The Firm is required to list any exceptions to terms in the Agreement Forms below.

005632.0011325
146152.1



I certify and declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that
the information provided in the foregoing Firm Questionnaire is true and correct.

Executed this day of , 20 , at , State of

Company Name Signature

Title Print Name

005632.0011325
146152.1



ATTACHMENT 2 - FEE PROPOSAL

DO NOT SUBMIT THIS FORM WITH THE PROPOSAL. ATTACHMENT 2 MUST BE
BROUGHT TO THE INTERVIEW IN A SEALED ENVELOPE.

This “Attachment 2” must be submitted in a separate, sealed envelope with your company name,
proposal title, “Fee Proposal, Attachment 2”, labeled on the outside of the envelope and brought
to the interview. Only those Firms that are invited to interview will be required to complete the
Fee Proposal (Attachment 2).

The District intendes to select one lease-leaseback Contractor to provide services pursuant to the
RFP for Elementary Schools A, B, and C. The selected lease-leaseback Contractor will enter into
separate lease-leaseback contracts for each school site. All Firms must provide costs and pricing
for all items noted to be considered for selection. Any costs or pricing provided for each
Elementary School must be full and complete and not contingent or conditioned on the cost or
pricing for any other Elementary School.

Firms shall propose the following fees and costs as indicated in the table below:

1. The pre-construction fee should be expressed as a lump sum firm fixed price based on the
construction budget, schedule, and descriptions in Sections II and V of this RFP, and the attached
form Pre-construction Services Agreement.

2. The lease-leaseback fee shall include the Firm’s overhead, profit, and all other costs
(excluding general conditions) that are necessary to fully complete each Project, and should be
expressed as a percentage and shall be the same as the “Contractor’s Fee” as set forth in Article 3
of the Construction Services Agreement in Attachment 3 to this RFP.

NOTE: Should the Firm try to revise the Contractor’s Fee in the final Construction Services
Agreement for the corresponding Elementary School so that it exceeds the percentage below, the
Firm agrees and acknowledges that the District has the right to deem the Firm’s proposal non-
responsive, cancel the Lease-Leaseback Contract without owing any fees or costs to the Firm,
and award a contract to another Contractor/Firm.

3. The general conditions should be expressed as a monthly rate based on the construction
budget, schedule, and description in Section II of the RFP. Include a list of all general
conditions the Firm requires for each Elementarty School and submit with this
Attachment. No other general conditions not provided with this Attachment shall be allowed in
the Lease-Leaseback Contract.

005632.0011325

146152 1



1251971
STe1100°TE9S00

SweN Julld L
ameugIg swreN Auedwo))
10T ” Jo Kep STY) PIINOIXT

*100Y2§ AiDIUUD]TT YO0 A0f Pa.ainbad SUOIIPUOD [D4aUdS padibad puv pasododd Jip Jo 1S1] D IPnJoUL puv Yovjy

iuour 1od $ quowr xod $ (4500 AHyuoin)
#S)S0)) SUOHIPUO)) [RIIUIL)

(3s0) wondNISUO)) JO ¢/)

% % 39 YOrQISBIT-ISBI]
(gunowry wng dwnt) 394
$ 3 SIAIIG UOIINIISUO)-AIJ

J)RIPIULIINU] HONQ.Ie)S oyouey AICJUIWIF] WIIIL) MOPRIIA

SLSOD ANV 'TVSOdOdd Hd4d



ATTACHMENT 3 — AGREEMENT/ CONTRACT FORMS

005632.0011325
146152.1



000834.0001818
326379.1

PROJECT

SITE LEASE

Between

SCHOOL DISTRICT

and

Dated as of




PROJECT

SITE LEASE
This SITE LEASE is dated as of and is by and between the
School District, a school district duly organized and existing under the laws
of the State of California (the “District”) as lessor and , a California

corporation operating under the laws of the State of California (the “Lessee™).

WHEREAS, the District desires to provide for the construction of certain public improvements at the
School site (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the District’s governing board has determined that it is in the best interests of the District and
for the common benefit of the citizens it serves to construct the Project by leasing to the Lessee land and existing
buildings at the School site at which the public improvements are to be
constructed, as more specifically described in Exhibit “A,” (the “Site™), and subleasing from the Lessee the Site and
the Project under a Sublease Agreement (the “Sublease”) attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and by this reference
incorporated herein; and

WHEREAS, the Lessee has conducted Due Diligence of the Site and the Project to determine the suitability
of the site, site conditions, utilities, hazardous substances, and other conditions for the construction of the Project
(more fully detailed at Article 5 of the Construction Services Agreement); and

WHEREAS, the District is authorized under Section 17406 of the California Education Code to lease the
Site and its governing body has duly authorized the execution of this Site Lease; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to this Site Lease, the District and Lessee have agreed to the terms of the Sublease,
which is incorporated and attached hereto as Exhibit “B,” by which the District will sublease the Site and retain
beneficial use and occupancy of the Site during which term, improvements will be constructed by Lessee. As the
constructed improvements are completed, the District shall receive full beneficial use and occupancy of the
constructed improvements upon payment for such improvements by the District to the Lessee. As part of this Site
Lease, the District and the Lessee have agreed to terms by which the Lessee will perform construction
improvements on the Site during the term of the Sublease according to the terms of the Construction Services
Agreement (“CSA”), which is incorporated and attached to the Site Lease as Exhibit “C,” to ensure that the
improvements will meet the District’s expectations and comply with applicable law,

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants hereinafter set forth, District and Lessee agree as
follows:

1. DEFINITIONS. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Article
shall, for all purposes of this lease, have the meanings as herein specified.

A. “Commencement Date” shall mean the Project commencement date found in the Notice to
Proceed for the Project in accordance with the Construction Services Agreement.

B. “Construction Services Agreement” (CSA) means the Construction Services Agreement,
together with any duly authorized and executed amendments hereto.

C. “Construction Documents” consist of the Plans and Specifications approved by DSA under
Application Number , File Number ,
Allowances stipulated in the Contract Documents, and all Addendas, if any, issued prior to the
entry into this Agreement. The Construction Documents shall include all Modifications
generated after the Effective Date in accordance with the Contract Documents, including,

1

000834.0001818

326379.1



000834.0001818
326379.1

without limitation, a written amendment to the Contract signed by the Contractor and duly
executed and approved by the District, a Change Order, a Construction Change Document, or
a written order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect.

“Contract Documents” means those documents which form the entire Contract by and
between District and Contractor. As of the effective date of the Lease and Sublease, the
Contract Documents consist of the Lease, the Sublease, any General, Supplementary and
other Conditions, the Construction Services Agreement, including all exhibits and
attachments hereto, and the Construction Documents. The Contract Documents collectively
form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the
parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a written Modification. The
Contract Documents shall be binding solely upon the District and Contractor, do not create a
contractual relationship of any kind between the Architect and Contractor, between the
District and any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor, or between any persons or entities other
than the District and the Contractor, and are not intended to and do not create any third party
beneficiary. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of
obligations under the Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.
(See Article 14 of the CSA).

“Day” means a calendar day unless specifically designated as a business day.

“District” means the School District, a school
district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California.

“Effective Date” is the latter of the date upon which the District Board approves the Site
Lease and the Sublease and Contractor has executed the Site Lease and Sublease.

“Lessee” shall mean , and its successors and assigns.

“Project” means the improvements and related work to be constructed and installed by the
Contractor, as part of this Site Lease and in accordance with the Construction Services
Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit “C”.

“Site” refers to the grounds of the Project or in some cases may refer to multiple sites as
defined in the Contract Documents and such adjacent lands as may be directly affected by the
performance of the Work, more particularly described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

“Site Lease” or “Lease” means this Site Lease together with any duly authorized and
executed amendment hereto under which the District leases the Site to the Lessee.

“Sublease” means the Sublease attached hereto and incorporated as Exhibit “B”, together
with any duly authorized and executed amendment thereto.

“Sublease Payment” means any payment required to be made by the District pursuant to
Article 7 of the Sublease.

“Term of this Lease” or “Term” means the time during which this Lease is in effect, as
provided for in Article 3 of this Site Lease.




000834.0001818
326379.1

SITE LEASE.

The District leases to the Lessee, and the Lessee leases from the District, on the terms and
conditions  set  forth  herein, the Site situated in the City of
., County of ;
State of California, more specifically described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto, including any
improvements now or hereafter affixed thereto.

TERM.

The Term of this Site Lease shall become effective upon the authorized execution of this Site
Lease and upon completion of Lessee’s Due Diligence with regard to the Site and issuance of
a Notice to Proceed. The Term of this Site Lease shall terminate as of the last day of the
Sublease, unless sooner terminated as provided thereby. If on the scheduled date of
termination of this Site Lease, Sublease Payments shall have therefore been abated at any time
and for any reason, then the term of this Site Lease shall be subject to a Liquidated Damages
cost as set forth in Article 3.7 of the Construction Services Agreement and the Site Lease shall
be extended until the date upon which all such Sublease Payments shall be fully paid.
Without limiting any other term or provision of the Sublease Agreement or Construction
Services Agreement between the parties, at the termination of this Site Lease, natural or
otherwise, title to the Site, and any improvements constructed thereon by the Lessee, shall
vest in the District in accordance with Education Code section 17406.

REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS, AND WARRANTIES OF THE DISTRICT.
The District represents, covenants and warrants to the Lessee that:

The District has good and merchantable fee title to the Site and has authority to enter into and
perform its obligations under this Site Lease;

There are no liens on the Site other than Permitted Encumbrances;

All taxes, assessments or impositions of any kind with respect to the Site, if applicable, except
current taxes, have been paid in full;

The Site is properly zoned (or subject to an exception from zoning) for the intended purpose
and utilization of the Site ;

The District is in compliance with all laws, regulations, ordinances and orders of public
authorities applicable to the Site;

Except for Validation Actions concerning the Project, there is no litigation of any kind
currently pending or threatened regarding the Site or the District’s use of the Site for the
purposes contemplated by this Site Lease;

To the best of the District’s knowledge, except for that which shall be disclosed by the
District prior to the Project commencement date in the Notice to Proceed:

) no dangerous, toxic or hazardous pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, waste,
materials or substances, as defined in or governed by the provisions of any State or
Federal Law relating thereto (hereinafter collectively called “Environmental
Regulations”, and also including, but not limited to, urea-formaldehyde,
polychlorinated biphenyls, asbestos, asbestos containing materials, nuclear fuel or
waste, radioactive materials, explosives, carcinogens and petroleum products, or any

3



000834.0001818
326379.1

)

(€))

Q)

&)

(6

(7

®

©

other waste, material, substance, pollutant or contaminant which would subject the
owner of the Site or the Lessee or the Lessee’s subcontractors to any damages,
penalties or liabilities under any applicable Environmental Regulation (hereinafter
collectively called “Hazardous Substances”, are now or have been stored, located,
generated, produced, processed, treated, transported, incorporated, discharged,
emitted, released, deposited or disposed of in, upon, under, over or from the Site;

no threat exists of a discharge, release or emission of a Hazardous Substance upon or
from the Site into the environment;

the Site has not been used as or for a mine, a landfill, a dump or other disposal
facility, industrial or manufacturing facility, or a gasoline service station;

no underground storage tank is now located in the Site or has previously been
located therein;

no violation of any Environmental Regulation now exists relating to the Site, no
notice of any such violation or any alleged violation thereof has been issued or given
by any governmental entity or agency, and there is not now any investigation or
report involving the Site by any governmental entity or agency which in any way
relates to Hazardous Substances;

no person, party or private or governmental agency or entity has given any notice of
or asserted any claim, cause of action, penalty, cost or demand for payment or
compensation, whether or not involving any injury or threatened injury to human
health, the environment or natural resources, resulting or allegedly resulting from
any activity or event described in (1) above;

there are not now any actions, suits, proceedings or damage settlements relating in
any way to Hazardous Substances, in, upon, under over or from the Site;

the Site is not listed in the United States Environmental Protection Agency’s
National Priorities List of Hazardous Waste Sites or any other list of Hazardous
Substance sites maintained by any federal, state or local governmental agency; and

the Site is not subject to any lien or claim for lien or threat of a lien in favor of any
governmental entity or agency as a result of any release or threatened release-of any
Hazardous Substance.

To the extent permitted by law, the District shall not abandon the Site for the use for which it
is currently required by the District and further, shall not seek to substitute or acquire property
to be used as a substitute for the uses for which the Site and Project are to be maintained
under the Site Lease.

The term “Permitted Encumbrances” as used herein shall mean, as of any particular time:

)
()]

liens for general ad valorem taxes and assessments, if any, not then delinquent;

this Site Lease; the Sublease; any right or claim of any mechanic, laborer,
materialman, supplier, or vendor, if applicable, not filed or perfected in the manner
prescribed by law; easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights, and other
rights, reservations, covenants, conditions, or restrictions which exist of record as of
the date of this Site Lease and which will not materially impair the use of the Site;

4



000834.0001818
326379.1

3) easements, rights of way, mineral rights, drilling rights and other rights, reservations,
covenants, conditions, or restrictions established following the date of recordation of
this Site Lease and to which the Lessee and the District consent in writing which will
not impair or impede the operation of the Site.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE LESSEE. The Lessee represents
and warrants to the District that:

The Lessee is duly organized in the State of California, and in good standing under the laws
of the State of California, with full corporate power and authority to lease and own real and
personal property;

The Lessee has full power, authority and legal right to enter into and perform its obligations
under this Site Lease, and the execution, delivery and performance of this Site Lease has been
duly authorized by all necessary corporate actions on the part of the Lessee and does not
require any further approvals or consents;

Execution, delivery and performance of this Site Lease does not and will not result in any
breach of or constitute a default under any indenture, mortgage, contract, agreement or
instrument to which the Lessee is a party or by which it or its property is bound;

There is no pending or, to the best knowledge of the Lessee, threatened action or proceeding
before any court or administrative agency which will materially adversely affect the ability of
the Lessee to perform its obligations under this Site Lease; and

RENTAL.

The Lessee shall pay to the District as and for advance rental hereunder $1.00 per year or part
thereof, or the aggregate sum of [$1.00 x number of years of lease], on or before the date of
commencement of the Term of this Site Lease. The Lessee shall have no obligation to make
rental payments hereunder in the event the Commencement Date of this Site Lease does not
occur as a result of the District’s inability to issue a Notice to Proceed for the Project pursuant
to the provisions of the Construction Services Agreement.

PURPOSE.

The Lessee shall use the Site solely for the purpose of constructing the Project thereon and for
subleasing the Site and the Project to the District; provided, that upon the occurrence of an
Event of Default by the District under the Sublease, the Lessee may exercise the remedies
provided for in the Construction Services Agreement or the Sublease.

TERMINATION. The Lessee agrees, upon termination of this Site Lease or the end of the
Term of this Site Lease:

To quit and surrender the Site in the same good order and condition as it was in at the time of
commencement of the Term hereunder, reasonable wear and tear excepted;

To release and reconvey to the District any liens and encumbrances created or caused by the
Lessee; and

That any permanent improvements and structures existing upon the Site at the time of the
termination of this Site Lease shall remain thereon and title thereto shall vest in the District.



10.

11

12.

13.

14.

000834.0001818

326379.1

Notwithstanding the District’s foregoing rights in the event of termination, the Lessee shall
retain the right to full compensation for all services rendered prior to the termination,
including all rights they have under the Construction Services Agreement and the Sublease as
well as all recourse provided by California law including common law, for the value of the
work performed on the Site and/or the Project.

In the event the Construction Services Agreement is terminated pursuant to the provisions
therein, this Site Lease shall immediately terminate.

QUIET ENJOYMENT.

Subject to the terms of the Sublease attached hereto as Exhibit “B”, the District covenants and
agrees that it will not take any action to prevent the Lessee’s quiet enjoyment of the Site
during the Term hereof; and, that in the event District’s fee title to the Site is ever challenged
50 as to interfere with the Lessee’s right to occupy, use and enjoy the Site, the District will use
all governmental powers at its disposal, including the power of eminent domain, to obtain
unencumbered fee title to the Site and to defend the Lessee’s right to occupy, use, and enjoy
the Site. The District, however, retains the right, throughout the Site Lease Term, to use the
Site for District purposes, pursuant to the terms of the Sublease.

NO LIENS.

The District shall not mortgage, sell, assign, transfer or convey the Site or any part thereof to
any person during the Term of this Site Lease, without the written consent of the Lessee.
Nothing herein shall preclude the District from granting utility easements across the Site to
facilitate the use and operation of the Project for which it is intended.

RIGHT OF ENTRY.

The District reserves the right for any of its duly authorized representatives to use the Project
during the Term of this Site Lease or Sublease and enter upon the Site at any reasonable time
to inspect the same or to make any repairs, improvements or changes necessary for the
preservation thereof, but in doing so shall not interfere with the Lessee’s operations on the
Project.

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASING.

The Lessee will not assign or otherwise dispose of or encumber the Site or this Site Lease
without the written consent of the District.

NO WASTE.

The Lessee agrees that at all times that it is in possession of the Site it will not commit suffer
or permit any waste on the Site, and it will not willfully or knowingly use or permit the use of
the Site for any illegal act or purpose.

DEFAULT.
In the event the Lessee shall be in default in the performance of any obligation on its part to
be performed under the terms of the Construction Services Agreement and this Site Lease,

which default continues for thirty (30) days following notice and demand for correction
thereof to the Lessee, the District may exercise any and all remedies granted by law, except

6



15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

000834.0001818
326379.1

that no merger of this Site Lease and of the Sublease shall be deemed to occur as a result
thereof.

TITLE.

During the Term of this Site Lease, the District shall hold title to the Site and obtain title to
the Project from the Lessee, including any and all additions which comprise improvements,
fixtures, repairs, replacements or modifications, as such improvements are built and paid for
pursuant to the Construction Services Agreement with full title vesting in the District to all
improvements upon the end of the Term of this Site Lease.

TAXES.

The terms of this Site Lease may result in the creation of a possessory interest. If such a
possessory interest is vested in a private party to this document, the private party may be
subjected to the payment of personal property taxes levied on such interest. Pursuant to
Section 107.6 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code, District hereby notifies Lessee
that: (i) the property interest obtained by Lessee pursuant to the Site Lease may be subject to
property taxation; and (ii) Lessee may be subject to the payment of property taxes levied on
the property interest obtained by Lessee.

EMINENT DOMAIN.

In the event the whole or any part of the Site or the improvements thereon, including but not
limited to the Project, is taken by eminent domain, the financial interest of the Lessee shall be
recognized and is hereby determined to be the amount of all Sublease Payments and Retention
Payment, as applicable, then due or past due, less any allowed withholdings or offsets, and
unearned interest as of the date the Lessee receives payment in full. The balance of the award
in such eminent domain action, if any, shall be paid to the District.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES.

Pursuant to Lessee’s Due Diligence, as further described in Article 5 of the Construction
Services Agreement, Lessee has determined the Term of this Site Lease which shall extend at
least until the Punch List is completed under Article 13 of the Construction Services
Agreement. Pursuant to the Construction Services Agreement, Liquidated Damages shall
apply if the Contract Time is exceeded.

PARTIAL INVALIDITY.

If any one or more of the terms, covenants or conditions or this Site Lease shall to any extent
be declared invalid, unenforceable, void or voidable for any reason whatsoever by a court of
competent jurisdiction, the finding or order or decree of which becomes final, none of the
remaining terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this Site Lease shall be affected
thereby, and each provision of this Site Lease shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest
extent permitted by law.

NOTICES.

Any notices or filings required to be given or made under this Site Lease shall be served,
given or made in writing upon the District or the Lessee, as the case may be, by personal
delivery or registered mail to the respective addresses given below. Any change in the
addresses noted shall not be binding upon the other party unless preceded by no less than

[



If to Lessee:

If to District:

21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

000834.0001818
326379.1

thirty (30) days prior written notice. Any such notices shall be deemed to have been received
by the addressee if delivered to the person for whom they are intended or if sent by registered
mail, return receipt requested, or by email, or fax followed by regular mail, addressed as
follows:

Attn:
Email:

SCHOOL DISTRICT

Attn;
Email:

BINDING EFFECT.

This Site Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the District, the Lessee
and its respective successors in interest and assigns.

AMENDMENTS AND MODIFICATIONS.

This Site Lease shall not be effectively amended, changed, modified, altered or terminated
without the written agreement of the District and the Lessee.

EXECUTION IN COUNTERPARTS.

This Site Lease may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall
be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

LAWS, VENUE AND ATTORNEYS’ FEES.

The terms and provisions of this Site Lease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of California. If any action is brought in a court of law to enforce any term of this
Site Lease, the action shall be brought in a state court situated in the County of
. State of California, unless a court finds jurisdiction
or venue is only proper in a federal court, or a court outside this county. In the event of any
such litigation between the parties, the parties shall pay for their respective costs incurred,
including attorneys’ fees.

INTEGRATION/MODIFICATION.

This Site Lease represents the entire understanding of the District and Lessee as to those
matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior oral or written understanding,
promises or representations with respect to those matters covered herein and shall not be
amended, altered, or changed except by a written agreement signed by the parties hereto.



26. HEADINGS.

The captions or headings in this Site Lease are for convenience only and in no way define,
limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Site Lease.

27. TIME.

Time is of the essence in this Site Lease and each and all of its provisions.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have executed this Site Lease by their authorized officers as
of the day and year first written above.

“DISTRICT” “LESSEE”
SCHOOL
DISTRICT
BY: BY:
9
000834.0001818

326379.1



000834.0001818
326379.1

EXHIBIT “A”

DESCRIPTION OF SITE

[TO BE INSERTED]

10



EXHIBIT “B”

SUBLEASE

[TO BE INSERTED]

000834.0001818
326379.1



EXHIBIT “C”»

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

[TO BE INSERTED]

000834.0001818
326379.1



000834.0001818
326389.1

PROJECT

SUBLEASE AGREEMENT
Between
SCHOOL DISTRICT
and

Dated as of




PROJECT

SUBLEASE AGREEMENT
This SUBLEASE AGREEMENT (“Sublease™) is dated as of , and is by and between
the School District, a school district duly organized and existing under the
laws of the State of California (“District”), and , a California corporation

and operating under the laws of the State of California (“Lessor” or “Contractor”).
RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the District deems it essential for its own governmental purpose, to finance the construction of
certain improvements as described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto (the “Project”) and situated on the
School site described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto (the “Site”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 17400 et seq. of the Education Code, the District may enter into leases and
agreements relating to real property and buildings used by the District; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 17406 of the Education Code, the District is leasing the Site to Lessor
under a lease agreement dated the date hereof (the “Site Lease™) for the purpose of Lessor constructing
improvements on the Site during the Term of the Site Lease on the terms and conditions the District finds to be in its
best interest and set forth in this Sublease and the Construction Services Agreement attached as Exhibit “C” to the
Site Lease; and

WHEREAS, the District owns the Site, and pursuant to the Construction Services Agreement, has prepared
and adopted plans and specifications for the completion of improvements, which have been approved pursuant to
law as required by Section 17402 of the Education Code; and

WHEREAS, the District and Lessor agree to mutually cooperate now or hereafter, to the extent possible, in
order to sustain the intent of this Sublease and the bargain of both parties hereto, and to provide Sublease Payments
to be made on the dates and in the amount set forth herein.

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the District and Lessor parties hereto agree as
follows:

1. DEFINITIONS. Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this Article shall, for all
purposes of this Sublease, have the meanings as herein specified.

A. “Commencement Date” shall mean the Project commencement date found in the Notice to
Proceed for the Project in accordance with the Construction Services Agreement.

B. “Construction Costs” means any and all costs incurred by the Lessor with respect to the
construction and equipping, as the case may be, of the Project, whether paid or incurred prior
to or after the date hereof, including, without limitation, costs for Site preparation, the
removal or demolition of existing structures, the construction of the Project and related
facilities and improvements, and all other work in connection therewith, security of the Site
and Project, Lessor’s overhead and supervision at the Project Site, all costs and expenses
including any taxes or insurance premiums paid by the Lessor with respect to the Property,
and administrative and other expenses necessary or incident to the Project, excluding Lessor’s
and Developer’s home office overhead and profit. The term “Construction Costs” includes all

1

000834.0001818

326389.1



000834.0001818
326389.1

Lessor’s costs associated with preparing or generating additional copies of any Construction
Documents, as defined below, related to or required for the Project, including preparation or
generation of additional plans and specifications for Lessor’s subcontractors. In no event
shall Construction Costs exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price.

“Construction Services Agreement” (CSA) means the Construction Services Agreement
attached hereto, together with any duly authorized and executed amendments hereto.

“Construction Documents” consist of the Plans and Specifications approved by DSA under
Application Number , File Number
Allowances stipulated in the Contract Documents, and all Addendas, if any, issued prior to the
entry into this Agreement. The Construction Documents shall include all Modifications
generated after the Effective Date in accordance with the Contract Documents, including,
without limitation, a written amendment to the Contract signed by the Contractor and duly
executed and approved by the District, a Change Order, a Construction Change Document, or
a written order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect.

“Contract Documents” means those documents which form the entire Contract by and
between District and Contractor. As of the effective date of the Lease and Sublease, the
Contract Documents consist of the Lease, the Sublease, any General, Supplementary and
other Conditions, the Construction Services Agreement, including all exhibits and
attachments hereto, and the Construction Documents. The Contract Documents collectively
form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the
parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written
or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a written Modification. The
Contract Documents shall be binding solely upon the District and Contractor, do not create a
contractual relationship of any kind between the Architect and Contractor, between the
District and any Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor, or between any persons or entities other
than the District and the Contractor, and are not intended to and do not create any third party
beneficiary. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of
obligations under the Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.
(See Article 14 of the CSA).

“Day” means a calendar day unless specifically designated as a business day.

“District” means the School District, a school
district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California.

«Effective Date” is the latter of the date upon which the District Board approves the Site
Lease and the Sublease and Contractor has executed the Site Lease and Sublease.

“Event of Default” means one or more events of default as defined in Article 16 of this
Sublease.

“Guaranteed Maximum Price” or “GMP” means the Guaranteed Maximum Price
established pursuant to Article 5 of the CSA to be paid to Lessor for Lessor’s construction of
the Project hereunder, subject to any adjustments for Extra Work/Modifications as provided in
Article 17 of the CSA.

“Lessor” shall mean , and its successors and assigns.

“Project” means the improvements and related work to be constructed and installed by the
Lessor, as more particularly described and/or referenced in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

2



000834.0001818
326389.1

«Site” refers to the grounds of the Project or in some cases may refer to multiple sites as
defined in the Contract Documents and such adjacent lands as may be directly affected by the
performance of the Work, particularly described in Exhibit “B” attached hereto.

“Site Lease” or “Lease” means the Site Lease of even date herewith, by and between the
District and the Lessor together with any duly authorized and executed amendment thereto
under which the District leases the Site to the Lessor.

«Sublease” means this Sublease together with any duly authorized and executed amendment
hereto.

“Sublease Payment” means any payment required to be made by the District pursuant to
Article 7 of this Sublease.

“Term of this Sublease” or “Term” means the time during which this Sublease is in effect,
as provided for in Article 3 of this Sublease.

SUBLEASE.

Lessor hereby leases and subleases to District, and District hereby leases and subleases from
Lessor the Project and the Site, including any real property improvements now or hereafter
affixed thereto in accordance with the provisions herein for the full Term of this Sublease.
The leasing by the Lessor to the District of the Site shall not effect or result in a merger of the
District’s leasehold estate pursuant to this Sublease and its fee estate as lessor under the Site
Lease, and the Lessor shall continue to have and hold a leasehold estate in said Site pursuant
to the Site Lease throughout the Term thereof and the Term of this Sublease.

TERM OF THE SUBLEASE.

The Term of this Sublease shall become effective upon the authorized execution of this
Sublease and issuance of a Notice to Proceed under the terms of the CSA and payment of the
last Sublease Payment, unless otherwise terminated pursuant to this Sublease, the Site Lease,
or the CSA.

Termination of Term. Except as otherwise provided, the Term of this Sublease shall
terminate upon the earliest of any of the following events:

¢)) An Event of Default and the Lessor’s election to terminate this Sublease pursuant to
the provisions of Articles 16 and 17, hereof;

2) The arrival of the last day of the Term of this Sublease and payment of all Sublease
Payments hereunder; or

3) The exercise of the District’s option under Article 21 hereof.

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF DISTRICT. The
District represents and warrants to Lessor that:

District is a public school district, duly organized and existing under the Constitution and laws
of the State of California with authority to enter into this Sublease and to perform all of its
obligations hereunder;



000834.0001818
326389.1

District’s governing body has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Sublease and
further represents and warrants that all requirements have been met and procedures followed
to ensure its enforceability;

The execution, delivery and performance of this Sublease does not and will not result in any
breach of or constitute a default under any indenture, mortgage, contract, agreement or
instrument to which District is a party by which it or its property is bound;

There is no pending or, to the knowledge of District, threatened action or proceeding before
any court or administrative agency which will materially adversely affect the ability of
District to perform its obligations under this Sublease;

The Project and the Site are essential to District in the performance of its governmental
functions and their estimated useful life to the District exceeds the Term of this Sublease;

District shall take such action as may be necessary to include all Sublease Payments in its
annual budget and annually to appropriate an amount necessary to make such Sublease
Payments;

District shall not abandon the Site for the use for which it is currently required by District and,
to the extent permitted by law, District shall not seek to substitute or acquire property to be
used as a substitute for the uses for which the site is maintained under the Sublease; and

District shall not allow any Hazardous Substances (as such term is defined in the Site Lease
and limited by that which shall be disclosed by the District prior to the Project
commencement date in the Notice to Proceed) to be used or stored on, under or about the Site.

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF LESSOR. Lessor represents and
warrants to District that:

Lessor is duly organized in the State of California, and in good standing as a corporation
under the laws of the State of California, with full corporate power and authority to lease and
own real and personal property;

Lessor has full power, authority and legal right to enter into and perform its obligations under
this Sublease, and the execution, delivery and performance of this Sublease has been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate actions on the part of Lessor and does not require any
further approvals or consents;

The execution, delivery and performance of this Sublease does not and will not result in any
breach of or constitute a default under any indenture, mortgage, contract, agreement or
instrument to which Lessor is a party by which they or their property is bound;

There is no pending or, to the knowledge of Lessor, threatened action or proceeding before
any court or administrative agency which will materially adversely affect the ability of Lessor
to perform their obligations under this Sublease; and

Lessor will not mortgage or encumber the Site or the Sublease or assign this Sublease or their
rights to receive Sublease Payments hereunder, except as permitted herein.



000834.0001818
326389.1

APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS.

In order to ensure that moneys sufficient to pay all costs will be available for this purpose
when required, District shall maintain on deposit, and shall annually appropriate funds
sufficient to make all Sublease Payments which become due to Lessor under this Sublease
Agreement.

SUBLEASE PAYMENTS.

District shall pay Lessor sublease payments (the “Sublease Payments”) for the improvements,
use and occupancy of the Project and Site. The obligation of the District to pay Sublease
Payments hereunder shall constitute a current expense of the District and shall not in any way
be construed to be a debt of the District in contravention of any applicable constitutional or
statutory limitations or requirements concerning the creation of indebtedness by the District,
nor shall anything contained herein constitute a pledge of the general tax revenues, funds or
moneys of the District. The Sublease Payments, which the parties acknowledge and agree, are
good and sufficient consideration for the improvements and the District’s use and occupancy
of the Project and the Site.

The District shall pay Lessor the portion of the GMP in accordance with the CSA. No
Sublease Payment shall be made by the District in an amount that exceeds the aggregate cost
approved in accordance with the CSA to the Lessor of the work on the Project completed to
the date the Lessor submits an application for payment, less the aggregate amount of all
Sublease Payments previously made by the District to the Lessor.

In the event the District elects to exercise its option under Article 21.B below, the District’s
obligations under this Sublease including, but not limited to, the District’s obligations to make
Sublease Payments under this Article, shall thereupon cease and terminate.

Except as specifically provided in this Article and in Article 9 hereof or as otherwise provided
by law, the obligation of the District to make Sublease Payments when due and payable
hereunder will be absolute and unconditional in all events and will not be subject to any
set-off, defense, counterclaim, abatement or recoupment for any reason whatsoever.

FAIR RENTAL VALUE.

Sublease Payments shall be paid by District in consideration of the right of possession of, and
the continued quiet use and enjoyment of, the Project and the Site during the Term, as well as
payment for any tenant improvements made by the Lessor which title to the tenant
improvements shall vest progressively in the District as such tenant improvements are built
and paid for pursuant to the Construction Services Agreement. Full ownership of the Project
shall occur at the end of the Term of this Sublease and payment of any amounts owed under
this Sublease, unless this Sublease, the Site Lease or Construction Services Agreement is
terminated in accordance with their respective terms and conditions. The parties hereto have
agreed and determined that such total rental is not in excess of the fair rental value of the
Project and the Site. In making such determination, consideration has been given to the fair
market value of the Project and the Site, that title to the improvements completed and paid for
by District as to which the District shall have the right to possess, occupy and use, the uses
and purposes which may be served by the Project and the Site and the benefits therefrom
which will accrue to the District and the general public, the ability of the District to make
additions, and modifications and improvements to the Project and the Site which are not
inconsistent with the Construction Services Agreement (Exhibit “C” to Site Lease) and which
do not interfere with the Lessor’s work on the Project and the Site.



10.

11.

000834.0001818
326389.1

SUBLEASE ABATEMENT.

In addition to delay of Sublease Payments provided in Article 7, above, Sublease Payments
due hereunder with respect to the Project and the Site shall be subject to abatement prior to
the commencement of the use of the Project and the Site by the District or during any period
in which, by reason of material damage to or destruction of the Project or the Site, there is
substantial interference with the use and right of possession by the District of the Project and
the Site or any substantial portion thereof. For each potential incident of substantial
interference, decisions to be made on i) whether or not abatement shall apply; ii) the date
upon which abatement shall commence; iii) the applicable portion of Sublease Payments to be
abated and; iv) the concluding date of the particular abatement shall all be subject to
determinations by the District. The amount of Sublease abatement shall be such that the
Sublease Payments paid by the District during the period of Project and Site restoration do not
exceed the fair rental value of the usable portions of the Project and Site. In the event of any
damage or destruction to the Project or the Site, this Sublease shall continue in full force and
effect.

USE OF SITE AND PROJECT.

Subject to reasonable interference from construction operations by the Lessor under the terms
of the Construction Services Agreement during the Term of this Sublease, Lessor shall
provide the District with quiet use and enjoyment of the Site without suit, or hindrance from
Lessor or their assigns, provided District is in compliance with its duties under this Sublease.
District will not use, operate or maintain the Site or Project improperly, carelessly, in
violation of any applicable law or in a manner contrary to that contemplated by this Sublease.
District shall provide all permits and licenses, if any, necessary for the operation of the Project
and Site. In addition, the District agrees to comply in ail respects (including, without
limitation, with respect to the time, maintenance and operation of the Project and Site) with
laws of all jurisdictions in which its operations involving the Project and Site may extend and
any legislative, executive, administrative or judicial body exercising any power or jurisdiction
over the Site or the Project; provided, however, that District may contest in good faith the
validity or application of any such law or rule in any reasonable manner which does not, in
the opinion of Lessor, adversely affect the estate of Lessor in and to the Site or the Project or
its interest or rights under this Sublease. Lessor acknowledges that at any time during the
Term of this Sublease, District may access the Site to conduct District business. Lessor
acknowledges and agrees to the District’s use or occupation of the Site, so long as such use or
occupation does not unreasonably interfere with construction of the Project. Upon substantial
completion of the Project or severable portions hereof, the Lessor shall provide the District
with quiet use and enjoyment of the Site without suit or hindrance from the Lessor or its
assigns, subject to reasonable interference from ongoing construction operations on any
remaining portion of the Site under construction by the Lessor. Notwithstanding any
provision to the contrary in this Sublease or the Construction Services Agreement, the District
shall, concurrent with any occupancy, use or possession of any portion of the Project, furnish
property and loss liability insurance to cover any such portion of the Project or Site it
occupies, uses or possesses. District shall provide certificates of insurance and additional
insured endorsement naming Lessor.

LESSOR’S INSPECTION/ACCESS TO THE SITE.

District agrees that Lessor and any of Lessor’s representatives shall have the right at all
reasonable times to enter upon the Site or any portion thereof to construct and improve the
Project, to examine and inspect the Site or Project, to make repairs or service warranty
obligations, and to exercise its remedies pursuant to the section in this Sublease entitled

6



12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

000834.0001818
326389.1

“Remedies on Default.” District further agrees that Lessor and any of Lessor’s
representatives shall have such rights of access to the Site as may be reasonably necessary to
cause the proper maintenance of the Site and the Project in the event of failure by District to
perform its obligations hereunder.

PROJECT ACCEPTANCE.

District shall acknowledge final inspection and completion of the Project by executing and
recording a Notice of Completion. The validity of this Sublease will not be affected by any
delay in or failure of completion of the Project.

ALTERATIONS AND ATTACHMENTS. All permanent additions and improvements that
are made to the Project shall belong to and become the property of Lessor, subject to the
provisions of this Sublease. Separately identifiable attachments added to the Project by the
District shall remain the property of the District. At Lessor’s request, the District agrees to
remove the attachments and restore the Project to substantially as good a condition as when
acquired and constructed, normal wear and tear excepted, in the event of failure by the
District to perform its obligations hereunder.

MAINTENANCE AND UTILITIES.

Until the date of beneficial occupancy by the District of the entire Project and Substantial
Completion of the Project as defined in the CSA, Lessor shall, in its own name, contract for
and pay the expenses of all utility services required for the Project. Upon beneficial
occupancy of the entire Project and Substantial Completion of the Project, the District shall,
in its own name, contract for and pay the expenses of all utility services including, but not
limited to, all air conditioning, heating, electrical, gas, refuse collection, water, and sewer
units. The District shall be responsible for all utilities and maintenance of only the portion of
the Site occupied solely or beneficially by the District during construction of the Project by
Lessor. Once the Project is accepted by the District as finally complete, the District shall
have responsibility for maintenance and repair of the entire Project and the Site, except for
warranty or other obligations of Lessor relating to the improvements as set forth in the
Construction Services Agreement.

TAXES.

District shall keep the Project and the Site free and clear of all levies, liens, and encumbrances
and shall pay all license fees, registration fees, assessments, charges, and taxes (municipal,
state, and federal) if applicable, which may now or hereafter be imposed upon the ownership,
leasing, renting, sale, possession, or use of the Project and the Site, excluding, however, all
taxes on or measured by Lessor’s income.

EVENTS OF DEFAULT. The term “Event of Default,” as used in this Sublease means the
occurrence of any one or more of the following events:

The District fails to make any unexcused Sublease Payment (or any other payment) within
fifteen (15) days after the due date thereof or the District fails to perform or observe any other
covenant, condition or agreement to be performed or observed by it hereunder and such
failure to either make the payment or perform the covenant, condition or agreement is not
cured within ten (10) days after written notice thereof by Lessor;



17.

18.

000834.0001818
326389.1

The Lessor discovers that any statement, representation or warranty made by the District in
this Sublease, or in any document ever delivered by the District pursuant hereto or in
connection herewith is misleading or erroneous in any material respect;

The District becomes insolvent, is unable to pay its debts as they become due, makes an
assignment for the benefit of creditors, applies or consents to the appointment of a receiver,
trustee, conservator or liquidator of the District or of all or a substantial part of its assets, or a
petition for relief is filed by the District under federal bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws.

REMEDIES ON DEFAULT. Upon the happening of any Event of Default, Lessor may
exercise remedies set forth below; provided, however, that notwithstanding anything herein to
the contrary, there shall be no right under any circumstances to accelerate the Sublease
Payments or otherwise declare any Sublease Payments not then in default to be immediately
due and payable. The District shall continue to remain liable for the payment of Sublease
Payments and damages for breach of this Sublease and the performance of all conditions
herein such Sublease Payments and damages shall be payable to Lessor at the time and in the
manner set forth in subsections (A) and (B) of this Article:

In the event that Lessor does not elect to terminate this Sublease pursuant to subsection (B)
below, the District agrees to and shall remain liable for the payment of Sublease Payments
and the performance of all conditions herein and shall reimburse Lessor for the full amount of
the Sublease Payments to the end of the Sublease Term.

In the event of termination of this Sublease by Lessor at its option and in the manner
hereinafter provided on account of default by the District, the District shall pay Lessor
Sublease Payments then owing for past Sublease Payments due and not paid, not to exceed
the approved costs for all labor, materials and services provided up to the date of Lessor’s
termination of the Sublease. Neither notice to pay Sublease Payments, nor to deliver up
possession of the Project and the Site given pursuant to law, nor any proceeding in unlawful
detainer taken by Lessor shall of itself operate to terminate this Sublease. In the event of any
litigation between the parties, the parties shall pay for their respective costs incurred,
including attorneys’ fees.

No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Lessor is exclusive of any other right

or remedy herein, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given
hereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may
be enforced concurrently therewith or from time to time; provided, however, that
notwithstanding  any provisions to the contrary herein, Lessor shall not under any
circumstances have the right to accelerate the Sublease Payments that fall due in future
Sublease periods or otherwise declare any Sublease Payments not then in default to be
immediately due and payable.

NON-WAIVER.

No covenant or condition to be performed by District or Lessor under this Sublease can be
waived except by the written consent of the other party. Forbearance or indulgence by District
or Lessor in any regard whatsoever shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition
in question. Until complete performance by the District or Lessor of said covenant or
condition, the other party shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to it under this
Sublease or by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence.



19.

20.

21.

000834.0001818
326389.1

ASSIGNMENT.

Without the prior written consent of the Lessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, the District shall not (a) assign, transfer, pledge, or hypothecate this Sublease, the
Project and the Site, or any part thereof, or any interest therein, or (b) sublet or lend the use of
the Project or any part thereof, except as authorized by the provisions of the California Civic
Center Act, Education Code section 38130 ef seq. However, District may lease, license or
otherwise allow use or occupation of the Site for third party use so long as such use or
occupation does not unreasonably interfere with construction of the Project. Consent to any
of the foregoing prohibited acts applies only in the given instance and is not a consent to any
subsequent like act by the District or any other person. The Lessor shall not assign its
obligations under this Sublease with the exception of their obligation to issue default notices
and to convey or re-convey their interest in the Project and Site to the District upon full
satisfaction of the District’s obligations hereunder; however, the Lessor may assign their
right, title and interest in this Sublease, the Sublease Payments and other amounts due
hereunder and the Project in whole or in part to one or more assignees or sub-assignees at any
time upon written notice to the District. No assignment shall be effective as against the
District unless and until the District is so notified in writing. The District shall pay all
Sublease Payments due hereunder pursuant to the direction of Lessor or the assignee named in
the most recent assignment or notice of assignment. During the Sublease Term, the District
shall keep a complete and accurate record of all such assignments. Subject always to the
foregoing, this Sublease inures to the benefit of, and is binding upon, the heirs, legatees,
personal representatives, successors, and assigns of the parties hereto.

OWNERSHIP.

During the Term of this Sublease, the District shall hold title to the Site and progressively
obtain title to the Project from the Lessor, and any and all additions which comprise fixtures,
repairs, replacements or modifications thereof, as Sublease Payments are made to Lessor.
During the Term of this Sublease, the Lessor shall have a leasehold interest in the Site
pursuant to the Site Lease. If the District prepays the Sublease Payments in full pursuant to
Article 21 hereof or otherwise pays all required Sublease Payments, all remaining rights, title
and interests of the Lessor, if any, in and to the Project and Site, shall be fully transferred to
and vested in the District. Title shall be transferred to and vested in the District hereunder
without the necessity for any further instrument of transfer. At the termination of this
Sublease, title to the Site, and any improvements constructed thereon shall vest in the District.

SUBLEASE PREPAYMENT/ PURCHASE OPTION.

Sublease Prepayments. At any time during the term of this Sublease, the District may in its
sole discretion, upon the request of the Lessor or on upon its own initiative, make Sublease
Prepayments to the Lessor. No Sublease Prepayments requested by the Lessor may be made
by the District in an amount exceeding the aggregate true cost to the Lessor of the work on the
Project completed to the date the Lessor submits the request for a Sublease Prepayment less
the aggregate amount of: (1) all Sublease Payments previously made by the District to the
Lessor; (2) all Sublease Prepayments previously made by the District to the Lessor; (3) all
amounts previously retained pursuant to Article 21(A)(2), below, from Sublease Prepayments
previously made by the District to the Lessor; and (4) the retention for such Sublease
Prepayment. Lessor must submit evidence that the conditions precedent set forth in Article
21(A)(1) below, have been met. In the event District elects to make Sublease Prepayments,
the Prepayment Price, contemplated in Article 21(B), below, shall be adjusted accordingly.




22,

000834.0001818
326389.1

(1) The following are conditions precedent to any Sublease Prepayments made to the
Lessor pursuant to a request of the Lessor and exercised by the District in its sole
discretion:

a. Satisfactory progress of the work and construction pursuant to the approved
schedule and “Contract Time” pursuant to Article 9 of the Construction
Services Agreement shall have been made as determined in Article
21(A)(2), below.

b. Lessor shall also submit to the District (i) duly executed conditional lien
releases and waivers (in the form provided in California Civil Code section
8132) from the Lessor and all subcontractors, consultants and other persons
retained by the Lessor in connection with the Project, whereby such persons
conditionally waive all lien and stop notice rights against the District, the
Project and the Project site with respect to the pending Sublease
Prepayment to be made by the District, (i) duly executed unconditional lien
releases and waivers (in the form provided in California Civil Code section
8134) from the Lessor and all subcontractors, consultants and other persons
retained by the Lessor in connection with the Project, whereby such persons
unconditionally and irrevocably waive all lien and stop notice rights against
the District, the Project and the Project site with respect to all previous
Sublease Prepayments made by the District, and (iii) any other items that
the Lessor may be required to collect and distribute to the District pursuant
to the terms and provisions of the CSA. Lessor shall promptly pay all
amounts due to each subcontractor, consultant and other person retained by
Lessor in connection with the Project no later than ten (10) days after
Lessor’s receipt of a Sublease Prepayment from the District.

2) The determination of whether satisfactory progress of the Construction pursuant to
the approved schedule and “Contract Time” has occurred shall be made by the
Project Inspector hired by the District pursuant to Article 10 of the CSA. If the
Project Inspector determines that pursuant to the approved schedule and “Contract
Time”, the work required to be performed, as stated in the Lessor's Sublease
Prepayment request has not been completed and approved, the Lessor shall not be
eligible to receive the requested Sublease Prepayment.

Purchase Option. If the District is not in default hereunder, the District shall be granted
options to purchase not less than all of the Project in as-is condition. The Prepayment Price at
any given time shail be an amount equal to the GMP, as it may be revised from time to time,
less the sum of any Sublease Payments and/or Sublease Prepayments made by the District
prior to the date on which the District elects to exercise its option under this Article.

RELEASE OF LIENS.

Notwithstanding Article 21 above, upon Substantial Completion of the Project as defined in
the CSA and the recording of a Notice of Completion for the Project, Lessor or its assignee
and the District shall release Lessor’s leasehold interest in Project and the Site. However,
District shall retain any and all claims and or warranties it may have under the CSA.

Lessor shall authorize, execute and deliver to the District all documents reasonably requested
by the District to evidence (i) the release of any and all liens created pursuant to the
provisions of this Sublease and the Site Lease, and (ii) any other documents required to
terminate the Site Lease and this Sublease.

10



23.

24,

25.

26.

If to Lessor:

If to District:

27.

28.

000834.0001818
326389.1

TERMINATION OF CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT.

In the event the Construction Services Agreement is terminated pursuant to the provisions
contained therein, this Sublease shall immediately terminate.

SEVERABILITY.
If any provision of this Sublease shall be held invalid or unenforceable by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such holdings shall not invalidate or render unenforceable any other

provision of this Sublease, unless elimination of such provision materially alters the rights and
obligations embodied in this Sublease.

INTEGRATION/MODIFICATION.

This Sublease constitutes the entire agreement between Lessor and the District as to those
matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior oral or written understanding,
promises or representations with respect to those matters covered herein, and it shall not be
amended, altered, or changed except by a written agreement signed by the parties hereto.

NOTICES.

Services of all notices under this Sublease shall be sufficient if given personally or mailed to
the party involved at its respective address hereinafter set forth or at such address as such
party may provide in writing from time to time. Any change in the addresses noted shall not
be binding upon the other party unless preceded by no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice. Any such notices shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered
to the person for whom they are intended or if sent by registered mail, return receipt
requested, or by email, or fax followed by regular mail, addressed as follows:

Attn:
Email:

Attn:
Email:

TITLES.

The titles to the Articles or sections of this Sublease are solely for the convenience of the
parties and are not an aid in the interpretation thereof.

TIME.

Time is of the essence in this Sublease and each and all of its provisions.

11



29,

LAWS, VENUE AND ATTORNEYS® FEES.

The terms and provisions of this Sublease shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of California. If any action is brought in a court of law to enforce any term of this Sublease,
the action shall be brought in a state court situated in the County of
, State of California, unless a court finds jurisdiction or
venue is only proper in a federal court, or a court outside this county. In the event of any such
litigation between the parties, each party shall bear its own attorney’s fees.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Sublease by their authorized officers as of
the day and year first written above.

DISTRICT “LESSOR”
SCHOOL

DISTRICT

BY: BY:

000834.0001818
326389.1

12



000834.0001818
326389.1

EXHIBIT A

DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

[TO BE INSERTED]

13



000834.0001818
326389.1

EXHIBIT B

DESCRIPTION OF SITE

[TO BE INSERTED]

14



000834.0001822
196535.1

PROJECT

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT
Between

| SCHOOL DISTRICT

and

Dated as of




e B 2 D e

© o N o

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

18.
19.
20.
21.
22,
23,
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29,

000834.0001822

196535.1

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
GENERAL INTENT......cooiierieretirerersererenssmmssnsssmmmmssssssamss st 16656 brasssassasssssssanssssasssmasssnnssnsansinasnsaasnnsessasssdiaranns 1
TITLE 24 RESPONSIBILITIES — GENERAL INTENT OF THE CSA ..o 3
DEFINITIONS.. ..vvresrereeseessnssermemssiasss snasiosssississsoosiadiaiie iveiatamiianssvasnsesansvvnsvnsssvavbiesslys e Sl Gl Sl calionddad ot i S
ESTABLISHMENT OF GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE “GMP”... . 10
5.2.1 Construction Contingency. The Construction Contlngency set forth

at Article 3.8.1 is for the use of the Contractor, as approved by the

District, to pay for miscellaneous work items which are required to

complete the Project including 10 wiinmsscasasmmmiavisisivssinssmasmies 11

5.3.3.3 Review of the Environmental Documents ..........cccccovveiiinrenininnnne 12
OPEN BOOK ACCOUNTING AND SELECTION OF SUBCONTRACTORS.........oociiiiiiiniiiiiiin 14
SAVINGS AND VALUE ENGINEERING .....ccoitiiiitiiiiniiiresionssiissssnes samnsssrsssrrsnssssessssnsssssasinsssassnsais 16
SCHEDWULE ............... s s o s v e b s S i S R R oA RPN 11 oo a e enanvmesoas 17
INSPECTION OF WORK/ INSPECTOR AND ARCHITECT........cccccociiivimmmeainmianssisnnsss s 20
ARCHITECT .......coususaesissssmisssvmamsssainio s ssssiss s st s st n Sy s s yan s s e nassssssssssanssssensstsssans 23
DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES... ..ottt i imieiters s e n e s s s s s sssns s es 23
CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES.....cccivirtiirsesatsessnsasssesssssesssssssesionssasiansasanssssssssansbasemsassbsnsiienisaossivase 24
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS.....ccciimiurieneniinsensnssessiisssss s sssmsssssssissessiesenss 33
SUBMITTALS s s it ion i st tesiasssesies vosmasd s a5 e 0 0 s 3 S 0 8 OB s RO IS ey omy 33
REQUEST FOR SUBSTITUTIONS .....ooiiiiimimeiiee st iseiseise s st 40
EXTRA WORK/MODIFICATIONS (INCLUSION OF CCD COSTS, DSA COSTS, AND AN
17.3  Archilect ADOTIEY . ...........oocnsemmpressiaimsniossisvisipnivimsadssssieonssasinmyssibissssa s, 41
TIME OF COMPLETION ....ocoitiimiieriisssesossesssssssessssessansessasssassosunsisumssnrssmmnmessysasssssomssstnesasieronrsasiremsasnses 45
TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT ....iiiiiivieiiioesiisasioimniossiosssbsusessasiisrsssissiaisssssss ioanmisrs sanssssan st sensprersssussss 47
RESOLUTION OF AGREEMENT CLAIMS ...ttt s aibeabaesins e svassis e e sns s 50
MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS; AUDIT/OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS..........coocverimmonmiesininnn: 57
PREVAILING RATES OF WAGES; RECORDS, APPRENTICES ....c.ccccivimimmricnmiminmmirsesenonsnss 99
RECORDS OF WAGES PAID....ooitiiioitisiiiieeiiiees s srre ettt e s sar e sbeesne s ssannssesrasssasssnssesabusasssnbasssssrssibaanas 59
APPRENTICES ..outvieiieeureesirsssesinssessunsesssssessssesssnseesssasesssssssssssssasstessmarsessesssaisssaanssmsessiussessastessonesessorianinniss 61
REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS........coounviiniminneeniissinin 02
HOURS OF WORK ......orunrnraymsmmscsisnsssssosssssiovasisssssissiuassssnaasiiiossonnsvnsnarssdssy s Bt bbbl bbb iediainiiivimasioniae 63
SKILLED AND TRAINED WORKFORCE ...ttt i sssann s s ssmses sy sassn s sase s 64
PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY ...uciiiiiuieioiinsmmmmiiirsimmiesinnssesmeesissrsssmsiansessnesissinmsnan 65
PAYMENTS AND RETENTION ....ccoomiiiirierriniicmnsmmsnssmnseeesisnsssemss shbssesasssssssssasihssas s baeeesareesssneresssssssesniss 68



TABLE OF CONTENTS

(Continued)
30. NONCONFORMING WORK ....ooioveitiirerrerenraersenaerisesssesmtanssebssissiass st asastsssssissssssnissssssssssssss sasmmssssssiasssns 71
31. SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENTS ..ovicuiiiiuaaasassessasssonsissssnsbniinisaiissnmssissinnsnnsnssnssnssstsniasitssessivanssussiansiionios 71
32. SEPARATE CONTRACGCTS ... eeretisitreerestesiaee e enrecaressaesaisssssasssesssasesnserssssastassssssssssesssssssessasisenisnsiness 72
33. USE OF PREMISES/SATFETY ...ovitettitirierieriereesteesesastsetssstestssstsnsssss saassesansssasssssssssasssnessessaesesesssssassssasnes 72
34. CLEANING UP ..ottt etevsetestesessesesessessessssassncesseaseantass s bebasassreshasaasssbess s st e b e e e s e ase s e s e s ndba s r s 72
35s. TINSURANCQGE ........o...coummesssssasssessssssssgssassassoasansanserausansavss s ssiassssson s siaarvingssoississssonasavansonsasvas ibaida dlaiiaideidsiidassan 74
36. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNITY ...ociiiirierceceee ettt sme s ssse b s s st en 78
37. SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITY ...cuviiiietiirerereeeeeeniecseressasmssmsssssssnssssssssssssssshassassaessassesssnisnssspnsas snessess 79
38. TITLE TO WORK .......oorsnnssrssssssassessansmsresssnrsssssrsasissssiossssssnsenessnensssnssssnens Foaita bbabbubiiiiosiiuiadivasivasiaiasiasiavsvin 79
39. COMPLIANCE WITH STATE STORM WATER PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION ........ccooovviviiiiiinnans 79
40. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE w...coiiiiiiimimiinmiosiesinnismsetiasihss s ess s bt s s ssssebsns s 79
41. SPECIAL NOTICE OF AMERICAN’S WITH DISABILITIES ACT .....coovviviiiiiiiiiiiisis 80
42, PATENTS, ROYALTIES, AND INDEMNITIES.........cccommimmmmeimiminimierns s s 80
43. EXCISE TAX .ooieceteoeieeeereeestoeesseassssssssesseibasasasssssssastessassosstassssteistssesssistessesstsssassassstasssssstassusssnsressnssvasrasaes 80
44, PROHIBITED INTERESTS 1..utoiirseeesesssessssssessensonssessssnsessensansonsanssnsisssmensens sasssnssssassassassd sie st sassassansassssssmnens 81
45. COMPLIANCE WITH DTSC GUIDELINES — IMPORTED SOIL/SOILS INSPECTION .......coccoieiinnn. 81
46. HAZARDOUS WASTE AND UNKNOWN PHYSICAL CONDITIONS ... 81
47. NO ASBESTOS CERTIFICATION .....cuieeierteseereesieessteteseessatatainsorasssesassssssnassassstsasssbbsisnsnisinssiasssssnssnass 82
48. LAWS AND REGULATIONS . ...ocvieverieseetisersesresaessersessaerassssrssraeressesessassemssbaess et 4 sab b abbab i aasaresse s eassssasenes 83
49. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS . ..ot otitestteteeiteert et saessstent st sressasbs e s sis e e ness e naa s s s rsssns 83
51. THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS .....oouteesiemeaeserrorsessessessessessessesssssassmsrmssereeessersessossess st setasiasnmessasssabasiasiasnseisrassssass 83
52. ASSIGNMENT ......ccccocenens R OO Sk rs = s 7o e RN 83
53. HEADINGS ....oovveiveen i sk bbb i bivsiaiia s asssasboss psoasensis b eeeereet bbbk 83
54. INTEGRATION/MODIFICATION .. e T e T S S A R R0 O
55. APPLICABLE LAW/ PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED.......ccccceciiiiiiiinns 84
56. SUCCESSION OF RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS.......cccoiiniiiiinireniniresne e vt 84

EXHIBIT “A” Scope of Work / Construction Documents

EXHIBIT “B” Master Budget

EXHIBIT “C” DVBE Requirements

EXHIBIT “D” Payment Bond

EXHIBIT “E” Performance Bond

EXHIBIT “F” Contractor Fingerprinting Requirements

EXHIBIT “F” (cont.) Subcontractor Fingerprinting Requirements
EXHIBIT “G” Contractor’s Certificate Regarding Workers’ Compensation
EXHIBIT “H” Drug-Free Workplace Certification

EXHIBIT “I” Conduct Rules for Contractors

000834.0001822 -1 -
196535.1



[ ]| PROJECT

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Construction Services Agreement is made as of , by and between the
[ ] School District, a California School District organized and existing under the
laws of the State of California (hereinafter called the “District”), and , a California
corporation operating under the laws of the State of (“Contractor™).

General intent of agreement:

WHEREAS, the District entered into an agreement with (the “Architect”) to
provide architectural services for the District for the purpose of developing Construction Documents for the
construction of improvements at School site (the “Project™).

1. GENERAL INTENT
1.1 The Board of Education has reviewed the different methodologies available to deliver a public

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

works project and has carefully considered the options of competitive bid to a general contractor
who would be responsible for the entire project, a construction management managed multi-prime
trade contract project, an at-risk construction management contract, tum-key delivery by another
public entity or delivered by another public entity through a joint use project, but have through
Board action and independent staff and Board review determined that there are benefits and
detriments to each delivery method.

The Board of Education has also reviewed the lease-leaseback methodology under California
Education Code section 17406 which permits the governing board of a school district to lease to
any person, firm, or corporation any real property owned by the District if the instrument by which
such property is leased requires the lessee to construct on the leased premises, or provide for the
construction thereon, of a building for the use of the school district, during the term of the lease,
and provides that title to that building shall vest in the school district prior to or at the expiration of
the lease.

As part of the Board of Education’s consideration of the possible methods of delivery, the Board
has also reviewed available information from the Coalition of Adequate School Housing materials
on delivery methods, California School Board Association, California Association of School
Business Officials, Office of Public School Construction Meeting Minutes and SAB
Implementation Committee meeting minutes and considered the benefits and detriments of the
lease-leaseback delivery method.

Further, the Board of Education understands that unique to the lease-leaseback delivery method,
the lease-leaseback Contractor will not only be undertaking the traditional due diligence of
investigating existing Project related information, documents and the Project site, but now
included as part of the Contractor’s “Due Diligence” (as defined herein) as part of this lease-
leaseback delivery method, the Contractor will be performing a review of the Construction
Documents to visualize conflicts that may have not been located by the Architect as part of the
Architect’s constructability review when the Construction Documents were being prepared.

The Board of Education in its consideration of the substantial evidence that is available to the
District staff and through the Board’s own research has determined that this ability to work
between the Contractor and the Architect to resolve a greater percentage of construction claims
that would ordinarily arise through any of the other delivery methods addressed in Article 1.1
above also provides the ability of the Contractor to determine the likely level of errors and
omissions, and provides a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Project based on the Contractor’s
Due Diligence. The unique ability to determine with certainty the budget numbers for the Project

000834.0001822

196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 1



1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

provides this Board of Education the ability to not only ensure that the District is best serving the
community and its school children, but also provides the ability to focus resources towards future
and simultaneous projects that could not be undertaken during any of the other delivery methods
since a sizable contingency needs to be set aside for potential claims, litigation, arbitration,
mediation, and delays that could jeopardize the ability to plan for occupancy of the building or the
possibility of having to spend significant resources to procure alternative facilities.

As part of this lease-leaseback Construction Services Agreement, a site lease with Contractor (the
“Site Lease™), for the Project has been entered into and attached as Exhibits to the Site Lease is a
description of the site (the “Site”) in order for Contractor to construct improvements to this
existing school Site under the possessory interest of a lease with a greater degree of control over
the overall Project, including ability to coordinate Site related items such as utilities, ability to
insure both the Project and the Site against a broader range of risks, and greater primary control
and oversight over Subcontractors and suppliers for the Project as the lessee of the Site.

In addition, the Contractor subleases the constructed portions of the Site and the Project back to
the District pursuant to a Sublease Agreement (the “Sublease™) under which the District will be
required to make Sublease Payments as described therein; and

It is agreed that upon the expiration of the Site Lease and Sublease, title to the Project shall vest in
the District; and

Contractor represents that Contractor is uniquely experienced in Construction of public schools
and community colleges including, but not limited to, the specific requirements and regulations of
the Field Act as administered by the Division of State Architect, working with the Division of
State Architect, Office of Public School Construction, California Department of Education and
work with the various applicable other State and local agencies that have jurisdiction over the
Project, is duly licensed as a contractor in the State of California, and is prepared to analyze,
synthesize and efficiently perform construction work for the District as more fully set forth in this
Agreement

Contractor has thoroughly performed Due Diligence as defined in Articles 4 and 5 to establish a
Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Project (which may include an Errors and Omissions
Contingency and a Construction Contingency for Contractor’s own errors and omissions) that will
not be exceeded. Contractor has investigated the site conditions and reviewed the Construction
Documents to establish that there are no known problems with respect to the site conditions or the
Construction Documents and that Contractor can and will construct the Project for the Guaranteed
Maximum Price as set forth in Article 3 and defined in Article 5 of this Construction Services
Agreement, and Contractor will not seek any additional compensation whatsoever, including,
without limitation, any requests based upon known site conditions, extensions on the Lease
beyond the Lease period or any requests, except for such additional compensation provided for
herein based upon unforeseen conditions and/or errors or omissions contained within the plans and
specification or Construction Documents.

Since the Contractor has entered into a negotiated Lease and is performing this Construction
Services Agreement as the Lessee of the Premises, Contractor understands and agrees that:

1.11.1- Public Contract Code section 4100 et seq. addressing subcontractor listing shall not
apply except to the extent applicable under Education Code section 17406(a)(4).
However, the District is requiring an open book accounting and the public selection of
Subcontractors pursuant to Article 6.3 of this Agreement.

1.11.2 Public Contract Code section 20111 addressing competitive bidding does not apply to
the Project pursuant to the specific language of Education Code section 17406 which
provides for a competitive procurement process through request for sealed proposals
from qualified proposers.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 2



1.12

1.11.3 Public Contract Code section 3400 addressing proprietary specifications does not
apply since the Contractor has entered into a negotiated Lease pursuant to which is
obligated to build the Project. The Contractor agrees and acknowledges that it has had
great opportunity throughout the Due Diligence process and negotiation of the Lease
and related agreements to propose any changes or substitutions, and warranties that it
shall propose no further changes or substitutions pursuant to Public Contract Code
section 3400. Substitutions and Value Engineering are allowed to address cost savings
and to more efficiently build the Project at Articles 5.3 and 16.

1.11.4 The requirements in Public Contract Code section 22300 shall not apply.

Prequalification of Contractor and MEP Subcontractors. In accordance with California Public
Contract Code section 20111.6, the Contractor is required to submit to the District a completed set
of prequalification documents on forms provided by the District and be deemed prequalified by
the District prior to entering into the Contract for the Project. In addition, all mechanical,
electrical or plumbing (“MEP”) Subcontractors of any tier (contractors that hold C-4, C-7, C-10,
C-16, C-20, C-34, C-36, C-38, C-42, C-43 or C-46 licenses), must also be prequalified. It is the
responsibility of the bidder to ensure that all MEP Subcontractors holding any of the licenses
listed above are properly prequalified. This prequalification requirement for MEP Subcontractors
applies even if the subcontractor will perform, or is designated to perform, work that does not
require one of the licenses listed above, but the subcontractor holds one of the licenses listed
above.

2. TITLE 24 RESPONSIBILITIES — GENERAL INTENT OF THE CSA

Contractor accepts the contractual relationship established between it and District by this Construction Services
Agreement, and Contractor covenants with District to furnish reasonable skill and judgment in constructing the
Project as set forth in the Construction Documents, as defined in Article 4 for the Project which are described and/or
set forth herein as Exhibit “A.” Contractor agrees to furnish efficient business administration, coordination review
of the Construction Documents, coordination of the work of the Subcontractors and vendors and superintendence to
furnish at all times an adequate supply of professionals, workers, and materials and to perform the work
appropriately, expeditiously, economically, and consistent with the Construction Services Agreement and
Construction Documents as defined in Article 14, below.

2.1

Title 24 Responsibilities. The Contractor shall continually supervise and direct the Work using
the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for and have
control over construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures; and shall coordinate
all portions of the Work in conformance with the Contract Documents. Specific duties of the
Contractor shall include those set out in Section 43 of Title 21 of the California Code of
Regulations and Section 4-343 of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. These duties
include, but are not limited to the following;:

2.1.1 Responsibilities. Tt is the duty of the Contractor to complete the Work covered by his
or her Contract in accordance with the approved Construction Documents. The
Contractor in no way is relieved of any responsibility by the activities of the Architect,
Engineer, Inspector or DSA in the performance of their duties.

2.1.2 Performance of the Work. The Contractor shall carefully study the approved
Construction Documents and shall plan its schedule of operations well ahead of time.
If at any time it is discovered that work is being done which is not in accordance with
the approved Construction Documents, the Contractor shall correct the Work
immediately.

213 Inconsistencies. All inconsistencies or timing or sequences which appear to be in
error in the Construction Documents shall promptly be called to the attention of the
Architect or, Engineer, for interpretation or correction. Local conditions which may

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 3



3.

2.1.10

2.1.11

affect the structure shall be brought to the Architect’s attention at once. In no case,
shall the instruction of the Architect be construed to cause work to be done which is
not in conformity with the approved plans, specifications, change orders, construction
change documents, and as required by law. (See Title 24 Section 4-343)

Verified Reports. The Contractor shall make and submit to the office from time to
time, verified reports as required in Title 24 Section 4-366. As part of the Close-Out
of the Project (see Article 13.16), Contractor shall be required to execute a Form 6-C
as required under Title 24 Sections 4-343.

Reporting Requirements. Contractor shall fully comply with any and all reporting
requirements of Education Code sections 17315, et seq., in the manner prescribed by
Title 24, as applicable.

Contractor Responsibility. The Contractor shall be responsible to the District for acts
and omissions of the Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors, material and equipment
suppliers, and their agents, employees, invitees, and other persons performing portions
of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Contractor or any of its
Subcontractors.

All Work is performed Under the Direction of Inspector. Pursuant to Title 24
requirements, the Contractor shall not carry on Work except with the knowledge of
the Inspector. (See Title 24 generally)

Contractor to Establish Timing and Protocol with Inspector. Contractor shall
establish a protocol for requesting inspection with Inspector so as to not delay the
Work and provide adequate time for the Inspector to perform inspection. If such a
protocol is not established ahead of time, Inspector may utilize the time criteria set by
Title 24 of 48 hours in advance of submitting form DSA 156 for each new area. DSA
requirements under PR 13-01 specifically gives the Special Inspector fourteen (14)
days to post to the DSA website. Contractor is responsible for delays and for failure
to plan.

Conformance with Approved Submittals. This conformance includes performing all
Work only in conformance with approved Submittals, Shop Drawings, and Samples or
the Inspector may be required to issue a DSA Form 154 Notice of Deviation from
approved DSA Contract Documents.

Incremental Assemblies. For some Projects, there may be a need to incrementally
install certain assemblies. It is up to Contractor to identify areas and assemblies that
may be constructed incrementally. Contractor must identify and establish incremental
areas of construction and establish protocols with Inspector for DSA 152 approvals so
they may be presented to DSA. See PR-13 item 2.1.10 for further discussion.

Coordination with Outside Contractors. If any of the Work for the Project is known to
include Work performed by contractors retained directly by the District, Contractor
shall be responsible for the coordination and sequencing of the Work of those other
contractors so as to avoid any impact on the Project Schedule.

CONTRACT INFORMATION

3.1

District:

[ ] School District

.CA
XXX-XXX-XXXX

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 4



3.2 Notices: , Director of Facilities
e-mail
33 Contractor: [Name]
[Address]
[City]
[Telephone]
34 Notices:
[e-mail]
The following are established through Contractor’s review of the Program, Contract Documents
and through Contractor’s Due Diligence prior to entering into this Agreement:
3.5 Contract Time is Days.
3.6 Liquidated Damages for overstaying Lease (Art. 18) is $ per
calendar day.
3.7 Guaranteed Maximum Price (Art. 5) is $
3.7.1 Construction Contingency (within GMP) is §
3.7.2 Errors and Omissions Contingency (within GMP) is §
3.8 The only exception to the GMP is Unforeseen Underground Conditions, and District Contingency
for Owner requested extras as follows:
3.8.1 District’s Contingency (Art. 8) is §
District Contingency is carried outside of the GMP.
3.8.2 Unforeseen  Allowance is §
Unforeseen Allowance is carried outside of the GMP.
3.9 The Contractor’s fee for this Projectis ___ percent (__%) and is included in the GMP.
DEFINITIONS
4.1 Action of the Governing Board is a vote of a majority of the District’s Governing Board.
42 Allowances are separate from the Unforeseen Allowance and mean budgets established for

specific scopes of the Work which cannot be fully defined in the Construction Documents at the
time that the GMP is established. Allowances may only be drawn upon pursuant to a Change
Order issued pursuant to Article 17. In the event that an Allowance is included, the Contractor
shall provide all services, work, labor and materials reasonably implicit in the description of the
Allowance for the amount stated for the Allowance, all in accordance with the Construction
Documents. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that it has had ample time and consideration to
fully assess any Allowance(s) and to negotiate the description and amount of the Allowance(s),
such that Contractor fully accepts and shall bear the entire risk and responsibility of providing all
services, work, labor and materials required for the Allowance(s) under this Agreement.
Expenditures from the GMP will either arise from Construction Contingency or Errors and
Omissions Contingency and shall be submitted pursuant to Article 17 addressing Change Orders.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 5



4.3

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

The amount of the Change Order shall reflect the difference between actual costs approved by the
District and the allowance amounts established in the GMP.

As-Builts are a set of Construction Documents maintained by the Contractor clearly showing all
changes, revisions, substitutions, field changes, final locations, and other significant features of the
Project. The As-Builts shall be maintained continuously throughout the Work for the Project and
is both a prerequisite to the issuance of Pay Application and a requirement for Contract Close-Out.
See Article 13.14.

Architect means the architect, engineer, or other design professional engaged by the District to
design and perform general observation of the work of construction and interpret the drawings and
specifications for the Project.

Beneficial Occupancy is the point in time when a building or buildings are fit for occupancy is fit
for occupancy and its intended use Basic requirements are the building is safe, at or near
Substantial Completion, and all life safety is operational. The fact that a building is occupied does
not mean that the building is ready for Beneficial Occupancy if there are elements that are unsafe
or if life safety items are not operational. Taking occupancy on a structure that is under a fire
watch is not considered Beneficial Occupancy. Beneficial Occupancy is not be used by the
Contractor as a basis to request Retention Payment unless the entire Project is Substantially
Complete in accordance with Article 4.45.

Claims. A Claim is a request for payment, supported by back-up documentation which includes,
invoices time sheets, or other documents substantiating legitimacy or entitlement that is submitted
during the Project or immediately following the Project made prior to the Application for
Retention Payment and prior to Final Completion of the Project. A “Claim” means a separate
demand by the Contractor for (1) time extension, (2) payment of money or damages arising from
Work done by or on behalf of the Contractor pursuant to the Contract and payment of which is not
otherwise expressly provided for or the claimant is not otherwise entitled to, or (3) and amount the
payment of which is disputed by the District. See Article 20.

Close-Out means the process for Final Completion of the Project, but also includes the
requirements for the DSA Certification that the Project is Complete (See DSA Certification
Guide). See Article 13.16.

Commencement Date shall mean the Project commencement date found in the Notice to Proceed
for the Project in accordance with Article 4.28 of this Construction Services Agreement.

Complete/ Final Completion means that all Work in the Contract Documents is finished, the
requirements of the Contract Documents have been met, successful testing, startup and satisfactory
operation of the Project as a total unit has been accomplished in substantial conformance with the
Contract Documents, the Project is completed, all Work has ceased on the Project and the Project
has been accepted by the District’s Board. This may also be referred to as Final Completion. In
most cases, the recording of a Notice of Completion shall represent Completion of the Project.
Beneficial Occupancy or Substantial Completion does not mean the Work is Complete.

Completion Date is the date when all Work for the Project shall be Substantially Complete and is
the date assigned at the end of the Contract Time for the Project.

Construction Change Document (CCD). A Construction Change Document is a DSA term that is
utilized to address changes to the DSA approved Construction Documents. There are two types of
Construction Change Documents. (1) DSA approved CCD Category A (DSA Form 140) for work
affecting Structural, Access or Fire-Life Safety of the Project which will require a DSA approval;
and, (2) CCD Category B (DSA Form 140) for work NOT affecting Structural Safety, Access
Compliance or Fire and Life Safety that will not require a DSA approval (except to confirm that
no Approval is required). See Article 17.4.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 6



4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

Construction Services Agreement (CSA) means this Construction Services Agreement, together
with any duly authorized and executed amendments hereto.

Construction or Construction Services means all labor and services necessary for the construction
of the Project, and all materials, equipment, tools, supplies and incidentals incorporated or to be
incorporated in such construction as fully described in the Contract Documents.

Construction Costs means any and all costs incurred by the Contractor with respect to the
construction and equipping, as the case may be, of the improvements performed, whether paid or
incurred prior to or after the date hereof, including, without limitation, costs for Site preparation,
the removal or demolition of existing structures, the construction of the Project and related
facilities and improvements, and all other work in connection therewith, security of the Site and
Project, Contractors’ overhead and supervision at the Project Site, all costs and expenses including
any taxes or insurance premiums paid by the Contractor with respect to the Property, and
administrative and other expenses necessary or incident to the Project, excluding Contractors’ and
Developers’ home office overhead and profit. The term “Construction Costs” includes all
Contractor’s costs associated with preparing or generating additional copies of any Construction
Documents, as defined below, related to or required for the Project, including preparation or
generation of additional Plans and/or Specifications for Contractor’s Subcontractors. In no event
shall Construction Costs exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price.

Construction Documents comprise the Plans and Specifications approved by DSA under
Application Number , File Number . Allowances
stipulated in the Contract Documents, and all Addenda, if any, issued prior to the entry into this
Agreement. The Construction Documents shall include all Modifications generated after the
Effective Date in accordance with the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, a written
amendment to the Contract signed by the Contractor and duly executed and approved by the
District, a Change Order, a Construction Change Document, or a written order for a minor change
in the Work issued by the Architect.

Contract Documents means those documents which form the entire Contract by and between
District and Contractor. The Contract Documents consist of the Site Lease, Sublease, General,
Supplementary and other Conditions, this Construction Services Agreement, including all exhibits
and attachments hereto, and the Construction Documents. The Contract Documents collectively
form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and integrated Agreement between the
parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or
oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a written Modification. The Contract
Documents shall be binding solely upon the District and Contractor, do not create a contractual
relationship of any kind between the Architect and Contractor, between the District and any
Subcontractor or Sub-subcontractor, or between any persons or entities other than the District and
the Contractor, and are not intended to and do not create any third party beneficiary. The
Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the
Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.

Contract Time is the time period specified in the Contract Documents in which the Project shall be
completed. This is sometimes referred to a Contract Duration, or “time in which the Contractor
has to Complete the Project”. See Article 9.

Day means a calendar day unless specifically designated as a business day.

Drawings or Plans are graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents prepared for the
Project and approved changes thereto, wherever located and whenever issued, showing the design,
location, and scope of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules,
and diagrams as drawn or approved by the Architect. Sometimes Drawings will also be included
in Addenda, Change Orders, and Specifications.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 7



4.20

4.21

4.22

4.23

424

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

4.30

431

432

Due Diligence is the review and analysis of as-built documents, title documents, any prior design
documents for the Project or Site, geotechnical reports, surveys, site investigations and other
documents and information provided by the District, and synthesizing of information utilized to
determine the components of the GMP. Requirements for Due Diligence are further addressed at
Article 5.

DSA is the Division of State Architect. DSA is the agency that provides design and construction
oversight for K-12 Schools, Community Colleges, and State Funded Charter School Projects.
DSA is the responsible agency for this Project and Contractor has submitted a bid for the Project
since Contractor is familiar with Contractor’s responsibilities under the DSA requirements more
thoroughly set forth at Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. Contractor agrees to abide
by the jurisdiction of DSA and shall construct the Project to conform with the approved plans,
specifications, Addenda, and Change Orders (inclusive of approved CCD’s and ICD’s issued by
the District pending CCD approval). The DSA website is at http://www.dgs.ca.gov/dsa.

Effective Date is the latter of the date upon which the District Board approves the Site Lease and
the Sublease and Contractor has executed the Site Lease and Sublease

Float the total number of days an activity may be extended or delayed without delaying the
Completion Date shown in the schedule. Float will fall into three categories: (1) Rain Days; (2)
Governmental Delays; and, (3) Project Float. See Article 9.2.

Immediate Change Directive (ICD) is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the
District and the Architect, directing a change in the Work where the Work must proceed
immediately and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract
Time, or both. See Article 17.4.1.2

Inspector of Record (IOR) or Project Inspector (PI) is the individual retained by the District in
accordance with Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations who will be assigned to the Project

Guaranteed Maximum Price or GMP means the Guaranteed Maximum Price established pursuant
to Article 5 to be paid to Contractor for Contractor’s construction of the Project hereunder, subject
to any adjustments for Extra Work/Modifications as provided in Article 17.

Notice of Non-Compliance (DSA Form 154) is a document issued by the Inspector if there is a
deviation from the DSA approved Plans, Specifications, and Change Orders. See Article 17.2.

Notice to Proceed. After execution of this Construction Services Agreement and the Site Lease(s)
and Sublease(s) between the parties, the District shall issue a notice to the Contractor to proceed
with the Project (“Notice to Proceed”), which Notice to Proceed shall include the date upon which
commencement for the Project shall commence.

Plans are that portion of the Construction Documents consisting of the drawings and other
pictorial or other graphic expression of requirements for the work of improvement to be completed
by Contractor, including, without limitation, services, work, material, equipment, construction
systems, instructions, quality assurance standards, workmanship, and performance of related
services.

Project means the improvements to be constructed and installed by the Contractor, as more
particularly described and/or referenced in Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

Provide shall include “provide complete in place,” that is “furnish and install complete.”

Punch List is a list of minor repair items, prepared after the issuance of a Certificate of Substantial
Completion, by the Inspector and Architect of Work required in order to complete the Contract
Documents and ensure compliance with the DSA Approved Plans so the Project may be Closed

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 8



4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

4.37

438

4.39

440

441

4.42

Out. Issuance of the Retention Payment is dependent upon the proper completion of the Punch
List. See Article 13.16 and Article 29.

Request for Information (RFI) is a written request prepared by the Contractor requesting the
Architect to provide additional information necessary to clarify or amplify an item which the
Contractor believes is not clearly shown or called for in the drawings or specifications, or to
address problems which have arisen under field conditions.

Schedule is the Contractor’s view of the practical way in which the Work will be accomplished.
In this Agreement there is a requirement for a Baseline Schedule and regular Schedule Updates
that show all Work to be completed during the Contract Time and shall include all items listed
under Article 9.3.

Schedule of Values is a detailed breakdown of the Contract Price for each Project, building, Phase
of Work or Site as determined by the District. This Schedule of Values shall adequately detail the
price for the Work so that the status of the construction of any improvements can be meaningfully
reviewed by the Inspector, Architect of Record, Engineer of Record, and District. (See Article
13.12)

Separate Contracts are Contracts that the District may have with other Contractors, vendors,
suppliers, or entities to perform Work on the Project. This may include, but is not limited to
Multi-Prime Trade Contractors, furniture installers, testing agencies, clean-up contractors, or
network or low voltage contractors. Contractor shall plan for certain other contractors that may
also be working on the Project site and address these other contractors in Contractor’s Schedule.
See Article 32.

Site refers to the grounds of the Project or in some cases may refer to multiple sites as defined in
the Contract Documents and such adjacent lands as may be directly affected by the performance of
the Work.

Site Lease and/or Lease means the Site Lease(s) of even date herewith, by and between the
District and the Contractor together with any duly authorized and executed amendment thereto
under which the District leases the Site to the Contractor.

Specifications are that portion of the Construction Documents consisting of the written
requirements for the work of improvement to be completed by Contractor, including, without
limitation, services, work, material, equipment, construction systems, instructions, quality
assurance standards, workmanship, and performance of related services.

Standards. Rules. and Regulations referred to are recognized printed standards and shall be
considered as one and a part of these specifications within limits specified. Federal, state and local
regulations are incorporated into the Contract Documents by reference.

Stop Work Order, or an Order to Comply is issued when either (1) the Work proceeds without
DSA approval; (2) the Work proceeds without a DSA Project Inspector, or (3) where DSA
determines that the Work is not being performed in accordance with applicable rules and
regulations, and would compromise the structural integrity of the Project or would endanger lives.
If a Stop Work Order is issued, the Work in the affected area shall cease until DSA withdraws the
Stop Work Order. Pursuant to Education Code section 17307.5(b) and Education Code section
81133.5, the District shall not be held liable in any action filed against the District for any delays
caused by compliance with the Stop Work Order.

Subcontractor means any person or entity, including trade contractors, who have a contract with
Contractor to perform any work or supply materials for the Project.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 9



4.43

4.44

445

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

Sublease(s) means the Sublease(s) of even date herewith by and between the District and
Contractor together with any duly authorized and executed amendment hereto under which the
District subleases the Site from the Contractor.

Sublease Payment means any payment required to be made by the District pursuant to Section 7 of
the Sublease.

Substantial Completion is not reached unless and until each of the following four (4) conditions
have been met: (1) all contractually required items have been installed with the exception of only
minor and Incomplete Punch Items (See Article 13.16); (2) All Fire/Life Safety Systems have
been installed, and are working and signed off on the DSA Form 152 Inspection Card, all building
systems including mechanical, electrical and plumbing are all functioning; (3) all other items on
the DSA Form 152 Inspection Card for the Project have been approved and signed off; and (4) the
Project is fit for occupancy and its intended use, as certified by the Architect pursuant to the
Certificate of Substantial Completion set forth in the Division 1 Forms attached hereto.

Substitution is a change in product, material, equipment, or method of construction from those
required by the Construction Documents proposed by the Contractor. Specific requirements for
substitutions are set forth at Article 16.

Unforeseen Allowance means the budget established for hazardous substances and underground
conditions that differ from representations in the Contract Documents or Due Diligence
Documents and meet the requirements under Article 13.15.5 and 18.4. The Unforeseen
Allowance may also include other costs as allocated in the District’s sole and absolute discretion
related to the Project. The District, in its sole and absolute discretion, may use the District
Contingency to fund any costs allowed under the Unforeseen Allowance. Any funds remaining in
the Unforeseen Allowance at the completion of the Project shall remain unspent and allocated to
the District as the District sees fit to use.

Work shall include all labor, materials, services and equipment necessary for the Contractor to
fulfill all of its obligations pursuant to the Contract Documents. It shall include extension of
Contractor’s obligations to Subcontractor to perform Subcontractor Due Diligence including, but
not limited to, visiting the Site of the proposed Work (a continuing obligation after the
commencement of the Work), fully acquainting and familiarizing itself with the conditions as they
exist and the character of the operations to be carried out under the Contract Documents, and make
such investigation as it may see fit so that it shall fully understand the facilities, physical
conditions, and restrictions attending the Work under the Contract Documents. Each such
Contractor or Subcontractor shall also thoroughly examine and become familiar with the
Drawings, Specifications, and associated Contract Documents.

Workers include laborers, workers, and mechanics.

ESTABLISHMENT OF GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE “GMmp”

5.1

Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) is the amount agreed upon between the District and
Contractor that shall not be exceeded for the Construction of the Project within the Contract Time
based on Contractor’s thorough review of the Contract Documents, Due Diligence in investigation
of all aspects of the Project. The GMP includes the costs for the Sublease Payments being paid by
the District as Progress Payments and Retention Payment during construction in accordance with
the terms of this Construction Services Agreement. Any references to Progress Payments shall
also mean Sublease Payments. A Construction Contingency (Article 5.2.1) and an Errors and
Omissions Contingency (Article 5.2.2) is contained within the GMP. Costs that are outside of the
GMP shall be as follows:

5.1.1 Owner requested additional work (See Article 8) to be paid under the District
Contingency.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 10



52

5.1.2 Unforeseen underground soil conditions or unforeseen hazardous materials that meet
the requirements of Article 13.15.5 and 18.4 to be paid under the Unforeseen
Allowance.

GMP. As a result of the Due Diligence of Contractor, the GMP for the Project is set forth under
Article 3. The GMP is based upon all Due Diligence performed, the approved Construction
Documents, and all other Contract Documents existing and reviewed by the Contractor at the time
this Construction Services Agreement is entered into as more fully described and referenced in the
Scope of Work set forth in Exhibit “A.” Contractor’s detailed line item costing of the Project, or
Master Budget, totaling the GMP is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.” Furthermore, the District and
Contractor represent and warrant that the GMP is separate and distinct from the Sublease
Payments to be paid by the District under the Sublease.

The GMP is an “all inclusive” price for the construction of the Project that is calculated after Due
Diligence and shall not be exceeded except as set forth in this Agreement. Contractor has taken on
all contingencies and calculated those contingencies out in the form of the Construction
Contingency. Contractor specifically agrees that once the Construction Contingency is fully
exhausted, that Contractor can and shall Complete the Project pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement within the Contract Time. No disputes concerning compensation, extras, or
application of Contingencies shall be utilized as grounds to slow down or to stop work. The
following two contingencies have been calculated through the Due Diligence of the Contractor
and shall be calculated against the contingency amounts based on application of the Change Order
language of Article 17.

52.1 Construction Contingency. The Construction Contingency set forth at Article 3.8.1 is
for the use of the Contractor, as approved by the District, to pay for miscellaneous
work items which are required to complete the Project including to cover trade scope
gaps, missed work, areas of damage that may occur between trades during
construction, Subcontractor coordination problems, and Contractor coordination
errors. The Contractor shall not use the Construction Contingency to pay for costs
related to the following: (a) errors or omissions in the Construction Documents; (b)
discrepancies with the Construction Documents pertaining to applicable building code
requirements; and/or (¢) enhancements or additions to the Scope of Work desired by
the District. The Contractor shall obtain written approval from the District prior to
using the Construction Contingency. The following may be considered, at the
District’s sole discretion, valid Construction Contingency items: 1) overtime and
premium time, 2) costs to address safety items, 3) Contractor coordination issues and
errors, 4) scope gaps, 5) trade damage, and 6) for other items requested by the
Contractor if approved by the District and in the District’s sole discretion. If on Final
Completion of the Project, funds are remaining in the Construction Contingency, such
funds shall remain unspent and allocated to the District as the District sees fit to use.

52.2 Errors and Omissions Contingency. Within the GMP shall be a line item amount to
cover errors and omissions in the Construction Documents (“Errors and Omissions
Contingency”). The Errors and Omissions Contingency at Article 3.7.2 is calculated
based on coordination review of the Construction Documents and coordination
meetings that have been held with the Subcontractors and Architect. Specifically, it is
the coordination items that could not be addressed through coordination meetings and
a factor determined based on the coordination review that has been performed by
Contractor. The Errors and Omissions Contingency is created from Contractor’s Due
Diligence and based on Contractor’s experience on similar projects. As a result,
Contractor agrees that Contractor shall not seek to charge District for Errors and
Omissions in excess of the Errors and Omissions Contingency. In other words, the
Errors and Omissions Contingency is the maximum sum available to compensate the
Contractor for Errors and Omissions on the part of the Architect and Architect’s

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 11



Consultants and is the maximum amount that can be charged. Contractor shall bear
all costs for Errors and Omissions that exceed the Errors and Omissions Contingency.

Contractor shall notify the District under the Change Order Provisions of the need for
such work and specifically identify the Work as Errors and Omissions by submitting
to the District for its consideration and approval or disapproval, a written request for
the work before such work is performed. If District approves such request in writing,
the costs of the work, shall be added to or deducted from the Errors and Omissions
Contingency within the GMP. Any funds remaining in the Errors and Omissions
Contingency at the completion of the Project shall remain unspent and allocated to the
District as the District sees fit to use, except for any portions of Savings added to the
Errors and Omissions Contingency, which Savings shall be allocated between the
parties as provided in Article 7 below.

53 Due Diligence

5.3.1 Documents Reviewed. Contractor has visited the site, entered and evaluated the
structures on the site, reviewed all as-built information, environmental reports,
Asbestos Hazard Emergency Response Act of 1986 reports applicable to the Project,
lead reports, reports on any other hazardous substances, reviewed environmental
impact reports, reviewed applicable mitigation measures for the Project, reviewed and
observed the current site conditions, reviewed available records from City and/or
County Records on the Project. All documents provided or reviewed by the
Contractor shall be referred to collectively as the Due Diligence Documents.

532 Review of Existing Conditions. Contractor must have performed basic confirmation of
the As-Built information that exists as part of the Due Diligence process. This basic
confirmation shall include:

533 Confirmation of overall dimensions of major column lines, location of elements where
coordination of new construction to existing construction is to occur, confirmation
that the rooms noted are located on the drawings, review and confirmation that rooms
have not been reconfigured.

5.3.3.1 Confirmation of location for utilities and supporting infrastructure.
Contractor shall review the utilities and confirm that the infrastructure
from the As-Builts and Contract Documents are consistent with the
actual As-Built Conditions of the Project site.

5.3.32 Confirmation that fire/life safety elements are consistent with
expectations of the Contract Documents. Specifically, confirmation of
the integrity of one-hour corridors, fire separations, working fire
sprinklers, working fire alarms, communications systems, EMS
systems, and other systems that are to remain in use and relied upon as
part of the anticipated Project.

53.3.3 Review of the Environmental Documents (Asbestos, Lead, PCB’s, etc.)
and general confirmation that the scope of hazardous substances is
consistent with that which is shown on the environmental reports that
are provided.

5334 Confirmation of Working hours and specific conditions which will
affect the ability to work. Contractor shall check requirements for the
local city and county and confirm working hours and days, testing
schedules at the District for days when work shall not occur, other
critical days when work cannot occur, mitigation measures in the EIR

Construction Services Agreement
Page 12
000834.0001822
196535.1



53.4

535

53.6

53.7

53.8

53.9

or Negative Declaration that may affect the ability to Work on the
Project. This review shall help Contractor build a working schedule for
the Project.

Review of Construction Documents. ~ Contractor has performed a complete and
diligent review of all plans, specifications, addenda, bulletins or other documents
provided as the Construction Documents or otherwise mentioned in the Construction
Documents. The Contractor has written and submitted RFIs to address potential
design issues prior to the GMP development to obtain a comprehensive GMP that
addresses design and constructability issues.

Inconsistencies. All inconsistencies, timing or sequences which appear to be in error
in the Construction Documents shall promptly be called to the attention of the
Architect or, Engineer, for interpretation or correction. Local conditions which may
affect the structure shall be brought to the Architect’s attention at once. In no case,
shall the instruction of the Architect be construed to cause work to be done which is
not in conformity with the approved plans, specifications, change orders, construction
change documents, and as required by law. (See Title 24 Section 4-343)

Coordination Review. Contractor shall perform a constructability review of the
Construction Documents as part of its Due Diligence to determine the level of Errors
and Omissions that should be included in the Errors and Omissions Contingency.

Price Fluctuations. As part of Contractor’s Due Diligence responsibilities, Contractor
is required schedule and plan to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment
sufficiently in advance of its Work at no additional cost to assure that there will be no
delays. Contractor understands that this may be a multi-year contract and that
materials fluctuate in value and shall have adequately addressed market fluctuations
through agreements with Contractor vendors or by other means. Contractor further
understands and incorporates into Contractor’s bid or proposal cost any wage rate
increases during the Project for the Contractor’s labor force as well as all other
subcontractor and vendor labor forces. Contractor also understands the length of the
Project schedule and has incorporated an appropriate budget to include labor, material,
and equipment escalation costs into the GMP. At no time will the District accept any
costs associated with these increases. District shall not be responsible for market
fluctuations in costs or labor rate increases during the Project. Contractor further has
incorporated any and all cost increases in areas of Work where there may be schedule
variations so that cost increases are not passed through to the District.

Coordination Review. Contractor has thoroughly reviewed the plans, specifications,
and other Due Diligence Documents and satisfied itself that the Construction
Contingency is adequate to complete the Project for the GMP.

Due Diligence Determinations. ~ Contractor has utilized all the available Due
Diligence information to verify that the contingencies are adequate and that the
Project can be constructed without exceeding the GMP:

5.3.9.1 Construction Contingency. Based on review of the scope of work
submitted from each Subcontractor, Contractor’s Due Diligence and
review shall be utilized to determine the size of the Construction
Contingency to cover unforeseen conditions (other than noted in Article
5.1), cover trade scope gaps, missed work, areas of damage that may
oocur between trades during construction, Subcontractor coordination
problems, Contractor coordination errors, and miscellaneous work
items.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 13



6.

53.92 Errors and Omission Contingency. Based on a thorough review of the
available Construction Documents and information located pursuant to
the Due Diligence performed, a set-aside has been made for an Errors
and Omissions Contingency that may be utilized to compensate for
construction work to correct Errors and Omissions in the Construction
Documents.

5393 District Contingency (sometimes called Owner Contingency). District
Contingency is a sum that is set aside by the District to address any
additional services. In the District’s sole discretion, design errors or
omissions as determined by the District (to the extent the Errors and
Omissions Contingency is exhausted) and unforeseen conditions as
approved by the District, may be allocated to the District Contingency.
Specifics on application of the Owner Contingency are set forth at
Article 8.

5394 Unforeseen Allowance. Unforeseen Allowance is a sum set aside for
unforeseen conditions that differ from representations in the Contract
Documents or Due Diligence Documents or meet the requirements
under Article 13.15.5 and 18.4. The Unforeseen Allowance may also
include other costs as allocated in the District’s sole and absolute
discretion related to the Project.

5.3.10 Schedule. Contractor’s Due Diligence will also be critical to the Contractor’s
determination of the number of days required to complete the Project. Contractor will
determine if the suggested number of days from the District and Architect can be
performed and shall also consider whether the Project requires Governmental or Rain
day float that exceeds that set forth in Article 9. If Contractor does not note any
concerns with the suggested Contract Time, then it is presumed that Contractor is in
agreement with the proposed completion date the Contractor, by entering into this
Agreement, has determined for itself that the Project Contract Time is realistic,
reasonable and includes all required Float under Article 9.

OPEN BOOK ACCOUNTING AND SELECTION OF SUBCONTRACTORS

6.1

Open Book Accounting. The Contractor’s GMP shall be based on actual procured quotes and bids
from Subcontractors, vendors, and suppliers or based on estimated costs. In addition, Contractor
shall include an estimated overhead and profit line item along with the cost for Contractor
supplied labor. This total construction cost, or Base Cost, shall be added to Subcontractor, vendor
and supplier contingencies and the Construction Contingency (which includes an Errors and
Omissions Contingency) to form the entire GMP. As costs are incurred during the course of the
Project, the Job Cost Accounting shall be updated to include actual costs incurred. A report on
costs shall be prepared as part of the GMP process and shall be provided on a monthly basis to the
District.

6.1.1 Purpose. While competitive bidding is ofien viewed as the lowest price, utilizing the
lowest bid neither results in the best contractor, efficient construction, or a properly
completed product. In some cases, the Project becomes significantly more expensive
because competitive bid contractors either don’t understand the drawings, aren’t
qualified to build the Project, or are seeking to utilize the legal process to make money
by bringing claims against the District. The lease leaseback methodology provides the
ability to negotiate for the most qualified competent contractor and allow coordination
and interaction between the Contractor, Architect and District to alleviate unnecessary
problems or areas that would result in claims. However, in exchange for this
flexibility and reduction in claims, it is in the District’s best interests, as a public
entity, to ensure that the Project accounting information is available for review and the

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 14



6.2

6.3

financial aspects of the Project can be fully reviewed. Thus, Contractor agrees that all
job cost information shall be kept in an “open book” manner, shall show the actual
transactions that occurred for the Project and shall be disclosable to the State if State
funds are being utilized.

State Allocation Board Issues. The Office of Public School Construction, the
administering agency for the State Allocation Board, audits the costs for construction
under the general authority of Education Code section 17076.10 and under the specific
authority of Regulation Section 1859.100 et seq. governing program accountability
audit, material inaccuracy, and expenditure audits. Given the fact the State has
approved the lease-leaseback delivery method, and the likelihood that the records of
the Project will be audited if there are State Funds involved, a permanent record of all
the financial transactions for the construction of the Project shall be available through
an Open Book Accounting of the Project expenditures of both hard and soft costs
including, but not limited to labor, material and services costs, including the
subcontract and material costs that were utilized to build the Project.

Value Engineering During the Project. In addition to Value Engineering addressed at
Article 7 below, Contractor may have occasion where better pricing can be obtained
from Subcontractors or suppliers. This better pricing shall be treated as part of
Savings under Article 7.

Scope Reduction Not Savings. The District at all times shall have the right to reduce the scope of

the Project. If the District reduces the scope of the Project, the GMP shall be reduced to reflect the
reduced Scope of Work, pursuant to the provisions of Article 17. To the extent possible, it is the
mutual goal of the District and Contractor to maximize the Scope of Work as allowed by the
GMP. Reductions in scope are not considered Savings.

Selection of Subcontractors.

6.3.1

6.3.2

If identified or requested in the District’s Request for Proposal/ Qualifications
(“RFP/RFQ”), the Contractor must use any Subcontractors identified and included in
the Contractor’s response to the District’s RFP/RFQ pursuant to Education Code
section 17406(a)(4). All Subcontractors identified and included in the Contractor’s
response to the District’s RFP/RFQ shall be afforded the protections of the Subletting
and Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (Chapter 4 (commencing with Section 4100) of
Part 1 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code).

Following the award of the Contract to the Contractor by the District’s Board of
Education, and for all Subcontractors not identified in the Contractor’s response to the
District’s RFP/RFQ, the Contractor shall proceed as follows in awarding construction
Subcontracts with a value exceeding one-half of one percent of the price allocable to
construction work:

6.3.2.1 Provide public notice of availability of work to be subcontracted in
accordance with the publication requirements applicable to the
competitive bidding process of the District, including a fixed date and
time on which qualifications statements, bids, or proposals will be due.

6.3.2.2 Establish reasonable qualification criteria and standards.

6.3.2.3 Award the subcontract either on a best value basis or to the lowest
responsible bidder. The process may include prequalification or short-
listing. The process shall not apply to Subcontractors identified and
included in the Contractor’s response to the District’s RFP/RFQ.
Subcontractors awarded construction subcontracts under this Article

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 15



7.

6.3.2 shall be afforded all the protections of the Subletting and
Subcontracting Fair Practices Act (Chapter 4 (commencing with
Section 4100) of Part 1 of Division 2 of the Public Contract Code).

6324 All MEP Subcontractors must be prequalified as set forth in Article
1.12 above.
6.3.3 In no case will the Contractor award any subcontracts until the District has concurred

to the scope and price of the subcontracted services.

6.3.4 All subcontractors (of any tier) performing any portion of the Work must comply with
the Labor Code sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 and must be properly and currently
registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations and qualified to
perform public works pursuant to Labor Code section 1725.5 throughout the duration
of the Project.

6.3.5 Contractor shall provide the District with full documentation regarding the bids or
competitive quotes received by Contractor. In no event shall such documentation be
redacted or obliterated. In the event the Contractor does not comply with this
provision, the District may terminate this Construction Services Agreement in
accordance with the provisions of Article 19 below.

6.3.6 Compliance with Disabled Veteran Business Enterprise (DVBE) contracting goals is
required under this Construction Services Agreement. In accordance with Education
Code section 17076.11 the District has a DVBE participation goal of 3% per year of
the overall dollar amount of state funds allocated to the District pursuant to the Leroy
F. Greene School Facilities Act of 1998, and expended each year by the District. The
District is seeking DVBE participation under this Construction Services Agreement.
The Contractor must require Subcontractors to make a good faith effort to contact and
utilize DVBE contractors and suppliers in securing bids for performance of the
Project. Their efforts shall be documented on the DVBE Good Faith Effort Form
attached as Exhibit “C”.

SAVINGS AND VALUE ENGINEERING

7.1

General Intent. The purpose of Savings is to minimize the expenditure of funds for the
construction of the Project on items that exceed the minimum criteria required without a
corresponding benefit to the District. The District also wishes to eliminate any excess quality
levels or performance criteria provided in the Construction Documents so long as such elimination
does not alter the design, aesthetics, safety standards or configuration or space, and does not
increase future maintenance and operation costs. The District and the Contractor shall work
cooperatively with each other, in good faith, to identify appropriate opportunities to reduce the
Project costs and promote Savings. There are two stages when Savings may be generated. They
are (1) Value Engineering when establishing the GMP and (2) Savings generated through changes,
reductions, or Subcontractor negotiations that may occur after the GMP is established.

7.1.1 Value Engineering is a review of systems so excess quality, unnecessary design
elements, reconfiguration for efficiency, or other changes may be made to reduce the
cost of a project. Sometimes, timing and sequences or re-use of materials that are
unique to a project or area may generate savings. For example, if export soil is
generated on a site which may have a substantial cost for transportation and removal
could be sold to offset the costs incurred then a savings may be generated for the
Project. Similarly, if concrete is ground, it may be sold for aggregate rather than as
demolished construction materials.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 16



8.

9.

7.2

7.3

7.1.2 Other Savings generated over the course of the Project through Subcontractor
negotiations, replacement of Subcontractors, or through other means shall be
calculated as part of the overall costs for the Project as part of the “Open Accounting”
of the Project and shall be counted towards Project Savings.

Sharing and Calculation for Return of Savings. If Contractor realizes a Savings on an aspect of
the Project, including but not limited to, Value Engineering or other Savings after the GMP is
established and after execution of this Construction Services Agreement, such Savings shall be
divided in the following proportion: Seventy Five Percent (75%) of any Savings shall be returned
to the District and Twenty Five Percent (25%) of any Savings shall be returned to the Contractor.
Calculation of Savings shall be determined by adding all expenses for the Project (excluding
Change Orders and Owner and Construction Contingency Expenses), separating out overhead
costs and either using the actual overhead costs, or the percentage set for overhead in the Article
5.3, whichever is higher an applying the percentage for profit against the GMP (less Change
orders, Owner and Construction Contingency). Any remaining money shall be considered
Savings. If the Project expenses exceed the GMP, then there are no Savings for the Project and
the GMP shall apply. A separate calculation of whether there are savings associated with Change
Orders under the Owner and Construction Contingency may be performed to determine if there are
any savings that remain on these areas and applied to the overall savings calculation

Savings Determined Through Audit. District may, at its own costs, have an audit conducted of the
Project related job costs to determine Savings as further outlined in Article 21.

DISTRICT CONTINGENCY

8.1

82

The District Contingency is an allowance for use by the District that can be used to pay the
Contractor to perform additional services (“Additional Services”) not described in this
Construction Services Agreement. This District Contingency is outside of the GMP, is not part of
the original bond, except to the extent that District contingency is utilized as a Change to the
Contract under Article 17, and may be used for Owner requested additions, revisions to the
Project, moving furniture or equipment, and other District unforeseen items. Contractor shall
provide a cost estimate and a written description of the Additional Services required to perform
such work. The District shall set aside a contingency amount outside the GMP, defined at Article
5 (“District Contingency”) in the amount set forth at Article 3, which District Contingency shall
be used for such Additional Services. Compensation for such Additional Services shall be
negotiated and agreed upon in writing, in advance of Contractor’s performing or contracting for
such Additional Services. Nothing in this Construction Services Agreement shall be construed as
limiting the valuation and amount to be paid to Contractor for such Additional Services or its
implementation should a written agreement for such services be executed. Contractor shall not be
entitled to compensation for Additional Services required as a result of Contractor’s acts, errors or
omissions. Further any Architectural Errors and Omissions shall not come out of District
Contingency unless agreed upon in writing by the District in its sole discretion.

Additionally, while District is in no way limited by the manner in which it decides to utilize the
District Contingency, said District Contingency shall not be used for any costs associated with
errors or omissions in the Construction Documents until such time, if ever, the Errors and
Omissions Contingency has been fully exhausted. Any funds remaining in the District
Contingency at the completion of the Project shall remain unspent and remain allocated to the
District.

SCHEDULE

9.1

Contract Time: Contractor shall perform and reach Substantial Completion (See Article 4.45)
within the time specified in the Agreement. Moreover, Contractor shall proceed on a properly
developed and approved CPM Master Baseline Schedule, which represents the Contractor’s view
of the practical way in which the Work will be accomplished. Note that Contract Time includes

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 17



9.2

9.3

and incorporates all Float and other Baseline inclusions as noted in Article 9.3 and as otherwise
specifically noted in Article 9

Float is the total number of days an activity may be extended or delayed without delaying the
Completion Date shown in the schedule. Float will fall into three categories: (1) Rain Days; (2)
Governmental Delays; and (3) Project Float. Project Float and Rain Days are owned by the
Project and require District approval prior to being utilized for critical path delays once the days
become available for consumption (i.e. the rain day arrives and is not utilized since rain did not
occur or Work was performed on the interior of a building). However, Governmental Delay float
shall not be utilized for purposes other than to address critical path delays that arise due to
approvals, Inspector approvals or verifications on governmental forms.

9.2.1 Governmental Delay Float. Given DSA requirements for submission and approval of
CCD’s prior to a DSA Form 152 sign off on areas of Work that deviate from approved
Construction Documents, and the anticipated delays that may arise from this CCD
procedure, no less than twelve (12) days per calendar year shall be set aside as
Governmental Float to be utilized on critical path delays. A pro-rated number of days
shall be calculated based on length of Contract Time. (For example, a two (2) year
Contract Time shall require twenty-four (24) days of Governmental Float. If the
Contract Time is 182 days, then the Contract Time shall require six (6) days of
Governmental Float) This Governmental Delay float must be incorporated into the
schedule and should be incorporated in each critical activity as Contractor deems fit.
Specifically, major categories of Work under the DSA 152 (Project Inspection Card)
should be allocated Governmental Delay Float at the Contractor’s discretion.
Governmental Delay Float on the Project may exceed 12 days per one (1) year period,
but Contractor is required to include not be less than 12 days of Governmental Delay
Float during each one (1) year period.

922 Inclement Weather (Rain Days). The Contractor will only be allowed a time
extension for unusually severe weather if it results in precipitation or other conditions
which in the amount, frequency, or duration is in excess of the norm at the location
and time of year in question as established by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric
Administration (NOAA) weather data. No less than 22 calendar days for each
Calendar year for Southern California. The NOAA weather related days (22 days in
Southern California) shall be set aside as float within the Baseline Schedule.
Additional days beyond the NOAA shall be considered under the same criteria that
weather days are granted below.

923 Granting of Days beyond those Anticipated. A Rain Day shall be granted by Architect
or CM if the weather prevents the Contractor from beginning Work at the usual daily
starting time, or prevents the Contractor from proceeding with seventy-five (75%) of
the normal labor and equipment force towards completion of the day’s current
controlling item on the accepted schedule for a period of at least five hours, and the
crew is dismissed as a result thereof, the Architect will designate such time as
unavoidable delay and grant one (1) critical path activity calendar-day extension if
there is no available float for the calendar year.

924 Project Float is all remaining float, including extra days included in a particular
activity.

Inclusions in Baseline. In addition to Scheduling requirements set forth at Article 9, Contractor is
specifically directed to include in Contractor’s Baseline Schedule and all Schedule updates that
provide for the following items required pursuant to this CSA, including but not limited to:

9.3.1 Rain Day Float (excluding inclement weather) as required under Article 9.2.2. For
example, if the NOAA provides 22 days of rain days, all 22 days must be incorporated

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 18



and noted in the schedule. Further, any days required to clean-up or dry out shall be
included for operations that are likely to require a clean-up or dry out period. Days
that are not utilized shall be considered float owned by the Project.

932 Governmental Delay Float under Article 9.2.1. This Governmental Delay Float shall
only be utilized for Governmental Delays and shall not be considered available float
owned by the Project. This float shall be distributed to the Project as granted and
approved by the District, and shall be used to offset liquidated damages for
overstaying the Lease, and shall not generate compensable delays.

933 Submittal and Shop drawing schedule under Article 9.6 and 15.6.

934 Deferred Approvals under Article 15.3 and 15.6

935 Time for separate contractors, including furniture installation and start up activities,
under Article 32.

93.6 Coordination and timing of any drawings, approvals, notifications, permitting,

connection, and testing for all utilities for the Project. Article 13.15.2.
9.3.7 Testing, special events, or District activities.

94 Schedule Updates. Contractor shall update the schedule (including a narrative) each month to
address actual start dates and durations, the percent complete on activities, actual completion
dates, estimated remaining duration for the Work in progress, areas of progress, logic and
durations, overall assessment of schedule achievement, estimated start dates for Work scheduled
to start at future times and changes in duration of Work items.

9.4.1 Listing of Items Causing Delays. Schedule Updates shall provide a listing of activities
which are causing delay in the progress of Work and a narrative shall be provided
showing a description of problem areas, anticipated delays, and impacts on the
Construction Schedule. Simply stating “District Delay” or “Architect Delay” shall be
an inadequate listing.

94.2 Recovery Schedule. In addition to providing a schedule update every thirty (30) days,
the Contractor, shall take the steps necessary to improve Contractor’s progress and
demonstrate to the District and Architect that the Contractor has seriously considered
how the lost time, the Completion Date, or the milestones that are required to be met
within the terms of the Contract. Contractor shall provide a Recovery Schedule
showing how Milestones and the Completion Date will be met.

9421 Failure to Provide a Recovery Schedule. Shall subject Contractor to
the assessment of Liquidated Damages for failure to meet the Contract
Time.
9.5 Time of the Essence. Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence to the

Contract. By executing the Agreement, the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a
reasonable period for performing the Work

9.6 Time for Preparing Submittals Must Be Incorporated in Schedule: Contractor shall include
Submittals as line items in the Baseline Schedule. Time for preparing and coordinating Submittals
shall not delay the Work, Milestones, or the Completion Date, and shall be in conformance with
Article 15.6.

Construction Services Agreement

Page 19
000834.0001822
196535.1



10. INSPECTION OF WORK/ INSPECTOR AND ARCHITECT

10.1 Inspection of Work/Inspector. The District shall hire its own Division of State Architect Inspector
as required by law. District, District’s Representatives, and the Division of the State Architect
shall at all times have access to the work whether it is in preparation or progress, and Contractor
shall provide proper facilities for such access and for inspection.

10.1.1 General. One or more Project Inspectors employed by the District and approved by
the Division of the State Architect will be assigned to the Work in accordance with the
requirements of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. The Inspector(s)
duties are as specifically defined in Title 24 Section 4-333 and 4-342 and in DSA IR
A-8.

10.1.2 Inspector’s Duties and DSA Noted Timelines for Inspection. All Work shall be under
the observation of the Inspector. Contractor shall establish a protocol for requesting
inspection with Inspector so as to not delay the Work and provide adequate time for
the Inspector to perform inspection. If such a protocol is not established ahead of
time, Inspector may utilize the time criteria set by Title 24 of 48 hours in advance of
submitting form DSA 156 for each new area. The Inspector shall have free access to
any or all parts of the Work at any time. The Contractor shall furnish the Inspector
such information as may be necessary to keep the Inspector fully informed regarding
progress and manner of Work and character of materials. Such observations shall not,
in any way, relieve the Contractor from responsibility for full compliance with all
terms and conditions of the Contract, or be construed to lessen to any degree the
Contractor’s responsibility for providing efficient and capable superintendence. The
Inspector is not authorized to make changes in the drawings or specifications nor shall
the Inspector’s approval of the Work and methods relieve the Contractor of
responsibility for the correction of subsequently discovered defects, or from its
obligation to comply with the Contract Documents.

10.1.3 Electronic Posting. Inspector shall electronically post DSA required documents on
the DSA electronic posting website. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to determine
the status of posting and determine if all the criteria for sign off of a category of Work
on the Project Inspection Card (Form DSA 152) as defined more thoroughly in the
most current version of the DSA 152 manual posted on the DSA website.

10.14 Incremental Approvals under PR-13. Inspector may collaborate with Contractor
about approval of areas that may be constructed and approved incrementally under the
DSA 152 card pursuant to the guidelines of PR-13. Inspector shall work with
Contractor to present incremental approval proposals to DSA.

10.1.5 Inspector’s Authority to Reject or Stop Work. The Inspector shall have the authority
to reject Work whenever provisions of the Contract Documents are not being
complied with, and Contractor shall instruct its Subcontractors and employees
accordingly. In addition, the Inspector may stop any Work that poses a probable risk
of harm to persons or property. The Contractor shall instruct its employees,
Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, etc., accordingly. The absence of
any Stop Work Order or rejection of any portion of the Work shall not relieve the
Contractor from any of its obligations pursuant to the Contract Documents.

10.1.6 Inspector’s Facilities. Within seven (7) days after notice to proceed, the Contractor
shall provide the Inspector with the temporary facilities as required. More specific
requirements for the Inspector facilities may be further described under Division 1 of
the Specifications.

Construction Services Agreement

Page 20
000834.0001822
196535.1



10.2

10.3

10.1.7 Testing Times. The District will provide inspection and testing at its cost during the
normal eight (8) hour day Monday through Friday (except holidays). Work by the
Contractor outside of the normal eight (8) hour day shall constitute an authorization
from the Contractor to the District to provide inspection and testing as required
outside of the normal eight (8) hour day. Contractor shall provide adequate time for
inspections so as to not delay the Work. An advanced timing protocol may be
established pursuant to Article 10. If the Contractor is behind Schedule then it is
incumbent on the Contractor to provide advance forecast through look ahead of the
anticipated date for inspection so the Inspector may plan their activities so as to not
delay the Project. Contractor shall reimburse District for any additional costs
associated with inspection and testing (including re-inspection and re-testing) outside
the normal eight-hour day and for any retests caused by the Contractor pursuant to
Article 10.4.

10.1.8 Contractor Is Required to Coordinate Testing and Inspections. 1t is the Contractor’s
responsibility to request special inspections with sufficient time so all testing may be
timely completed and posted so work may proceed and the Inspector’s signature is
attached to the Project Inspection Card (Form 152). Specifically, timely request for
special inspection under the DSA Verified Report Forms 291 (laboratory), DSA
Verified Report Form 292 (Special Inspection), and DSA Verified Report 293
(geotechnical) since DSA requirements under PR 13-01 specifically gives the Special
Inspections 14 days to post to the DSA website. It is the Contractor’s responsibility to
timely schedule and pay (if applicable) for Special Inspections as to not delay the
Project, and any failure or resulting delay is not considered Governmental Delay Float
under Article 9.2.1.

10.1.9 Special Inspection Out of State, Out of Country or Remote from Project. If Contractor
has a Subcontractor or supplier that requires in plant or special inspections or tests that
are out of the country, out of state or a distance of more than 200 miles from the
Project site, the District shall provide the Special Inspector or individual performing
tests time for inspection and testing during normal work hours. Contractor, however,
is responsible for the cost of travel, housing, food, out of area premiums that may be
in the Inspector/Testing Agreement with District, or other expenses necessary to
ensure proper inspection or testing is provided by a DSA Certified Inspector, Special
Inspector, or individual performing tests. In some cases all three (DSA Inspector,
Special Inspector, and Testing) may be required. In addition, if the DSA Certified
Inspector, Special Inspector, or individual performing test has contractual travel
clauses or special rates for out of town inspection, Contractor is responsible for all
costs associated with the contractual travel costs in addition to all other costs.
Arrangements for inspection and/or testing shall be made far enough in advance so as
to not delay the Work.

STOP WORK ORDER. DSA may issue a Stop Work Order, or an Order to Comply, when either
(1) the Work proceeds without DSA approval; (2) the Work proceeds without a DSA Project
Inspector, or (3) where DSA determines that the Work is not being performed in accordance with
applicable rules and regulations, and would compromise the structural integrity of the Project or
would endanger lives. If a Stop Work Order is issued, the Work in the affected area shall cease
until DSA withdraws the Stop Work Order. Pursuant to Education Code section 17307.5(b) and
Education Code section 81133.5, the District shall not be held liable in any action filed against the
District for any delays caused by compliance with the Stop Work Order, except to the extent that
an error or omission by the District is the basis for the issuance of the Stop Work Order.

Inspector’s Field Office. Contractor shall provide for the use of inspector a separate trailer or
temporary private office of not less than seventy five square feet of floor area to be located as
directed by District and to be maintained until removal is authorized by District. The Office shall
be of substantial waterproof construction with adequate natural light and ventilation. Door shall

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 21



10.4

have a key type lock or padlock hasp. The Inspector’s field office shall have heating and air-
conditioning and shall be equipped with a telephone, internet connection, working computer, a fax
machine and use of an on-site copier at Contractor’s expense. A table satisfactory for the study of
plans and two chairs shall be provided by Contractor. Contractor shall provide and pay for
adequate electric lights, and adequate heat and air conditioning for the field office until authorized

removal.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADDITIONAL CHARGES INCURRED BY THE DISTRICT FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

10.4.1

g

h)

If at any time prior to the completion of the requirements under the Contract
Documents, the District is required to provide or secure additional professional
services (including CM, Inspection, Architect, Engineering and Special Consultant
Services) for any reason by any act of the Contractor, the District may seek a
Deductive Change Order for any costs incurred for any such additional services,
which costs shall be deducted from the next scheduled Progress Payment. A
Deductive Change Order shall be independent from any other District remedies and
shall not be considered a waiver of any District rights or remedies. If payments then
or thereafter due to the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the
Contractor shall pay the difference to the District. Additional services shall include,
but shall not be limited to, the following:

Services made necessary by the default of the Contractor (Article 19 or Article
12.2).

Services made necessary due to the defects or deficiencies in the Work of the
Contractor.

Preparation of a CCD or ICD to correct a Contractor Deficiency, or Contractor
Caused Notices of Non-Compliance (Article 17.2)

Services required by failure of the Contractor to perform according to any
provision of the Contract Documents.

Services in connection with evaluating substitutions of products, materials,
equipment, Subcontractors’ proposed by the Contractor, and making subsequent
revisions to drawings, specifications, obtaining DSA approvals, DSA costs for
review of CCD’s, other governmental agency review costs, and providing other
documentation required (except for the situation where the specified item is no
longer manufactured or available). (Article 16

Services for evaluating and processing Claims or Disputes submitted by the
Contractor in connection with the Work outside the established Change Order or
Claims or Disputes process.

Services required by the failure of the Contractor to prosecute the Work in a
timely manner in compliance within the specified time of completion.

Services in conjunction with the testing, adjusting, balancing and start-up of
equipment other than the normal amount customarily associated for the type of
Work involved.

Services in conjunction with more than one (1) re-review of Submittals of Shop
Drawings, product data, samples, RFT’s etc.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 22



11.

12.

ARCHITECT

11.1

11.2

Architeet’s Status. In general and where appropriate and applicable, the Architect shall observe
the progress and quality of the work on behalf of the District. The Architect shall have the
authority to act on behalf of District only to the extent expressly provided in this Construction
Services Agreement. After consultation with the Inspector and after using his/her best efforts to
consult with the District, the Architect shall have authority to stop work whenever such stoppage
may be necessary in his reasonable opinion to insure the proper execution of the Construction
Services Agreement. Contractor further acknowledges that the Architect shall be, in the first
instance, the judge of the performance of this Construction Services Agreement

Architect’s Decisions. Contractor shall promptly notify District in writing if the Architect fails
within a reasonable time, make decisions on all claims of the District or Contractor and on all
other matters relating to the execution and progress of the Project.

DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES

12.1

12.2

District Site Representations. District warrants and represents that, District has, and will continue
to retain at all times during the course of construction, legal title to the Site and that said land is
properly subdivided and zoned so as to permit the construction and use of said Site. District
further warrants and represents that title to said land is free of any easements, conditions,
limitation, special permits, variances, agreements or restrictions which would prevent, limit, or
otherwise restrict the construction or use of said facility. However, in the event easements for
permanent structures or permanent changes in existing facilities are necessary, they shall be
secured and paid for by District, unless otherwise specified. Reference is made to the fact that
District has provided information on the Site to Contractor. Such information shall not relieve the
Contractor of its responsibility; and the interpretation of such data regarding the Site, as disclosed
by any borings or other preliminary investigations, is not warranted or guaranteed, either expressly
or implicitly, by the District. The Contractor shall be responsible for having ascertained pertinent
local conditions such as location, accessibility and general character of the Site and for having
satisfied itself as to the observable, known or documented conditions under which the work is to
be performed.

Partial Default: District Right to Take Over Work (Two (2) day notice to Cure and Correct). If
the Contractor Defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the District may provide a two (2) business day written notice to cure (a shorter
period of time in the case of Emergency or a critical path delay) Contractor’s Partial Default in a
specific segregated area of work. The District’s right to issue a Partial Default of the Contractor’s
Work and take over that segregated area of Work includes, but is not limited to:

a) Failure to supply adequate workers on the entire Project or any part thereof;

b) Failure to supply a sufficient quantity of materials;

c) Failure to perform any provision of this Contract;

d) Failure to comply with safety requirements, or due to Contractor is creation of an unsafe
condition;

e) Cases of bona fide emergency;

H Failure to order materials in a timely manner;

g) Failure to prepare deferred-approval items or Shop Drawings in a timely manner;

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 23



13.

h) Failure to comply with Contractor’s Baseline or Update Schedule, meet critical
Milestones which would result in a Delay to the Critical Path, or Delay the Contract
Time;

i) Failure to comply with the Subcontractor selection and award requirements under
Education Code section 17406(a)(4);

D Failure to meet the requirements of the American’s with Disabilities Act;

k) Failure to complete Punch List work; or

)] Failure to proceed on an Immediate Change Directive.

12.2.1 Failure to correct a Notice of Deviation. 1f during the two (2) business day period,

the Contractor fails to Cure and correct the deficiency noted in the notice of Partial
Default with diligence and promptness, the District may correct such deficiencies
without prejudice to other remedies the District may have, including a Termination for
Cause as set forth in Article 19.

12.2.2 Service of Notice of Partial Default with Right to Cure. A written notice of Partial
Default and right to Cure under Article 12.2(“Article 12.2 Notice” or “Notice of
Partial Default”) shall be served by facsimile (with a copy provided by e-mail to the e-
mail address provided and copied to the Project Superintendent).

12.2.3 Shortened Time for Partial Default in the Case of Emergencies. In an Emergency
situation, the District may correct any of the deficiencies described in Article 12.2
without prejudice to other remedies by providing service of written notice of
Emergency requiring a shortened time for Partial Default specifying the time given to
Cure, if any.

1224 Shortened Time for Partial Default in the Case of Critical Path Delay. In the case of
critical path delay, the District may correct any of the deficiencies described in Article
12.2 without prejudice to other remedies providing service of written notice of Critical
Path Delay to the Contractor with a specific description of the critical path delay items
noting the line item or area of Work that is on the Critical Path and prescribe the
length of shortened time to Cure, if any.

12.2.5 Written Notice of Partial Default to be Deducted by Deductive Change Order. The
District shall have the right to determine the reasonable value of the Article 12.2
Partial Default Work, or if there is an actual value for the Work, shall use that value
and issue a Deductive Change Orders under Article 17.6.

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES.

13.1

Full Time Supervision. Contractor shall keep on the Work at all times during its progress a
competent, English speaking construction Superintendent satisfactory to the District. The
Superintendent shall be present on a full-time basis, shall be dedicated exclusively to the Project
and shall not share superintendency duties with another project or job. The Superintendent shall
not be replaced except with written consent of the District. The Superintendent shall represent the
Contractor in its absence and shall be fully authorized to receive and fulfill any instruction from
the Architect, the Inspector, the District or any other District representative (including CM in the
cases where the District has a CM representative). All Requests for Information shall be
originated by the Superintendent and responses thereto shall be given to the Superintendent. No
Work shall begin on any day by any Subcontractor or other person on the Project site until the
Superintendent has arrived, or shall any Work continue during the day after the Superintendent has
departed from the Project site. The Superintendent shall have authority to bind Contractor through

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 24



13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

13.6

13.7

the Superintendent’s acts. The Superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and communications
given to the Superintendent shall be binding on the Contractor. Before commencing the Work,
Contractor shall give written notice to District (and CM representative) and Architect of the name
and a Statement of Qualifications of such superintendent. Superintendent shall not be changed
except with written consent of District, unless a superintendent proves to be unsatisfactory to
Contractor and ceases to be in its employ, in which case, Contractor shall notify District and
Architect in writing. Contractor shall provide a replacement superintendent approved by the
District prior to performing additional work.

Staff. Notwithstanding other requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor and each
Subcontractor shall: (1) furnish a competent and adequate staff as necessary for the proper
administration, coordination, supervision, and superintendence of its portion of the Work; (2)
organize the procurement of all materials and equipment so that the materials and equipment will
be available at the time they are needed for the Work; and (3) keep an adequate force of skilled
and fit workers on the job to complete the Work in accordance with all requirements of the
Contract Documents.

Contractor shall notify District and Architect, in writing, when Contractor desires to change the
Project Manager for the Project, and shall provide the information specified above. The new
Project Manager cannot serve on the Project until approved by District. District shall have the
right, at any time, to direct a change in Contractor’s Project Manager if performance is
unsatisfactory, as determined by District, in its sole discretion.

Contractor shall give efficient supervision to the work, using its skill and attention and shall cause
working drawings and specifications to be prepared and submitted to the District. Following
agreement by Contractor and District with respect to said working drawings and specifications, it
shall be Contractor’s responsibility to perform the work described in said working drawings and
specifications in substantial compliance with the Construction Documents.

Right to Remove. District shall have the right, but not the obligation, to require the removal from
the Project of any superintendent, staff member, agent, or employee of any Contractor,
Subcontractor, material or equipment supplier.

Discipline. The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s
and Subcontractor’s employees, and other persons carrying out the Contract. The Contractor shall
not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not skilled in tasks assigned to them. As used
in this subsection, “unfit” includes any person who the District concludes is improperly skilled for
the task assigned to that person, who fails to comply with the requirements of this Article, or who
creates safety hazards which jeopardize other persons and/or property.

Labor and Materials

13.7.1 Contractor to Provide. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the
Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, material, equipment, tools, construction
equipment and machinery, water, heat, air conditioning, utilities, transportation, and
other facilities, services and permits necessary for proper execution and completion of
the Work whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be
incorporated in the Work.

13.7.2 Quality. Unless otherwise specified, all materials and equipment to be permanently
installed in the Project shall be new and shail be of the highest quality or as
specifically stated in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall, if requested,
furnish satisfactory evidence as to kind and quality of all materials and equipment
within ten (10) days of a written request by the District, including furnishing the
District with bona fide copies of invoices for materials or services provided on the
Project. All labor shall be performed by workers skilled in their respective trades, and

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 25



13.8

13.9

13.10

13.11

13.12

shall be of the same or higher quality as with the standards of other public school
construction.

13.7.3 Replacement. Any work, materials, or equipment, which do not conform to these
requirements or the standards set forth in the Contract Documents, may be
disapproved by the District, in which case, they shall be removed and replaced by the
Contractor at no additional cost or extension of time to the District.

Pre-Construction Orientation/Construction Meetings. The Contractor, in conjunction with the
District and the Architect, shall conduct pre construction orientation conferences for the benefit of
Subcontractors to orient the Subcontractors to the various reporting procedures and site rules prior
to the commencement of actual construction. These Pre-Construction meetings shall include
coordination of the Subcontractor Work to help reduce Errors and Omissions and Construction
Contingency requests and shall incorporate the Constructability Due Diligence review done by
Contractor.

Owner Meetings. The Contractor shall conduct construction and progress meetings with District
Representatives, and Construction Managers that occur at least weekly and as otherwise requested
by the District, to discuss such matters as procedures, progress problems and scheduling. The
Contractor shall prepare and promptly distribute official minutes of such meetings to all parties in
attendance including Architect, District and Inspector.

Budget/Cash Flow Reports. The Contractor shall incorporate approved changes as they occur, and
develop cash flow reports and forecasts for submittal to the District on a monthly basis. The
Contractor shall provide regular monitoring of the approved estimates of Construction Costs,
showing actual costs for activities in progress, and estimates for uncompleted tasks. The
Contractor shall identify variances between actual and budgeted or estimated costs, and advise the
District and the Architect whenever Project costs exceed budgets or estimates. The Contractor
shall maintain cost accounting records on authorized additional services or work performed under
unit costs, additional work performed on the basis of actual costs of labor and materials, or other
work requiring accounting records.

Progress Reports. The Contractor shall record the progress of the Project, and shall submit
monthly written progress reports to the District and the Architect including information on the
entire Project, showing percentages of completion and the number and amounts of proposed Extra
Work/Modifications and their effect on the Construction Costs as of the date of the report. The
Contractor shall also keep a daily log containing a record of weather, Contractors, work on the
site, number of workers, work accomplished, problems encountered, and other similar relevant
data as the District may require. The Contractor shall make the log available to the District and
the Architect. The District shall be promptly informed of all anticipated delays. In the event that
the Contractor determines that a schedule modification is necessary, the Contractor shall promptly
submit a revised Schedule for approval by the District

Schedule of Values.

13.12.1 Break Down of Schedule of Values. Schedule of Values shall be broken down by
Project, site, building, milestone, or other meaningful method to measure the level of
Project Completion as determined by the District. The schedule of values shall
include, but not be limited, to Subcontractor costs, the costs for the Submittals, Punch
Lists, Commissioning and Start-Up, Close Out Submittals, and As-Builts.

13.12.2 Based on Contractor Costs. The Schedule of Values shall be based on the costs from
Contractor to the District. However, the submission of the Schedule of Values shall
not be front loaded so the Contractor is paid a greater value than the value of the Work
actually performed and shall not shift funds from parts of the Project that are later to
Work that is performed earlier.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 26



13.13

13.14

13.12.3 Largest Dollar Value for Each Line Item. Identify Subcontractors and materials
suppliers proposed to provide portions of Work equal to or greater than ten thousand
dollars ($10,000) or one-half (1/2) of one percent (1%) of their Contract Price,
whichever is less, or as otherwise approved in writing by the District.

13.12.4 Allowances. Any Allowances provided for in the Contract shall be a line item in the
Schedule of Values.

13.12.5 Labor and Materials Shall Be Separate. Labor and Materials shall be broken into two
separate line items unless specifically agreed in writing by the District.

13.12.6 District Approval Required. The District shall review all submissions of Schedule of
Values received pursuant to this Article in a timely manner. All submissions must be
approved by the District before becoming the basis of any payment.

Scheduling. Contractor shall complete the construction pursuant to the CPM Schedule as required
under Article 9.

As-Builts. Throughout the duration of the Project, Contractor shall maintain on a current basis an
accurate and complete set of As-Built Drawings (and Annotated Specifications) clearly showing
all changes, revisions to specifications and substitutions during construction, including, without
limitation, field changes and the final location of all electrical and mechanical equipment, utility
lines, ducts, outlets, structural members, walls, partitions, and other significant features. In case a
specification allows Contractor to elect one of several brands, makes, or types of material or
equipment, the annotations shall show which of the allowable items the Contractor has furnished.
The Contractor will update the As-Built Drawings and Annotated Specifications as often as
necessary to keep them current, but no less often than weekly.

13.14.1 Updates. Contractor shall update As-Built Drawings with complete information on an
area of Work at or near the time when the Work is being performed and prior to any
DSA 152 sign off and prior to any Work being covered.

13.14.2 Storage. The As-Built Drawings and Annotated Specifications shall be kept at the
Site and available for review and inspection by the District and the Architect. Failure
to maintain and update the As-Built Drawings is a basis to withhold scheduled
Progress Payments pursuant to Article 29.4.

13.14.3 Upon Beneficial Occupancy. Contractor shall obtain and pay for reproducible plans
upon Beneficial Occupancy. Contractor shall deliver Plans to District Representative
(Construction Manager if one is hired for the Project).

13.14.4  As-Builts at Completion of Work. On completion of the Work and prior to and as a
condition precedent to the Application for Retention Payment, the Contractor will
provide one neatly prepared and complete set of As-Built Drawings and Annotated
Specifications to the District. Contractor shall certify the As-Builts as a complete and
accurate reflection of the actual construction conditions of the Work by affixing a
Stamp indicating the Drawings are As-Builts and Certifying Accuracy on the final set
of As-Builts.

13.14.5 Log of Control and Survey Documentation. Contractor shall complete and maintain
an accurate log or all control and survey documentation for the Project as the Work
progresses. All reference and control points shall be recorded on the As-Built
drawings. The basis of elevations shall be one of the established benchmarks that
must be maintained on the As-Builts.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 27



13.14.6

Record Coordinates for Key Items. Contractor shall record, by coordinates, all
utilities on-site with top of pipe elevations, major grade and alignment changes, rim,
grate or top of curb and flow line elevations of all drainage structures and sewer
manholes. Contractor shall update record information at or near the time when work
is occurring in an area and prior to DSA 152 sign off on any category of Work and
prior to covering the Work.

13.15 Miscellaneous Obligations of Contractor

13.15.1

13.15.2

13.15.3

13.15.4

13.15.5

13.15.6

District Permit and Other Obligations. Tt is expressly understood that the District
shall pay the DSA for the DSA inspector, soils testing, DSA fees, special testing, etc.
If additional review or permits become necessary for reasons not due to Contractor’s
fault or because of DSA requirements or regulations implemented after the date the
GMP is established and not reasonably anticipated at the time the GMP is established,
Contractor may seek compensation only for the direct cost (without mark up or added
fees) of that review, as an additional cost. In the alternative, District may pay such
costs directly to DSA. (Offsite costs and additional inspection costs)

Contractor Permit Obligations. Contractor shall pay for all remaining general
building permits and ancillary permits and licenses not paid by District prior to the
commencement of this Construction Services Agreement. Contractor shall also be
responsible for arranging and overseeing all necessary inspections and tests, including
inspections by the DSA, permits and occupancy permits, and ensure compliance with
any Federal and State laws. All municipal charges for permanent utilities including,
but not limited to, sewer, electrical, phone, gas, water, and irrigation shall be paid for
by District. Contractor shall be responsible for arranging the payment of such fees by
District at least one (1) week in advance of when the payment is due. Contractor may
either request reimbursement from District for such fees (at direct cost only), or obtain
the funds from District prior to paying such fees.

Protection. The Contractor shall establish procedures for the protection of all existing
structures, equipment, utilities, and other existing improvements, both on site and off
site.

Nuisance Abatement. The Contractor shall develop a mutually agreed upon
documented program with the District to abate and minimize noise, dust, and
disruption to normal activities at the existing facilities on the Site, including
procedures to control on site noise, dust, and pollution during construction.

Site Mitigation and Remediation. Contractor shall be required to undertake Site
mitigation or remediation at its sole cost for items identified in the Due Diligence
Documents provided to Contractor. For hazardous substances and underground
conditions that differ from representations in Contract Documents or Due Diligence
Documents, Contractor shall provide notice within five (5) days after the discovery of
the occurrence of the unforeseen conditions. If Due Diligence Documents and
information provided to Contractor does not provide notice of the unforeseen
condition, then the costs for such work shall be added as an extra pursuant to Article
17. Costs shall be allocated to the Unforeseen Allowance. However, to the extent
Unforeseen Allowance is exceeded, District may, in its sole and absolute discretion,
allocate any costs that exceed the Unforeseen Allowance arising from unforeseen
underground conditions and hazardous substances that are not documented in the
Construction Documents or in the Due Diligence Documents reviewed to the District
Contingency.

Utilities. The Contractor shall perform and pay for all temporary utility hook ups and
connections; the District shall pay for use of utilities during construction, as well as

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 28



13.15.7

13.15.8

13.15.9

13.15.10

13.15.11

13.15.12

13.15.13

any fees owed to utility suppliers for connection to existing mainline facilities.
Buildings shall be connected to water, gas, sewer, and electric services, complete and
ready for use. Service connections shall be made and existing services reconnected.

Sanitary Facilities. The Contractor shall provide a sanitary temporary toilet building
as directed by the inspector for the use of all workers. The building shall be
maintained in a sanitary condition at all times and shall be left at the site until the
inspector directs removal. Use of toilet facilities in the work under construction shall
not be permitted except by approval of the Inspector.

Layout and Field Engineering. All field engineering required for laying out this work
and establishing grades for earthwork operations shall be furnished by the Contractor
at its expense. Such work shall be done by a qualified civil engineer or land surveyor
licensed in California and approved by the Architect. Any required “as built”
drawings of site development shall be prepared by a qualified civil engineer or land
surveyor licensed in California and approved by the Architect.

Cutting and Patching. Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, or patching of work as
required to make its several parts come together properly and fit it to receive or be
received by work of other contractors showing upon, or reasonably implied by, the
drawings and specifications for the completed structure. Contractor shall make good
after them as Architect may direct. All cost caused by defective or ill-timed work shall
be borne by party responsible therefore. Contractor shall not endanger any work by
cutting, excavating, or otherwise altering work and shall not cut or alter work of any
other contractor without consent or at the direction of Architect.

Documents on the Project Site. Contractor shall keep one copy of all Contract
Documents, including addenda, change orders, Division 1, Title 21 of the California
Code of Regulations, Parts 1-5 and 12 of Title 24, and Title 22 of the California Code
of Regulations, and the prevailing wage rates applicable to the Project, which are a
part of Contract Documents, on job at all times. Said documents shall be kept in good
order and shall be available to District representative, Architect and his
representatives. Contractor shall be acquainted with and comply with the provisions
of said Titles 21, 22 and 24 as they relate to this Project. (See particularly Duties of
the Contractor, Title 24 California Code of Regulations, Section 4-343.) Contractor
shall also be acquainted with and comply with all California Code of Regulations
provisions relating to this Project, particularly Titles 17, 19, 21, 22 and 24.)
Contractor shall also make available all books, records, accounts, contracts, bids, etc.
upon request of District.

Contractor to Bind Subcontractors to the Provisions of this Contract. Contractor shall
ensure that Subcontractors are bound to the same extent as Contractor is bound to
District.

Contractor Responsible for Means and Methods. — Contractor shall be solely
responsible for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, procedures,
and coordinating all portions of the work under the Contract Documents, unless the
Contract Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters.
Contractor shall be responsible to see that the finished work complies accurately with
the Contract Documents. Contractor shall not perform the work without utilizing the
Contract Documents or, where required, approved shop drawings, product data, or
samples for any such portion of the work.

Contractor Responsible for Acts and Omissions of Employees. Contractor shall be
responsible to District for acts and omissions of Contractor’s employees,
Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, and their agents, employees,

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 29



invitees, and other persons performing portions of the work under direct or indirect
contract with Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.

13.15.14  General DSA Compliance. During the entire term of this Agreement, Contractor shall
coordinate its services with the District, Architect, Project Inspector, and other parties
to ensure that all requirements set forth in the DSA’s Inspection Card (Form 152) and
any subsequent revisions or updates thereto issued or required by DSA, or any
other/alternate processes are being met in compliance with DSA requirements.
Contractor shall take all action necessary as to not delay progress in meeting any DSA
requirements. Contractor shall meet any applicable requirements set forth in DSA’s
Construction Oversight Process Procedure (PR 13-01) and any subsequent revisions
or updates thereto issued or required by DSA. Any references to DSA requirements
for the Project shall be deemed to include and incorporate any revisions or updates
thereto.

13.16  Close Out

13.16.1 All DSA Close-Out requirements (See DSA Certification Guide). Contractor is also
specifically directed to the DSA Certification Guide and the applicable certificates for
the DSA-311 form.

13.16.2 Punch List Is Prepared Only After the Project Is Substantially Complete. The
Inspector and Architect shall prepare a Punch List of items which is an inspection
report of the Work, if any, required in order to complete the Contract Documents and
ensure compliance with the DSA Approved Plans so the Project may be Completed by
the Contractor and a final DSA Close-Out is approved. When all Work for the Project
is Complete, including Punch Lists and all Work complies with the approved Contract
Documents and Change Orders, the Project has reached Final Completion.

13.16.3 Time for Completion of Punch List. Contractor shall only be given a period of no
more than thirty (30) days to complete the Punch List on Project. During the Punch
List period Contractor Superintendent and Project Manager shall remain engaged in
the Project and shall not be removed or replaced. If the Punch List is not completed at
the end of the Punch List time then Contractor shall issue a valued Punch List within 5
days after the date the Punch List time ends. If Contractor does not issue such a list,
the Owner or Architect may issue a valued Punch List to the Contractor and withhold
up to 150% of the value of the Punch List Work.

13.16.4 As-Builts Up to Date and Complete. The intent of this procedure is to obtain an exact
“As-Built” record of the Work upon completion of the Project. The following
information shall be carefully and correctly drawn on the prints and all items shall be
accurately located and dimensioned from finished surfaces of building walls on all
As-Built drawings:

13.16.4.1 The exact location and elevations of all covered utilities, including
valves, cleanouts, etc. must be shown on As-Builts

13.16.4.2 Contractor is liable and responsible for inaccuracies in As-Built
drawings, even though they become evident at some future date.

13.16.4.3 Upon completion of the Work and as a condition precedent to approval
of release of the Retention Payment, Contractor shall obtain the
Inspector’s approval of the “As-Built” information. When completed,
Contractor shall deliver corrected sepias and/or a Diskette with an
electronic file in a format acceptable to the District.

Construction Services Agreement

Page 30
000834.0001822
196535.1



13.17

13.16.4.4 District may withhold the cost to hire a draftsman and potholing and
testing service to complete Record As-Built Drawings at substantial
cost if the Contractor does not deliver a complete set of Record As-
Built Drawings. This shall result in withholding of between $10,000 to
$20,000 per building that does not have a corresponding Record As-
Built Drawing.

13.16.5 Any Work not installed as originally indicated on drawings

13.16.6 All DSA Close-Out requirements (See DSA Certification Guide). Contractor is also
specifically directed to the DSA Certification Guide and the applicable certificates for
the DSA-311 form.

13.16.7 Submission of Form 6-C. Contractor shall be required to execute a Form 6-C as
required under Title 24 Sections 4-343. The Contractor understands that the filing
with DSA of a Form 6-C is a requirement to obtain final DSA Approval of the
Construction by Contractor and utilized to verify under penalty of perjury that the
Work performed by Contractor complies with the DSA approved Contract
Documents.

13.16.8 Contractor shall be Responsible for All Costs to Certify the Project. The District may
Certify the Project complies with Approved Construction Documents by utilizing the
procedures under the Project Certification Guide (Located at the DSA website at
http://www.documents.dgs.ca.gov/dsa/plan_review_process/project_certification_guid
e _updated 03-15-13.pdf). All costs for professionals, inspection, and testing required
for an alternate Project Certification shall be the Contractor’s responsibility and the
District reserves its right to institute legal action against the Contractor and
Contractor’s Surety for all costs to certify the Project and all costs to correct Non-
Compliant Work that is discovered during the Alternate Certification Process.

13.16.9 ADA Work that must be corrected to receive DSA certification. See Article 41.

13.16.10  Maintenance Manuals. At least thirty (30) days prior to final inspection, three (3)
copies of complete operations and maintenance manuals, repair parts lists, service
instructions for all electrical and mechanical equipment, and equipment warranties
shall be submitted. All installation, operating, and maintenance information and
drawings shall be bound in 8'4” x 11” binders. Provide a table of contents in front and
all items shall be indexed with tabs. Each manual shall also contain a list of
Subcontractors, with their addresses and the names of persons to contact in cases of
emergency. Identifying labels shall provide names of manufactures, their addresses,
ratings, and capacities of equipment and machinery.

13.16.11 Maintenance manuals shall also be delivered in electronic media for the Project. Any
demonstration videos shall also be provided on electronic media.

Correction of Work: Warranty. Neither a Progress Payment, Sublease Payment nor any provision
in the Contract Documents shall relieve Contractor of responsibility for faulty materials or
workmanship incorporated in the Project. Contractor warrants that all work under this
Construction Services Agreement will be free of faulty materials or workmanship and hereby
agrees, within ten (10) days upon receiving notification from District, to remedy, repair or replace,
without cost to District, all defects which may appear as a result of faulty materials or
workmanship in the Project, at any time, or from time to time, during a period beginning with
commencement of the Project and ending one (1) years after the date of completion of the Project,
as defined in Article 18 hereof. The foregoing warranty of Contractor also applies to the remedy,
repair or replacement of defects which may in the documents prepared by Contractor and/or any
party retained by, through or under Contractor in connection with the Project, but the foregoing

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 31



warranty of Contractor does not guarantee against damage to the Project sustained by use, wear,
intentional acts, accidents, or lack of normal maintenance or as a result of changes or additions to
the Project made or done by parties not directly responsible to Contractor, except where such
changes or additions to the Project are made in accordance with Contractor’s directions. No
guarantee furnished by a party other than Contractor with respect to equipment manufactured or
supplied by such party shall relieve Contractor from the foregoing warranty obligation of
Contractor. The warranty period set forth herein above shall not apply to latent defects appearing
in the Project, and with respect to such defects, the applicable statute of limitations shall apply.
Contractor agrees to provide the District with all equipment and materials warranties provided by
manufacturers to District but has no obligation to assist in processing such warranty claims after
said one (1) year warranty period.

13.17.1 Assignment of Subcontracts. Upon the Completion of the Warranty period, Contractor
shall assign to the District all subcontracts with Subcontractors, material suppliers or
other vendors that provided Work for the Project. This assignment shall include all
purchase orders and any change orders or addenda that were executed with the
assigned Subcontractor.

13.17.1.1 Documents to_be Provided to District. Contractor shall provide the
following documents to the District as part of Close Out of the Project:

a. Subcontractor Warranty.  Contractor shall provide any
warranty documents, including warranties consistent with the
requirements of this Contract and the Contract Documents.

b. Contracts. Contractor shall provide copies of all subcontracts,
amendments, change orders and other documents associated
with the Subcontractor’s scope of work and price for work on
the Project.

Gl Subcontractors Bound to the Same Extent as Contractor. The
Subcontractors shall be bound to the same extent as the
Contractor is bound by this CSA and Subcontractors shall be
required to include assignment of their contracts to the
District.

d. Bonds Assignable. Contractor shall ensure that Subcontractor
performance and payment bonds are assignable and can be
assigned to the District.

e. Unconditional Releases. Contractor shall provide as part of
the Close Out of the Project, Unconditional Releases for each
Subcontractor and Material supplier that provided Work for
the Project.

f. Project Files. Contractor shall provide the District a copy of
the entire Subcontractor file, including any submittals or shop
drawings that were provided by Subcontractor.

g. District Reserves the Right to Assume Subcontractor
Contracts Prior to the End of the Warranty Period. District
reserves the right to take assignment of Subcontractor
contracts prior to the end of the warranty period.

13.18  Assienment of Anti-Trust Claims. The Contractor offers and agrees to assign to the District all
rights, title and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton

Construction Services Agreement
Page 32
000834.0001822
196535.1



14.

15.

Act (15 USC Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 (commencing with section 16700)
of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchase of goods,
services, or materials pursuant to the Construction Services Agreement. This assignment shall
become effective at the time the District tenders the final Sublease Payment to Contractor, without
further acknowledgment by the parties.

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

14.1

14.2

14.3

The Contract Documents shall be executed, and/or initialed as appropriate, in duplicate by District
and Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by any one
shall be as binding as if required by all. The intention of the Contract Documents is to include all
labor, services and materials reasonably necessary for the proper execution of the work.

It is not intended that work and/or services not covered under any heading, section, branch, class
or trade of the specifications shall be supplied, unless it is required elsewhere in the Contract
Documents or is reasonably inferable therefrom as being necessary to produce the intended results,
in which case such work and/or services shall be supplied by Contractor. Words which have well
known technical or trade meanings are used herein in accordance with such recognized meanings.
Mutual agreement shall be reached with respect to words which do not have a well-known
technical or trade meaning and the definition of which come into question.

Plans and Specifications are intended to be fully cooperative and to agree. All Plan and
Specification changes shall be dated and sequentially recorded. All modifications to Plans and
Specifications shall be interpreted in conformity with the Contract Documents, which shall
govern, unless otherwise specified.

SUBMITTALS

15.1

Definitions

15.1.1 Deferred Approvals. Approval of certain aspects of the construction may be deferred
until the construction Contract has been awarded. To facilitate the design process,
DSA grants deferred approval to the design and detailing of certain elements of the
Project at the request of the Architect or Engineer of Record. Design elements that
may be deferred may include, but are not limited to Access floors, Bleachers, Elevator
guide rails and related elevator systems, Exterior wall systems - precast concrete,
glass fiber reinforced concrete, etc., Skylights, Window wall systems, storefronts,
Stage rigging, and other systems as noted in the Contract Documents, (Also see
Article 15.3 and 15.6).

15.1.2 Shop Drawings. The term “Shop Drawings” as used herein means drawings,
diagrams, equipment or product schedules, and other data, which are prepared by
Contractor, Subcontractors, manufacturers, suppliers, or distributors illustrating some
portion of the Work, and includes: illustrations; fabrication, erection, layout and
setting drawings; manufacturer’s standard drawings; schedules; descriptive literature,
instructions, catalogs, and brochures; performance and test data including charts;
wiring and control diagrams; and all other drawings and descriptive data pertaining to
materials, equipment, piping, duct and conduit systems, and methods of construction
as may be required to show that the materials, equipment, or systems and their
position conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents.

15.1.3 Manufactured applies to standard units usually mass-produced, and “Fabricated”
means items specifically assembled or made out of selected materials to meet
individual design requirements. Shop drawings shall: establish the actual detail of all
manufactured or fabricated items, indicate proper relation to adjoining work, amplify
design details of mechanical and electrical systems and equipment in proper relation

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 33



15.14

15.1.5

to physical spaces in the structure, and incorporate minor changes of design or
construction to suit actual conditions.

Submittals is a term used interchangeably and sometimes refers to Shop Drawings,
Product Data, and Samples since all Subcontractor submissions are tracked in a
Submittal Log and may include any of the noted items. However, generally, a
Submittal is a manufacturer’s product information and product data including
description, characteristics, size, physical characteristics, and requirements to prepare
the jobsite for receiving of the particular manufactured item.

Samples. The term “samples” as used herein are physical examples furnished by
Contractor to illustrate materials, equipment, or quality and includes natural materials,
fabricated items, equipment, devices, appliances, or parts thereof as called for in the
Specifications, and any other samples as may be required by the Architect to
determine whether the kind, quality, construction, finish, color, and other
characteristics of the materials, etc., proposed by the Contractor conform to the
required characteristics of the various parts of the Work. All Work shall be in
accordance with the approved samples.

15.2 Shop Drawings.

15.2.1

15.2.2

15.2.3

When Shop Drawings Are Required. Shop drawings are required for prefabricated
components and for installation and coordination of these prefabricated components
into the Project. In addition, Shop Drawings, are prepared to address the actual size
and installation of components from various Subcontractors and provides an
opportunity for the Contractor to coordinate and address conflicts between the
subcontracting trades. In some cases, each Subcentractor or trade will provide Shop
Drawings in a format agreed upon by District.

Purpose for Shop Drawings. Shop drawings are the Contractor’s manufacturer,
Subcontractor, supplier, vendor or the Contractor’s detailed drawings showing
particularized method for assembly, specifics to a manufacturer, manufacturer
component installation requirements, specifics as to a manufactured item, alterations
to a manufactured, a custom created item, or drawn version of more detailed
information expanding on the Architect’s design shown in the Contact Documents.
The Shop Drawings address the appearance, performance, size, weight, characteristics
and prescriptive descriptions associated with the Contractor or Contractor’s
Subcontractor’s plan for installation or assembly based on the design in the
specifications and Contract Documents. The shop drawing often is more detailed than
the information shown in the Contract Documents to give the Architect and Engineer
the opportunity to review the fabricator’s version of the product (along with
particulars specific to that particular product), prior to fabrication. References to the
Contract Documents, Construction Documents, Drawings, Plans, and Specifications
assist the Architect and Engineer in their review of the Shop Drawings. Attachment of
manufacturer’s material specifications, “catalog cut sheets,” and other manufacturer’s
information may be provided to accompany Shop Drawings. Because Shop
Drawings facilitate the Architect’s and Engineer’s approval of the system, they should
be as clear and complete as possible so they may be reviewed by Architect or
Engineer for the Project.

Shop Drawing Requirements. The Contractor shall obtain and submit with Shop
Drawings all seismic and other calculations and all product data from equipment
manufacturers. “Product data” as used herein are illustrations, standard schedules,
performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, and other information
furnished by the Contractor to illustrate a material, product, or system for some
portion of the Work.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 34



15.3

15.4

15.24

15.2.5

15.2.6

15.2.7

Not a Reproduction of Architectural or Engineering Drawings. The shop drawing are
not a reproduction of the architectural or engineering drawings. Instead, they must
show more detail than the Construction Documents and details the fabrication and/or
installation of the items to the manufacturer’s production crew or Contractor’s
installation crews.

Shop Drawings Engineering Requirements: Some shop drawings require an engineer
stamp to be affixed on the drawings and calculations. In such cases, a current and
valid engineering stamp shall be affixed by a California registered engineer. No out
of State engineers shall stamp Shop Drawings. (See DSA IR A-18). In most cases, an
engineer means California registered mechanical, structural, electrical or plumbing
engineer. California Registered Civil Engineers will not be accepted for structural
details unless specifically approved by DSA.

DSA Approvals Required Prior to Work. No work on a Shop Drawing that requires
DSA approval may proceed until DSA approval is received. Contractor has provided
DSA approval time and allowed adequate time for corrections in Contractor’s
Schedule as required pursuant to Article 9.

Shop Drawing Identification. All Shop Drawings must be properly identified with the
name of the Project and dated, and accompanied by a letter of transmittal referring to
the name of the Project and to the Specification section number for identification of
each item clearly stating in narrative form, as well as “clouding” all qualifications,
departures, or deviations from the Contract Documents. Shop drawings, for each
section of the Work shall be numbered consecutively and the numbering system shall
be retained throughout all revisions. All Subcontractor submissions shall be made
through the Contractor. Each drawing shall have a clear space for the stamps of
Architect and Contractor.

Deferred Approvals. Deferred approvals shall be submitted and processed to ensure all DSA and

other governmental approvals are secured so as to not delay the Project. There may be additional
requirements for deferred approvals in Division 1 of the Specifications. All deferred approvals
shall be prepared by Contractor or Contractor’s agent early enough so as to not delay the Project.
Contractor is aware that Title 24 California Code of Regulations Section 4-317 has specific
requirements for deferred approvals as to governing agencies and as to the Architect and Engineer
for the Project. As a result, any delay associated with the time for approval by applicable agencies
or by the Architect or Architect’s consultants shall be Contractor’s. Contractor is required to
comply with inclusion of Deferred Approvals in the Schedule as required under Article 9

153.1

DSA Approvals Required Prior to Work. No work on a deferred approval item may
proceed on the components until DSA approval is received. Contractor has provided
DSA approval time and allowed adequate time for any DSA revisions in Contractor’s
Schedule as required pursuant to Article 9.

Submittals and Samples

154.1

1542

Information Required With Submittals: Manufacturer, trade name, model or type
number and quantities: Information provided must be of sufficient detail to allow
Architect and Engineer to compare the submitted item with the specified products and
acceptable products listed, in the specification and addenda.

Description of Use and Performance Characteristics: Information should be furnished
describing the normal use and expected performance of the product. The Architect and
Contractor review this information to confirm that the product is appropriate for the
intended use.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 35



15.5

1543

15.4.4

15.4.5

15.4.6

15.4.7

15.4.8

15.4.9

15.4.10

Size and Physical Characteristics: The size and physical characteristics, such as
adjustment capabilities, which is reviewed by both the Contractor and Architect. The
Contractor has the most available information for comparing adjoining materials and
equipment. The Contractor also needs to know the size and weight of the equipment
for lifting and handling considerations.

Finish Characteristics: The Architect reviews the available finishes and selects the
appropriate finish, if the finish was not previously specified in the documents. The
Contractor should confirm that finish requirements in the specification are being met
by the product.

Contractor Responsible for Jobsite Dimensions: Some material is custom-fabricated
to job conditions, requiring dimensions from the jobsite. These jobsite dimensions are
provided by the Contractor as part of the Contractor’s responsibilities for the Project
and shall be provided prior to release of the product for manufacture. Contractor shall
not rely on Architect or Engineers to provide jobsite dimensions.

Full Range of Samples Required (When Specific Items Not Specified). Except in cases
where the exact color and type of item is specified since the District is utilizing items
Standardized or pre-selected by District, the full range of color, graining, texture, or
other characteristics are anticipated for review in finished products, a sufficient
number of samples of the specified materials shall be furnished by the Contractor to
indicate the full range of characteristics which will be present in the finished products.
Products delivered or erected without Submittal and approval without providing a full
range of samples shall be subject to rejection. Except for range samples, and unless
otherwise called for in the various sections of the Specifications, samples shall be
submitted in duplicate.

Labeling of Samples. All samples shall be marked, tagged, or otherwise properly
identified with the name of the submitting party, the name of the Project, the purpose
for which the samples are submitted and the date.

Transmittal letter. All samples shall be accompanied by a letter of transmittal
containing similar information, together with the Specification section number.

Labels and Instructions. All samples of materials shall be supplied with the
manufacturer’s descriptive labels and application instructions. Each tag or sticker
shall have clear space for the review stamps of Contractor and Architect.

Architect’s Review. The Architect will review and, if appropriate, approve
submissions and will return them to the Contractor with the Architect’s stamp and
signature applied thereto, indicating the timing for review and appropriate action in
compliance with the Architect’s (or District’s) standard procedures. In the cases
where a CM is hired by the District, CM may be the party that receives and
performance logging and initial processing of the Samples. CM may, in some cases,
reject samples that are not in conformance with Contract requirements.

Submittal Submission Procedure

15.5.1

Transmittal Letter and Other Requirements. ~All Submittals must be properly
identified with the name of the Project and dated, and each lot submitted must be
accompanied by a letter of transmittal referring to the name of the Project and to the
Specification section number for identification of each item clearly stating in narrative
form, as well as “clouding” on the submissions, ail qualifications, departures, or
deviations from the Contract Documents. Shop drawings, for each section of the
Work shall be numbered consecutively and the numbering system shall be retained

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 36



15.6

throughout all revisions. All Subcontractor submissions shall be made through the
Contractor. Each drawing shall have a clear space for the stamps of Architect and
Contractor. In the case where a CM is hired on the Project, the CM may be
designated to receive the Submittals for the Project, log the Submittals, and in some
cases reject Submittals that do not conform to Contract requirements.

1552 Copies Required. Each Submittal shall include one (1) legible, reproducible (if
electronic is available, electronic copies shall also be provided) and five (5) legible
prints of each drawing or schedule, table, cut sheet, etc., including fabrication,
erection, layout and setting drawings, and such other drawings as required under the
various sections of the Specifications, until final acceptance thereof is obtained.
Subcontractor shall submit copies, in an amount as requested by the Contractor, of: (1)
manufacturers’ descriptive data for materials, equipment, and fixtures, including
catalog sheets showing dimensions, performance, characteristics, and capacities; (2)
wiring diagrams and controls; (3) schedules; (4) all seismic calculations and other
calculations; and (5) other pertinent information as required by the District or
Architect.

1553 Corrections. The Contractor shall make all corrections required by Architect, District
or CM and shall resubmit, as required by Architect or CM, corrected copies of Shop
Drawings or new samples until approved. Contractor shall direct specific attention in
writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings to revisions other than the corrections
required by the Architect on previous submissions. Professional services required for
more than one (1) re-review of required Submittals of Shop Drawings, product data,
or samples are subject to charge to the Contractor pursuant to Article 10.4.

1554 Approval Prior to Commencement of Work. No portion of the Work requiring a shop
drawing or sample submission or other Submittal shall be commenced until the
submission has been reviewed by Contractor and Architect (and CM, if applicable)
and approved by Architect (and CM where applicable) unless specifically directed in
writing by the Architect. All such portions of the Work shall be in accordance with
approved Shop Drawings and samples.

15.5.5 District’s Property. All Submittals, Shop Drawings, computer disks, constructability
reviews, schedules, annotated specifications, samples and other Submittals shall
become the District’s property upon receipt by the District or Architect.

Schedule Requirements for Submittals. Contractor shall obtain and shall submit all required
Submittals (i.e. Shop Drawings, Deferred Approvals, Samples, etc.), in accordance with
Contractor's “Schedule for Submission of Shop Drawings and Samples” as required in the
scheduling portion of the CSA at Article 9 and the Specifications (as long as the Specifications do
not conflict with CSA. In the case of conflict, the conflicting provision shall be controlled by the
CSA and the remaining specification sections shall be interpreted as if the CSA language is
inserted) with such promptness as to cause no delay in its own Work or in that of any other
contractor or Subcontractor but in no event later than thirty five (35) days after the Notice to
Proceed is issued except in the specific cases noted as an exception as set forth below. No
extensions of time will be granted to Contractor or any Subcontractor because of its failure to have
Shop Drawings and samples submitted in accordance with this Article 15 and the Schedule. Each
Subcontractor shall submit all Shop Drawings, samples, and manufacturer’s descriptive data for
the review of the District, the Contractor, and the Architect through the Contractor.

15.6.1 Consideration of Schedule. Contractor has considered lead times, DSA or other
agency governmental review times, Architect or Engineer review times,
manufacturing seasons, and specific long lead procurement concerns for all submittals
for the Project.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 37



15.6.1.1

15.6.1.2

15.6.1.3

All Submittals for the Project except those specifically agreed upon by
District and Architect, in writing, shall be specifically incorporated into
the Submittal section of the Schedule so as to not delay the Work. The
agreement to allow a later Submittal does not mean that Article 15.6 is
waived. Contractor shall order materials and ensure prices are honored
and secured for the Project.

a. Structural Steel may be included as a Submittal later than 35
days if Structural Steel is a significant portion of the Work, at
least one or some of the Project is a structural steel structural
system, or as specifically agreed upon by the Architect or
District.

b. It is specifically agreed that submissions of structural steel
Submittals shall not be piecemeal (unless some portion is
requested separately by the Owner or Architect), shall provide
complete designs, shall be stamped by the Structural Steel
Subcontractor,  Contractor, and Structural  Steel
Subcontractor’s structural engineer at time of submission and
as further addressed in this Article.

c. In no case shall the submission of Structural Steel Drawings
delay the critical path for the schedule. If a Milestone is
provided for submission of complete structural steel Shop
Drawings then the date shall be no later than as set forth in the
Milestone

Exceptions to Submittal Within Thirty-Five (35) Days by Written
Agreement. A written request detailing the specific reasons for a
submission later than 35 days due to complexity of design, or non-
critical path status of the Submittal shall be submitted at the time the
Baseline Schedule is submitted.  The Baseline Schedule shall not
include a delayed Submittal until written agreement is provided. In
addition to the request for providing a Submittal after the thirty-five
(35) day period, a copy of the Contract with the Subcontractor who
shall be performing the Submittal, a written statement from the
Subcontractor verifying that work has commenced on the Submittal and
providing Subcontractor’s own schedule of milestones and completion
dates, and a corresponding Submittal designation in the Schedule as
required under Article 9

a. Approval of a delayed Submittal shall not result in any
increase in the Contract Price or result in an extension of time
for the completion of the Project.

Piecemeal Submissions of Submittals. Piecemeal Submittals mean
providing portions of Shop Drawings or Submittals as they are being
completed. The submission of piecemeal Submittals results in the
appearance of a submission when there is inadequate information for
the Architect or Engineer to adequately review a submission.
Piecemeal differs from submission of complete buildings or phases of
buildings or complete assemblies. The Architect may agree to allow
submission of single buildings or areas as long as the Submittals are
complete.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 38



15.7

General Submittal Requirements

15.7.1

15.7.2

15.7.3

15.7.4

15.7.5

15.7.6

Contractor Submittal Representations. By submitting Shop Drawings, product data,
samples, etc., the Contractor represents that it has determined and verified all
materials, field measurements, catalog numbers, related field construction criteria, and
other relevant data in connection with each such submission, and that it has checked,
verified, and coordinated the information contained within such Submittals with the
requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents, including the construction
schedule.

Contractor Coordination. By submitting Shop Drawings, Submittals, product data,
samples, etc., the Contractor represents that it has determined and verified all
materials, field measurements, catalog numbers, related field construction criteria, and
other relevant data in connection with each such submission, and that it has checked,
verified, and coordinated the information contained within such Submittals with the
requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents, including the construction
schedule. Contractor shall stamp, sign, and date each Submittal indicating its
representation that the Submittal meets all of the requirements of the Contract
Documents and evidence Contractor’s review through execution of the following
stamp to be placed on each Shop Drawings:

“The [contractor] has reviewed and approved the field dimensions and the
construction criteria, and has also made written notation regarding any
information in the Shop Drawings and Submittals that does not conform to
the Contract Documents. This Shop Drawing or Submittal has been
coordinated with all other Shop Drawings and Submittals received to date
by me as Contractor and this duty of coordination has not been delegated to
Subcontractors, material suppliers, the Architect, or the Engineers on this
Project.

Signature of Contractor and date

No Deviation from Contract Documents. The submission of the Shop Drawings,
product data, samples, etc., shall not deviate from the requirements of the Contract
Documents including detailing and design intent which is specifically outlined in
Contract Documents except as specifically authorized by the Architect or through an
accepted substitution pursuant to Article 16. All deviations from the Contract
Documents shall be narratively described in a transmittal accompanying the Shop
Drawings. However, Shop Drawings shall not be used as a means of requesting a
substitution, the procedure for which is defined in Article 16, “Substitutions.”

Contractor Responsibility for Shop Drawings Conformance to Contract Documents.
Review by District and Architect shall not relieve the Contractor or any Subcontractor
from its responsibility in preparing and submitting proper Shop Drawings in
accordance with the Contract Documents.

Incomplete Submittals. Any submission, which in Architect’s opinion is incomplete,
contains errors, or has been checked superficially will be returned unreviewed by the
Architect for resubmission by the Contractor.

Shop Drawings and Submittals Shall Not Be Used as a Method to Make a
Substitution. Shop drawings and Submittals shall not be used as a means of
requesting a substitution or to make changes in the Contract Documents. If changes
are made to the Contract Documents through the Shop Drawings, the Architect shall
have the right to reject the Submittal. If the Architect does not note the deviation from

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 39



16.

the approved Construction Documents, the Contractor is still responsible for the
change and the Architect or the District may require the Shop Drawings be revised to
properly reflect the approved Contract Documents. The Architect or District may also
require that the Contractor bear all costs under Article 10.4 and consequential
damages associated with a CCD to revise Construction Documents to accommodate
the deviation from approved Construction Documents.

15.7.7 Extent of Review. In reviewing Shop Drawings, the Architect will not verify
dimensions and field conditions. The Architect will review and approve Shop
Drawings, product data, samples, etc., for aesthetics and for conformance with the
design concept of the Work and the information in the Contract Documents. The
Architect’s review shall neither be construed as a complete check which relieves the
Contractor, Subcontractor, manufacturer, fabricator, or supplier from responsibility
for any deficiency that may exist or from any departures or deviations from the
requirements of the Contract Documents unless the Contractor has, in writing, called
the Architect’s attention to the deviations at the time of submission. The Architect’s
review shall not relieve the Contractor or Subcontractors from responsibility for errors
of any sort in Shop Drawings or schedules, for proper fitting of the Work,
coordination of the differing Subcontractor trades and Shop Drawings and Work
which is not indicated on the Shop Drawings at the time of submission of Shop
Drawings. Contractor and Subcontractors shall be solely responsible for any
quantities which may be shown on the Submittals or Contract Documents.

REQUEST FOR SUBSTITUTIONS

16.1

16.2

16.3

For purposes of this provision the term “substitution” shall mean a change in product, material,
equipment, or method of construction from those required by the Construction Documents
proposed by the Contractor.

Public Contract Code section 3400 does not apply to this agreement since the materials, services,
and equipment used has been investigated as part of the Due Diligence investigation by Contractor
and incorporated in the overall GMP.

Contractor may submit requests together with substantiating data for substitution of any “or equal”
material, process or article. Any savings generated from the substitution shall be considered
Project Savings under Article 7. The District shall not be responsible for any costs of Contractor
associated with “or equal” substitution requests. The District has the complete and sole discretion
to determine if a material, process or article is an “or equal” material, process or article that may
be substituted. The data required to substantiate requests for substitutions of an “or equal”
material, process or article data shall include a signed affidavit from the Contractor stating that the
substituted “or equal” material, process or article is equivalent to that specified in the specification
in every way except as listed on the affidavit. Substantiating data shall also include:

1. Is equal in quality/service/ability to the Specified Item;

2. Will entail no changes in detail, construction, and scheduling of related work;

3. Will be acceptable in consideration of the required design and artistic effect;

4. Will provide no cost disadvantage to the District;

5. Will require no excessive or more expensive maintenance, including adequacy and

availability of replacement parts; and

6. Will required no change of the construction schedule

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 40



17.

16.4

16.5

16.6

Failure to submit all the needed substantiating data, including the signed affidavit, to the Architect
in a timely fashion so that the substitution can be adequately reviewed may result in the rejection
of the proposed substitution. The District is not obligated to review multiple substitution
submittals for the same product or item due to the Contractor’s failure to submit a complete
package initially.

Contractor shall bear the costs of all architectural and engineering work, DSA CCD review fees,
and other costs associated with the review of submittals for substitution. See Article 10.4.

Contractor agrees to include the provisions of this Article in all Subcontractor contracts.

EXTRA WORK/MODIFICATIONS (INCLUSION OF CCD COSTS. DSA COSTS. AND AN ICD

PROCESS)

17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

No Changes Without Authorization. There shall be no change whatsoever in the drawings,
specifications, or in the Work without an executed Change Order, Change Order Request,
Immediate Change Directive, or order by the Architect for a minor change in the Work as herein
provided. District shall not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any substitutions, changes,
additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless authorized
District representative has approved the cost in writing by Change Order or executed Construction
Change Document. No extension of time for performance of the Work shall be allowed hereunder
unless claim for such extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such
time duly adjusted in writing in the Change Order. The provisions of the Contract Documents
shall apply to all such changes, additions, and omissions with the same effect as if originally
embodied in the Drawings and Specifications. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this
Article 17, all Change Orders shall be prepared and issued by the Architect and shall become
effective when executed by the authorized District representative (utilizing either a Construction
Contingency Amount or a District Contingency Amount), the Architect, and the Contractor.

CONTRACTOR UNDERSTANDS, ACKNOWLEDGES, AND AGREES THAT THE REASON
FOR THIS NOTICE REQUIREMENT IS SO THAT DISTRICT MAY HAVE AN
OPPORTUNITY TO ANALYZE THE WORK AND DECIDE WHETHER THE DISTRICT
SHALL PROCEED WITH THE CHANGE ORDER OR ALTER THE PROJECT SO THAT
SUCH CHANGE IN WORK BECOMES UNNECESSARY AND TO AVOID THE POSSIBLE
DELAYS ASSOCIATED WITH THE ISSUANCE OF A NOTICE OF NON-COMPLIANCE.

Notices of Non-Compliance. Contractor deviation or changes from approved Construction
Documents may result in the issuance of a Notice of Non-Compliance (See DSA Form 154).
Contractor is specifically notified that deviations from the Construction Documents, whether
major or minor, may result in the requirement to obtain a DSA Construction Change Document to
correct the Notice of Non-Compliance. (See Article 17.4.1.1 for Definition of CCD). In some
cases, the lack of a DSA approved CCD AND verification from the Inspector that a Notice of
Non-Compliance has been corrected may result in a critical path delay to the next stage of Work
on the Project. Specifically, a deviation from approved Construction Documents may prevent
approval of the category of Work listed in the DSA 152 Project Inspection Card. Any delays or
cost impacts that are caused by the Contractor’s deviation from approved Construction Documents
shall be the Contractor’s responsibility.

Architect Authority. The Architect will have authority to order minor changes in the Work that do
not involve DSA Approval not involving any adjustment in the Contract Sum, or an extension of
the Contract Time.

CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DOCUMENT (CCD Category A, and CCD Category B) and
IMMEDIATE CHANGE DIRECTIVE (ICD)

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 41



17.4.1

Definitions

17.4.1.1

17.4.1.2

17.4.1.3

Construction Change Document (CCD). A Construction Change
Document is a DSA term that is utilized to address changes to the DSA
approved Construction Documents. ~ There are (wo types of
Construction Change Documents. (1) DSA approved CCD Category A
(DSA Form 140) for Work affecting Structural, Access or Fire-Life
Safety of the Project which will require a DSA approval; and, (2) CCD
Category B (DSA Form 140) for work NOT affecting Structural Safety,
Access Compliance or Fire and Life Safety that will not require a DSA
approval (except to confirm that no Approval is required);

Immediate Change Directive (ICD). An Immediate Change Directive
is a written order to the Contractor prepared by the Architect and
signed by the District (and CM if there is a CM on the Project) and the
Architect, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis
for adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both.
The District may by ICD, without invalidating the Contract, direct
immediate changes in the Work within the general scope of the
Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions within. If
applicable, the Contract Sum and Contract Time will be adjusted
accordingly.

In the case of an Immediate Change Directive being issued, Contractor
must commence Work immediately or delays from failure to perform
the ICD shall be the responsibility of Contractor and the failure to
move forward with Work immediately shall also be grounds for
Termination under Article 19 or determination of partial default under
Article 12.2.

An ICD does not automatically trigger an Article 20 Dispute or Claim.
Contractor must timely follow the procedures outlined at Article 20 and
this Article where applicable.

Refer to Forms for a copy of the proposed Immediate Change Directive
form.

Use to Direct Change. An ICD shall be used to move work forward
immediately and to avoid delay. In some cases, an ICD shall be issued
in the absence of agreement on the terms of an Extra, or RFP. A copy
of an ICD form is provided in the Forms included with this CSA. The
anticipated not to exceed price for the Work will be inserted into the
ICD. In the case of an ICD issued to correct Contractor Deficiencies or
to correct a Contractor caused Notice of Non-Compliance, the ICD may
be issued with $0 and O time. Contract may prepare an Extra
associated with the ICD pursuant to Article 17. However, Contractor
shall proceed with all Work required under an Approved 1CD
immediately upon issuance. Failure to proceed with the Work under an
ICD shall be grounds for Termination for Cause under Article 19 or
take over the Work under Article 12.2.

If adequate time exists, an ICD may be subject to a request for pricing
and a determination if any additional time may be required. However,
if a request for pricing is not completed, Contractor shall immediately
commence Work when an ICD is issued, If the request for pricing is
incomplete, it may still be completed and submitted for consideration

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 42



17.5

17.4.1.4

by the District (in its sole discretion) for pricing purposes as long as the
request for pricing is submitted within the timeline required, or within
10 days following issuance of the ICD.

ICD Issued Over a Notice of Non-Compliance or to Cover Work
Subject to a DSA 152 Sign Off. In some cases, an ICD shall be for the
purpose of proceeding with Work to keep the Project on Schedule and
as an acknowledgement by the District that Contractor is proceeding
with Work contrary to a Notice of Non-Compliance, prior to issuance
of a DSA approved CCD Category A, or to direct the covering of Work
which has not yet received a DSA 152 Inspection Approval to move
forward.

a. Contractor Compliance with all Aspects of an ICD.
Contractor is to undertake the ICD and comply with all
aspects of the Work outlined in the ICD. Inspector is to
inspect the Work pursuant to the ICD. Failure to follow the
ICD may result in deduction of the ICD Work under Article
12.2 or Termination of the Contractor pursuant to Article 19.

b. Exception in the Case of DSA Issued Stop Work Order.
Contractor must proceed with an ICD even if a CCD has not
been approved by DSA except in the case of a DSA issued
Stop Work Order. If a DSA Stop Work Order is issued,
Contractor must stop work and wait further direction from the
District.

ct ICD Due to Contractor Deficiency or Contractor Caused
Notice of Non-Compliance. If an ICD is issued to correct a
Contractor Deficiency or a Contractor caused notice of Non-
Compliance, Contractor specifically acknowledges
responsibility for all consequential damages associated with
the Contractor Deficiency or Contractor Caused Notice of
Non-Compliance and all consequential damages and costs
incurred to correct the deficiency under Article 10.4.

Extras Request. Extra work or a modification or reduction of requirements or of methods of
performing the Construction which differ from the work or requirements set forth in the
Construction Documents (“Extra Work/Modifications™); and for such purposes, the District may at
any time during the life of this Construction Services Agreement by written order, make such
changes as it shall find necessary from Construction Contingency if District approves such request
in writing. The costs of the Extra Work/Modifications, as established pursuant to this Article,
shall be deducted from the Construction Contingency as mutually agreed in writing or the Errors
and Omissions Contingency or the Unforeseen Allowance as determined by the District, and shall
not affect the GMP.

17.5.1

Format. The following format shall be used, as applicable by the District and the
Contractor to communicate proposed additions and deductions to the Contract. A
copy of a proposed Construction Change Document form is provided in Division 1 of
the Specifications. The most stringent guidelines will apply to all forms.

EXTRA CREDIT

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 43



EXTRA CREDIT

(a) Material (attach itemized quantity and unit cost plus sales
tax)

(b) Equipment (attach invoices)

©) Labor Not to Exceed Applicable Prevailing Wage Rates
(attach itemized hours and rates)

(d  Subtotal (a-d)

(e) If Subcontractor performed work, add Subcontractor’s
overhead and profit to portions performed by
Subcontractor, not to exceed 10% of item (d).

® Subtotal

® Contractor’s Overhead and Profit: Not to exceed 10% of
Item (d) if Contractor performed the work. No more than
5% of Item (d) if Subcontractor performed the work. If
work was performed by Contractor and Subcontractors,
portions performed by Contractor shall not exceed 10% if
Item (d), and portions performed by Subcontractor shall
not exceed 10% of Item (d)

(h) Subtotal
() Bond not to exceed one percent (1%) of Item (h)
) TOTAL

k) Time/ Days

The undersigned Contractor approves the foregoing Extra Work as to the changes, if any, and the contract price
specified for each item and as to the extension of time allowed, if any, for completion of the entire work on account
of said Extra Work, and agrees to furnish all labor, materials and service and perform all work necessary to complete
any additional work specified therein, for the consideration stated herein. It is understood that said Extra Work shall
be effective upon approval from the District’s Designee if such amounts are against the GMP and if Owner
Contingency is used when approved by the Governing Board of the District.

It is expressly understood that the value of such extra Work or changes, as determined by any of the aforementioned
methods, expressly includes any and all of the Contractor’s costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, resulting
from additional time required on the Project or resulting from delay to the Project. Any costs, expenses, damages or
time extensions not included are deemed waived.

The Contractor expressly acknowledges and agrees that any change in the Work performed shall not be deemed to
constitute a delay or other basis for claiming additional compensation based on theories including, but not limited to,
acceleration, suspension or disruption to the Project.

Construction Services Agreement
Page 44

000834.0001822

196535.1



18.

17.6

17.5.2 Should Contractor claim that any instruction, request, drawing, specification, action,
condition, omission, default, or other situation (i) obligates the District to pay
additional compensation to the Contractor; or (ii) obligates the District to grant an
extension of time for the completion of the Construction Services Agreement; or (iii)
constitutes a waiver of any provision in this Construction Services Agreement,
CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE DISTRICT, IN WRITING, OF SUCH
CLAIM AS SOON AS POSSIBLE, BUT IN NO EVENT WITHIN MORE THAN
TEN (10) BUSINESS DAYS FROM THE DATE CONTRACTOR HAS ACTUAL
OR CONSTRUCTIVE NOTICE OF THE CLAIM. CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO
PROVIDE DISTRICT WITH SUFFICIENT WRITTEN DOCUMENTATION
SUPPORTING THE FACTUAL BASIS OF THE CLAIM under Article 20.
Contractor shall be required to certify under penalty of perjury the validity and
accuracy of any claims submitted. The Contractor’s failure to notify the District
within the ten (10) business day period shall be deemed a waiver and relinquishment
of the claim against the District. If such notice be given within the specified time, the
procedure for its consideration shall be as stated above in this Section.

17.5.3 All costs associated with the Extra Work/Modification may be in terms of time,
money or both.

Deductive Change Orders

17.6.1 All Deductive Change Order(s) must be prepared utilizing the form under Paragraph
17.5 (a)-(d) only setting forth the actual costs incurred. Except in the case of an
Article 12.2 or 29.4 Deductive Change Order where no mark-up shall be allowed,
Contractor will be allowed a maximum of 5% total profit and overhead.

17.6.2 For Unilateral Deductive Change Orders, or where credits are due from Contractor for
Allowances, Deductive Items, Inspection, Damage, DSA CCD review costs, Architect
or Inspector costs for after hours or corrective services, Work removed from the
Agreement under Article 12.2 or Article 29.4, there shall be no mark-up.

17.6.3 District may, at any time, after a Deductive Change Order is presented to Contractor
by District for items under Article 12.2 or Article 29.4 of if there is disagreement as to
the Deductive Change Order, issue a unilateral Deductive Change Order on the
Project and deduct the Deductive Change Order from a Progress Payment or the
Retention Payment.

TIME OF COMPLETION

18.1

ONCE THE DISTRICT HAS ISSUED A NOTICE TO PROCEED, CONTRACTOR SHALL
PROCEED WITH THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT WITH REASONABLE
DILIGENCE. CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT THE PROJECT WILL BE SUBSTANTIALLY
COMPLETE WITHIN THE CALENDAR DAYS DESIGNATED IN ARTICLE 3 FROM THE
NOTICE TO PROCEED. SAID CONTRACT TIME MAY BE EXTENDED FOR SUCH
PERIODS OF TIME AS ALLOWED UNDER THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS. IF THE
PROJECT IS NOT SUBSTANTIALLY COMPLETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
FOREGOING, IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT THE DISTRICT WILL SUFFER DAMAGE
SINCE CONTRACTOR HAS OVERSTAYED ITS LEASE TERM. IT BEING IMPRACTICAL
AND INFEASIBLE TO DETERMINE THE AMOUNT OF ACTUAL DAMAGE, IT IS
AGREED THAT CONTRACTOR’S EXTENSION OF THE LEASE SHALL RESULT IN
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, AND NOT AS A PENALTY, THE SUM SET FORTH IN
ARTICLE 3 FOR EACH CALENDAR DAY OF DELAY UNTIL WORK IS SUBSTANTIALLY
COMPLETED. CONTRACTOR AND ITS SURETY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR THE
AMOUNT THEREOF. ANY MONEY DUE OR TO BECOME DUE THE CONTRACTOR
MAY BE RETAINED BY THE DISTRICT TO COVER SAID LIQUIDATED DAMAGES FOR

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 45



18.2

18.3

18.4

18.5

18.6

OVERSTAYING THE LEASE. SHOULD SUCH MONEY NOT BE SUFFICIENT TO COVER
SAID LIQUIDATED DAMAGES, THE DISTRICT SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO RECOVER
THE BALANCE FROM THE CONTRACTOR OR ITS SURETIES, WHO WILL PAY SAID
BALANCE FORTHWITH.

Within five (5) business days after the Project commencement date in the District’s Notice to
Proceed, Contractor shall furnish District with a Baseline CPM (Critical Path) Schedule pursuant
to Article 9. The Contractor shall include the District’s occupancy requirements showing portions
of the Projects having occupancy priority.

Contractor shall not be charged for liquidated damages, as set forth in the Agreement, for
materially differing underground soil conditions than those outlined in the soils report and from
hazardous substances that are encountered that are not documented in the Contract Documents or
in the Due Diligence Documents provided to Contractor.

18.3.1 In case of encountering such unforeseen conditions noted above, Contractor shall
notify the District in writing immediately and no later than seven (7) days following
encountering the unforeseen condition. After providing written notice, Contractor
shall test and provide District with Test results (unless District choses to test) and
shall proceed with Work based on the Test results. A Change Order pursuant to
Article 17 shall be submitted. All time and expenses shall be verified with the
Inspector or District Designee either on the day the extra work occurs, but no later
than 10 am the following business day.

18.3.2 Change Orders associated with approved unforeseen conditions shall be billed as
Change Order Work and allocated to the Unforeseen Allowance, and if the
Unforeseen Allowance is exceeded, the District, in its sole and absolute discretion,
may allocate such costs to the District Contingency to the extent unforeseen
conditions as defined in this Article are encountered.

Contractor shall within ten (10) calendar days of beginning of any such delay notify District in
writing of causes of delay. Thereupon District shall ascertain the facts and extent of delay and
grant extension of time for completing work when, in its judgment, the findings of fact justify
such an extension. District’s findings of fact thereon shall be final and conclusive on the parties
hereto. Extension of time shall apply only to that portion of work affected by the delay, and shall
not apply to other portions of work not so affected. Contractor agrees that the extension of time
granted under this Article shall be its sole and exclusive remedy for the consequences of any delay
described above. For any such delay resulting from the actions or inactions of Architect, District,
or their officers, agents, and employees, or changes to the scope of the Work which impact the
schedule, Contractor shall be entitled to reimbursement for its reasonable additional costs resulting
from such delay, but not any additional profit or fee.

Contractor acknowledges the extreme importance of promptly notifying and thoroughly
documenting any request for time extension and further specifically acknowledges that District
will suffer extreme prejudice should Contractor fail in any way to comply with this requirement.
Failure to comply with the procedures and time limits established in this Article shall constitute a
waiver of such request. Evidence presented by Contractor that District had actual notice of the
time extension request, that District was not prejudiced by Contractor’s failure to comply with this
requirement, and/or that District considered Contractor’s request despite Contractor’s failure to
strictly comply with this provision shall not render this requirement unenforceable.

Contractor is required to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently in advance
of its work at no additional cost or advance payment from District to assure that there will be no
delays. An extension of time will not be granted for a delay caused by a shortage of materials.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 46



19.

18.7

18.8

Contractor shall not be entitled to additional compensation for delays within its control.
Contractor is aware that governmental agencies, such as the Department of General Services, gas
companies, electrical utility companies, water districts and other agencies may have to approve
Contractor-prepared drawings or approve a proposed installation. In the event of delays to the
Project from such agencies for which Contractor has no control, provided such delays are not
caused by Contractor’s or any Subcontractor’s acts or omissions, Contractor may be entitled to a
time extension for such delays, but shall not be allowed additional compensation for the costs of
such delays not impacting the Project’s critical path.

District reserves the right to occupy any building or portion thereof or use any improvement
contemplated by the Contract Documents prior to the completion of the entire Project. A list of
work to be completed and corrected by Contractor, if any, shall be prepared and agreed to between
District and Contractor before any such occupancy or use. Such occupancy or use shall not
operate as an acceptance of any part of the Project but shall start the guaranty-warranty period on
the structure or portion thereof so occupied or improvement or equipment so used; provided,
however, that such occupancy or use shall not start the guaranty-warranty period as to items
appearing on the list of work yet to be completed and corrected or as to structures or
improvements (or portions thereof) that are not occupied or used. No such occupancy or use shall
be deemed to have occurred unless and until District has given Contractor written notice of its
intention to so occupy or use any particular structure or improvement specifying the portion or
portions of the structure, improvement or equipment which will be deemed so occupied or used.
District and Contractor shall take reasonable steps to obtain the consent of Contractor’s insurance
company or companies and shall, without mutual written consent, take no action with respect to
partial occupancy or use that would cause cancellation, lapse of or reduction of such insurance.
Such occupancy or use by District shall relieve Contractor of (and District shall assume) the
responsibility for injury or damage to said occupied or used portions of the Project resulting from
use by District or the public or from the action of the elements or from any other cause, except
injury or damage resulting from the operations, negligence or intentional acts of Contractor, any
Subcontractors or materialmen of any tier, or their officers, employees or agents.

TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

19.1

Termination for Breach.

19.1.1 If the Contractor refuses or fails to proceed with the construction of the Project or any
separable part thereof with such diligence as will insure its completion within the time
specified by this Construction Services Agreement or any extension thereof, or fails to
Complete the Project within the Contract Time, or if the Contractor should be
adjudged bankrupt, or if it should make a general assignment for the benefit of its
creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed on account of its insolvency, or the
Contractor or any of its Subcontractors should violate any of the provisions of this
Construction Services Agreement, the District may serve written notice upon the
Contractor and its Surety of the District’s intention to terminate this Construction
Services Agreement. This notice of intent to terminate shall contain the reasons for
such intention to terminate this Construction Services Agreement and a statement to
that effect that the Contractor’s right to perform work on the Project shall cease and
terminate upon the expiration of ten (10) days unless such violations have ceased and
arrangements satisfactory to the District have been made for correction of said
violations.

19.1.2 In the event that the District serves such written notice of termination upon the
Contractor and the Surety, the Surety shall have the right to take over and perform this
Construction Services Agreement. If the Surety does not: (1) give the District written
notice of Surety’s intention to take over and commence performance of this
Construction Services Agreement within fifteen (15) days of the District’s service of

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 47



19.2

19.1.3

said notice of intent to terminate upon Surety; and (2) actually commence
performance of this Construction Services Agreement within thirty (30) days of the
District’s service of said notice upon Surety; then the District may take over the
Project and prosecute the same to completion by separate contract(s) or by any other
method it may deem advisable for the account and at the expense of the Contractor.

In the event that the District elects to obtain an alternative performance of the
Construction Services Agreement as specified above: (1) the District may, without
liability for so doing, take possession of and utilize in completion of the Project such
materials, appliances, plants and other property belonging to the Contractor that are on
the site and reasonably necessary for such completion; and (2) Surety shall be liable to
the District for any cost or other damage to the District necessitated by the District
securing an alternate performance pursuant to this Article.

Termination for Convenience.

19.2.1

19.2.2

19.2.3

The District may terminate performance of the Project called for by the Contract
Documents in whole or, from time to time, in part, if the District determines that a
termination is in the District’s interest.

The District shall terminate all or any part of the Project upon delivery to the
Contractor of a “Notice of Termination” specifying that the termination is for the
convenience of the District, the extent of termination, and the effective date of such
termination.

After receipt of Notice of Termination, and except as directed by the District’s
Representative, the Contractor shall, regardless of any delay in determining or
adjusting any amounts due under this Termination for Convenience clause,
immediately proceed with the following obligations:

1. Stop Work as specified in the Notice of Termination.

2. Complete any work specified in the Notice of Termination in a least
cost/shortest time manner while still maintaining the quality called for under
the Contract Documents.

3. Leave the Property upon which the Contractor was working and upon which
the facility (or facilities) forming the basis of the Contract Documents is
situated in a safe and sanitary manner such that it does not pose any threat to
the public health or safety.

4. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent that they relate to the portions of the
work terminated.

5. Place no further subcontracts or orders, except as necessary to complete the
continued portion of the Construction Services Agreement.

6. Submit to the District’s Representative, within ten (10) days from the Project
termination date found in the Notice of Termination, all of the usual
documentation called for by the Contract Documents to substantiate all costs
incurred by the Contractor for labor, materials and equipment through the
Project termination date, including termination costs related to demobilizing
and closing out the Project, found in the Notice of Termination. Any
documentation substantiating costs incurred by the Contractor solely as a
result of the District’s exercise of its right to terminate this Construction
Services Agreement pursuant to this clause, which costs the Contractor is

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 48



19.3

194

19.5

authorized under the Construction Services Agreement to incur, shall: (i) be
submitted to and received by the District no later than thirty (30) days after
the Project termination date found in the Notice of Termination; (ii) describe
the costs incurred with particularity; and (iii) be conspicuously identified as
“Termination Costs occasioned by the District’s Termination for
Convenience.”

19.2.4 Termination of the Construction Services Agreement shall not relieve the Surety of its
obligation for any just claims arising out of or relating to the work performed on the
Project.

19.2.5 In the event that the District exercises its right to terminate this Construction Services

Agreement pursuant to this clause, the District shall pay the Contractor, upon the
Contractor’s submission of the documentation required by this provision, and other
applicable provisions of the Construction Services Agreement the following amounts
not already paid to Contractor:

1. All actual costs incurred according to the provisions of this Construction
Services Agreement including but not limited to insurance costs incurred in
connection with the Project.

2. A reasonable allowance for profit on the cost of the work on the Project
performed and not otherwise paid for the District, provided Contractor
establishes to the satisfaction of the District, that it is reasonably probable that
the Contractor would have made a profit had the Construction Services
Agreement been completed and provided further, that the profit allowed shall
in no event exceed five percent (5%) of costs. In no event shall the total
amount exceed GMP.

3. A reasonable allowance for Contractor’s administrative costs in determining
the amount payable due to termination of the Construction Services
Agreement under this Article.

Termination of Asgreement by Contractor. The Contractor may terminate the Construction
Services Agreement upon ten (10) days written notice to the District, whenever: (1) there is a
substantial failure of performance on the part of the District; or (2) the District shall elect not to
appropriate funds and/or not to make two (2) successive Sublease Prepayments (if exercised by the
District in its sole discretion) following the receipt by District of a request from the Contractor in
its capacity as Lessor for each such Sublease Prepayment pursuant to Article 21 of the Sublease.
In the event of such termination, the Contractor shall have no claims against the District except for
payment for the value of the work performed on the Project as of the date of termination.

Assienment of Subcontractors and Suppliers. If the Contract is Terminated, Contractor shall
provide District copies of all subcontracts, purchase orders, addenda, invoices, payment records,
and Project files associated with each Subcontractor and Material Supplier. The District shall
have the option to assume any Subcontracts, contracts or purchase orders the District choses. To
the extent that vendors are not paid in full for the labor, materials, or services provided, Contractor
shall provide an accounting statement showing the amounts paid and the amounts due to the
Subcontractor and a statement on the anticipated payment status associated with the Termination.

Continuation of Work During Disputes. In the event of a dispute between the parties as to
performance of the work or the interpretation of this contract, or payment dispute, the parties shall
attempt to resolve the dispute. Pending resolution of this dispute, Contractor agrees to continue
the work diligently to completion and shall neither rescind nor terminate the agreement.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 49



20.

RESOLUTION OF AGREEMENT CLAIMS

20.1

20.2

20.3

204

20.5

Decision of Architect. “Disputes” or “Claims” as defined in Article 20.9.1.1 between District and
Contractor involving money or time, including those alleging an error or omission by the Architect
shall be referred initially to the Architect for action as provided in Article 20.2 within ten (10)
days after Contractor’s Article 17 request for extra work/ modification is denied. If there is a CM,
the CM shall receive the Dispute and may review and also assemble opinions and documents to
assist the Architect. A decision by the Architect, as provided in Article 20.5, shall be required as a
condition precedent to proceeding with remedies set forth in Article 20.9 as to all such matters
arising prior to the date Retention Payment Application is due, regardless of whether such matters
relate to execution and progress of the Work, or the extent to which the Work has reached Final
Comopletion.

The condition precedent of an Architect decision shall be waived if: (1) the position of Architect is
vacant; (2) the Architect has failed to take action required under Article 20.5 within the time
periods required therein; or (3) the Dispute or Claim relates to a stop notice claim not arising from
any extra Change Order or Immediate Change Directive for which approval has not been
provided.

Architect’s Review. The Architect (and CM) will review the Dispute and take one or more of the
following preliminary actions upon receipt of a Dispute: (1) request additional supporting data
from the claimant; (2) submit a schedule to the parties indicating when the Architect expects to
take action; (3) reject the Dispute in whole or in part, stating reasons for rejection; (4) recommend
approval of the Dispute; or (5) suggest a compromise. The Architect may also, but is not
obligated to, notify the Surety, if any, of the nature and amount of the Dispute..

20.2.1 Architectural Immunity. Architect review of Disputes and Claims shall be impartial
and meant to resolve Disputes and Claims. Pursuant to the case, Huber, Hunt &
Nichols, Inc. v. Moore (1977) 67 Cal.App.3d 278, the Architect is provided a quasi-
judicial immunity for interpreting and deciding Disputes and Claims between the
District and Contractor.

Documentation if Resolved. If a Dispute has been resolved, the Architect (and/or CM) will
prepare a Change Order or obtain appropriate documentation to document the terms for Board
approval.

Actions if Not Resolved. If a Dispute has not been resolved and all documentation requested
pursuant to Article 20.2 has been provided, the Contractor shall, within ten (10) days after the
Architect’s initial response, assemble all the documents involved in the Dispute including copies
of all back-up documentation of costs and the basis for the Dispute and take one or more of the
following actions: (1) modify the initial Dispute; (2) notify the Architect that the initial Dispute
stands; or (3) supplement with additional supporting data and re-submit to the Architect under
Article 20.2.

Architect’s Written Decision. If a Dispute has not been resolved after consideration of the
foregoing and of other evidence presented by the parties or requested by the Architect, the
Architect (or Architect through CM) shall provide a written decision twenty (20) days after
compliance with Article 20.4. Upon expiration of such time period, the Architect (or Architect
through CM) will render to the parties its written decision relative to the Dispute, including any
change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The Architect may also request reasonable
additional time to complete Architect’s written decision.

If the resolution of the Dispute by the Architect is not satisfactory to the Contractor and copies of
all back-up documentation of costs and the basis for the Dispute is fully articulated in a package of
material that is complete, the Contractor may then submit a Claim to the District under Article
20.9.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 50



20.6 Continuing Contract Performance. Pending final resolution of a Dispute or Claim, including,

negotiation, mediation, arbitration, or litigation, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with
performance of the Contract, and the District shall continue to make any undisputed payments in
accordance with the Contract (less any withholdings or offsets). If the Claim is not resolved,
Contractor agrees it will neither rescind the Contract nor stop the progress of the work, but
Contractor’s sole remedy shall be to submit such controversy to determination by a court of
competent jurisdiction in the county where the Project is located, after the Project has been
completed, and not before.

20.6.1

District’s Option to Submit Individual Disputes to Arbitration during Claims and
Disputes Process. At the District’s sole option, in order to more efficiently resolve
Claims during the Project and prior to the completion of the Claims Process, pursuant
to Government Code section 9201, the District may submit individual Disputes or
Claims for binding arbitration and Contractor agrees to the resolution of for each
individual Dispute or Claim by an Arbitrator, including resolution of time and delays.
If binding arbitration is utilized for individual Disputes or Claims, such resolution is
full and final as to that particular Dispute or Claim. THIS INDIVIDUAL DISPUTE
ARBITRATION PROCESS IS NOT AN ARBITRATION CLAUSE AND SHALL
NOT BE CONSTRUED AS AN AGREEMENT TO ARBITRATE. THIS
INDIVIDUAL DISPUTES ARBITRATION PROCESS IS FOR THE SOLE
PURPOSE OF STREAMLINING AND RESOLVING DISPUTES OR CLAIMS
DURING CONSTRUCTION AND SHALL BE REQUESTED ON SPECIFIC
INDIVIDUAL ITEMS BY THE DISTRICT PRIOR TO RETENTION PAYMENT
(EVEN IF THERE ARE DEDUCTIONS MADE FROM RETENTION PAYMENT)
WHICH REPRESENTS THE FINAL COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.

20.6.1.1 If there is no Retention remaining on the Project, individual Disputes
initiated prior to Project Final Completion shall continue until a final
disposition of the Arbitration or resolution of the individual Claim or
Dispute.

20.6.1.2 The Arbitration process shall not toll the Disputes or Claims process
under Article 20 or the requirement to submit Claims to Court under
Article 20.13.

20.7 Claims for Concealed Trenches or Excavations Greater Than Four Feet Below the Surface. When

any excavation or trenching extends greater than four feet below the surface:

20.7.1

Immediately upon discovery, The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following
conditions are disturbed, notify the District, by telephone and in writing of any:

20.7.1.1 Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Site differing from those
indicated in the Drawings, Specifications, or pursuant to the documents
and information from Contractor’s Due Diligence or Due Diligence
Documents.

20.7.1.2 Unknown physical conditions at the Site of any unusual nature,
different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally
recognized as inherent in Work of the character provided for in the
Contract.

20.7.1.3 Hazardous waste condition, except, if Contractor’s bid includes
removal or disposal of hazardous substances, or is part of Contractor’s
Due Diligence or Due Diligence Documents. Material that the
Contractor believes may be a material that is hazardous waste, as
defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, is required to

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 51



20.8

20.9

be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in
accordance with the provisions of existing law. In such case, the notice
procedures and requirements of Article 17.5.2 shall apply.

20.7.2 The District shall investigate the conditions, and if District finds that the conditions do
materially so differ, and cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or the
time required for, performance of any part of the Work shall issue a change order or
Construction Change Document under the procedures described in the Contract.

20.7.3 In the event that a dispute arises between a public entity or District and the Contractor
whether the conditions materially differ, or cause a decrease or increase in the
Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, the
Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled Completion Date provided for by
the Contract, but shall proceed with all Work to be performed under the Contract. The
Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by Contract or by law which
pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests between the contracting parties.

Dispute Concerning Extension of Time. If Contractor and District cannot agree upon an extension
of time, whether compensable or not, then Contractor must have first completed the procedures set
forth in Article 18. Upon completion of the procedures set forth under Article 18, Contractor must
then comply with the requirements in this Article including those set forth under Article 20.9.

Claims Procedures. Pursuant to the remedies under Public Contract Code section 9201 and
Government Code section 930.2, Contractor, through execution of this Agreement, also agrees to
comply with the Claims requirements under Article 20 to quickly and efficiently resolve disputes.
Further, to provide a level of accuracy to the records submitted, the District shall have the right to
audit books and records pursuant to Article 21 based on the actual costs incurred and to reduce the
uncertainty in resolving disputes with limited information.

20.9.1 Procedure Applicable to all Claims

20.9.1.1 Definition of Claim; A “Claim” is where a Dispute between the parties
rises to the level where backup documentation is assembled and
provided to the District as a separate demand by the Contractor for: (1)
a time extension, including, without limitation, for relief from damages
or penalties for delay assessed by the District under the Contract; (2)
payment by the District of money or damages arising from Work done
by, or on behalf of, the Contractor pursuant to the Contract and
payment for which is not otherwise expressly provided for or to which
the Contractor is not otherwise entitled to; or (3) an amount of payment
disputed by the District. If the Claim is for damages associated with a
DSA Stop Work Order, the Contractor shall not be entitled to a request
for Compensation, but shall be entitled to utilize Governmental Delay
Float (See Article 9.2.1.)

20.9.1.2 Filing Claim Is Not Basis to Discontinue Work: The Contractor shall
promptly comply with Work under the Contract or Work requested by
the District even though a written Claim has been filed. The Contractor
and the District shall make good faith efforts to resolve any and all
Claims that may arise during the performance of the Work covered by
this Contract.

20.9.1.3 Claim Notification: The Contractor shall within seven (7) calendar
days after the written decision of the Architect, or if the time period for
Architect’s decision has passed under Article 20.5, submit a
notification in writing sent by registered mail or certified mail with

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 52



209.14

20.9.1.5

return receipt requested, with the District (and the District’s CM)
stating clearly the basis for the Claim and including all relevant and
required documents. If the notification is not submitted within seven
(7) days after the written decision of the Architect or the passage of
time under Article 20.5, the Contractor shall be deemed to have waived
all right to assert the Claim, and the Claim shall be denied. Claims
submitted after the Retention Payment date shall also be considered
null and void by the District. All Claims shall be reviewed pursuant to
Articles 20.1 through 20.5.

The Formal Notification of Claim must be presented as follows:

a. The term “Claim” must be at the top of the page in no smaller
than 20 point writing.

b. All documentation submitted pursuant to Article 20 to the
Architect shall be submitted with the title “claim.”

cs A stack of documents, copy of all Project documents, or the

submission of random documents shall not constitute an
adequate reference to supporting documentation

d. Any additional or supporting documentation that Contractor
believes is relevant should be submitted at this time.

Reasonable Documents to Support Claim: The Contractor shall furnish
reasonable documentation to support the Claim. The Contractor shall
provide all written detailed documentation which supports the Claim,
including but not limited to: arguments, justifications, cost, estimates,
Schedule analysis and detailed documentation. The format of the
required reasonable documentation to support the Claim shall include,
without limitation:

a. Cover letter.
b. Summary of factual basis of Claim and amount of Claim.

c. Summary of the basis of the Claim, including the specific
clause and section under the Contract under which the Claim
is made.

d. Documents relating to the Claim, including:

1. Specifications sections in question.
2. Relevant portions of the Drawings
3. Applicable Clarifications (RFI’s)

4. Other relevant information, including responses that
were received.

5. Contractor Analysis of Claim merit.

(a) Contractor’s analysis of any Subcontractor
vendor claims that are being passed through.

b) Any analysis performed by outside
consultants.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 53



© Any legal analysis that Contractor deems
relevant.

Breakdown of all costs associated with the Claim.

For Claims relating to time extensions, an analysis and
supporting documentation evidencing any effect upon the
critical path in conformance with the requirements of Article 9
and a chronology of events and related correspondence.

Chronology of events and related correspondence.
Applicable daily reports and logs.

1. If the daily reports or logs are not available, lost or
destroyed, there shall be a presumption that the lost
documentation was unfavorable to the Contractor.
See California Civil Jury Instruction 204,

For Claims involving overhead, cost escalation, acceleration,
disruption or increased costs, a full version of job costs reports
organized by category of work or Schedule of Values with
budget information tracked against actual costs. Any and all
supporting back-up data, including the original bid or cost
documents (and associated original unaltered metadata).

1. The metadata and bid or cost information shall be
provided confidentially and subject to a protective
order to prevent dissemination to other contractors or
to the public. However, the bid or cost
documentation should remain intact and available for
review and inspection in case of this type of
increased cost Claim.

24 This data on the bid or cost information shall be
made available to any District attorneys or experts
and shall also be utilized as evidence for any legal
proceedings.

3. If the bid or cost documentation is not available, lost
or destroyed, there shall be a presumption that the
lost bid or cost documentation was unfavorable to the
Contractor. See California Civil Jury Instruction 204.

Certification: The Contractor (and Subcontractors, if
applicable) shall submit with the claim a certification under

penalty of perjury:

1. That the Contractor has reviewed the Claim and that
such Claim is made in good faith;

2. Supporting data are accurate and complete to the best
of the Contractor’s knowledge and belief;

3. The amount requested accurately reflects the amount
of compensation for which the Contractor believes
the District is liable.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 54



4, That the Contractor is familiar with Government
Code section 12650 et seq. and Penal Code section
72 and that false claims can lead to substantial fines
and/or imprisonment.

Signature of Certification: If the Contractor is not an
individual, the certification shall be executed by an officer or
general partner of the Contractor having overall responsibility
for the conduct of the Contractor’s affairs.

Upon receipt of a Claim and all supporting documents as
required above, the District shall conduct a reasonable review
of the Claim and, within a period not to exceed 45 days, shall
provide the Contractor a written statement identifying what
portion of the Claim is disputed and what portion is
undisputed. Upon receipt of a Claim, the District and
Contractor may, by mutual agreement, extend the time period
provided in this paragraph.

If the District needs approval from its governing Board to
provide the Contractor a written statement identifying the
disputed portion and the undisputed portion of the Claim, and
the governing Board does not meet within the 45 days or
within the mutually agreed to extension of time following
receipt of a Claim sent by registered mail or certified mail,
return receipt requested, the District shall have up to three
days following the next duly publicly noticed meeting of the
governing Board after the 45-day period, or extension, expires
to provide the Contractor a written statement identifying the
disputed portion and the undisputed portion.

Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the Claim shall
be processed and made within 60 days after the District issues
its written statement. If the District fails to issue a written
statement, paragraph t below shall apply.

If the Contractor disputes the District's written response, or if
the District fails to respond to a Claim issued pursuant to
Article 20.9 within the time prescribed, the Contractor may
demand in writing an informal conference to meet and confer
for settlement of the issues in dispute. Upon receipt of a
demand in writing sent by registered mail or certified mail,
return receipt requested, the District shall schedule a meet and
confer conference within 30 days for settlement of the Claim.

Within 10 business days following the conclusion of the meet
and confer conference, if the Claim or any portion of the
Claim remains in dispute, the District shall provide the
Contractor a written statement identifying the portion of the
Claim that remains in dispute and the portion that is
undisputed. Any payment due on an undisputed portion of the
Claim shall be processed and made within 60 days after the
District issues its written statement. Any disputed portion of
the Claim, as identified by the Contractor in writing, shall be
submitted to nonbinding mediation, with the District and the
Contractor sharing the associated costs equally. The District

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 55



and Contractor shall mutually agree to a mediator within 10
business days after the disputed portion of the Claim has been
identified in writing. If the parties cannot agree upon a
mediator, each party shall select a mediator and those
mediators shall select a qualified neutral third party to mediate
with regard to the disputed portion of the Claim. Each party
shall bear the fees and costs charged by its respective mediator
in connection with the selection of the neutral mediator. If
mediation is unsuccessful, the parts of the Claim remaining in
dispute shall be subject to applicable procedures in Article
20.13.

For purposes of Article 20.9, mediation includes any
nonbinding process, including, but not limited to, neutral
evaluation or a dispute review board, in which an independent
third party or board assists the parties in dispute resolution
through negotiation or by issuance of an evaluation. Any
mediation utilized shall conform to the timeframes in this
section.

Unless otherwise agreed to by the District and the Contractor
in writing, the mediation conducted pursuant to Article 20.9
shall excuse any further obligation under Public Contract
Code section 20104.4 to mediate after litigation has been
commenced.

This Claims process does not preclude the District from
requiring arbitration of disputes under private arbitration or
the Public Works Contract Arbitration Program, if mediation
under Article 20.9 does not resolve the parties’ Claim. This
Claims process does not preclude the District from submitting
individual Disputes or Claims to binding arbitration pursuant
to Article 20.12 below.

Failure by the District to respond to a Claim from the
Contractor within the time periods described in this
subdivision or to otherwise meet the time requirements of
Article 20.9 shall result in the Claim being deemed rejected in
its entirety. A Claim that is denied by reason of the District's
failure to have responded to a Claim, or its failure to otherwise
meet the time requirements of Article 20.9, shall not constitute
an adverse finding with regard to the merits of the Claim or
the responsibility or qualifications of the Contractor.

If a subcontractor or a lower tier subcontractor lacks legal
standing to assert a Claim against a District because privity of
contract does not exist, the Contractor may present to the
District a Claim on behalf of a subcontractor or lower tier
subcontractor. A subcontractor may request in writing, either
on his or her own behalf or on behalf of a lower tier
subcontractor, that the Contractor present a Claim for work
which was performed by the subcontractor or by a lower tier
subcontractor on behalf of the subcontractor. The
subcontractor requesting that the Claim be presented to the
District shall furnish reasonable documentation to support the
Claim. Within 45 days of receipt of this written request, the

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 56



21.

20.10

20.11

20.12

20.13

20.14

Contractor shall notify the subcontractor in writing as to
whether the Contractor presented the Claim to the District and,
if the Contractor did not present the Claim, provide the
subcontractor with a statement of the reasons for not having
done so.

. Upon receipt of a Claim, the parties may mutually agree to
waive, in writing, mediation and proceed directly to the
commencement of a civil action or binding arbitration, as
applicable.

w. The Contractor's Claim shalt be denied if it fails to follow the
requirements of this Article.

District (through CM or District's Agent or Attorney) May Request Additional Information.
Within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Claim and the information under this Article, the District
may request in writing any additional documentation supporting the Claim or documentation
relating to defenses to the Claim which the District may assert. If additional documents are
required, the time in which the Claim is evaluated may be extended by a reasonable time so the
Claim and additional documents may be reviewed.

Claims Procedures in Addition to Government Code Claim. Nothing in the Claims procedures set
forth in Article 20 of the CSA shall act to waive or relieve the Contractor from meeting the
requirements set forth in Government Code section 900 et seq.

Binding Arbitration of Individual Claim Issues. To expedite resolution of Claims pursuant to
Public Contract Code section 9201, at the District’s sole option, the District may submit individual
Claims to Arbitration prior to Retention Payment consistent with the requirements of Article
20.6.1.

Resolution of Claims in Court of Competent Jurisdiction. If Claims are not resolved under the
procedure set forth and pursuant to Article 20.9, such Claim or controversy shall be submitted to a
court in the County of the location of the Project after the Project has been completed, and not
before

Warranties, Guarantees and Obligations. The duties and obligations imposed by this CSA and the
rights and remedies available hereunder to the parties hereto, and, in particular but without
limitation, the warranties, guarantees and obligations imposed upon Contractor by the Contract
Documents and amendments thereto; and all of the rights and remedies available to District and
Architect thereunder, are in addition to, and are not to be construed in any way as a limitation of
any rights and remedies available to any or all of them which are otherwise imposed or available
by laws or regulations by special warranty or guarantee or by other provisions of the Contract
Documents, and the provisions of this Article will be as effective as if repeated specifically in the
Contract Documents in connection with each particular duty, obligation, right and remedy to
which they apply.

MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS; AUDIT/OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

21.1

State Audit. Pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Government Code § 10532, or
any amendments thereto, all books, records, and files of the District, the Contractor, or any
Subcontractor connected with the performance of this Contract involving the expenditure of state
funds in excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00), including, but not limited to, the
administration thereof, shall be subject to the examination and audit of the Office of the Auditor
General of the State of California for a period of five (5) years after Retention Payment is made or
a Notice of Completion is Recorded, whichever occurs first. Contractor shall preserve and cause
to be preserved such books, records, hard drives, electronic media, and files for the audit period.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 57



212

213

214

21.5

21.6

District Audit. Pursuant to the remedies under Public Contract Code section 9201 and
Government Code section 930.2, Contractor, through execution of this Agreement, also agrees the
District shall have the right to review and audit, upon reasonable notice, the books and records of
the Contractor concerning any monies associated with the Project. The purpose of this Audit is to
quickly and efficiently resolve disputes based on the actual costs incurred and to reduce the
uncertainty in resolving disputes with limited information. The District shall perform any audits at
its own cost and any such audit shall be performed by an independent auditor, having no direct or
indirect relationship with the functions or activities being audited or with the business conducted
by the Contractor or District. In the event the independent auditor determines that Change Orders,
Response to Request for Proposals, Claims, Appeal of Claims, or other requests for payment the
Auditor shall report the results of the Audit findings to the District and provide a copy to the
Contractor after giving the District Board the opportunity for at least 10 days review. If the
Contractor disputes the findings of the independent auditor, such dispute shall be handled in the
manner set forth under Article 20 entitled Disputes.

Failure to Produce Books or Records. If Contractor having agreed to the terms of this Contract
fails to produce books or records requested by Auditor, such failure to produce books or records
that were required to be preserved for audit, it shall be presumed that the information contained in
the withheld books or records were unfavorable to the Contractor and the Auditor shall note this
refusal in the results of the Audit findings for further evaluation by the District and the District’s
Board. The refusal to release records that are concerning monies associated with the Project may
be used as a grounds to Debar the Contractor from future Projects for failure to preserve records
under this Article and the failure to produce required audit records may also be used as a grounds
for a negative finding against the Contractor depending on the significance of the records that are
withheld by Contractor. Failure to produce Job Cost Data tied to Job cost categories and budgets
shall be presumed an intentional failure to produce key audit records. Similarly, failure to produce
daily time records (prepared at or near the time of the Work actually took place shall be presumed
an intentional failure to produce key audited records.

Inefficiency. Acceleration or Delay Claims. If Contractor is seeking costs for inefficiency, home
office overhead, or unanticipated increased costs due to delays or acceleration, Contractor shall
also produce copies of the original bid or cost tabulation utilized in submitting Contractor’s cost
for the Project. This document shall be considered confidential and shall not be subject to
disclosure through a Public Records Act and shall not be distributed to anyone other than the
District and the District’s counsel. This bid or cost tabulation shall only be used in litigation,
arbitration, evaluation of Claims or Disputes, Audit, and trial. If the records for the bid or cost
tabulation are kept on a computer, the Contractor shall also produce all metadata (in native format)
that accompanies the bid or cost tabulation for inspection to prove the authenticity of the
underlying bid or cost tabulation. Failure to produce the bid or cost tabulation for review of
inefficiency, home office overhead, or unanticipated increased costs due to delays or accelerations
shall be considered material evidence that the bid or cost tabulation was not favorable to the
Contractor. This evidence shall be entered as a jury instruction for trial that the bid or cost
tabulation was not produced and the bid or cost tabulation information was unfavorable to the
Contractor. The evidence may also be used in Debarment Proceedings, and noted as an exception
to an Audit Findings.

Upon notification of Contractor concerning the results of the audit and a reasonable time has
passed for Contractor to respond to Audit Findings and if either there is no Dispute of the Audit
findings under this Article or if the result after utilizing the Disputes Clause confirms the Audit
findings, the District may seek any Savings that have not been accounted for with District and may
also seek reimbursement for overstated Claims, Change Orders, or Appeal of Claims.

Ownership of Drawings. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement, all drawings,
specifications, and copies thereof furnished by District are its property. They are not to be used on
other work and with exception of signed contract sets, are to be returned to District on request at
completion of work.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 58



22,

23.

PREVAILING RATES OF WAGES; RECORDS, APPRENTICES

22.1

222

223

224

22.5

Wage Rates. Pursuant to the provisions of Article 2 (commencing at § 1720), Chapter 1, Part 7,
Division 2, of the Labor Code, the District has obtained the general prevailing rate of per diem
wages and the general prevailing rate for holiday and overtime work in the locality in which this
public works project is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed for
this Project from the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations (“Director”). These rates
are on file at the administrative office of the District and are also available from the Director of the
Department of Industrial Relations. Copies will be made available to any interested party on
request. The Contractor shall post a copy of such wage rates at appropriate, conspicuous,
weatherproof points at the Site.

Any worker employed to perform Work on the Project, but such Work is not covered by any
classification listed in the published general prevailing wage rate determinations or per diem
wages determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, shall be paid not less
than the minimum rate of wages specified therein for the classification which most nearly
corresponds to the employment of such person in such classification.

Holiday and Overtime Pay. Holiday and overtime work, when permitted by law, shall be paid for
at the rate set forth in the prevailing wage rate determinations issued by the Director of the
Department of Industrial Relations or at least one and one-half (1%4) times the specified basic rate
of per diem wages, plus employer payments, unless otherwise specified in the Contract
Documents or authorized by law

Wage Rates Not Affected by Subcontracts. The Contractor shall pay and shall cause to be paid
each worker engaged in the execution of the Work on the Project not less than the general
prevailing rate of per diem wages determined by the Director, regardless of any contractual
relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor or any Subcontractor and such
workers.

Per Diem Wages. The Contractor shall pay and shall cause to be paid to each worker needed to
execute the Work on the Project per diem wages including, but not limited to, employer payments
for health and welfare, pensions, vacation, travel time and subsistence pay as provided for in
Labor Code §1773.1.

Forfeiture and Pavments. Pursuant to Labor Code §1775, the Contractor shall forfeit to the
District, not more than Two Hundred Dollars ($200.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof,
for each worker paid less than the prevailing wages rates as determined by the Director of the
Department of Industrial Relations, for the work or craft in which the worker is employed for any
Work done under the Agreement by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor under it. The amount
of the penalty shall be determined by the Labor Commissioner and shall be based on consideration
of: (1) whether the Contractor or Subcontractor’s failure to pay the correct rate of per diem wages
was a good faith mistake and, if so, the error was promptly and voluntarily correct upon being
brought to the attention of the Contractor or Subcontractor; and (2) whether the Contractor or
Subcontractor has a prior record of failing to meet its prevailing wage obligations.

RECORDS OF WAGES PAID

23.1

Payroll Records

23.1.1 Pursuant to §1776 of the Labor Code, each Contractor and Subcontractor shall keep
an accurate payroll record showing the name, address, social security number, work
classification and straight time and overtime hours worked each day and week, and
the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker or other
employee employed by him or her in connection with the Project.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 59



23.1.2

23.1.3

23.14

23.1.5

23.1.6

23.1.7

23.1.8

23.1.9

23.1.10

All payroll records shall be certified and submitted to the District with each
application for payment, but not less than once per month or as otherwise requested by
the District. All payroll records shall be available for inspection at all reasonable
hours at the principal office of the Contractor on the following basis:

A certified copy of an employee’s payroll record shall be made available for
inspection or furnished to the employee or his or her authorized representative on
request.

A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available for inspection or
furnished upon request to a representative of District, the Division of Labor Standards
Enforcement or the Division of Apprenticeship Standards of the Department of
Industrial Relations.

A certified copy of all payroll records shall be made available upon request by the
public for inspection or for copies thereof. However, a request by the public shall be
made through the District, the Division of Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of
Labor Standards Enforcement. If the requested payroll records have not been
provided pursuant to Paragraph (2) above, the requesting party shall, prior to being
provided the records, reimburse the costs, according to law for the preparation by the
Contractor, Subcontractor(s), and the entity through which the request was made. The
public shall not be given access to such records at the principal office of the
Contractor.

Unless required to be furnished directly to the Labor Commissioner in accordance
with Labor Code section 1771.4, the certified payroll records shall be on forms
provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement or shall contain the same
information as the forms provided by the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement.

The Contractor or Subcontractor(s) shall file a certified copy of all payroll records
with the entity that requested such records within 10 calendar days after receipt of a
written request.

Any copy of records made available for inspection as copies and furnished upon
request to the public or any public agency by the District, the Division of
Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement shall be
marked or obliterated to prevent disclosure of an individual’s name, address and social
security number, The name and address of the Contractor awarded the Contract or the
Subcontractor(s) performing the Contract shall not be marked or obliterated. Any
copy of records made available for inspection by, or furnished to, a joint labor-
management committee established pursuant to the federal Labor Management
Cooperation Act of 1978 (Section 175a of Title 29 of the United States Code) shall be
marked or obliterated only to prevent disclosure of an individual’s name and social
security number. Notwithstanding any other provision of law, agencies that are
included in the Joint Enforcement Strike Force on the Underground Economy
established pursuant to Section 329 of the Unemployment Insurance Code and other
law enforcement agencies investigating violations of law shall, upon request, be
provided non-redacted copies of certified payroll records.

The Contractor shall inform the District of the location of all payroll records,
including the street address, city and county, and shall, within five working days,
provide a notice of a change of location and address.

The Contractor or Subcontractor(s) shall have ten (10) calendar days in which to
comply subsequent to receipt of a written notice requesting payroll records. In the
event that the Contractor or Subcontractor(s) fails to comply within the 10-day period,

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 60



24,

the Contractor or Subcontractor(s) shall, as a penalty to the District, forfeit One
Hundred Dollars ($100.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker,
until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the Division of
Apprenticeship Standards or the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement, these
penalties shall be withheld from Progress Payments or Retention Payment then due.

23.1.11 Responsibility for compliance with this Article shall rest upon the Contractor.

23.2 Withholding of Payments & Penalties
23.2.1 The District may withhold or delay Progress Payments to the Contractor or a Sublease
Payment or Retention if:
23.2.1.1 The required prevailing rate of per diem wages determined by the
Director of the Department of Industrial Relations is not paid to all
workers employed on the Project; or
23.2.1.2 The Contractor or Subcontractor(s) fail to submit all required certified
payroll records with each application for payment, but not less than
once per month; or
23.2.1.3 The Contractor or Subcontractor(s) submit incomplete or inadequate
payroll records; or
23.2.14 The Contractor or Subcontractor(s) fail to comply with the Labor Code
requirements concerning apprentices; or
23.2.1.5 The Contractor or Subcontractor(s) fail to comply with any applicable
state laws governing workers on public works projects.
APPRENTICES
24.1 Apprentice Wages and Definitions. All apprentices employed by the Contractor to perform
services under the Contract shall be paid the standard wage paid to apprentices under the
regulations of the craft or trade for which he or she is employed, and as determined by the Director
of the Department of Industrial Relations, and shall be employed only at the craft or trade to which
he or she is registered. Only apprentices, as defined in §3077 of the Labor Code, who are in
training under apprenticeship standards that have been approved by the Chief of the Division of
Apprenticeship Standards and who are parties to written apprenticeship agreements under Chapter
4 (commencing with §3070) of Division 3, are eligible to be employed under this Contract. The
employment and training of each apprentice shall be in accordance with the apprenticeship
standards and apprentice agreements under which he or she is training, or in accordance with the
rules and regulations of the California Apprenticeship Council.
24.2 Employment of Apprentices. Contractor agrees to comply with the requirements of Labor Code

§1777.5. The Contractor awarded the Project, or any Subcontractor under him or her, when
performing any of the Work under the Contract or subcontract, employs workers in any
apprenticeable craft or trade, the Contractor and Subcontractor shall employ apprentices in the
ratio set forth in Labor Code §1777.5. The Contractor or any Subcontractor must apply to any
apprenticeship program in the craft or trade that can provide apprentices to the Project site for a
certificate approving the contractor or subcontractor under the apprenticeship standards for the
employment and training of apprentices in the area or industry affected. However, the decision of
the apprenticeship program to approve or deny a certificate shall be subject to review by the
Administrator of Apprenticeship. The apprenticeship program or programs, upon approving the
Contractor or Subcontractor, shall arrange for the dispatch of apprentices to the Contractor or
Subcontractor upon the Contractor’s or Subcontractor’s request. “Apprenticeable craft or trade”

0008340001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 61



25,

243

24.4

24.5

24.6

as used in this Article means a craft or trade determined as an apprenticeable occupation in
accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the California Apprenticeship Council.
The ratio of work performed by apprentices to journeyman employed in a particular craft or trade
on the Project shall be in accordance with Labor Code §1777.5.

Submission of Contract Information. Prior to commencing Work on the Project, the Contractor
and Subcontractors shall submit contract award information to the applicable apprenticeship
program(s) that can supply apprentices to the Project and make the request for the dispatch of
apprentices in accordance with the Labor Code. The information submitted shall include an
estimate of journeyman hours to be performed under the Contact, the number of apprentices
proposed to be employed, and the approximate dates the apprentices would be employed. A copy
of this information shall also be submitted to the District if requested. Within sixty (60) days after
concluding Work on the Project, the Contractor and Subcontractors shall submit to the District, if
requested, and to the apprenticeship program a verified statement of the journeyman and
apprentice hours performed on the Project.

Apprentice Fund. The Contractor or any Subcontractor under him or her, who, in performing any
of the Work under the Contract, employs journeymen or apprentices in any apprenticeable craft or
trade shall contribute to the California Apprenticeship Council the same amount that the Director
determines is the prevailing amount of apprenticeship training contributions in the area of the
Project. The Contractor and Subcontractors may take as a credit for payments to the California
Apprenticeship Council any amounts paid by the Contractor or Subcontractor to an approved
apprenticeship program that can supply apprentices to the Project. The Contractor and
Subcontractors may add the amount of the contributions in computing its bid or costs for the
Contract.

Prime Contractor Compliance. The responsibility of compliance with this Article 13 §1777.5 of
the Labor Code for all apprenticeable occupations is with the Prime Contractor. Any Contractor
or Subcontractor that knowingly violates the provisions of this Article or Labor Code §1777.5
shall be subject to the penalties set forth in Labor Code §1777.7.

WHEN DETERMINING GMP, CONTRACTOR SHALL INCLUDE TO THE EXTENT
POSSIBLE ANTICIPATED GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE RATES FOR THE TIME
WHEN WORK ON THE PROJECT WILL ACTUALLY BE PERFORMED.

REGISTRATION WITH DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

25.1

25.2

Strict compliance with all DIR registration requirements in accordance with Labor Code sections
1725.5 and 1771.1 is a material obligation of the Contractor and all of its subcontractors (of any
tier) under the Contract Documents. The foregoing includes, without limitation, compliance with
DIR registration requirements at all times during performance of the Work by the Contractor and
all of its subcontractors of any tier. The failure of the Contractor and all subcontractors of any tier
to be properly registered with DIR at all times during performance of the Work is a material
breach of the Contract Documents and subject to termination for cause.

An affirmative and ongoing obligation of the Contractor under the Contract Documents is the
verification that all subcontractors of any tier are at all times during performance of the Work are
in full and strict compliance with the DIR registration requirements. The Contractor shall not
permit or allow any subcontractor of any tier to perform any Work without the Contractor’s
verification that all subcontractors are in full and strict compliance with the DIR registration
requirements. Any subcontractors of any tier not properly registered with DIR shall be substituted
in accordance with Labor Code section 1771.1. Contractor or its subcontractors of any tier shall
not be entitled to any additional costs or time arising from or in any way related to compliance
with the DIR registration requirements.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 62



26.

253

254

25.5

25.6

The Contractor and all subcontractors shall furnish certified payroll records as required pursuant
Labor Code section 1776 directly to the Labor Commissioner in accordance with Labor Code
section 1771.4 on at least on a monthly basis (or more frequently if required by the District or the
Labor Commissioner) and in a format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner. The District
reserves the right to withhold Progress Payments or Retention Payment if the District is notified,
or determines as the result of its own investigation, that Contractor is in violation of any of the
requirements set forth in Labor Code section 1720 et seq. at no penalty or cost to the District.
Monitoring and enforcement of the prevailing wage laws and related requirements will be
performed by the Labor Commissioner/ Department of Labor Standards Enforcement (DLSE).

The Labor Commissioner and the Division of Labor Standards Enforcement (DLSE) may conduct
various compliance monitoring and enforcement activities including, but not limited to,
confirming the accuracy of payroll records, conducting worker interviews, conducting audits,
requiring submission of itemized statements prepared in accordance with Labor Code section 226,
and conducting random in-person inspections of the Project site ("On-Site Visits"). On-Site Visits
may include inspections of records, inspections of the Work site and observation of work
activities, interviews of workers and others involved with the Project, and any other activities
deemed necessary by the Labor Commissioner/DLSE to ensure compliance with prevailing wage
requirements. The Labor Commissioner/DLSE shall have free access to any construction site or
other place of labor and may obtain any information or statistics pertaining to the lawful duties of
the Labor Commissioner/DLSE.

Any lawful activities conducted or any requests made by the Labor Commissioner/DLSE shall not
be the basis for any delays, claims, costs, damages or liability of any kind against the District by
the Contractor. Contractor and all Subcontractors shall cooperate and comply with any lawful
requests by the Labor Commissioner's office. The failure of the Labor Commissioner, DLSE, or
any other part of the Department of Industrial Relations to comply with any requirement imposed
by the California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Chapter 8 shall not of itself constitute a defense to
the failure to pay prevailing wages or to comply with any other obligation imposed by Division 2,
Part 7, Chapter 1 of the Labor Code.

Prior to commencing any Work on the Project, the Contractor shall post the notice/poster required
under the California Code of Regulations and Labor Code section 1771.4 in both English and
Spanish at a conspicuous, weatherproof area at the Project site.  The required notice/poster is
available on the Labor Commissioner's website.

HOURS OF WORK

26.1

26.2

Eight (8) hours of work shall constitute a legal day’s work. The Contractor and each
subcontractor shall forfeit, as penalty to the District, twenty five dollars ($25) for each worker
employed in the execution of work on the Project by the Contractor or any subcontractor under
him for each calendar day during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than
eight (8) hours in any one calendar day and forty (40) hours in any calendar week in violation of
the provisions of the Labor Code, and in particular, Section 1810 to Section 1815, thereof,
inclusive, except that work performed by employees of the Contractor and his subcontractors in
excess of eight hours per day at not less than one and one half times the basic rate of pay, as
provided in Labor Code section 1815.

Generally, construction work on the Project shall be accomplished on a regularly scheduled eight
(8) hour per day work shift basis, Monday through Friday, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and
5:00 p.m., however nothing herein shall prevent Contractor from working weekends and after
school hours in order to complete the Project so long as not otherwise prohibited by law or local
ordinances or regulations.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 63



27.

26.3

Any work necessary to be performed after regular working hours, or on Sundays or other holidays
shall be performed and included within the GMP, unless otherwise agreed to in writing before the
work in question is commenced pursuant to Article 9, Extra Work/Modifications.

SKILLED AND TRAINED WORKFORCE

27.1

27.2

273

274

Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier must comply with the requirements set forth in
Education Code section 17407.5 and Public Contract Code sections 2601 and 2602, including
providing an enforceable commitment that the Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier will
use a “Skilled and Trained Workforce” as defined in Public Contract Code section 2601(d).
Contractor and all Subcontractors are to carefully review all requirements set forth in Education
Code section 17407.5 and Public Contract Code sections 2601 and 2602 before entering into the
Contract for the Project.

The Contractor’s commitment that a Skilled and Trained Workforce will be used to perform Work
on the Project and the Contract shall be established by the following:

27.2.1 Contractor shall include in all of its subcontracts, and Subcontractors shall require in
its subcontracts of any tier, mandatory compliance with Education Code section
17407.5 and Public Contract Code sections 2601 and 2602.

27.2.2 Contractor shall provide to the District’s Governing Board, on a monthly basis while
the Project or Contract is being performed, a written report demonstrating that the
Contractor and all Subcontractors of any tier are complying with the requirements set
forth in Education Code section 17407.5 and Public Contract Code sections 2601 and
2602. If the Contractor fails to provide the monthly report required herein, or
provides a report that is incomplete, the District shall withhold further payments in
accordance with Public Contract Code sections 2602 and 2603. If a monthly report
does not demonstrate compliance with Public Contract Code sections 2601 and 2602,
the District shall withhold further payments until the Contractor provides a plan to
achieve substantial compliance with Public Contract Code sections 2601 and 2602,
with respect to the relevant apprenticeable occupation, prior to completion of the
Project.

2723 The monthly report provided to the District’s Governing Board as required above
shall be a public record under the California Public Records Act (Chapter 3.5
(commencing with Section 6250) of Division 7 of Title 1 of the Government Code),
and shall be open to public inspection.

2724 Contractor’s commitment that a Skilled and Trained Workforce will be used to
perform Work on the Project and the Contract may also be established by the
Contractor providing evidence and any other information or documents reasonably
requested by the District showing that the Contractor has entered into a project labor
agreement that includes the requirements of Education Code section 17407.5(b) that
will bind the Contractor and all its Subcontractors of any tier performing Work on the
Project or Contract.

If the District’s Governing Board has entered into a project labor agreement that will bind all
contractors and subcontractors performing Work on this Project or Contract that includes the
requirements of Education Code section 17407.5(b), the Contractor’s agreement that it will
become a party to that project labor agreement shall satisfy the requirements under Education
Code section 17407.5(b).

If the Contractor or Subcontractor of any tier is not in compliance with all of the applicable Skilled
and Trained Workforce, the District shall exercise any rights or remedies allowed under Public
Contract Code sections 2602 or 2603, or other applicable law.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 64



28.

PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

28.1

282

283

284

28.5

Fingerprinting, If any portion of the work for the Project is to be performed at an operating
school, Contractor shall comply with the applicable requirements of Education Code sections
45125.1 and 45125.2 with respect to fingerprinting of employees who may have contact with
District’s pupils. Contractor shall also ensure that its Subcontractors on the Project comply with
the applicable requirements of Sections 45125.1 and 45125.2. To this end, Contractor and its
Subcontractors must provide for the completion of the Fingerprint Certification form attached as
Exhibit “F” and incorporated herein by this reference prior to commencing work on the Project.
In no event shall any employees of Contractor or its Subcontractors come into contact with
District’s pupils before the certification is completed. Contractor’s failure to comply with this law
shall be considered a material breach of the Agreement upon where the Agreement may be
terminated, at District’s sole discretion, without any further compensation to Contractor.
Contractor and Subcontractor personnel on Site shall not have been convicted of any criminal
offense which may have a discernible adverse impact on District or its students. Contractor shall
advise its employees of these requirements before they enter on the Site and shall immediately
remove from the Site any employee in violation of these requirements as determined by Contractor
or by District. Contractor shall impose these requirements on its Subcontractors.

Contractor has been advised and is aware that District has adopted a Board Policy which prohibits
the use of tobacco products, including smokeless tobacco, anywhere on District property.
Contractor shall be responsible for the enforcement of District’s tobacco-free policy among all
Contractor’s employees and Subcontractors while on District property. Contractor understands
and agrees that should any employee or Subcontractor of Contractor violate the Board Policy, after
having already been warned once for violating District’s tobacco-free policy, Contractor shall
remove the individual for the duration of the Project. Contractor shall not be entitled to any
additional compensation and/or time in completing the Project as a result of such removal.

Contractor shall take all steps necessary to insure that employees of Contractor or any of its
Subcontractors’ employees do not use, consume, or work under the influence of alcohol or illegal
drugs while on the Project. Contractor shall prevent any of its employees or its Subcontractors’
employees from playing any recorded music devices or radios or wearing any radio headphone
devices for entertainment while working on the Project. Contractor shall also prevent its
employees or Subcontractors” employees from bringing any animal onto the Project.

Contractor shall be responsible for all damages to persons or property that occur as a result of its
fault or negligence in connection with the prosecution of this Contract and shall take all necessary
measures and be responsible for the proper care and protection of all materials delivered and work
performed until completion and final acceptance by District.

Contractor shall take, and require Subcontractors to take, all necessary precautions for safety of
workers on the work and shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local and other safety
laws, standards, orders, rules, regulations, and building codes to prevent accidents or injury to
persons on, about, or adjacent to premises where work is being performed and to provide a safe
and healthful place of employment. In addition to meeting all requirements of OSHA, Cal-OSHA,
state, and local codes, Contractor shall furnish, erect and properly maintain at all times, as directed
by District or required by conditions and progress of work, all necessary safety devices,
safeguards, construction canopies, signs, audible devices for protection of the blind, safety rails,
belts and nets, barriers, lights, and watchmen for protection of workers and the public and shall
post danger signs warning against hazards created by such features in the course of construction.
Contractor shall designate a responsible member of its organization on the work, whose duty shall
be to post information regarding protection and obligations of workers and other notices required
under occupational safety and health laws, to comply with reporting and other occupational safety
requirements, and to protect the life, safety and health of workers. Name and position of person so
designated shall be reported to District by Contractor. Contractor shall correct any violations of
safety laws, rules, orders, standards or regulations. Upon the issuance of a citation or notice of

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 65



28.6

28.7

28.8

28.9

28.10

violation by the Division of Occupational Safety and Health, such violation shall be cormrected
promptly.

In an emergency affecting safety of life or of work or of adjoining property, Contractor, without
special instruction or authorization from District, is hereby permitted to act, at its discretion, to
prevent such threatened loss or injury; and Contractor shall so act if so authorized or instructed by
District. Any compensation claimed by Contractor on account of emergency work shall be
determined by agreement.

Contractor shall provide such heat, covering, and enclosures as are necessary to protect all work,
materials, equipment, appliances, and tools against damage by weather conditions.

Contractor shall take adequate precautions to protect existing roads, sidewalks, curbs, pavements,
utilities, adjoining property and structures (including, without limitation, protection from
settlement or loss of lateral support), and to avoid damage thereto, and repair any damage thereto
caused by construction operations. All permits, licenses, or inspection fees required for such
repair work shall be obtained and paid for by Contractor.

Trenches Five Feet or More in Depth. The Contractor shall submit to the District, in advance of
excavation, a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping or other provisions to
be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of any
trench or trenches five feet or more in depth. The Contractor shall also submit a copy of its annual
trench/excavation permit approved by CAL-OSHA. The plan shall be prepared by a registered
civil or structural engineer. As part of the plan, a note shall be included stating that the registered
civil or structural engineer certifies that the plan complies with CAL OSHA Construction Safety
Orders, or stating that the registered civil or structural engineer certifies that the plan is not less
effective than the shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions of the Safety Orders.

28.9.1 All shoring submittal shall include surcharge loads from adjacent embankments,
construction loads and spoil bank. Submittal shall indicate minimum horizontal
distance from top of trench to edge of all surcharge loads for all cases of shoring and
side slopes.

28.9.2 Nothing in this Section shall relieve Contractor of the full responsibility for providing
shoring, bracing sloping, or other provisions adequate for worker protection. If such
plan varies from the shoring system standards established by the Construction Safety
Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer and shall
be approved by CAL-OSHA. No excavation of such trench or trenches shall be
commenced until said plan has been accepted by the District or the person to whom
authority to accept has been delegated by the District.

Contractor shall (unless waived by District in writing):

28.10.1 When performing construction on existing sites, become informed and take into
specific account the maturity of the students on the site; and when performing work
which may interfere with the school routine before, during or after school hours,
enclose working area with a substantial barricade, and arrange work to cause
minimum amount of inconvenience and danger to students and faculty in their regular
school activities.

28.10.2 Not allow any person, other than workers on the Project, or individuals authorized by
District to come upon any portion of the premises where work is being performed.
Contractor shall require all workers on the Project to be conspicuously identified
either by a firm logo on their clothing, or by means of a prominent identification
badge.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 66



28.10.3
28.10.4
28.10.5

28.10.6

28.10.7

28.10.8

28.10.9

28.10.10

28.10.11

28.10.12

Provide substantial barricades around any shrubs or trees indicated to be preserved.
Deliver materials to building area over route designated by District.
Take preventive measures to eliminate dust.

Confine apparatus, the storage of materials, and the operations of workers to limits
indicated by law, ordinances, permits, or directions of District; and shall not interfere
with the work or unreasonably encumber premises or overload any structure with
materials; and enforce all instructions of District regarding signs, advertising, fires,
smoking, the presence of liquor, and the presence of firearms and require that all
workers comply with all regulations while on construction site.

Take care to prevent disturbing or covering any survey markers, monuments, or other
devices marking property boundaries or corners. If such markers are disturbed by
accident, they shall be replaced by an approved land surveyor or civil engineer at no
cost to District.

Not allow personal radios on the work site

Where the Project involves work at an operating school, inform and take such
preventive measures necessary to insure that all employees, Subcontractors and other
individuals authorized on the Project site refrain from any personal contact or
conversations with the students on site.

Contractor shall not impose structural loading upon any part of the work under
construction or upon existing construction on or adjacent to the Site in excess of safe
limits, or loading such as to result in damage to the structural, architectural,
mechanical, electrical, or other components of the work. The design of all temporary
construction equipment and appliances used in construction of the work and not a
permanent part thereof, including, without limitation, hoisting equipment, cribbing,
shoring, and temporary bracing of structural steel, is the sole responsibility of
Contractor. All such items shall conform with the requirements of governing codes
and all laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of all authorities having
jurisdiction. Contractor shall take reasonable and customary precautions, such as
shoring of masonry walls and temporary tie bracing of structural steel work, to
prevent possible wind damage during construction of the work. The installation of
such bracing or shoring shall not damage the work in place or the work installed by
others. Any damage which does occur shall be promptly repaired by Contractor at no
cost to District.

Contractor shall require that Subcontractors participate in, and enforce, the safety and
loss prevention programs established by Contractor for the Project, which will cover
all work performed by Contractor and its Subcontractors. All Subcontractors and
material or equipment suppliers shall cooperate fully with Contractor, District, and all
insurance carriers. Subcontractors shall immediately, within twenty four (24) hours,
report in writing to Contractor all accidents whatsoever arising out of, or in
connection with, the performance of the work, whether on or off the Site, which
caused death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and statements
of witnesses. Contractor shall thereafter immediately, within two (2) days, report the
facts in writing to District giving full details of the accident.

Contractor and Subcontractors shall use only those ingress and egress routes
designated by District, observe the boundaries of the Site designated by District, park
only in those areas designated by District, which areas may be on or off the Site, and

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 67



29,

28.11

comply with any parking control program established by District, such as furnishing
license plate information and placing identifying stickers on vehicles.

28.10.13  Contractor shall be responsible for providing security services for the Site as needed
for the protection of the Site and as determined in District’s reasonable discretion.

28.10.14 Contractor shall, for all contracts involving state funds, submit a “Drug-Free
Workplace Certification.” Contractor shall take all reasonable steps necessary to
ensure that any employees of Contractor or any of its Subcontractors’ employees
report for work in a manner fit to do their job. Such employees shall not be under the
influence of or in possession of any alcoholic beverage or of any controlled substance
(except a controlled substance as prescribed by a physician so long as the performance
or safety at the Project Site is not affected thereby). Contractor shall advise its
employees of these requirements before they enter on the Site and shall immediately
remove from the site any employee in violation of these requirements as determined
by Contractor or by the District. Contractor shall impose these requirements on its
Subcontractors.

78.10.15 Contractor and Subcontractors shall at all times enforce strict discipline and good
order among their employees and other persons carrying out the Contract and shall not
employ on work any unfit person or anyone not skilled in work assigned to such
person. It shall be the responsibility of Contractor to ensure compliance with this
Article. Any person in the employ of Contractor or Subcontractors whom District
may deem incompetent, unfit, intemperate, troublesome or otherwise undesirable shall
be excluded from the work Site and shall not again be employed on it except with
written consent of District. Contractor must sign and cause all Subcontractors to sign
the Conduct Rules for Contractors form attached as Exhibit “I” and incorporated
herein by this reference prior to commencing work on the Project.

Contractor shall be at all times during the performance of work hereunder in full compliance with
the provisions of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (“IRCA”) in the hiring of its
employees, and Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend District against any and all
actions, proceedings, penalties or claims arising out of Contractor’s failure to comply strictly with
the IRCA.

PAYMENTS AND RETENTION

The Construction Cost of the Project shall not exceed the GMP, except as otherwise provided in
this Construction Services Agreement and Sublease. During the progress of construction,
Contractor will provide monthly progress payment applications for the total scheduled value of the
work completed under the GMP set forth in Article 3. District shall pay to Contractor a monthly
progress payment comprising a sum equal to ninety-five percent (95%) of the scheduled value of
the work approved and completed up to the last day of the previous month, less aggregate of
previous payments(“Progress Payment”). If all of the necessary information is submitted and
accurate (including the schedule of values), District shall approve the Progress Payments within
fifteen (15) days after District’s receipt of the periodic estimate for partial payment and District
shall pay such payments within fifteen (15) days after the District’s approval of the periodic
estimate for partial payment. Progress Payments shall be made on the basis of monthly estimates
which shall be prepared by Contractor on a form approved by District and certified by Architect
and Project Inspector, or any other approved representative of the District, and filed before the
fifth day of the month during which payment is to be made. Work completed as estimated shall be
an estimate only and no inaccuracy or error in said estimate shall release Contractor or any
bondsman from such work or from enforcing each and every provision of this document and
District shall have the right subsequently to correct any error made in any estimate for payment.
Contractor shall not be entitled to have any payment estimates processed or be entitled to have any
payment made for work performed so long as any lawful or proper direction concerning non-

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 68



29.1

29.2

complying work or any portion thereof given by the District lacks correction by Contractor.
District shall withhold from the Progress Payments 150% of the estimated value of non-complying
work unless satisfactorily corrected or remedied. Contractor shall, at a minimum, provide the
following documents as part of its request for a Progress Payment: (1) Schedule of Values, (2)
Project Contingency Trackers, (3) Project Allowance Trackers, (4) Project Savings Reports (Refer
to the Project Savings Section for the Project Savings Items) including the budget versus actual
costs of Project Management and General Condition Expenses , (5) Project Daily Reports
(Contractor and Subcontractor), (6) Project Safety Reports, (7) Monthly Lien Releases
Unconditional and Conditional Waivers (all contractors), and (8) Monthly Schedule Update and
Narratives (with Recovery Schedules as needed).

The District shall retain five percent (5%) “Retention” from Progress Payments and release
Retention as required in this CSA and specifically, not until after Close-Out under Article 13.16.

In no event shall the cumulative total of the Progress Payments/ Sublease Payments and Retention
ever exceed the GMP as defined herein, unless specifically allowed under Article 5.

29.2.1 Title to new materials and/or equipment for the work of this contract, on a continuous
basis while the Project is being completed, shall vest in the District. However,
responsibility for such new material and/or work of this contract shall remain with the
Contractor until incorporated into the work and accepted by District; no part of said
materials and/or equipment shall be removed from its place of storage except for
immediate installation in the work of this contract; and Contractor shall keep an
accurate inventory of all said materials and/or equipment in a manner satisfactory to
the owner or his authorized representative.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary stated above, the Contractor may include in
its request for payment the value of any structural steel, glue laminated beams,
trusses, bleachers and other such custom-made materials prepared specifically for the
Project and unique to the Project so long as all of the following requirements are
satisfied:

29.2.1.1 The aggregate cost of materials stored off-site shall not exceed Twenty
Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000) at any time or as otherwise agreed to
be District in writing;

29.2.1.2 Title to such materials shall be vested in the District as evidenced by
documentation satisfactory in form and substance to the District,
including, without limitation, recorded financing statements, ucc
filings and UCC searches;

29.2.1.3 With each request for payment, the Contractor shall submit to the
District a written list identifying each location where materials are
stored off-site (which must be a bonded warehouse) and the value of
the materials at each location. The Contractor shall procure insurance
satisfactory to the District (in its reasonable discretion) for materials
stored off-site in an amount not less than the total value thereof;

29.2.1.4 The consent of any Surety shall be obtained to the extent required prior
to payment for any materials stored off-site;

29.2.1.5 Representatives of the District shall have the right to make inspections
of the storage areas at any time; and

29.2.1.6 Such materials shall be (1) protected from diversion, destruction, theft
and damage to the reasonable satisfaction of the District; (2)

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 69



293

specifically marked for use on the Project; and (3) segregated from
other materials at the storage facility.

Reasons to Withhold Payment. The District may withhold any payment, in whole, or in part, to

such extent as may be necessary to protect the District from loss because of, but not limited to:

1.

2.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
15.
16.

17.

18.
19.
20,

21.

Defective Work not remedied,;
Stop Notices served upon the District;
Liquidated damages assessed against the Contractor;

The cost of completion of the Contract if there exists reasonable doubt that the Work can
be Completed for the unpaid balance of any Contract Price or by the completion date;

Damage to the District or other contractor;
Unsatisfactory prosecution of the Work by the Contractor;
Failure to store and properly secure materials;

Failure of the Contractor to submit on a timely basis, proper and sufficient documentation
required by the Contract Documents, including, without limitation, acceptable monthly
progress schedules, Shop Drawings, Submittal schedules, schedule of values, product
data and samples, proposed product lists, executed Change Order, Construction Change
Documents, and verified reports;

Failure of the Contractor to maintain As-Built drawings;

If, in the District’s opinion, the representations to the District required pursuant to Article
9.4 cannot be made;

Erroneous estimates by the Contractor of the value of the Work performed, or other false
statements in an application for payment;

Unauthorized deviations from the Contract Documents (including but not limited to
Unresolved Notices of Deviations (DSA Form 154);

Failure of the Contractor to prosecute the Work in a timely manner in compliance with
established progress schedules and completion dates;

Failure to properly pay prevailing wages as defined in Labor Code section 1720, et seq.;
Failure to properly maintain or clean up the Site;
Payments to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless the District;

Any payments due to the District including, but not limited to, payments for failed tests,
or utilities changes or permits;

Failure to submit an acceptable schedule in accordance with Article 9;
Failure to pay Subcontractor or suppliers;
Failure to secure warranties, including the cost to pay for warranties

Failure to provide release from material suppliers or Subcontractors when requested to do
)

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 70



22. Items deducted pursuant to Article 17.6

23. Incomplete Punch List items under Article 13.6 which have gone through the Article 12.2
process
24, Allowances that have not been used

294 Reallocation of Withheld Amounts. District may, in its discretion, apply any withheld amount to
payment of outstanding claims or obligations. In so doing, District shall make such payments on
behalf of Contractor. If any payment is so made by District, then such amount shall be considered
as a payment made under this CSA to Contractor and District shall not be liable to Contractor for
such payments made in good faith. Such payments may be made without prior judicial
determination of claim or obligation. District will render Contractor an accounting of such funds
disbursed on behalf of Contractor.

If Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents or fails to perform any provision thereof, District may, after ten (10) calendar days
written notice to the Contractor and without prejudice to any other remedy make good such
deficiencies. The District shall adjust the total Contract price by reducing the amount thereof by
the cost of making good such deficiencies. If District deems it inexpedient to correct Work which
is damaged, defective, or not done in accordance with Contract provisions, an equitable reduction
in the Contract price (of at least 150% of the estimated reasonable value of the nonconforming
Work) shall be made therefor.

29.5 Payment After Cure. When the grounds for declining approval are removed, payment shall be
made for amounts withheld because of them. No interest shall be paid on any retention or
amounts withheld due to the failure of the Contractor to perform in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Contract Documents.

30. NONCONFORMING WORK

Contractor shall promptly remove from premises all Work identified by District as failing to conform to the Contract
whether incorporated or not. Contractor shall promptly replace and re-execute its own Work to comply with the
Contract without additional expense to District and shall bear the expense of making good all Work of other
contractors destroyed or damaged by such removal or replacement.

If Contractor does not remove such Work which has been identified by District as failing to conform to the Contract
Documents within a reasonable time, fixed by written notice, District may remove it and may store the material at
Contractor’s expense. If Contractor does not pay expenses of such removal within ten (10) calendar days’ time
thereafter, District may, upon ten (10) calendar days’ written notice, sell such materials at auction or at private sale
and shall account for net proceeds thereof, after deducting all costs and expenses that should have been borne by
Contractor.

31. SUBCONTRACTOR PAYMENTS

31.1 Payments to Subcontractors. No later than ten (10) days after receipt, or pursuant to Business and
Professions Code section 7108.5, the Contractor shall pay to each Subcontractor, out of the
amount paid to the Contractor on account of such Subcontractor’s portion of the Work, the amount
to which said Subcontractor is entitled. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement with each
Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar
manner.

312 No Obligation of District for Subcontractor Payment. The District shall have no obligation to pay,
or to see to the payment of, money to a Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law.

Construction Services Agreement
Page 71

000834.0001822

196535.1



313 Payment Not Constituting Approval or Acceptance. An approved request for a Progress Payment,
a Certificate of Substantial Completion, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the
District shall not constitute acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract
Documents.

314 Joint Checks. District shall have the right, if necessary for the protection of the District, to issue
joint checks made payable to the Contractor and Subcontractors and material or equipment
suppliers. The joint check payees shall be responsible for the allocation and disbursement of
funds included as part of any such joint payment. In no event shall any joint check payment be
construed to create any contract between the District and a Subcontractor of any tier, any
obligation from the District to such Subcontractor, or rights in such Subcontractor against the
District. The District may choose to issue joint checks at District’s sole discretion and only after
all the requirements of that particular school district and county are specifically met. Some school
districts cannot issue joint checks, so the ability to issue joint checks will depend on the District
and the specific circumstances.

32. SEPARATE CONTRACTS

32.1 Reservation of Rights to have other Contractors on Site. District reserves the right to let other
contractors enter the Site to perform work as part of its use of the Site. Contractor shall afford
other contractors reasonable opportunity for the introduction and storage of their materials and the
execution of their work and shall properly connect and coordinate the Project with the work of
such Contractors. Such contractors shall comply with all applicable State safety laws and
regulations and shall provide a certificate of insurance naming Contractor as additional insured

322 Notice of Coordination of Work. If the proper execution of any part of the Contractor’s work on
the Project depends upon the work of any such contractors, Contractor shall inspect and promptly
report to District any patent defects or other problems it identifies in such work that render it
unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Contractor is only required to inspect the work
of such other contractors prior to commencing its own further work in connection with or in
relation to that other work. Further, Contractor is only expected to identify patent defects or other
problems, and is not required to do any destructive testing or to monitor the progress of such work
by other contractors prior to its completion. In no event shall the work of such other contractors
be covered by the warranty given by Contractor to the District, nor shall Contractor be required to
provide insurance for such work.

33. USE OF PREMISES/SAFETY

Contractor shall confine operations at the Site to areas permitted by law, ordinances, permits and the Construction
Documents and shall not unreasonably encumber the Site or existing facilities on the Site with any materials or
equipment. Contractor shall not load or permit any part of the work to be loaded with a weight so as to endanger the
safety of persons or property at the Site. The Contractor shall maintain emergency first aid treatment for his
employees which complies with the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 (29 USC, section 651 et

seq.).
34. CLEANING UP

34.1 Contractor's Responsibility to Clean Up. Contractor at all times shall keep premises free from
debris such as waste, dust, excess water, storm water runoffs, rubbish, and excess materials and
equipment. Contractor shall not leave debris under, in, or about the premises, but shall promptly
remove same from the premises and dispose of it in a lawful manner. Disposal receipts or dump
tickets shall be furnished to the Architect within five (5) days of request.

Contractor shall remove rubbish and debris resulting from the Work on a daily basis. Contractor
shall maintain the structures and Site in a clean and orderly condition at all times until acceptance
of the Project by the District. Contractor shall keep its access driveways and adjacent streets,

Construction Services Agreement
Page 72

000834.0001822

196535.1



34.2

sidewalks, gutters and drains free of rubbish, debris and excess water by cleaning and removal
each day. All concrete, sidewalks, and paths of travel shall be broom cleaned daily.

General Final Clean-Up. Upon completion of Work, Contractor shall employ experience workers

or professional cleaners for final cleaning. Clean each surface to the condition expected in a
normal, commercial, building cleaning and maintenance program.

1.

10.

11.

Clean interior and exterior of buildings, including fixtures, equipment, walls, floors,
ceilings, roofs, window sills and ledges, horizontal projections, and any areas where
debris has collected, so surfaces are free from foreign material or discoloration;

Clean the Project site. The grounds should be cleared of any Contractor equipment,
raked clean of debris and trash removed. Sweep paved areas broom clean.

Repair or replace any damaged materials. Replace any chipped or broken glass.
Remove any and all stains.
Remove labels that aren’t permanent labels.

Clean and polish all glass, plumbing fixtures, equipment, finish hardware and similar
finish surfaces. Remove any glazing compounds

Remove temporary utilities, fencing, barricades, planking, sanitary facilities and similar
temporary facilities from Site.

Remove temporary film that remains on any hardware, doors or other surfaces.
Seal the bottom and tops of all doors
Special Clean-Up.

In addition to the general cleaning, the following special cleaning shall be done at the
completion of the Work in accordance with the specifications including, but not limited
to:

a. Remove putty stains from glazing, then wash and polish glazing.

b. Remove marks, stains, fingerprints and other soil or dirt from painted, stained or
decorated work.

¢. Remove temporary protection and clean and polish floors and waxed surfaces.

d. Clean and polish hardware and plumbing trim; remove stains, dust, dirt, plaster and
paint

e. Wipe surfaces of mechanical and electrical equipment.
f.  Remove spots, soil, plaster and paint from tile work, and wash tile.

g. Clean all fixtures and equipment, remove excess lubrication, clean light fixtures and
lamps, polish metal surfaces.

h. Vacuum-clean carpeted surfaces.

i, Remove debris from roofs, down spout and drainage system.

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 73



343 Failure to Cleanup. If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the
District may do so, and the cost thereof shall be the responsibility of the Contractor pursuant to
Article 12.2 and seek a Deductive Change Order.

35. INSURANCE

35.1 Insurance Requirements. Before the commencement of the Work, the Contractor shall purchase
from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in California as
admitted carriers with a financial rating of at least an A status as rated in the most recent edition of
Best’s Insurance Reports or as otherwise amended in these Contract Documents, such insurance as
will protect the District from claims set forth below, which may arise out of or result from the
Contractor’s operations under the Contract and for which the Contractor may be legally liable,
whether such operations are by the Contractor, by a Subcontractor, by anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable:

1. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death of any person
District would require indemnification and coverage for employee claim;

2. Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability coverage, which are
sustained by a person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to
employment of such person by the Contractor or by another person;

3. Claims for damages because of injury or destruction of tangible property, including loss
of use resulting therefrom, arising from operations under the Contract Documents;

4. Claims for damages because of bodily injury, death of a person, or property damage
arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of a motor vehicle, all mobile
equipment, and vehicles moving under their own power and engaged in the Work;

5. Claims involving contractual liability applicable to the Contractor’s obligations under the
Contract Documents, including liability assumed by and the indemnity and defense
obligations of the Contractor and the Subcontractors; and

6. Claims involving Completed Operations, Independent Contractors’ coverage, and Broad
Form property damage, without any exclusions for collapse, explosion, demolition,
underground coverage, and excavating. (XCU)

7. Claims involving sudden or accidental discharge of contaminants or pollutants.

35.2 Subcontractor Insurance Requirements. The Contractor shall require its Subcontractors to take out
and maintain similar public liability insurance and property damage insurance required under this
Article in like amounts. A “claims made” or modified “occurrence” policy shall not satisty the
requirements of this Article without prior written approval of the District.

353 Additional Insured Endorsement Requirements. The Contractor shall name, on any policy of
insurance required under this Article, the District, Architect, Inspector, the State of California,
their officers, employees, agents and independent contractors as additional insureds.
Subcontractors shall name the Contractor, the District, Architect, Inspector, the State of California,
their officers, employees, agents and independent contractors as additional insureds. The
Additional Insured Endorsement included on all such insurance policies shall be an ISO CG 20 33
(04/813), or an ISO CG 20 38 (04/13) and ISO CG 20 37 (04/13) or their equivalent as determined
by the District in its sole discretion, and must state that coverage is afforded the additional insured
with respect to claims arising out of operations performed by or on behalf of the insured. If the
additional insureds have other insurance which is applicable to the loss, such other insurance shall
be on an excess or contingent basis. The insurance provided by the Contractor pursuant to this

Construction Services Agreement

Page 74
000834.0001822
196535.1



35.4

355

35.6

Article must be designated in the policy as primary to any insurance obtained by the District. The
amount of the insurer’s liability shall not be reduced by the existence of such other insurance.

Specific Insurance Requirements

354.1 Contractor shall take out and maintain and shall require all Subcontractors, if any,
whether primary or secondary, to take out and maintain:

3542 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with a combined single limit per
occurrence of not less than $2,000,000.00 or Commercial General Liability Insurance
(including automobile insurance) which provides limits of not less than:

1. Per occurrence (combined single limit) $1,000,000.00
2. Project Specific Aggregate (for this Project only) $2,000,000.00
3. Products and Completed Operations $1,000,000.00
4. Personal and Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000.00
3543 Insurance Covering Special Hazards. The following Special hazards shall be covered

by riders or riders to above mentioned public liability insurance or property damage
insurance policy or policies of insurance, in amounts as follows:

1. Automotive and truck where operated in amounts $1,000,000.00
2. Material Hoist where used in amounts $1,000,000.00
3. Explosion, Collapse and Underground (XCU coverage) $1,000,000.00
4. In addition, provide Excess Liability Insurance coverage in the amount of Five

Million Dollars ($5,000,000.00).

Workers' Compensation Insurance. During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide
workers’ compensation insurance (not less than $1M) for all of the Contractor’s employees
engaged in Work under this Contract on or at the Site of the Project and, in case any of the
Contractor’'s Work is subcontracted, the Contractor shall require the Subcontractor to provide
workers’ compensation insurance (not less than $1M) for all the Subcontractor’s employees
engaged in Work under the subcontract. Any class of employee or employees not covered by a
Subcontractor’s insurance shall be covered by the Contractor’s insurance. In case any class of
employees engaged in Work under this Contract on or at the Site of the Project is not protected
under the Workers’ Compensation laws, the Contractor shall provide or cause a Subcontractor to
provide adequate insurance coverage for the protection of those employees not otherwise
protected. The Contractor shall file with the District certificates of insurance and in comply with
Labor Code § 3700.

Builder’s Risk/All Risk

35.6.1 Course-of-Construction Insurance Requirements. The Contractor, during the progress
of the Work and until final acceptance of the Work by District upon completion of the
entire Contract, shall maintain Builder’s Risk, Course of Construction or similar first
party property coverage issued on a replacement value basis consistent with the total
replacement cost of the structures where work is being performed inclusive of all
Work for the Project included within the Contract Documents. Coverage is to insure
against all risks of accidental direct physical loss, and must include, by the basic grant
of coverage or by endorsement, the perils of vandalism, malicious mischief (both
without any limitation regarding vacancy or occupancy), fire, sprinkler leakage, civil

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 75



35.7

35.8

35.9

35.10

authority, sonic boom, earthquake, flood, collapse, wind, lightning, smoke and riot.
The coverage must include debris removal, demolition, increased costs due to
enforcement of building ordinance and law in the repair and replacement of damage
and undamaged portions of the property, and reasonable costs for the Architect’s and
engineering services and expenses required as a result of any insured loss upon the
Work and Project which is the subject of the Contract Documents, including the
underlying structure where Work is being performed, completed Work and Work in
progress, to the full insurable value thereof. Such insurance shall include the District
and the Architect as additional named insureds, and any other person with an
insurable interest as designated by the District.

The Contractor shall submit to the District for its approval all items deemed to be
uninsurable. The risk of the damage to the Work due to the perils covered by the
“Builder’s Risk/All Risk” Insurance, as well as any other hazard which might result
in damage to the Work, is that of the Contractor and the surety, and no claims for
such loss or damage shall be recognized by the District nor will such loss or damage
excuse the complete and satisfactory performance of the Contract by the Contractor.

Fire Insurance. Before the commencement of the Work, the Contractor shall procure, maintain,
and cause to be maintained at the Contractor’s expense, fire insurance on all Work subject to loss
or damage by fire. The amount of fire insurance shall be sufficient to protect the Project against
loss or damage in full until the Work is accepted by the District.

Other Insurance. The Contractor shall provide all other insurance required to be maintained under
applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations.

Proof of Insurance. The Contractor shall not commence Work nor shall it allow any Subcontractor
to commence Work under this Contract until all required insurance and certificates have been
obtained and delivered in duplicate to the District for approval subject to the following
requirements:

35.9.1 Certificates and insurance policies shall include the following clause:

1. “This policy shall not be non-renewed, canceled, or reduced in required
limits of liability or amounts of insurance until notice has been mailed to the
District. Date of cancellation or reduction may not be less than thirty (30)
days after the date of mailing notice.”

2, Certificates of insurance shall state in particular those insured, the extent of
insurance, location and operation to which the insurance applies, the
expiration date, and cancellation and reduction notices.

3. Certificates of insurance shall clearly state that the District and the Architect
are named as additional insureds under the policy described and that such
insurance policy shall be primary to any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by District.

4, The Contractor and its Subcontractors shall produce a certified copy of any
insurance policy required under this Article upon written request of the
District.

Compliance. In the event of the failure of Contractor to furnish and maintain any insurance
required by this Article 34, the Contractor shall be in default under the Contract. Compliance by
Contractor with the requirement to carry insurance and furnish certificates or policies evidencing
the same shall not relieve the Contractor from liability assumed under any provision of the

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 76



Contract Documents, including, without limitation, the obligation to defend and indemnify the
District and the Architect.

35.11 No Waiver Created through Payments. The making of any payments under this CSA or the
Sublease shall not be construed as creating an insurable risk interest by or for the District or be
construed as relieving the Contractor or his Subcontractors of responsibility for loss from any
direct physical loss, damage, or destruction occurring prior to Completion of the Project.

35.12 Waiver of Subrogation. Contractor waives (to the extent permitted by law) any right to recover
against the District for damages to the Work, any part thereof, or any and all claims arising by
reason of any of the foregoing, but only to the extent that such damages and/or claims are covered
by property insurance and only to the extent of such coverage (which shall exclude deductible
amounts) by insurance actually carried by the District.

The provisions of this section are intended to restrict each party to recovery against insurance
carriers only to the extent of such coverage and waive fully and for the benefit of each, any rights
and/or claims which might give rise to a right of subrogation in any insurance carrier. The District
and the Contractor shall each obtain in all policies of insurance carried by either of them, a waiver
by the insurance companies thereunder of all rights of recovery by way of subrogation for any
damages or claims covered by the insurance.

35.13 Performance and Payment Bonds

35.13.1 Bond Requirements. Prior to commencing any portion of the Work, the Contractor
shall furnish separate payment and performance bonds for its portion of the Work
which shall cover 100% faithful performance of and payment of all obligations arising
under the Contract Documents and/or guaranteeing the payment in full of all claims
for labor performed and materials supplied for the Work. All bonds shall be provided
by a corporate surety authorized and admitted to transact business in California as
sureties.

To the extent, if any, that the Contract Price is increased in accordance with the
Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, upon request of the District, cause the
amount of the bonds to be increased accordingly and shall promptly deliver
satisfactory evidence of such increase to the District. To the extent available, the
bonds shall further provide that no change or alteration of the Contract Documents
(including, without limitation, an increase in the Contract Price, as referred to above),
extensions of time, or modifications of the time, terms, or conditions of payment to
the Contractor will release the surety. If the Contractor fails to furnish the required
bonds, the District may terminate the Contract for cause.

35.13.2 Surety Qualification. Only bonds executed by admitted Surety insurers as defined in
Code of Civil Procedure § 995.120 shall be accepted. Surety must be a California-
admitted surety and listed by the U.S. Treasury with a bonding capacity in excess of
the Project cost.

35.133 Alternate Surety Qualifications. If a California-admitted surety insurer issuing bonds
does not meet these requirements, the insurer will be considered qualified if it is in
conformance with § 995.660 of the California Code of Civil Procedure and proof of
such is provided to the District.

35.134 Contractor is hereby authorized to obtain a performance and payment bond from any
Subcontractors selected by Contractor at its discretion and cost. Any bonds required
by this subsection shall comply with the requirements set forth above.

Construction Services Agreement

Page 77
000834.0001822
196535.1



36. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNITY

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless District, Architect, Construction Manager, Inspector, the State
of California and their officers, employees, agents and independent contractors from all liabilities, claims, actions,
liens, judgments, demands, damages, losses, costs or expenses of any kind arising from death, personal injury,
property damage or other cause based or asserted upon any act, omission, or breach connected with or arising from
the progress of Work or performance of service under this Agreement or the Contract Documents. As part of this
indemnity, Contractor shall protect and defend, at its own expense, District, Architect, Inspector, the State of
California and their officers, employees, agents and independent contractors from any legal action including
attorney’s fees or other proceeding based upon such act, omission, breach or as otherwise required by this Article.

Furthermore, Contractor agrees to and does hereby defend, indemnify and hold harmless District, Architect,
Inspector, the State of California and their officers, employees, agents and independent contractors from every claim
or demand made, and every liability, loss, damage, expense or attorney’s fees of any nature whatsoever, which may
be incurred by reason of:

36.1.1 Liability for (1) death or bodily injury to persons; (2) damage or injury to, loss
(including theft), or loss of use of, any property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to
comply with any provision of law or the Contract Documents; or (4) any other loss,
damage or expense, sustained by any person, firm or corporation or in connection with
the Work called for in this Agreement or the Contract Documents, except for liability
resulting from the sole or active negligence, or the willful misconduct of the District.

36.1.2 Any bodily injury to or death of persons or damage to property caused by any act,
omission or breach of Contractor or any person, firm or corporation employed by
Contractor, either directly or by independent contract, including all damages or injury
to, loss (including theft), or loss of use of, any property, sustained by any person, firm
or corporation, including District, arising out of or in any way connected with Work
covered by this Agreement or the Contract Documents, whether said injury or damage
occurs either on or off District property, but not for any loss, injury, death or damages
caused by the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the District.

36.1.3 Any dispute between Contractor and Contractor’s Subcontractors/supplies/sureties,
including, but not limited to, any failure or alleged failure of the Contractor (or any
person hired or employed directly or indirectly by the Contractor) to pay any
Subcontractor or Materialman of any tier or any other person employed in connection
with the Work and/or filing of any stop notice or mechanic’s lien claims.

Contractor, at its own expense, cost, and risk, shall defend any and all claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings
that may be brought or instituted against the District, its officers, agents, Architect or CM, or employees, on account
of or founded upon any cause, damage, or injury identified herein and shall pay or satisfy any judgment that may be
rendered against the District, its officers, agents or employees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a result
thereof.

Contractor shall ensure that its contract with each of its Subcontractors contains provisions requiring the
Subcontractors to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, Architect, Inspector, the State of California to a
minimum level as set forth in this Article and consistent with the language of this Article.

The Contractor’s and Subcontractors’ obligation to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the District, Architect,
Inspector, the State of California and their officers, employees, agents and independent contractors hereunder shall
include, without limitation, any and all claims, damages, and costs for the following: (1) any damages or injury to or
death of any person, and damage or injury to, loss (including theft), or loss of use of, any property; (2) breach of any
warranty, express or implied; (3) failure of the Contractor or Subcontractors to comply with any applicable
governmental law, rule, regulation, or other requirement; (4) products installed in or used in connection with the
Work; and (5) any claims of violation of the Americans with Disabilities Act (*“ADA”) claims arising from failure to
comply with the Construction Documents.

Construction Services Agreement
Page 78

000834.0001822

196535.1



37. SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITY

In accordance with Public Contract Code section 22300, the District will permit the substitution of securities for any
moneys withheld by the District to ensure performance under the Construction Services Agreement. At the request
and expense of the Contractors, securities equivalent to the amount withheld shall be deposited with the District, or
with a state or federally chartered bank as the escrow agent, who shall then pay such moneys to the Contractor.
Upon satisfactory completion of the Construction Services Agreement the securities shall be returned to the
Contractor.

38. TITLE TO WORK

Title to all work completed and in the course of construction paid for by District and title to all materials on account
of which payment has been made by District to Contractor shall vest in District pursuant to the applicable provisions
of the Sublease.

39. COMPLIANCE WITH STATE STORM WATER PERMIT FOR CONSTRUCTION

The Contractor shall be required to comply with all conditions of the State Water Resources Control Board (State
Water Board) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System General Permit for Waste Discharge Requirements
for Discharges of Storm Water Runoff Associated with Construction Activity (Permit) for all construction activity
which results in the disturbance of in excess of one acre of total land area or which is part of a larger common area
of development or sale. The Contractor shall be responsible for filing the Notice of Intent and for obtaining the
Permit. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for preparing and implementing a Storm Water Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) prior to initiating Work. The Contractor’s Qualified SWPPP Developer (QSD) shall
work with the Architect and its engineers in preparing an approved SWPPP and revising it as necessary or required,
It shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to evaluate the cost of procuring the Permit and preparing the SWPPP as
well as complying with the SWPPP and any necessary revision to the SWPPP. The Contractor shall employ a
Qualified SWPPP Practitioner (QSP) to implement the approved SWPPP during construction. The Contractor shall
comply with all requirements of the State Water Resources Control Board. The Contractor shall include all costs of
compliance with specified requirements in the GMP.

Contractor shall be responsible for procuring, implementing and complying with the provisions of the Permit and the
SWPPP, including the standard provisions, monitoring and reporting requirements as required by the Permit.
Contractor shall provide copies of all reports and monitoring information to the District, Architect and the District’s
third party SWPPP consultant.

The Contractor shall comply with the lawful requirements of any applicable municipality, the County, drainage
district, and other local agencies regarding discharges of storm water to separate storm drain system or other
watercourses under their jurisdiction, including applicable requirements in municipal storm water management
programs.

Failure to comply with the Permit is in violation of federal and state law. The Contractor hereby agrees to
indemnify and hold harmless the District, its Board members, officers, agents, employees and authorized volunteers
from and against any and all claims, demands, losses or liabilities of any kind or nature which the District, its Board
members, officers, agents, employees and authorized volunteers may sustain or incur for noncompliance with the
Permit arising out of or in connection with the Project, except for liability resulting from the sole negligence, willful
misconduct or active negligence of the District, its Board members, officers, agents, employees or authorized
volunteers. District may seek damages from the Contractor for delay in completing the Project caused by the
Contractor’s failure to comply with the Permit.

40. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE

The Contractor herein agrees not to discriminate in its recruiting, hiring, promotion, demotion or termination
practices on the basis of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, sex, age or physical handicap in the
performance of this Construction Services Agreement and to comply with the provisions of the following laws:

Construction Services Agreement
Page 79

000834.0001822

196535.1



40.1 California Fair Employment and Housing Act (Gov. Code 12900 et seq., prohibiting
discrimination in employment on account of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry,
physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, or sex, and prohibiting
harassment of an employee or applicant because of race, religious creed, color, national origin,
ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or age);

40.2 Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 USC ‘2000e et seq., prohibiting discrimination in
employment on the basis of race, color, national origin, religion, or sex); Title I of the Americans
With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 USC 12101 et seq., prohibiting discrimination against qualified
individuals with a disability in hiring and employment practices);

40.3 The Age Discrimination in Employment Act (29 USC 621 et seq., prohibiting age discrimination
in employment against individuals who are at least forty years of age);

40.4 California Labor Code section 1102.1 (prohibiting discrimination in any aspect of employment or
opportunity for employment based on actual or perceived sexual orientation);

40.5 Sexual orientation;
40.6 American with Disabilities Act (ADA) (See Article 41); and

40.7 Any other laws or regulations prohibiting discrimination as may be applicable to Contractor.

41. SPECIAL NOTICE OF AMERICAN’S WITH DISABILITIES ACT

Some of the requirements in the Construction Documents are meant to comply with the American’s with Disabilities
Act (“ADA™). The requirements of the ADA are technical in nature and may appear to be minor in nature (i.e.
whether a walkway or ramp has a 2% cross-slope). Contractor is warned that even the slightest deviation from the
specific requirements from the ADA is considered a Civil Rights Violation and subjects the District to fines of three
times actual damages sustained by a handicap individual or up to $4,000 per violation and attorney’s fees required to
enforce the ADA violation. As a result of the significant liability and exposure associated with ADA aspects of the
Contract, Contractor shall take special care to meet all ADA requirements detailed in the Construction Documents.
Failure to comply with ADA rules that results in a Notice of Non-Compliance shall be repaired to meet ADA
requirements promptly. In addition, any ADA violations that are not identified by Inspector or Architect that are
later identified shall be repaired and charged back to the Contractor through a Deductive Change Order.

41.1 Indemnification of ADA Claims. ADA claims arising from failure to comply with Construction
Documents shall be indemnified, held harmless and defended by Contractor. Further, any
withholdings for ADA violations in Article 29.4 shall include potential redesign costs and an
accelerated repair costs due to the potential for ADA claims arising from DSA posting of ADA
violations on the Project.

42, PATENTS, ROYALTIES, AND INDEMNITIES

The Contractor shall hold and save the District and its officers, agents, and employees harmless from liability of any
nature or kind, including cost and expense, for or on account of any patented or unpatented invention, process,
article, or appliance manufactured or used in the performance of this Construction Services Agreement, including its
use by the District, except to the extent a method or means was specifically required by the Contract Documents.

43. EXCISE TAX

If under federal excise tax law any transaction hereunder constitutes a sale on which a federal excise tax is imposed
and the sale is exempt from such excise tax because it is a sale to a state or local government for its exclusive use,
the District, upon request, will execute a certificate of exemption which will certify (1) that the District is a political
subdivision of the state for the purposes of such exemption and (2) that the sale is for the exclusive use of the
District. No excise tax for such materials shall be included in the GMP.

Construction Services Agreement
Page 80

000834.0001822

196535.1



44, PROHIBITED INTERESTS

No official of District and no District representative who is authorized in such capacity and on behalf of District to
negotiate, make, accept, or approve, or to take part in negotiating, making, accepting or approving any architectural,
engineering, inspection, construction or material supply contract or any subcontract in connection with construction
of Project, shall be or become directly or indirectly interested financially in this Construction Services Agreement or
any part thereof. No officer, employee, architect, attorney, engineer or inspector of or for District who is authorized
in such capacity and on behalf of District to exercise any executive, supervisory or other similar functions in
connection with construction of Project, shall become directly or indirectly interested financially in this Construction
Services Agreement or in any part thereof.

45. COMPLIANCE WITH DTSC GUIDELINES — IMPORTED SOI1/SOILS INSPECTION

45.1 If the Project requires the use of imported soils, the Contractor shall be responsible to use and
shall certify that the imported material it uses is free of any hazardous and/or toxic substance or
material of any nature or type as defined in accordance with California Law and the California
Health and Safety Code. The District reserves the right to reject any imported material that has
come from agricultural or commercial land uses. Contractor must notify the District of the source
of material and comply with the applicable Regional Water Quality Control Board Resolution and
when applicable, with the guidelines of the Department of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC).

45.2 Unless otherwise provided, when a soils investigation report obtained from test holes at the site is
available, such report shall not be a part of this contract. Nevertheless, with respect to any such
soils investigation and/or geotechnical report regarding the site, it shall be the responsibility of the
Contractor to review and be familiar with such report. Any information obtained from such report
or any information given on drawings as to subsurface soil condition or to elevations of existing
grades or elevations of underlying rock is approximate only, is not guaranteed, and does not form
a part of the contract, unless otherwise specifically provided. Contractor is required to make a
visual examination of site and must make whatever tests it deems appropriate to determine the
underground condition of the soil. Limited soil tests and subsurface investigations, if any, are
available for review and consideration by Contractor and were conducted for the purpose of design
only. Subsurface investigation information is made available by District solely as a matter of
convenience and general information for Contractor and Contractor is expected to review and be
familiar with such information. No representation is made by District or Architect that
information provided is completely representative of all conditions and materials which may be
encountered. If such a report is referenced in the Contract Documents for performance of the
Project, such reference shall be to establish minimum requirements only.  Further, no
representation is made by District or Architect that information provided is solely adequate for
purposes of construction. District disclaims responsibility for interpretations by Contractor of soil
and subsurface investigation information, such as in protecting soil-bearing values, rock profiles,
presence and scope of boulders and cobbles, soil stability and the presence, level and extent of
underground water. Contractor shall determine means, methods, techniques and sequences
necessary to achieve required characteristics of completed Work. Conditions found after
execution of the Construction Services Agreement to be materially different from those reported
and which are not customarily encountered in the geographic area of the Project hall be governed
by provisions of this Construction Services Agreement for unforeseen conditions.

46. HAZARDOUS WASTE AND UNKNOWN PHYSICAL CONDITIONS

Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify the District, in writing, of any:

L. Material that Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in Section 25117 of
the Health and Safety Code that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class I1I disposal site in
accordance with provisions of existing law.

Construction Services Agreement

Page 81
000834.0001822
196535.1



47.

Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Site differing from those indicated, including geological,
soils, and or water table issues which impede construction or increase Construction Costs.

Unknown physical conditions at the Site (not including structures or improvements) of any unusual nature,
different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the
character provided for in the Construction Services Agreement.

46.1 District shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the conditions materially so
differ, and the materials that are not on reports or documents supplied or reviewed as part of
Contractor’s Due Diligence shall be submitted as a Change Order under Article 17 and, upon
approval, shall be allocated to the Unforeseen Allowance.

46.2 In the event that a dispute arises between District and Contractor whether the conditions materially
differ from Due Diligence Documents reviewed for hazardous substances, or cause a decrease or
increase in Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the work,
Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for by this
Construction Services Agreement but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the
Construction Services Agreement.

NO ASBESTOS CERTIFICATION

47.1 Asbestos Free Installation Certification: Contractor shall execute and submit an “Asbestos Free

Materials Certification,” and further, is aware of the following

47.1.1

47.12

47.1.3

Should asbestos containing materials be installed by the Contractor in violation of this
certification, or if removal of asbestos containing materials is part of the Project,
decontaminations and removals will be performed in accordance with the
requirements of all applicable laws and will meet the following criteria:

47.1.1.1 Decontamination and removal of work found to contain asbestos or
work installed with asbestos containing equipment shall be done only
under the supervision of a qualified consultant, knowledgeable in the
field of asbestos abatement and accredited by the Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA).

47.1.1.2 The asbestos removal contractor shall be an EPA accredited contractor
qualified in the removal of asbestos and shall be chosen and approved
by the asbestos consultant who shail have sole discretion and final
determination in this matter.

47.1.1.3 The asbestos consultant shall be chosen and approved by the District
which shall have sole discretion and final determination in this matter.

47.1.1.4 The work will not be accepted until asbestos contamination is reduced
to levels deemed acceptable by the asbestos consultant.

If removal of asbestos containing materials is part of the Project, the cost of all
asbestos removal, including, but not necessarily limited to the cost of the asbestos
removal contractor, the cost of the asbestos consultant, analytical and laboratory fees,
time delays and additional costs that may be incurred by the District shall be borne
entirely by the Contractor.

Hold Harmless: Interface of work for the Project with work containing asbestos shall
be executed by the Contractor at his/her risk and at his/her discretion with full
knowledge of the currently accepted standards, hazards, risks and liabilities associated
with asbestos work and asbestos containing products. By execution of the

000834.0001822
196535.1

Construction Services Agreement
Page 82



Construction Services Agreement the Contractor acknowledges the above and agrees
to the fullest extent permitted by law to hold harmless the District, its Board and each
member of the Board, its officers, employees, agents, representatives, including its
Architect and assigns, for all asbestos liability which may be associated with this
work. The Contractor further agrees to instruct his/her employees with respect to the
above mentioned standards, hazards, risk and liabilities.

48. LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Contractor shall give all notices and comply with all laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations bearing on conduct of
work as indicated and specified. If Contractor observes that drawings and specifications are at variance therewith, it
shall promptly notify Architect in writing and any necessary changes shall be adjusted as provided in this
Construction Services Agreement for changes in work. If Contractor performs any work knowing it to be contrary
to such laws, ordinances, rules and regulations, and without such notice to the District’s Architect, it shall bear all
costs arising therefrom.

49. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS

No waiver, alteration or modification of any of the provisions of this Construction Services Agreement shall be
binding upon either District or Contractor unless the same shall be in writing and signed by both District and
Contractor.

50. NOTICES

All communications in writing between District and Contractor, including without limitation, applications for
payment, shall be deemed to have been received by the addressee if delivered to the person for whom they are
intended or if sent by registered mail, return receipt requested, or by telex, telegram, or fax followed by regular mail,
addressed pursuant to the Notice Section of Article 3.

51. THIRD-PARTY CLAIMS

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 9201(b) and (c), District shall provide Contractor with timely notification
of the receipt of any third-party claim, relating to the Contract. District is entitled to recover its reasonable costs
incurred in providing such notification.

52. ASSIGNMENT

Except Contractor’s responsibility to assign Subcontractors and material suppliers to District upon Project
Completion and the running of the Warranty Period, Contractor shall not assign or sublet the Lease, Sublease or this
Construction Services Agreement, nor shall Contractor assign any monies due or to become due to it hereunder.
Contractor has unique abilities and understanding of the Project from negotiations and the Due Diligence that has
been undertaken and, thus, any assignment will not transfer to the assignee the specific understanding associated
with Contractor on this Project.

53. HEADINGS

The headings herein contained are inserted only as a matter of convenience and reference and are not meant to
define, limit or describe the scope or intent of the Contract Documents or in any way to affect the terms and
provisions set forth herein,

54, INTEGRATION/MODIFICATION

This Construction Services Agreement represents the entire understanding of District and Contractor as to those
matters contained herein, and supersedes and cancels any prior oral or written understanding, promises or
representations with respect to those matters covered herein, and it shall not be amended, altered or changed except
by a written agreement signed by the parties hereto.

Construction Services Agreement
Page 83

000834.0001822

196535.1



55. APPLICABLE LAW/PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY LAW DEEMED INSERTED

The terms and provisions of this Construction Services Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of
the State of California. If any action is brought in a court of law to enforce any term of this Construction Services
Agreement the action shall be brought in a state court situated in the County where the District is located, State of
California, unless a court finds jurisdiction or venue is only proper in a federal court, or a court outside this county.
In the event of any such litigation between the parties, the parties shall pay for their respective costs incurred,
including attorneys’ fees.

Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this Construction Services Agreement
shall be deemed to be inserted herein and the Construction Services Agreement shall be read and enforced as though
it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted, or is not correctly
inserted, then upon application of either party, the Construction Services Agreement shall forthwith be physically
amended to make such insertion or correction.

56. SUCCESSION OF RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS

All rights and obligations under this Construction Services Agreement shall inure to and be binding upon the
successors and assigns of the parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have, by their duly authorized representatives, executed this
Construction Services Agreement, in duplicate, as of the day and year first above written.

CONTRACTOR DISTRICT:
I I SCHOOL
DISTRICT
By: By:
Name
Title Assistant Superintendent,
DATE: DATE:

Construction Services Agreement
Page 84

000834.0001822

196535.1



EXHIBIT “A”
SCOPE OF WORK / CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

[TO BE INSERTED]

000834.0001822
196535.1



EXHIBIT “B”
MASTER BUDGET

[TO BE INSERTED]

000834.0001822
196535.1



EXHIBIT “C”

DVBE REQUIREMENTS

000834.0001 822
1965351



EXHIBIT “D”
PAYMENT BOND
(CALIFORNIA PUBLIC WORK)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT WHEREAS, the [ ] SCHOOL DISTRICT (sometimes referred to
hereinafter as “Obligee”) has awarded to (hereinafter designated as the
“Principal” or  “Contractor”), an agreement  for  the work  described as follows:

(hereinafter referred to as the “Public Work”); and

WHEREAS, said Contractor is required to furnish a bond in connection with said Contract, and pursuant to
California Civil Code section 9550;

NOW, THEREFORE, We, , the undersigned Contractor,
as Principal; and , a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of , and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, as
Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the SCHOOL DISTRICT and to any and all

persons, companies, or corporations entitled by law to file stop notices under California Civil Code section 9100, or
any person, company, or corporation entitled to make a claim on this bond, in the sum of
Dollars ($ ), such sum being not less than one
hundred percent (100%) of the total amount payable by said Obligee under the terms of said Contract, for which
payment will and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors and administrators, successors and
assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if said Principal, its heirs, executors,
administrators, successors, or assigns, or subcontractor, shall fail to pay any person or persons named in Civil Code
section 9100; or fail to pay for any materials, provisions, or other supplies, used in, upon, for, or about the
performance of the work contracted to be done, or for any work or labor thereon of any kind, or for amounts due
under the Unemployment Insurance Code, with respect to work or labor thereon of any kind; or shall fail to deduct,
withhold, and pay over to the Employment Development Department, any amounts required to be deducted,
withheld, and paid over by Unemployment Insurance Code section 13020 with respect to work and labor thereon of
any kind, then said Surety will pay for the same, in an amount not exceeding the amount herein above set forth, and
in the event suit is brought upon this bond, also will pay such reasonable attorneys’ fees as shall be fixed by the
court, awarded and taxed as provided in California Civil Code section 9550 et seq.

This bond shall inure to the benefit of any person named in Civil Code section 9100 giving such person or
his/her assigns a right of action in any suit brought upon this bond.

It is further stipulated and agreed that the Surety of this bond shall not be exonerated or released from the
obligation of the bond by any change, extension of time for performance, addition, alteration or modification in, to,
or of any contract, plans, or specifications, or agreement pertaining or relating to any scheme or work of
improvement herein above described, or pertaining or relating to the furnishing of labor, materials, or equipment
therefor; nor by any change or modification of any terms of payment or extension of time for payment pertaining or
relating to any scheme or work of improvement herein above described; nor by any rescission or attempted
rescission of the contract, agreement or bond; nor by any conditions precedent or subsequent in the bond attempting
to limit the right of recovery of claimants otherwise entitled to recover under any such contract or agreement or
under the bond; nor by any fraud practiced by any person other than the claimant seeking to recover on the bond,
and that this bond be construed most strongly against the Surety and in favor of all persons for whose benefit such
bond is given; and under no circumstances shall the Surety be released from liability to those for whose benefit such
bond has been given, by reason of any breach of contract between the Obligee and the Contractor or on the part of
any obligee named in such bond; that the sole condition of recovery shall be that the claimant is a person described
in California Civil Code section 9100, and who has not been paid the full amount of his or her claim; and that the
Surety does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time, addition, alteration or modification herein
mentioned.

000834.0001822

196535.1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF this instrument has been duly executed by the Principal and Surety above
named, on the day of ,20 .

PRINCIPAL/CONTRACTOR:

By:

SURETY:

By:

Attorney-in-Fact

000834.0001822
196535.1



IMPORTANT: THIS IS A REQUIRED FORM.

Surety companies executing bonds must possess a certificate of authority from the California Insurance
Commissioner authorizing them to write surety insurance defined in California Insurance Code section 105, and if
the work or project is financed, in whole or in part, with federal, grant or loan funds, Surety’s name must also appear
on the Treasury Department’s most current list (Circular 570 as amended).

Any claims under this bond may be addressed to:

(Name and Address of Surety) (Name and Address of agent or representative for
service for service of process in California)

Telephone: Telephone:

A notary public or other office completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
On , before me, , personally
appeared , who proved on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the

person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they
executed the same in  his/her/their  authorized capacity(ies) as the  Attorney-in-Fact of
(Surety) and acknowledged to me that by his/her/their signature(s) on the
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(SEAL)

Notary Public in and for said State

Commission expires:

NOTE: A copy of the power-of-attorney to local representatives of the bonding company must be attached hereto.

000834.0001822

196535.1




EXHIBIT “E”
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE BOND
(CALIFORNIA PUBLIC WORK)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT WHEREAS, the [ 1 SCHOOL DISTRICT (sometimes referred to
hereinafter as “Obligee”) has awarded to (hereinafter
designated as the “Principal” or “Contractor”), an agreement for the work described as follows:
(hereinafter referred to as the “Public Work™); and

WHEREAS, the work to be performed by the Contractor is more particularly set forth in that certain
contract for said Public Work dated , (hereinafter referred to as the
“Contract”), which Contract is incorporated herein by this reference; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor is required by said Contract to perform the terms thereof and to provide a bond
both for the performance and guaranty thereof.

NOW, THEREFORE, we, , the undersigned Contractor, as
Principal, and , a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the
State of . and duly authorized to transact business under the laws of the State of California, as
Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the [ ] SCHOOL DISTRICT in the sum of

Dollars ($ ), said sum being not less than one
hundred percent (100%) of the total amount payable by said Obligee under the terms of said Contract, for which
amount well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns,
jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH THAT, if the bounded Contractor, his or her heirs,
executors, administrators, successors or assigns, shall in all things stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and
perform the covenants, conditions, and agreements in said Contract and any alteration thereof made as therein
provided, on his or her part, to be kept and performed at the time and in the manner therein specified, and in all
respects according to their intent and meaning; and shall faithfully fulfill guarantees of all materials and
workmanship; and indemnify, defend and save harmless the Obligee, its officers and agents, as stipulated in said
Contract, then this obligation shall become null and void; otherwise it shall be and remain in full force and effect.

The Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that it shall not be exonerated or released from
the obligation of this bond (either by total exoneration or pro tanto) by any change, extension of time, alteration in or
addition to the terms of the contract or to the work to be performed there under or the specifications accompanying
the same, nor by any change or modification to any terms of payment or extension of time for any payment
pertaining or relating to any scheme of work of improvement under the contract. Surety also stipulates and agrees
that it shall not be exonerated or released from the obligation of this bond (either by total exoneration or pro tanto)
by any overpayment or underpayment by the Obligee that is based upon estimates approved by the Architect. The
Surety stipulates and agrees that none of the aforementioned changes, modifications, alterations, additions, extension
of time or actions shall in any way affect its obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such
changes, modifications, alterations, additions or extension of time to the terms of the contract, or to the work, or the
specifications as well notice of any other actions that result in the foregoing.

Whenever Principal shall be, and is declared by the Obligee to be, in default under the Contract, the Surety
shall promptly either remedy the default, or shall promptly take over and complete the Contract through its agents or
independent contractors, subject to acceptance and approval of such agents or independent contractors by Obligee as
hereinafter set forth, in accordance with its terms and conditions and to pay and perform all obligations of Principal
under the Contract, including, without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the
payment of liquidated damages; or, at Obligee’s sole discretion and election, Surety shall obtain a bid or bids for

000834.0001822

196535.1



completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by Obligee of the
lowest responsible bidder, arrange for a contract between such bidder and the Obligee and make available as Work
progresses (even though there should be a default or succession of defaults under the contract or contracts of
completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the “balance of the
Contract price” (as hereinafter defined), and to pay and perform all obligations of Principal under the Contract,
including, without limitation, all obligations with respect to warranties, guarantees and the payment of liquidated
damages. The term “balance of the Contract price,” as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable
to Principal by the Obligee under the Contract and any modifications thereto, less the amount previously paid by the
Obligee to the Principal, less any withholdings by the Obligee allowed under the Contract. Obligee shall not be
required or obligated to accept a tender of a completion contractor from the Surety.

Surety expressly agrees that the Obligee may reject any agent or contractor which may be proposed by
Surety in fulfillment of its obligations in the event of default by the Principal. Unless otherwise agreed by Obligee,
in its sole discretion, Surety shall not utilize Principal in completing the Contract nor shall Surety accept a bid from
Principal for completion of the work in the event of default by the Principal.

No final settlement between the Obligee and the Contractor shall abridge the right of any beneficiary
hereunder, whose claim may be unsatisfied.

The Surety shall remain responsible and liable for all patent and latent defects that arise out of or relate to
the Contractor’s failure and/or inability to properly complete the Public Work as required by the Contract and the
Contract Documents. The obligation of the Surety hereunder shall continue so long as any obligation of the
Contractor remains.

Contractor and Surety agree that if the Obligee is required to engage the services of an attorney in
connection with enforcement of the bond, Contractor and Surety shall pay Obligee’s reasonable attorneys’ fees
incurred, with or without suit, in addition to the above sum.

In the event suit is brought upon this bond by the Obligee and judgment is recovered, the Surety shall pay

all costs incurred by the Obligee in such suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to be fixed by the Court.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands and seals this day of
20

000834.0001822

196535.1



PRINCIPAL/CONTRACTOR:

By:
SURETY:
By:
Attorney-in-Fact
The rate of premium on this bond is per thousand.
The total amount of premium charged: $§ (This must be filled in by a

corporate surety).

IMPORTANT: THIS IS A REQUIRED FORM.

Surety companies executing bonds must possess a certificate of authority from the California Insurance
Commissioner authorizing them to write surety insurance defined in California Insurance Code section 105, and if
the work or project is financed, in whole or in part, with federal, grant or loan funds, Surety’s name must also appear
on the Treasury Department’s most current list (Circular 570 as amended).

Any claims under this bond may be addressed to:
(Name and Address of Surety) (Name and Address of agent or representative for
service for service of process in California)

Telephone: Telephone:

000834.0001822

196535.1



A notary public or other office completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the '
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
) ss.
COUNTY OF )
On , before me, , personally
appeared , who proved on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the

person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they
executed the same in  his/her/their  authorized  capacity(ies) as the  Attorney-in-Fact  of
(Surety) and acknowledged to me that by his/her/their signature(s) on the
instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) executed the instrument.

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing paragraph is
true and correct.

WITNESS my hand and official seal.

(SEAL)

Notary Public in and for said State

Commission expires:

NOTE: A copy of the power-of-attorney to local representatives of the bonding company must be attached hereto.

000834.0001822

196535.1



EXHIBIT “F”
CONTRACTOR FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS
CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION

With respect to the Contract dated 20 by and between the
[ ] School District (“District”) and
(“Contractor”) Contractor hereby certifies to the District’s governing board that it has completed the criminal
background check requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 and that none of its employees that may come in
contact with District’s pupils have been convicted of a violent felony listed in Penal Code section 667.5(c) or a

serious felony listed in Penal Code section 1192.7(c).

Contractor’s Representative

Date:
CONTRACTOR EXEMPTION

Pursuant to Education Code sections 45125.1 and 45125.2, the [ ] School
District (“District”) as determined that (“Contractor”) is exempt from the criminal
background check certification requirements for the contract dated 20 by and between the

District and Contractor (“Contract”) because:

The Contractor’s employees will have limited contact with District students during the course of
the Contract;

Emergency or exceptional circumstances exist; or

With respect to Contractors constructing, reconstructing, rehabilitating or repairing a school
facility, as provided in Section 45125.2, the Contractor has agreed to ensure the safety of pupils at
the school facility by the following method(s) specified in Section 45125.2:

O The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with pupils.
0 Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an employee of

the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has not been convicted of a
violent or serious felony.

School District Official:

Date:

000834.0001822

196535.1



EXHIBIT “F” (CONT.)
SUBCONTRACTOR FINGERPRINTING REQUIREMENTS

SUBCONTRACTOR’S CERTIFICATION

The [ ] School District (“District”) entered into a contract for services
with (“Contractor’”) on or about , 20 (“Contract”),
This certification is submitted by , a subcontractor to the Contractor for

purposes of that Contract (“Subcontractor”). Subcontractor hereby certifies to the District’s governing board that it
has completed the criminal background check requirements of Education Code section 45125.1 and that none of its
employees that may come in contact with District pupils have been convicted of a violent felony listed in Penal
Code section 667.5(c) or a serious felony listed in Penal Code section 1192.7(c).

Subcontractor’s Representative:

Date:

SUBCONTRACTOR’S EXEMPTION

The [ ] School District (“District”) entered into a contract for services
with (“Contractor”) on or about , 20 (“Contract”.
Pursuant to Education Code sections 45125.1 and 451252, the District has determined that
. a subcontractor to the Contractor for purposes of that Contract (“Subcontractor”)
is exempt from the criminal background check certification requirements for the Contract because:

The Subcontractor’s employees will have limited contact with District students during the course
of the Contract;

Emergency or exceptional circumstances exist; or

O With respect to Contractors constructing, reconstructing, rehabilitating or repairing a school
facility, as provided in Section 45125.2, the Contractor has agreed to ensure the safety of pupils at
the school facility by the following method(s) specified in Section 45125.2:

O The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with pupils.
O Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an employee of

the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has not been convicted of a
violent or serious felony.

Schoot District Official:

Date:

000834.0001822

196535.1



EXHIBIT “G”
CONTRACTOR’S CERTIFICATE REGARDING WORKERS’ COMPENSATION
Labor Code section 3700 in relevant part provides:

Every employer except the State shall secure the payment of compensation in one or more of the following
ways:

(a) By being insured against liability to pay compensation in one or more insurers duly authorized to
write compensation insurance in this State.

(b) By securing from the Director of Industrial Relations a certificate of consent to self-insure, either
as an individual employee or as one employer in a group of employers, which may be given upon furnishing proof
satisfactory to the Director of Industrial Relations of ability to self-insure and to pay any compensation that may
become due to his employees.

1 am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be
insured against liability for workers’ compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions
of that code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this
Construction Services Agreenient.

Contractor

Title

Date

(In accordance with article 5 (commencing at section 1860), chapter 1, part 7, division 2 of the Labor Code,
the above certificate must be signed and filed with the awarding body prior to performing any work under this
Construction Services Agreement.)

000834.0001822

196535.1



EXHIBIT “H”

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE CERTIFICATION

This Drug-Free Workplace Certification form is required from all successful bidders pursuant to the
requirements mandated by Government Code section 8350 et seq., the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990. The
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 requires that every person or organization awarded a contract or grant for the
procurement of any property or service from any State agency must certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace
by performing certain specified acts. In addition, the Act provides that each contract or grant awarded by a State
agency may be subject to suspension of payments or termination of the contract or grant, and the Contractor or
grantee may be subject to debarment from future contracting, if the contracting agency determines that specified acts
have occurred.

Pursuant to Government Code section 8355, every person or organization awarded a contract or grant from
a State agency shall certify that it will provide a drug-free workplace by doing all of the following:

1. Publishing a statement, notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the person’s or organization’s workplace,
and specifying actions which will be taken against employees for violations of the prohibition.

2 Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about all of the following:
a. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

b. The person’s or organization’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

c. The availability of drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee-assistance programs; and
d. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations;

3. Requiring that each employee engaged in the performance of the contract or grant be given a copy
of the statement required by subdivision (a) and that, as a condition of employment on the contract or grant, the
employee agrees to abide by the terms of the statement.

1, the undersigned, agree to fulfill the terms and requirements of Government Code section 8355 listed
above and will (a) publish a statement notifying employees concerning the prohibition of controlled substance at the
workplace, (b) establish a drug-free awareness program, and (c) require each employee engaged in the performance
of the contact be given a copy of the statement required by section 8355(a) and require such employee agree to abide
by the terms of that statement.

I also understand that if the District determines that I have either (a) made a false certification herein, or (b)
violated this certification by failing to carry out the requirements of Section 8355, that the contract awarded herein is
subject to termination, suspension of payments, or both. I further understand that, should I violate the terms of the
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990, I may be subject to debarment in accordance with the requirements of Section
8350 et seq.

I acknowledge that I am aware of the provisions of Government Code section 8350 et seq. and hereby
certify that I will adhere to the requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990.

DATE:

CONTRACTOR

By:

Signature

000834.0001822

196535.1



EXHIBIT “I”

CONDUCT RULES FOR CONTRACTORS

Each contractor/subcontractor, when performing work on [ ] School District
property, in addition to complying with the provisions of the Construction Services Agreement, shall adhere to the
following rules of conduct:

1.
2.

3.

o0

10.

11.
12.

Professional and courteous conduct is expected and will be displayed at all times.

Interaction with students, staff, and/or other visitors is prohibited with the exception of designated
administrators.

The use of profanity and/or disparaging language will not be tolerated.

All contractors/subcontractors shall wear a means of identification on site when school is in session which
must be approved by the District prior to commencement of work.

All contractors/subcontractors shall remain in the vicinity of his/her work and will not stray to other areas
of the property not involved in the Project, including student and staff toilet facilities.

Pursuant to Government Code section 8350 et seq., the [ ] School District
is a drug-free workplace. This policy shall be strictly enforced.

Alcoholic beverages are prohibited from being consumed or brought on any District property.

The use of any tobacco products on District property is strictly prohibited.

Any lewd, obscene or otherwise indecent acts, words, or behavior by any contractor/subcontractor shall not
be tolerated.

All contractors/subcontractors shall conform to a dress code whereby:

A No clothing that contains violent, suggestive, derogatory, obscene, or racially-biased material may
be worn.

B. Garments, accessories or personal grooming artifacts with slogans, graphics, or pictures promoting
drugs, alcohol, tobacco, or any other controlled substances which are prohibited to minors will not
be allowed.

No firearms are allowed on campuses/District property.
All contractors/subcontractors shall comply with Education Code section 45125 et seq. with respect to all
fingerprinting requirements.

Non-compliance with any of the above-stated rules of conduct by any contractor/subcontractor may be sufficient
grounds for immediate removal from the job site and termination of the contract.

I acknowledge that I am aware of the above-stated rules of conduct and hereby certify that all of my Company’s
employees, consultants, suppliers, and/or any subcontractors will adhere to these provisions.

Date

000834.0001822

196535.1

Authorized Signature

Print Name

Company



Division 1 Forms
IMMEDIATE CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVE NO.

PROJECT:

TO:

You are hereby directed to provide the extra work necessary to comply with this ICD.

DESCRIPTION OF CHANGE:

COST (This cost shall not be exceeded):

TIME FOR COMPLETION:

NOTE:

Pursuant to Article 17.4.1.2 An Immediate Change Directive is a written order to the Contractor prepared by the
Architect and signed by the District (and CM if there is a CM on the Project) and the Architect, directing a change in
the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. The
District may by ICD, without invalidating the Contract, direct immediate changes in the Work within the general
scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions within. If applicable, the Contract Sum
and Contract Time will be adjusted accordingly. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROCEED WITH WORK SET FORTH
IN THIS ICD IMMEDIATELY UPON RECEIPT OR THE DISTRICT MAY EITHER HOLD THE
CONTRACTOR IN EITHER PARTIAL DEFAULT PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 12.2 OR TOTAL DEFAULT
PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 19.

Architect

District

000834.0001822

196535.1



CERTIFICATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION

PROJECT:

TO:

As the Architect for the Project described above, the Project has reached Substantial Completion. Substantial
Completion is not reached unless and until each of the following three (3) conditions have been met: (1) all
contractually required items have been installed with the exception of only minor and Incomplete Punch [tems (See
Article 13.16 of the Construction Services Agreement); (2) All Fire/Life Safety Systems have been installed, and are
working and signed off on the DSA Form 152 Inspection Card, all building systems including mechanical, electrical
and plumbing are all functioning; and (3) the Project is fit for occupancy and its intended use

I certify that the Project has reached Substantial Completion as defined above on the following date:

Architect

000834.0001822

196535.1



PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Contractor Pre-Construction Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and
entered into effective , 20 , by and between the Lowell Joint School
District, a California school district organized and operating under the laws of the State of
California (hereinafter “District”) and a licensed California
building contractor (hereinafter “Contractor”) in relation to the
(“Project”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, District conducted a best value selection process through a competitive
request for sealed proposals to select a contractor to provide both pre-construction services and
lease-leaseback construction services pursuant to and in accordance with Education Code section
17406, which resulted in the selection of Contractor as the successful respondent.

WHEREAS, Contractor and District desire to enter into a lease-leaseback arrangement
for construction of the Project pursuant to Education Code section 17406, which arrangement
will be documented by a Lease and Sublease with attachments, including, but not limited to, a
Construction Services Agreement (collectively, “Lease-Leaseback Agreements™).

WHEREAS, Education Code section 17402 states that the District must have adopted
the plans and specifications for the Project after approval of those documents by the Division of
the State Architect (“DSA™), which must occur prior to entering into the Lease-Leaseback
Agreements.

WHEREAS, Contractor desires to provide consulting services to the District with respect
to reviewing the plans and specifications to identify and call out all deficiencies, incongruities
and inconsistencies that may affect constructability of the Project including, but not limited to,
design and specification omissions, incomplete and/or inconsistent plans, details and
specifications, and any lack of coordination, together with all other appropriate, necessary and/or
required services in accordance with the applicable standard of care, excluding only
responsibility for the professional negligence of any licensed engineer or architect in the
preparation of the plans and specifications (“Services” or “Pre-Construction Services”) to
facilitate, and in preparation for, the successful development and construction of the Project.

WHEREAS, this is not an agreement for design-build services.

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it has the knowledge and experience necessary to
perform the Services set forth in this Agreement.

WHEREAS, the parties acknowledge that the Contractor and District anticipate
negotiating and entering into Lease-Leaseback Documents which utilize a guaranteed maximum
sum for complete construction of the Project, which guaranteed maximum sum will include the
fee provided herein, and the parties also acknowledge that the District may opt not to enter into

1

000834.0001822

331468.1



Lease-Leaseback Agreements or otherwise proceed with the Project with or without Contractor,
for any reason or no reasons, in District’s sole and absolute discretion.

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

1.1 DEFINITIONS. As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the
meanings specified herein unless the context requires otherwise.

“Architect” shall mean the Architect of Record for the design of the Project, or any
successor architect of record approved and appointed by the Board for the design of the Project.

“Board” shall mean the Board of Education of the Lowell Joint School District.

“Construction Budget” shall mean the amount of money that the District has allocated
for all construction.

“Construction Cost” shall mean the cost to perform all Work pursuant to the Construction
Documents.

“Consultant(s)” includes an architect, engineer, planner, landscape architect, inspector or
other professional/advisor with whom the District contracts with directly or indirectly to perform
Project-related services.

“Construction Documents” shall mean those documents which are required for the actual
construction of the Project as accepted and approved by DSA and the District’s Governing
Board, including not limited to the complete final working drawings and specifications setting
forth in detail the work to be done and the materials, workmanship, finishes and equipment
required, as well as all related correspondence providing additional direction as to the design
intent, including RFIs, reviewed submittals, CCDs, change orders, etc.

“Contractor” shall mean the licensed Contractor performing the professional services
under this Agreement, as authorized by Government Code sections Government Code 4525,
4526, 4529.5.

“Day” shall mean a calendar day unless otherwise specifically designated.

“District Representative” shall mean the Assistant Superintendent, Facilities &
Operations, or his or her designee, and any successor appointed by District.

“DSA Laws and Regulations” shall mean, in connection with each construction phase,
the laws and regulations relating to the jurisdiction and authority of the Division of the State
Architect in effect at the time construction is approved and the applicable permits, if any, are
obtained, including, without limitation, the Field Act, Education Code sections 17280 et seq.,

2

000834.0001822

331468.1



and the California Disabled Access Law, Government Code sections 4450, et seq., along with all
related laws, regulations rules and policies.

“Educational ~Specifications” shall mean the District’s approved educational
specifications for school facility construction and incorporated herein by this reference and
approved by the Board.

“General Conditions” shall mean the agreed upon overhead, temporary utilities, trailers,
equipment and other on Site and off Site costs borne by the Contractor during Construction
Phase of the Project.

“GMP” shall mean the Guaranteed Maximum Price” as that term is defined by State law
for purposes of the Lease Leaseback delivery method of public school construction.

“Master Project Schedule” shall mean the Project schedule and any Master Project
Schedule presented to, and approved by, the Board at a later date.

“Project” shall mean the pre-construction and construction of the facilities that will comprise
New School Administration Building.

“Project Budget” shall mean the budget for the Project, prepared and revised by the
Program Manager and the Contractor and approved by District during the pre-construction phase
and approved by the Board.

“Program Manager” shall mean the Assistant Superintendent, Facilities & Operations, the
District Board of Education’s approved Program Manager, and any successor appointed by the
District, if any.

“Reimbursable Expenses” shall mean any item of expense approved by the District as a
reimbursable expense in connection with this Agreement and as detailed in Exhibit B.

“Site” shall mean the project site.

“Work” shall mean all the construction, work, labor, materials, machinery, equipment,
tools, supplies, services and other items that the Contractor is to perform or provide in
connection with the Project pursuant to the Construction Documents.

ARTICLE 2
BASIC SERVICES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Contractor represents to the District that: (i) it has previously acted as a Contractor; (ii) it
has the necessary license(s) required by law for the Services set forth in this Agreement, (License
No. ); and (iii) it has expertise and experience in constructability reviews, cost
estimating, value engineering, construction supervision, bid preparation, evaluation of
construction projects, project scheduling, cost benefit analysis, claims review and negotiation,
and general management and administration of construction projects.

3

000834.0001822

331468.1



Contractor covenants to provide its best skill and judgment in furthering the interests of
the District in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Contractor agrees to
furnish efficient business administration and management services and to perform in an
expeditious and economical manner consistent with the interests of the District. Contractor shall
provide all services with respect to the Project as set forth in this Agreement and the attached
exhibits (the “Services”).

It is understood and agreed that time is of the essence in connection with the funding plan
and the design and construction of the Project and Contractor agrees to use its best efforts to
ensure that the Project is submitted to DSA for approval in a timely manner.

Unless directed otherwise by the District, the District’s Representative, and/or the
Program Manager, the Contractor shall direct all communication, correspondence, and other
interactions with the District through the Program Manager, including communication with the
District’s personnel, the Architect, the District’s Consultants, and any other agencies,
organizations, or outside entities.

2.1 BASIC SERVICES. The Basic Services shall include Project design review and
evaluation, planning for construction mobilization and supervision, Construction Cost estimating
and analysis, Project scheduling, and cost-benefit analysis, including, but not limited to, the tasks
identified below.

2.1.1 Contractor shall communicate and coordinate with the District and the
Architect to ascertain the requirements of the Project and shall arrive at a mutual
understanding of such requirements with the District.

2.1.2 Contractor shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the District’s
schedule and Construction Budget, each in terms of the other.

2.1.3 The Architect’s agreement with the District may include numerous phases
of services described in such agreement. During the Architect’s services, Contractor shall
coordinate with the Architect as necessary to deliver the Services and support the
schematic design, design development, construction documents, DSA submittal
development and approval, and development of proposed guaranteed maximum price
(“GMP”).

2.1.4 Contractor shall perform the Pre-Construction Services as defined in the
Recitals and further detailed in this Article 2 in accordance with the applicable standard
of care for a licensed contractor, excluding only responsibility for the professional
negligence of any licensed engineer or architect in the preparation of the plans and
specifications:

(1) Perform an ongoing review of the Architect’s programming plan including
the size of space, proposed finishes, ceiling heights, building height, exterior
finishes, circulation spaces, any necessary ancillary spaces, and any anticipated

4

000834.0001822

331468.1



site work. Contractor shall submit to the Program Manager, at each document
review phase, an analysis of the Architect’s program in comparison to the
District’s approved Educational Specifications, including quantified cost and time
impacts associated with each variance;

2) Perform an ongoing analyses and review of the Construction Documents
during their development and advise and make recommendations on proposed
Site use and improvements, facility improvements, selection of materials, building
systems and equipment, constructability reviews, value engineering and related
quality assurance/quality control consulting, scheduling, and methods of Project
delivery.

3) Contractor shall advise and provide recommendations on relative
feasibility of construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time
requirements for procurement, installation and construction, and factors related to
Construction Cost and scheduling including, but not limited to, costs of
alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, and possible economies;

4 Regularly revise and update a Project Scope of Work document in
coordination with the Architect to:

(1) Identify, quantify, and delineate the trade-specific scopes of work,
how they are separate from each other, and where coordination is required
to deliver a complete system for all components of the Project Scope of
Work;

(i1) Identify potential scope gaps, or scope overlaps between trades and
present such findings to the Architect and the Program Manager in a
timely manner for review and consideration;

(ili)  Identify long lead procurement items and approval activities
required for each trade’s scope of work;

(iv)  Identify submittal requirements, agency approvals, permit
requirements, licensing requirements, and any other necessary items that
are required for timely completion of each trade’s scope of work; and

(v) Ensure that all Construction Documents submitted to DSA shall be
constructible by a competent general building contractor duly licensed by
the State of California, without need for any Requests for Information,
Supplemental Instructions, Change Orders or similar inquiries or changes
in order to complete construction of the full Scope of Work within a
Construction Cost, including all contingencies and allowances, not to
exceed 90% of the Construction Budget and to form the basis of the
Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Project.

(5) Coordinate actively with the Architect to provide trade coordination input
into the design process to ensure that all Construction Documents are fully
5

000834,0001822
331468.1



000834.0001822
331468.1

coordinated and that all clashes and inconsistencies are identified and remedied
through, or to the equivalent extent of Building Information Management clash
detection analysis;

(6) Perform ongoing and accurate Construction Cost estimating to confirm
that cost to perform the Work does not exceed the Construction Budget, including
regular reconciliation reports between Architect’s and Contractor’s cost estimates,
including square foot pricing at schematics, detailed line item quantities and costs
at conceptual design, and regular cost estimate updates at design development,
construction documents, DSA submittal, and further phases as needed,

@) Prepare an ongoing and accurate, and periodically update, Master Project
Schedule for the Architect’s review and the District’s acceptance showing major
construction milestones including but not limited to: start of construction,
mobilization, demolition, abatement, site work, foundations, structure,
mechanical/electrical/plumbing/fire sprinkler (MEPF) systems, building envelope,
exterior finishes, interior finishes, landscaping/hardscaping, and Project
completion. The Master Project Schedule must include the following information:
detailed work activities properly sequenced for trade coordination planning as
needed to ensure that the Project can be completed within the allotted construction
schedule, long lead items are identified, curing times are identified, procurement
schedule requirements are defined, submittal schedule requirements are defined,
and other timeline and schedule planning as necessary to ensure that the Project
can be constructed within the allotted timeframe. Contractor coordinate and
collaborate with the Architect as necessary to prepare, and shall prepare
accordingly the portion of the preliminary Project schedule relating to the
performance of the Architect’s services in accordance with the Architect’s
agreement(s) with the District. In the Master Project Schedule, Contractor shall
coordinate and integrate Contractor’s Services, the Architect’s services, the
construction of the Project, the District’s responsibilities, inspection requirements,
document review periods, and all other activities required for Project completion,
highlighting critical and long-lead-time items;

(8) Develop a list of recommended contingencies, allowances, and estimated
escalation;

9 Develop proposed General Conditions and all proposed markups including
but not limited to: fee, insurance, and bonding. Develop Site logistics and safety
plan showing laydown areas, construction traffic flow and construction personnel
parking;

(10) Develop a list of potential subcontractors and confirm subcontractors that
must be prequalified under Public Contract Code section 20111.6 are
prequalified;

(11) Develop proposed GMP with full detail and notes, all contingencies and
allowances, and any approved alternates and associated pricing; and

6



000834.0001822
331468.1

(12) Confirm the Construction Documents comply with applicable DSA Laws
and Regulations.

2.1.5 Further, Contractor shall provide ongoing advice to the District and the

Architect in a team effort to assure that the Project is delivered on time and on budget. To
provide such ongoing support and consulting, the Contractor shall:

(1) Participate in Project progress meetings, as scheduled by the Program
Manager, with Architect and Program Manager to provide ongoing updates of
status of items set forth in 2.1.4 above, and to discuss any and all issues that arise
that may affect the Project;

2) Prepare a monthly progress report and provide weekly updates as needed
to include, but not be limited to, the following information:

1) Status of all required deliverables in progress, and required within
4 weeks of date of report;

(ii) Design intent and scope questions;

(iii)  Programming status;

(iv)  Coordination reviews;

v) Regulatory and agency review updates;

(vi)  Progress on any required studies and deliverables;
(vil)  Contract administration;

(viii) Budget and value engineering; and

(ix)  Schedule status;

3) Provide support to the Program Manager as requested and or required to
provide accurate and complete monthly updates to the Board and the Citizen’s
Bond Oversight Committee, including, but not limited to: (i) attending meetings
with Program Manager, (ii) preparing reports and presentations to demonstrate
Project progress, (iii) coordinating with Architect and Consultants to ensure
complete and accurate information is provided at all times to the Board and
Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee.

2.1.6 Following the District’s approval of each phase of the development of

Construction Documents, Contractor shall update and submit the latest estimate of the
Construction Cost and the Master Project Schedule, and all other phase deliverables.

ADDITIONAL SERVICES

Services in addition to those set forth in this Agreement will require written request or

7



pre-authorization in writing by the District following specific approval of such services by the
Board. It is understood and agreed that Contractor shall not perform any services in addition to
those set forth in this Agreement unless and until Contractor receives specific written approval
for such additional services from the Board. It is understood and agreed that if Contractor
performs services in addition to those set forth in this Agreement without receiving prior written
approval from the Board, Contractor shall not be paid for such services.

23 TIME

2.3.1 Contractor shall perform the Services set forth in this Agreement as
expeditiously as is consistent with reasonable skill and care and the orderly progress of
the Project. Time is of the essence in connection with the Project and with all of
Contractor’s Services. All Services in this Agreement shall be completed on or before
the project completion date to be established when project plans are DSA approved.

2.3.2 Contractor shall be entitled to an extension of time for the time of
completion for delay which may arise due to an act of God, such as an earthquake, flood
or fire, or an act of a public enemy or act of war, if such act results in delays on any
approvals necessary for completion of the Project, but Contractor shall have no claim for
any other compensation for such delay.

2.3.3 Should the schedule for the construction of the Project be extended due to an
added scope of work as directed by the District and approved by the Board or an
extension of the schedule related to governmental agency approvals necessary for
completion of the Project, the time for performance under this Agreement shall be
extended and Contractor may be compensated for this extension as mutually agreed by
the parties.

ARTICLE 3
THE DISTRICT’S RESPONSIBILITIES

3.1 The District shall provide all information actually known to District, without
obligation or duty to undertake any investigation, research, inspection, inquiry, regarding the
requirements of the Project including the District’s objectives, constraints and criteria.

3.2 The District shall designate a District Representative to act on the District’s behalf
with respect to the Project. The District, or the District Representative, if authorized, shall render
decisions promptly to avoid unreasonable delay in the progress of Contractor’s Services.

33 The District shall furnish tests, inspections and reports as required by law or the
Construction Documents.

3.4  If the District observes or otherwise becomes aware of any fault or defect in the
Project, or nonconformance with the Construction Documents, prompt notice thereof shall be
given by the District to Contractor. District has no obligation or duty to undertake any
investigation, research, inspection, inquiry or other steps to discover any fault or defect in the

8

000834,0001822

331468.1



Project, or nonconformance with the Construction Documents, but only the obligation to inform
Contractor of any specific fault, defect or non-conformance of which the District actually
becomes aware.

3.5  The District reserves all rights regarding the Project and any development,
progress or Work thereon, including the right to cease any or all Work on or related to the
Project, the right to perform Work related to the Project with the District’s own forces and/or
whether to award any contracts to any person or entity in connection with the Project.
Contractor understands and acknowledges that this Agreement contains no promise to enter into
or negotiate any further agreement, Work or engagement with or for District by and between the
District and Contractor.

3.6 The District shall retain the Architect whose services, duties and responsibilities
are described in the agreement between the District and the Architect. The District-Architect
agreement shall be furnished to Contractor upon request.

ARTICLE 4
CONSTRUCTION COST

4.1 Construction Cost shall not include the compensation of Contractor for the
Services performed under this Agreement, nor all services of the Architect and Consultant, the
cost of land, rights-of-way and other costs that are the responsibility of the District.

4.2 Contractor shall consult with the Architect and the District to suggest reasonable
adjustments in the scope of the Project, and to suggest revisions in the Construction Documents
to adjust the Construction Costs so that it does not exceed the allowable Construction Budget
indicated in the attached Exhibit “A”.

43 Contractor shall provide for the District’s review and acceptance, a monthly
report showing the status of the Project. With the District’s assistance, and in accordance with
District procedures, Contractor shall provide all construction related Board agenda items.
Examples: change orders, notices to proceed, notice of completion, use of contingencies and
allowances, etc.

ARTICLE 5
BASIS OF COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT

5.1 COMPENSATION AMOUNT. The Contractor shall perform the Services as set
forth in this Agreement for a fee not to exceed §$ (the “Pre-construction Services
Fee”) which shall otherwise be invoiced and paid in accordance with this Article. In any event
that Contractor invoices the Pre-construction Services Fee prior to completion of all Services
required of Contractor herein, Contractor shall continue to perform all Services required herein
through completion for the Pre-construction Services Fee received as good and sufficient
consideration of all Services required of Contractor herein.

9

000834.0001822

331468.1



Reimbursable expenses, other than Approved Charges, as designated in Exhibit “B,” are
included in the Pre-construction Services Fee. Approved Charges, as designated in Exhibit “B,”
shall be reimbursed by the District as described in this Article 5.

5.2 METHOD OF PAYMENT. Contractor shall submit for the District’s approval a
proposed Schedule of Values (“SOV”) within 14 Days of receipt of executed Agreement,
indicating the Contractor’s distribution of the Pre-construction Services Fee among the various
Services for use in determining the billable amounts to be invoiced by the Contractor to the
District. The District approval of the SOV shall not be unreasonably withheld.

Contractor shall allocate in the SOV a minimum of 5% of Pre-construction Services Fee
to the DSA approval of the Project, and 5% of the Pre-construction Services Fee to the
completion of Construction Documents review/preparation of the proposed GMP.

53  INVOICING FOR SERVICES. Following completion of the Services applicable
to each phase set forth in the SOV, or agreement by the District to consider an interim invoice,
Contractor shall submit an invoice in form and substance satisfactory to the District in an amount
not to exceed the amount specified as the portion of the Pre-construction Services Fee to be paid
for that phase set forth in the SOV for the Services identified in the invoice.

Contractor shall identify all Reimbursable Expenses or charges included in the invoice or
request for payment as separate from Pre-construction Services Fee line items, and provide a
cumulative total of Reimbursable Expenses billed to date, current reimbursable amount billed,
and remaining amount for Reimbursable Expenses as provided for in this Agreement. All
Reimbursable Expenses shall be identified using the categories agreed upon by the parties.
Requests for Reimbursable Expenses shall be limited to the categories of charges listed in
Exhibit “B”, and any other categories of charges agreed to at a later date by the Board, and must
be within the total amount allowable per this Agreement. A request for reimbursement of a
reimbursable direct charge (General Conditions) is limited to the categories of Approved
Charges listed in Exhibit “B”, and any other categories of charges agreed to at a later date by the
Board.

Each invoice or request for payment shall also be accompanied by a certificate from
Contractor to the effect that invoice or request for payment is a true and accurate reflection of the
Services performed by Contractor and that the items for which compensation is requested have
not been previously paid for or denied compensation by the District. Contractor shall use the
Invoice Approval Form per attached Exhibit “E”.

54  TIMING OF PAYMENT. District shall pay Contractor for all undisputed
amounts, which are approved by the District pursuant to this Agreement no later than thirty (30)
calendar days from the date of receipt by the District of an approved invoice from Contractor.

ARTICLE 6
TERMINATION, ABANDONMENT OR SUSPENSION OF WORK

6.1 TERMINATION OF PRE-CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
10

000834.0001822

331468.1



6.1.1 The District may terminate all or any portion of this Agreement or the
Services for cause in the event Contractor fails to promptly and efficiently perform the
Services or otherwise fails to comply with the terms of this Agreement. The termination
shall be effective if Contractor fails to fully cure such default within ten (10) Days
following issuance of written notice thereof by the District. The District in its sole
discretion may allow the Contractor more than ten (10) Days to fully cure such defauit.
In the event of termination due to a breach of this Agreement by Contractor, the
compensation due Contractor upon termination shall be reduced by the amount of
damages sustained by the District due to such breach.

In the event a termination for cause is determined to have been made wrongfully
or without cause, then the termination shall be treated as a termination for convenience in
accordance with Article 6.1.2 below, and Contractor shall have no greater rights than it
would have had if a termination for convenience had been effected in the first instance.
No other loss, cost, damage, expense or liability may be claimed, requested or recovered
by Contractor.

6.1.2 District shall also have the right in its absolute discretion, without cause,
to terminate this Agreement in the event the District is not satisfied with the working
relationship with Contractor following ten (10) Days prior written notice from District to
Contractor. In the event that District chooses to terminate this Agreement for
convenience, without cause, Contractor shall be compensated for all approved Services
performed and all Approved Charges incurred pursuant to this Agreement supported by
documentary evidence, including payroll records, and expense reports up until the date of
the termination for convenience plus any sums due the Contractor for approved extra
services. In addition to the compensation described above, the Contractor will receive a
payment equal the payment of: (1) 3% of the Pre-construction Services Fee incurred to
date if less than 50% of the Pre-construction Services Fee has been paid; or (2) 3% of the
remaining Pre-construction Services Fee if more than 50% of the Pre-construction
Services Fee has been paid. This payment is agreed to compensate Contractor for any
damages resulting from early termination and is consideration for entry into this
termination for convenience clause.

6.2 CONTINUANCE OF WORK

In the event of a dispute between the parties as to performance of the Services by

Contractor or the interpretation of this Agreement, or payment or nonpayment for Services
performed or not performed, the parties shall attempt to resolve the dispute. The District and
Contractor agree to seek, in good faith, a timely and equitable resolution of a dispute. All efforts
will be made by both the District and Contractor to avoid any legal proceedings arising from a
dispute.

However, pending resolution of a dispute, Contractor agrees to continue the Services

diligently to completion and the District agrees to continue paying Contractor all undisputed
compensation in accordance with Article 5. If the dispute is not resolved, Contractor agrees it
shall neither terminate the Agreement nor stop the progress of its Services, but Contractor’s sole

000834.0001822
331468.1

11



remedy shall be to submit such controversy to determination by a court having competent
jurisdiction of the dispute.

6.3 ABANDONMENT OF THE PROJECT

The District has the absolute discretion to suspend or abandon all or any portion of the
Work on the Project and may do so upon fourteen (14) Days’ written notice to Contractor. Upon
notice of suspension or abandonment, Contractor shall immediately discontinue any further
action on the Project or the abandoned portion of the Project, as applicable. If the entire Work to
be performed on the Project is abandoned, the parties shall each be relieved of the remaining
executory obligation of the Agreement, as it relates to the Project, but shall not be relieved of any
obligations arising prior to said abandonment.

6.4 COMPENSATION IN THE EVENT OF TERMINATION. ABANDONMENT
OR SUSPENSION

In the event the District terminates this Agreement for cause, abandons or suspends the
Work on the Project, there shall be due and payable within thirty (30) Days following such
termination, abandonment or suspension a sum of money sufficient to increase the total amount
paid to Contractor to an amount which bears the same proportion to the Pre-construction
Services Fee as the amount of Services performed or provided by Contractor prior to the time of
such termination, suspension or abandonment of this Agreement bears to the entire Services
Contractor is required to perform pursuant to this Agreement.

6.5 DELIVERY/OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS

Upon termination, abandonment or suspension, Contractor shall deliver to the District all
documents and materials related to the Project. It is agreed that the District is the sole owner of
all documents, schedules and materials concerning the Project.

ARTICLE 7
INDEMNIFICATION

7.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall indemnify, defend and
save and hold the District, its Board, officers, employees, agents and authorized volunteers (the
“Indemnitees”) harmless from any and all liability arising out of:

7.1.1 Any and all claims under workers’ compensation acts and other employee
benefit acts with respect to Contractor’s employees arising out of Contractor’s
performance of Services under this Agreement;

7.1.2 Liability for damages for: (1) death or bodily injury to person; (2) injury to,
loss or theft of property; (3) any failure or alleged failure to comply with any provision of
law or (4) any other loss, damage or expense arising under either (1), (2), or (3) above,
sustained by the Indemnitees, or any person, firm or corporation employed by the
Contractor or the Indemnitees upon or in connection with this Agreement or the Project,

12

000834.0001822

331468.1



except for liability resulting from the sole or active negligence, or willful misconduct of
the Indemnitees. The Contractor, at its own expense, cost, and risk, shall defend any and
all claims, actions, suits, or other proceedings that may be brought or instituted against
the Indemnitees, on any such claim or liability, and shall pay or satisfy any judgment that
may be rendered against the Indemnitees in any action, suit or other proceedings as a
result thereof; and

7.1.3 Any loss, injury to or death of persons or damage to property caused by
any act, neglect, default or omission of the Contractor, or any person, firm or corporation
employed by the Contractor, either directly or by independent contract, including all
damages due to loss or theft, sustained by any person, firm or corporation including the
Indemnitees, arising out of, or in any way connected with the Services under this
Agreement, including injury or damage either on or off District property; but not for any
loss, injury, death or damages caused by sole or active negligence, or willful misconduct
of the Indemnitees.

7.2 Contractor’s obligation to defend and indemnify as outlined above will be
continuing and shall survive the term of this Agreement or any earlier termination of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 8
SUCCESSORS, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Agreement is binding upon and inures to the benefit of the successors, executors,
administrators, and assigns of each party to this Agreement, provided, however, that Contractor
shall not assign or transfer by operation of law or otherwise any or all rights, burdens, duties, or
obligations without prior written consent of the District. Any attempted assignment without such
consent shall be invalid.

ARTICLE 9
APPLICABLE LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement, however, in the event
that the District receives any State funding for the Project from the State Allocation Board, this
Agreement shall also be governed by any applicable laws and/or regulations relating to such
State funding from the State Allocation Board (collectively the “Applicable Law”). To the extent
that there is any inconsistency between this Agreement and the Applicable Law, or this
Agreement omits any requirement of the Applicable Law, the language of the Applicable Law, in
effect on the date of the execution of this Agreement, shall prevail.

ARTICLE 10
CONTRACTOR NOT AN OFFICER OR EMPLOYEE OF DISTRICT

While engaged in carrying out and complying with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, Contractor is an independent construction management consultant and not an officer
or employee of the District.

13

000834.0001822

331468.1



ARTICLE 11
INSURANCE

11.1  Without in any way affecting the indemnity provided in or by Article 7, before

commencement of any Services, Contractor shall procure and maintain at its own cost and
expense for the duration of the Services, and longer as required by the District against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
Services, the types and amounts of insurance set forth herein.

112 Minimum Limits of Insurance. Contractor shall procure and maintain the types

and amounts of coverage as follows:

000834.0001822
331468.1

11.2.1 35.4.2 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance with a combined
single limit per occurrence of not less than $2,000,000.00 or Commercial General
Liability Insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily
injury, personal injury and property damage/$2,000,000 annual aggregate.

11.2.2 Automobile Liability Insurance (Insurance Services Office Form Number
CA 0001 covering Automobile Liability, Code 1 (any auto)). Minimum of $1,000,000
limit each accident.

11.2.3 Workers’ Compensation Insurance as required by the State of California
(Division IV of the California Labor Code, and any amendatory acts or provisions
thereto), but not less than $1,000,000.

11.2.4 Employer’s Liability Insurance in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per
accident for bodily injury or disease.

11.3  Minimum Scope of Insurance.

11.3.1 Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on Insurance
Services Office Form CG 0001 (or a substitute form providing coverage at least as broad)
and shall cover liability arising from bodily injury and property damage (broad form
property damage), premises, operations, independent contractors, products-completed
operations, personal injury and advertising injury liability (including the tort liability of
another assumed in a business contract), contractual liability with respect to this
Agreement, explosion, collapse and underground hazards.

11.3.2 Automobile Insurance shall cover liability arising out of any automobiles
(including owned, hired and non-owned automobiles). Coverage shall be written on
Insurance Services Office form CA 0001, or a substitute form providing liability
coverage at least as broad. The policy may require deductibles acceptable to the Director
of Risk Management of the District, but not self-insured retention without written
approval from District.

14



shall:

000834.0001822
331468.1

11.3.3 If the Professional Liability Insurance policy is written on a claims made
basis, it shall be maintained continuously for a period of no less than three (3) years after
final completion of the Project to which it applies. The “retro date” must be shown and
must be before the date of this Agreement.

11.4 Content and Endorsements: Each policy must contain, or be endorsed to contain, the
following provisions:

11.4.1 The Commercial General Liability policy shall name District, the Board
and each member thereof, its officers, employees, agents, and designated volunteers as
named additional insureds (“Additional Insureds™). The coverage shall contain no special
limitations on the scope of protection afforded to the Additional Insureds. Coverage shall
be primary and not contributory with respect to the Additional Insureds. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by the Additional Insureds shall be in excess of Contractor’s
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

11.4.2 On each policy of insurance, the insurer shall agree to waive all rights of
subrogation against the District, the Board and each member thereof, its officers,
employees, agents, and volunteers.

11.4.3 Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be endorsed to
state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled except after thirty
(30) Days prior written notice has been given to the District by the carrier. In the case of
cancellation for non-payment, ten (10) Days notice is acceptable. Qualified statements
such as carrier “will endeavor” or that “failure to mail such notice shall impose no
obligation and liability upon the company” shall not be acceptable.

11.4.4 The insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer’s liability.

11.5 General Insurance Matters: All insurance coverage required under this Agreement

11.5.1 Be issued by insurance companies admitted to do business in the State of
California, or permitted to do business under the Surplus Line Law of the State of
California, with a financial rating of at least an A:VII as rated in the most recent edition
of Best’s Insurance Reports. Contractor shall notify District in writing if any of its
insurer(s) have an A .M. Best rating of less than A:VII. At the option of District, either 1)
District can accept the lower rating; or 2) Contractor shall be required to procure
insurance from another insurer.

11.5.2 Except for professional liability policies, all insurance required by this
Article shall contain standard separation of insureds provisions. In addition, such
insurance shall not contain any special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to
the District, its Board, its directors, officials, officers, employees and agents.

15



11.5.3 Contractor shall promptly notify the District of any materials change in the
coverage, scope, or amount of any policy.

11.5.4 Except for professional liability policies for which primary coverage is not
available, all such insurance shall be primary insurance. Any insurance of the District
shall be excess coverage for benefit of the District only and non-contributory.

11.5.5 At all times while this Agreement remains in effect, Contractor shall
maintain on file with the District valid and up to date certificates of insurance showing
that the required insurance coverage is in effect in not less than the required amounts. If
not contained on the face of the policy, endorsements signed by a person authorized by
the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf, shall be separately provided. Each policy
endorsement, copy, or a certificate of the policy executed by the insurance company, and
evidence of payment of premiums for each policy shall be deposited with the District
within twenty-one (21) Days of execution of this Agreement and prior to the
commencement of Services, and on renewal of the policy, not less than twenty (20) Days
before the expiration of the term of the policy.

11.5.6 If Contractor fails to provide or maintain the required insurance, the
District may, at its sole and absolute discretion, obtain such insurance at the Contractor’s
expense and deduct the premium from any fees or Reimbursable Expenses subsequently
invoiced by Contractor.

11.5.7 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions in excess of $100,000 must be
declared to the District and must be reduced to a level deemed acceptable by the District
in writing. Contractor agrees that, at the option of the District, it will either: (A) arrange
for the insurer to reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions with
respect to the District, its directors, officials, officers, employees and agents; or (B)
procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation costs, claims and
administrative and defense expenses.

ARTICLE 12
EXTENT OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the District and

Contractor and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or
oral. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the District and
Contractor.

Contractor, in the performance of this Agreement, shall be and act as an independent

construction management consultant. Contractor understands and agrees that Contractor and all
of Contractor’s employees, Contractor, subconsultants or other subcontractors shall not be
considered officers, employees or agents of the District, and are not entitled to benefits of any
kind or nature normally provided employees of the District and/or to which District’s employees
are normally entitled, including, but not limited to, State Unemployment Compensation or

000834.0001822
331468.1

16



Workers” Compensation insurance. Contractor assumes full responsibility for the acts and/or
omissions of Contractor’s employees, agents, Contractor or subconsultants as they relate to the
services to be provided under this Agreement. Contractor assumes full responsibility for
payment of all federal, state and local taxes, and all contributions, including all employment
benefits, unemployment insurance, social security and income taxes for Contractor’s employees,
Contractor, subconsultants or other subcontractors.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a
cause of action in favor of any third party against either the District or Contractor.

District and Contractor, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, officers, successors,
assigns and legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement with respect to the terms of
this Agreement. Contractor shall not assign this Agreement without the express, written consent
of District, which may be withheld by District for any reason or no reason, in District’s absolute
discretion.

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. Venue for any
action or proceeding shall rest in [Orange]. In the event of any claim or civil action between
District and Contractor to enforce this Agreement, each party will bear its own attorneys’ fees.

While it is the intent of the parties that, if the Project continues, they will engage in good
faith efforts to negotiate a further, separate and distinct set of agreements for construction of the
Project, the District retains sole and complete discretion to cease the Project, suspend the Project,
or engage any other person or firm to provide any or all further services related to the Project.
Nothing in this Agreement obligates the District to engage the Contractor, or to attempt to
negotiate with the Contractor to provide Services or Work in any further agreements or capacity,
whatsoever.

The parties, through their authorized representatives, have executed this Agreement on
the day and year first written above.

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

17

000834.0001822

331468.1



CONTRACTOR:

Name:

Title:

000834,0001822
331468.1

18

DISTRICT:

Lowell Joint School District

Name:

Title:




EXHIBIT “A”

PROJECT BUDGET

19

000834.0001822
331468.1



EXHIBIT “B”

BASIS OF COMPENSATION

Pre-construction Services Fee Amount: $ (100%)

Proposed Fee Payout
The pre-construction contractor shall bill the District by an hourly basis. The fees invoiced shall

not exceed the following percentages of the not to exceed amount, by phase.

Program Feasibility & Constructability Review: 10%
Schematic Design Review: 10%
Design Development Review: 20%
Construction Document Review: 30%
DSA Submittal: 15%
DSA Approval: 5%
Proposed GMP Submittal: 5%
Final GMP Approval: 5%
Pre-construction Services Fee 100%
Approved Charges*:

« Agency plan check fees, utility fees, permit fees, and other fees or costs associated with
carrying out required approvals and permitting processes, if paid on behalf of the District.
- Expenses incurred on behalf of the District as directed in writing.

*Note: Approved Charges not explicitly listed above must be approved in writing by the District
prior to invoicing for reimbursement.

Approved Hourly Rates for Services**:

**Note: Additional services must be approved in writing by the District prior to proceeding with
Work, or invoice for Services.

20

000834.0001822

331468.1



EXHIBIT “C”

MASTER PROJECT SCHEDULE

21

000834.0001822
331468.1



EXHIBIT “D”

BACKGROUND CHECK AND FINGERPRINTING PROCEDURES

Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.1, Contractor shall either conduct criminal
background checks of all employees of Contractor assigned to the Project Site, and shall certify
that no employees who have been convicted of serious or violent felonies, as specified in
Education Code Section 45125.1, will have contact with pupils, by utilizing the Certification
Regarding Background Checks and the corresponding Attachment “A” as found in the Contract
Documents or shall be separated by a physical barrier from students.

If it is determined that Contractor must provide certification of employees, as part of such
certification, Contractor must provide the Owner with a list of all employees providing services
pursuant to this Agreement, and designate which sites such employees will be assigned. In
performing the services set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall not utilize any employees
who are not included on the above-referenced list.

At Owner’s sole discretion, Owner may make a finding, as authorized under Education Code
section 45125.1, that Contractor’s employees will have only “limited contact” with pupils.
Contractor’s failure to comply with this law shall be considered a material breach of this
Agreement upon where this Agreement may be terminated, at Owner’s sole discretion, without
any further compensation to Contractor.

Contractor shall complete the form on the following page certifying compliance with these
provisions:

22

000834.0001822

331468.1



CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING BACKGROUND CHECKS

certifies that it has performed one of the following:

[Name of Contractor]

a Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.1, Contractor has conducted criminal
background checks, through the California Department of Justice, of all employees
providing services to the Lowell Joint School District, pursuant to the Agreement dated

, and that none have been convicted of serious or violent

felonies, as specified in Penal Code sections 1192.7(c) and 667.5(c), respectively.

As further required by Education Code section 45125.1, attached hereto as Attachment “A” is a
list of the names of the employees of the undersigned who may come in contact with pupils.

OR

(] Pursuant to Education Code section 45125.2, Contractor will ensure the safety of pupils
by one or more of the following methods:

a 1. The installation of a physical barrier at the worksite to limit contact with
pupils.
a 2. Continual supervision and monitoring of all employees of the entity by an

employee of the entity whom the Department of Justice has ascertained has not
been convicted of a violent or serious felony.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the state of California that the
foregoing is true and correct.

Date , 20

[Name of Contractor]

By its:

23

000834.0001822
331468.1



CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING BACKGROUND CHECKS

ATTACHMENT A:

(INSERT NAMES OF EMPLOYEES WHO MAY COME IN CONTACT WITH PUPILS)

24

000834.0001822
3314681



EXHIBIT “E”

INVOICE APPROVAL FORM

25

000834.0001822
331468.1



3 Suburban
 Water Systems

A SouthWest Water Company

1325 N. Grand Avenue
Sulte 100

Covina, CA 91724-4044
Phone 626.543.2500
Fax 626.331.4848

September 27, 2021 WWW.sWwc.com

Mr. David Bennett

Lowell Joint School District
11019 Valley Home Ave.
Whittier, CA 90603

RE: Balance of Funds Required to Construct Water Facilities
10654 Jordan Rd., Whittier; SWS WO #21-4205
Jordan Elementary School

Dear Mr. Bennett,

Suburban Water Systems has performed a competitive bid to construct (1) 6-inch fire hydrant
assembly at the above-referenced address.

The winning bid amount has been adjusted to include estimates for Engineering Inspection,
General Administration, Contingency and tax gross-up costs. Based on the bid amount and
adjustments the estimated project cost is $73,317.38. Suburban has already collected a
deposit from you for $28,324.37. Please submit an additional deposit of $44,993.01 for the
remaining balance of funds required to cover the estimated project cost.

Suburban has included a “tax gross-up” on projects that are nonrefundable Contributions In
Aide of Construction (CIAC). Suburban has recently filed the attached advice letter using
Method 5 to determine the tax factor gross-up factor. If you need additional information follow
the link to a copy of the advice letter.

http://files.swwc.comn/ca/tariff/Advice-Letter-328-W-B.pdf

If the advice letter is approved, beginning January 1, 2018 the income Tax Component (ITC) or
additional fee identified as the “tax gross-up” shall be calculated by multiplying the amount of
the CIAC by the tax gross-up factor of 21.58%

This amount is rendered as a deposit only and is not a quote. The actual cost of this installation
cannot be determined until completion of the project pursuant to the rules and regulations of
the Public Utilities Commission. If the actual cost exceeds the deposit, we will invoice you for the
balance. If the deposit exceeds the actual cost, we will refund you the balance.

The winning bid from Suburban’s Contractor will be valid for 30-days. If Suburban does not
receive the outstanding funds within 30-days of this letter, your project will be put on hold. Also,
if you exceed 30-days the bid will be subject to change orders for increases in the contractor’s
material and labor costs that will increase the cost of the project. At that time Suburban will
issue a revised balance of funds letter reflecting the increase. Suburban will not re-bid the
project at that time. This will delay the completion of your project.



Mr. Bennett
Page 2
September 27, 2021

Please address all correspondence, payments or questions to Laura Sainz at (626) 543-2565.

Regards,
SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS

Jaura ainz

Laura Sainz
Water Service Planner

CC: Hilary Miao
SWS WO #21-4205



10 i i 1 318 1 - e B i b P

BEnats 13 WATER QEMERA MOTHY
LT W R B, ST 8 I W G T
Sl e e e TIPS 1 o s e - O B

- - P -
i - el
O e T R LY T S
RS SR R

T

JORDAN ROAD

LTS e chal

ST

%I:—m—:l-ﬁ
"
S S ST

AL A ST

i

VLT AT

A KOS G- WA L. ALY W DO O WY SN (L BAAL PG A
| P ST § | P A s

& T R
v

e v i I S S— N = 4 cmor
T A s ST - 3 S .

i i T . D bl . LS B O OO
W BT T e 10 CAo L

e B T s el o e B M

,
'El =
il I
B
41 i

AR T LR NN e

w
V. U g T e
e s e o o e i ¢ 5 R R

Tt e
| .5 b T 1 b e LTS TR T AT Ao TR
e ) -

jemEmeLL T3 b G

o e e e N R e

Trmn b

JORDAN ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

HVAC, ROOFING, FIRE ALARM, & (N} MODULAR BUILDINGS

100% CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS

10484 I D, AT € 401

[simapiampitpe et

UTILITY PLAN




i

[

=Rt
)
K}
o

i — s )
-8 /B — | EEmissreETRsE..

« Manning - inferier Design

E ]

E |
RRE o | SESISRSEC B

e ; 3 i s L i 3
o i E] & P e S, ST S it

% o PR Tl o D v LA et g |
Hums L » Bi

et
T ST BTSN

R L e o of D s b e Bl g i
SETERY QiR h& UTLEY EEEET 43 TR

EpEaR ey s s damtias,
R B e

“
()
z
5
=l
YT YTy Y'Y ol YT Yy L3 Y 2
3 v e ‘ 2
3 %
1 3
] g25
= -E
; I E 222 | 9
| : 83| =
1 i g\,,zg =
fl¢ 1 3 .9!! a
f v 553-
S| £
4 [ zi =
E HTE g E
23| §
aesi
3 o o'§
] gy
3 ze
3 3 §
;'
H s
1 L]
| § e e e SO e i e
] ¥ 3 Vet bt [ — .
oy’ 3 . — T p——
! L e TS RS e
| ¢ LR BT ks i s o et o o L
i| f 1 B e st st e § 0 e s e et
HE3 1 e b o B B e 8 A B 0 o e 1 B U
T e e e L 1w e e s g T i e
s o Rt b s ]
: e b o e P 3 )
= o Suburban Water Systeme | Suburban Water Systams 3 g
. - - e Prm— b
! n I &Y FIRE HYDRANT === THRLIST HLOCKS. B 010
- gy 160 x 105

s, i sk ASAALALRS, P NATTTETT Pov A




=" SILVER
CREEK

Building for the Next Generation

Change Order 1

Owner Change Order In House Change Order E
Date: Wednesday, October 13, 2021

Project Name: Jordan ES

Owner: Lowell Joint Unified School District

Silver Creek Industries Inc. proposes to furnish all material and labor to perform the following

at the above stated site for the sum of: 5 221,558.40
Description Of Work: |To match foundation cost per square foot to Centralia Piggyback contract

Total of all Sub Contractor Work: $ 207,889.66

Sub Contractor Markup: 5% S 10,394.48

Sub Total: $ 218,284.14

Total Work by General See Page 2
General Contractor Markup: 15% S -

Sub Total: S -

Total Work to be Completed $ 218,284.14

Sales Tax (60% exclusion) 9.50%

Sub Total S 218,284.14

Bonds not to exceed 1.5% $ 3,274.26

Grand Total: S 221,558.40

This Change Order will Require Additional Days to complete this project and are included in this COR
* Not including days accrued from the date COR is submitted and
returned to originator, signed & approved.

Submitted By: Karen Barzilai Date: 10/13/21
Project Manager
Title
Approved By: Date:
Title

2830 Barrett Ave. Perris, CA 92571 Phone: {951) 943-5393  Fax: (951) 943-2211



Item Total

Subcontractor  Admin $ 41,365.26
Kinder $ 51,195.18
Classrooms $ 115,329.22

$ 207,889.66



B SILVER
j CREEK

Change Order 2

Owner Change Order In House Change Order [__|
Date: Wednesday, October 13, 2021

Project Name: Jordan ES

Owner: Lowell Joint Unified School District

Silver Creek Industries Inc. proposes to furnish all material and labor to perform the following at

the above stated site for the sum of: $ (459,110.40)

Description Of Work: |Credit for foundations, vapor barriers, and gopher slab for admin, kinder, and classroom buildings

Total of all Sub Contractor Work: $ (430,786.21)
Sub Contractor Markup: 5% S (21,539.31)
Sub Total: $ (452,325.52)
Total Work by General See Page 2
General Contractor Markup: 15%  § -
Sub Total: S -
Total Work to be Completed $ (452,325.52)
Sales Tax (60% exclusion) 9.50%
Sub Total S (452,325.52)
Bonds not to exceed 1.5% $ (6,784.88)
Grand Total: S (459,110.40)
This Change Order will Require Additional Days to complete this project and are included in this COR
* Not including days accrued from the date COR is submitted and
returned to originator, signed & approved.
Submitted By: Karen Barzilai Date: 10/13/21
Project Manager
Title
Approved By: Date:
Title

2830 Barrett Ave. Perris, CA 92571 Phone: {951) 943-5393 Fax: (951) 943-2211



ltem
Subcontractor

Admin
Kinder
Classrooms

Quar Total

$  (82,594.00)
$  (105,437.01)
$  (242,755.20)

$ (430,786.21)



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 11/01/2021

FROM 09/22/2021 TO009/36/2021

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER  VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99B0022 HANCOCK PARK & DELONG, INC 10,000.00 5,000.00 4000000013 5850 Conslt/Ind Contractors(NonEmp)

5,000.00 4000000015 5850 Conslt/Ind Contractors(NonEmp)
R99B0027 ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 286,346.00 286,346.00 2100000009 5410 [nsurance-OCIP/OwnerContlinsPrg
R99F0023 COALITION FOR ADEQUATE SCHOOL 435.00 435,00 0100000098 5300 Dues and Memberships
R99F0024  GAMA CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC 2,450.00 2,450.00 0100000093 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0025  F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 382.50 382.50 0100000096 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0026  F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 720.00 720.00 0100000094 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0027  F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 382.50 382,50 0100000094 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0028 PACIFIC CONTRACTORS 111,000.00 111,000.00 1400000012 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0029  A-1 FENCE COMPANY 1,783.00 1,783.00 1400000025 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0030  F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 2,542.00 438.25 0100000096 4300 Materials and Supplies

2,103.75 0100000096 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0031 F.M, THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 2,232.91 389.16 0100000092 4300 Materials and Supplies

1,843.75 0100000092 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0032 F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 2,150.95 995.95 0100000096 4300 Materials and Supplies

1,155.00 0100000096 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0033  TURF STAR, INC. 874.04 106.04 0100000108 4300 Materials and Supplies

768.00 0100000108 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0034  TURF STAR, INC. 1,036.39 342,79 0100000108 4300 Materials and Supplies
693.60 0100000108 5630 Repairs or Maintenance

R99M0038 AMERICAN EXPRESS 1,203.78 1,203.78 0132120008 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0039 AMERICAN EXPRESS 424.02 424.02 0174250030 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0040 AMERICAN EXPRESS 340.66 340.66 0190200005 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0041 AMERICAN EXPRESS 166.23 111.23 0156400008 4300 Materials and Supplies
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 1] Current Date: 10/19/2021
Report ID: PO010 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 10:00:06



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 11/01/2021

FROM 09/22/2021 T009/30/2021

Report ID: PO010

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER (8] DES TION
R99M0041  *** CONTINUED ***
55.00 0156400009 4300 Materials and Supplies

R99M0042 AMERICAN EXPRESS 17.55 17.55 0156400034 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0043 AMERICAN EXPRESS 90.18 90.18 0156400009 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0044 AMERICAN EXPRESS 99.23 99.23 0156400033 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0085  FIRST BUSINESS MACHINES INC. 4,075.23 2,033.54 0100000009 5630 Repairs or Maintenance

2,041.69 0100000068 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99R0088 DATA IMPRESSIONS 133.11 133,11 0100810002 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0089 DATA IMPRESSIONS 133.11 133,11 0100810002 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0090  J&C BOOKS LLC 992.25 992.25 0163000002 4130 Testbooks
RY99R0091 POWER SCHOOL GROUP LLC 3,649.95 3,649.95 0100000071 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
R99R0093  GENERATION GENIUS 125.00 125.00 0130100031 5810 Licenses/Technology
R99R0094 OCDE 75.00 75.00 0156400035 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0095 BRUCE HEYING 435.00 435,00 0105110006 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99R0096 FED EX 26.00 26,00 0100000065 5900 Communications Services
R99R0097  AERIES SOFTWARE 165.38 165.38 0173110003 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0098 NCS PEARSON INC. 1,167.02 1,167.02 0165000035 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0099  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 82,031.00 82,031.00 0100000071 5450 Other Insurance
R99R0100 OCDE 5,000.00 5,000.00 0100000071 5890 Other Services
R99R0101  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 247,672.00 247,672.00 0100000071 5450 Other Insurance
R99R0102  WPS 452.02 452,02 0156400032 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0103  RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS 2,933.25 2,933.25 0156400013 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0104  STUDIES WEEKLY 111,57 111.57 0163000002 4130 Testbooks
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 2 Current Date: 10/19/2021

<Ver. 020703> Current Time: 10:00:06



PO
NUMBER

R99R0105
R99T0020

R99T0021
R99T0022
R99T0023
R99T0024
R99T0025

VYENDOR

LA HABRA MUSIC CENTER
AMPLIFIED IT

NMK CORPORATION
TOOLS4EVER
MONOPRICE INC.
OSI HARDWARE, INC.

HOWARD TECHNOLOGY SOLUTION

Fund 01 Total:
Fund 14 Total:
Fund 21 Total:
Fund 40 Total:

Total Amount of Purchase Orders:

LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 11/01/2021

PO
TOTAL

71.43
7,680.00

515.97
1,652.79
846.65
5,947.99
14,905.54

381,439.66
112,783.00
286,346.00

24,905.54

805,474.20

ACCOUNT
AMOUNT

7143

1,272.00
1,272.00
1,272.00
1,296.,00
1,272.00
1,296.00

515.97
1,652.79
846.65
5,947.99

5,265.54
9,640.00

ACCOUNT
NUMBER
0141270019 4300

0108880033 5810
0108880034 5810
0108880035 5810
0108880036 5810
0108880037 5810
0108880038 5810

0132120023 6400
0108880039 5810
0132120007 4400
0132120023 6400

4000000007 4400
4000000007 5810

FROM 09/22/2021 T(009/30/2021

CCT DESC 10N

Materials and Supplies

Licenses/Technology
Licenses/Technology
Licenses/Technology
Licenses/Technology
Licenses/Technology
Licenses/Technology
Equipment
Licenses/Technology

Non Capitalized Equipment
Equipment

Non Capitalized Equipment
Licenses/Technology



8EIL160 WL JUALIM) I 10)$139Y JO5YD PAePIosUO) 15O0EME  10day
120T/61/01 :3eqIiudiin) adeg ZopuelISH Susled - ZHANVNIIHA :19s()
99'bZ¢ SI M 1202/07/60 HO SINNOW AL LIANNAG AIAVA 15000664 60700000 66
9L'79 SI MW 1202/027/60 HO SNONV-AOVATIN NVAD0d NVLLSIID  #vTe066d 80200000 66
98°'0¢ SI MW 1202/02/60 HO 0£0199-ANI ‘0D dOHSI9 71000664 LOT00000 66
8€'86T SI MW 1202/07/60 HO gS/NITIDS OV NVIV  +000066d 90200000 66
S6'E1SS SI MW 1202/L1/60 HO ¥0128 *ONI ‘ddrdng ANV avad  SS00066A $0T00000 66
$8'69 SI MW 1207/L1/60 HO LAASALAS AAdO0D YOI STOOHOS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A #0700000 66
L9°T6Y SI MW 1207/L1/60 HO  vd400Add ddS WAd0O0D Y04 STOOHIS 40 HONVITIV  0100066A €0700000 66
£6°6SS°1 SI MWW 1207/L1/60 HO LTISALAS A9d00D Y04 STOOHOS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A 70Z00000 66
00°08Z ¥ SI MW 1202/91/60 HO ¥T81TI-€0 ODALIHOYV A1LVLS FHL 40 NOISIAIA ~ 6500066A 10200000 66
99'9¢8°SY SI MW 1202/91/60 HO 176596200181 SINALSAS JALVM NVEINGNS 900006601 00200000 66
€€961°C SI MW 1202/¥1/60 HO HSVYIL AT TVSOdSIa TAVM 01000660 66100000 66
LY 695V SI MWW 1207/%1/60 HO T1'80-80°L ATddNS JTTINMILS TVIIHdNT - 6£00066d 86100000 66
Y8 TEIT SI MW 1202/€1/60 HO 12oNV-AT10 NOILLNLILSNI 0¥d LOddd INOH dHL 65000664 L6100000 66
19°9%1 SI M 1207/€1/60 HO 1ZONV-AT 00 SVD VINJIOAI'TVYD NYFHLNOS  $00006601 96100000 66
SL'TST SI M 1207/€1/60 HOLNAWHSINGNITA NV VIANVS  6L100664 S6100000 66
00°002 SI MW 1207/€1/60 HO ALIDH1 JIONVAT Of AdVIN  0%10066d ¥6100000 66
LILISY SI MW 1207/€1/60 HO  179dGNALJAS "ONI ‘SNOLLVOINNIWINOD NIFNDOT  TIT0066A €6100000 66
06'$86 SI MW 120Z/€1/60 HO SHI'TddNS SEINO0D WIf 8000661 76100000 66
1L°T€ SI M 1202/€1/60 HO LOYSHE ANVINOD TIVM@IVH SHAVLE 07000664 16100000 66
TLSET SI MWW 1207/€1/60 HO €VS0010¥1 ONI “AOIAMAS TIIL STHINVA ~ £2000664 06100000 66
65°0€T SI M 1207/€1/60 HO 79%0010%1 ONI “ADIANAS TAIL STHINVA  £2000664 68100000 66
17 €701 SI MW 120Z/€1/60 HO 08100101 "ONI “ADIAYAS TILL STHINVA  £2000664 88100000 66
9L°979°6 SI MW 1202/€1/60 HO 000-682L00 WLEVJAd ¥ALVM VISVH V140 ALID 1000066011 L8100000 66
£P'8ST°61 SI MWW 1202/€1/60 HO 11001664 SSTIIXT NVORIAINY  £100066A 98100000 66
L8 TOLYT SI M 1202/60/60 HO DOV-AT0l NOSIAE VINGOAITVD NYAHLNOS 00006601 $8100000 66
00°05S°¢ SI M 1207/60/60 HO TT69Y STVINTA LNAAL LITIO  9ETE066A ¥8100000 66
LY'SS SI M 1202/60/60 HO 121080 ZANONIAOY VIAVIN 1100664 €8100000 66
LL'TITT SI MWW 1202/60/60 HO €7SS SAD SHOIAYAS Y4AVEAT  YOT0066A 78100000 66
76'8hY SI M 1202/60/60 HO 8016 dVYAHL ONILVIAAd JAHOVTIVO  T000666S 18100000 66
1081t SI M 1202/60/60 HO TSLSOVE ONI NOLLVONAd ANV JOIAVHAL  1000666S 08100000 66
80°LY0CT SI MW 1202/10/60 HO 6VLEYY00-1T NOILNTOS ADOTONHDAL QIVMOH  S800066A 6L100000 66
00 0¥ €l SI MW 1202/10/60 HO LY ANVANOD FIANVH  €10066649 8100000 66
8E PSS El SI MW 1202/10/60 HO 9¢SH SLOALIHOYY NONNVE HAOVLVHD 11006669 LLT00000 66
08°260°19S SI MW 1202/10/60 HO AVd NOILDNYISNOD TIVH-NOSMOA 01006664 9L100000 66
junowy }y) smeyg 2dAY e PIUL) e YPYD squs UIIIY dureN Aed a1 24ed FEETTe)

1207/0€/6 03 TT0T/1/6 WOy

I9)SI139Y Iy pajepijosuo)

ds INIOL TTAMO'T



8CIL1:60 AU 3U3IIN) Z 1218139 29D PAIePIOsu0) 100N :)10day
1207/61/01 :31e( yud1In) aded ZapURWoH SUA[IE( - ZHANVNATHA 13S0l
¥8°9CS SI M 1207/12/60 HOINIWASINGNIZA ADMIVIN A TTHHS  T100066d £¥200000 66
750851 SI MW 1207/17/60 HOLNIWASININITE JAITA NVA VIINOY  6¥T066d TPT00000 66
05619 SI M 1202/17/60 HOLNAWASINIWNITA HJdTOANVY ATYNOA 11000664 1¥200000 66
69961°1 SI MW 1207/17/60 HOLNHAWHSANGNITA MOAHOYAAVIN ANNAd 01000663 0¥T00000 66
69'961°1 ST M 1207/12/60 HOLNAWHSINTNITA ALIHM AONVN 6000066 6£200000 66
00°000°0C SI M 120¢/17/60 HO 1239 444! ALNLILSNI HOYVASTY ANIWN  0T10066A 8€T00000 66
89°€50°1 S M 1207/17/60 HOINHWASINIWIHA HLOY A1 8¥TL066d LETO0000 66
£8°07¢ SI MW 1207/12/60 HO NI-¢£¢v8C JNI “00 % YATOOINADOH  £800066A 9€200000 66
67 1VL9 ST MIN 1207/12/60 HO 98¥91¢ A1ddNS HONVNALNIVIN ADSVIO £€000664 §€T00000 66
§T'8¢T SI M 1207/17/60 HO LNHWHSINGNIFA SYAD0Y HTAVD  L000066Y ¥£200000 66
¥8'9¢S SI M 1207/12/60 HOLNAWASININITA ATdIEITIVM ATINE - 90000664 ££700000 66
91°066 ST MIN 1207/12/60 HOLNAWHSINGWITA OMIHSANV H139VZI'TH $0000664d T€T00000 66
¥89CS SI M 1202/127/60 HO.LNAWHSINGNIZT THYANVV NMAVA  $000066d 1€200000 66
PI611 ST M 1207/12/60 HO NI-800L1 SNOISSTAdIWI VIVA  £S00066A 0£200000 66
00066 SI M 1207/17/60 HO 088651 SINALSAS SSANISNI ALATdWNOD  TF00066A 62200000 66
LY'LTSL S MIN 1207/17/60 HO 8TeLE SASNIAYALNT TVLSVOD  ¥0TL066A 82200000 66
¥89¢S SI M 12027/127/60 HOLNAWHSININITA NITHOTVHOS VIANVID  £000066d LTT00000 66
9L'98LY SI M 1207/17/60 HOINHWHSANGNITL ANV NATOAVD  LPTe066d 9C7C00000 66
00°56¢ SI M 1207/12/60 HO ADVI-TTNHNMLS STOOHDS 40 ANOVAT VINYOAITIVD  TL00066A §TT00000 66
00021 SI MWW 1202/17/60 HO ySSyLy dI'14 HNd 71000664 ¥7200000 66
LL9TS SI M 1202/12/60 HOLNAWHSININITA OTIL1LVd 3DNd9d 70000664 £7700000 66
LL9TS SI M 1207/12/60 HOLNAWHASININITL NVIASTIV LNJdd 10000664 72200000 66
9L'9¢Y SI M 120T/17/60 HO 19TCT8¢ ATTAANVL  €TO0066A 12200000 66
0L°L08°E ST MIN 1207/12/60 HO TCOLTLIEAV ONI ‘1ddV ~ ST100066A 0Z200000 66
00°00¢ SI  MIN 1202/07/60 HO 60t9C SHDLLOVYd LSH9 AAl'lddY  #0006664 61200000 66
00°00€°€ SI M 1202/02/60 HO SETL "ONI ‘NOLLDAdSNI NVOIdAIWY T1IV  9TCe0664d 81200000 66
00'086°€1 SI M 1202/02/60 HO 6€9L9 ANVANOD 9L L1ANYD  LTTLO66A L1200000 66
00°LOL'8 ST MIN 1202/07/60 HO L8LTY DONINOILLIANOD IV SYIWOHL ‘WA 1£000664 91200000 66
00°Sy SI M 1207/02/60 HO eeLTY ONINOLLIANOD ¥IV SVWOHL ‘W4 1€00066d S1700000 66
L961¢E SI M 120T/02/60 HO 8¥7L0981¢C ONI ‘HOTddONOW  £TT0066A 1200000 66
0€'950°1 SI M 12027/02/60 HOINHWASININITA YAWTVd LTIVOIAVIN - vE10066d €1200000 66
£8°CL SI M 1207/07/60 HO SNONV-ADVATIN VT11NddVZ NHOI L8000664d 1200000 66
G866 SI M 1202/02/60 HO SINHWHSHIIHH SHINOOD INIf  $8000664 11200000 66
68°08L°1 SI  MIN 1202/02/60 HO LSYT6SY00dd TVINAA VLTIA  9S00066A 01200000 66
junowry y33yY) smeys 2dAL e PIUL) Aed YPYD squs UIIY aureN ey g ?4eg BREL 10

1207/0€/6 03 1T0T/1/6 WOy

1918139y M99y pIjepIosuo)

ds LNIOS TTIMOT



QELTI60 WL JUILIND) £ 1918135 Y09y palepIjosuo)) :Go0eNg  :310day
1207/61/01 :9req juaLiny adeq ZOpUeWIdY Sudre(d - ZHANVNYIGHA 198N
3L 856 SI M 120T/67/60 HO 6£69%8 HNLL NVOIJdNV £0006664 LLT0O0000 66
08'85S°C SI M 120T/67/60 HO LIdD dSA T YAd00D Y04 STOOHDS 40 ONVITIV ~ 0100066A 9L200000 66
¥9'8€€°C SI MIN 1202/62/60 HO SSVTIO dSATIY JAd00D 04 STOOHOS 10 IONVITIV 0100066A SLTO0000 66
L6'8VS SI MW 1207/67/60 HO WOW VAOA AT AAd00D 404 STOOHIS 40 AONVITIV ~ 0100066A 7LT00000 66
T9'6£V°1 SI M 1207/62/60 HO OO0 VAOA TIM YAJO0D 04 STOOHIS A0 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A £L2700000 66
e8Iy SI M 120T/6T/60 HO V3g00ddainf YAd00D 404 STOOHDS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A LT00000 66
Pe686 SI M 12027/67/60 HO dIIILIAAA 1N0S ¥AdOO0D 04 STOOHIS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A 1L200000 66
L80C1 SI M 1202/627/60 HO VIdOOSATNS JAJ00D 04 STOOHIS JO HONVITIV 0T00066A 0LT00000 66
0€¥61 SI M 1202/62/60 HO LHASATL YAd00D ¥04 STOOHOS 40 HONVITIV ~ 0100066A 69700000 66
TETOT6T SI  MIN 1207/62/60 HO HALLOVAAINS YAJO0D ¥0d STOOHDS 40 AONVITIV ~ 0100066A 89700000 66
00°0¥S‘y SI M 120T/6T7/60 HO OSINGI09 YAdOOD ¥04 STOOHDS 40 AONVITIV ~ 0100066A L9T00000 66
00°0S6°L SI M 1207/L2/60 HO ovZ-¢-9 SNOLLOTOS ADVAINS GAISSHIDOUd  £STEO66A 99200000 66
00'v€S°T SI M 1207/LT/60 HO 6189 ANVINOD IDNHA 1-V 10000664 §9200000 66
TSeEL’E SI M 120T/¥2/60 HO 120TLSNDHNVY ONI OYd'TVA  S$100066N 9700000 66
£8°¢91 SI M 120¢/¥2/60 HO 1TOTATIOS ONI OddTVA  S100066N £9200000 66
0’ T8LT SI MW 1207/v2/60 HO 120Z1SNHNV VZZ1d VINGOII'TVD NHHLNOS £100066N 79700000 66
[4: %344 SI M 1207/¥2/60 HO 91107COS TOOHOS ALID YH1SOI-OALVINNVS  0100066N 19200000 66
£0°220°9 SI MW 120T/¥2/60 HO 12021SNONV ANVANOD ATddNS dHdVd 4 ®d  6000066N 09700000 66
91°TLT S MIN 1202/v2/60 HO 9615¢C DTIMDOVNS OLHAOT  8TTEO66A 65200000 66
00°S¢ ST M 1202/vt/60 HO 12:3344! LINIAL TVINAWNOIIANA $ONT AAVT $¥000664 85200000 66
0091L°8 SI M 120T/¥2/60 HO 08¥100ddSSH "ONI SINHLSAS INHWNAVd ANVILIVAH  8000066N LST00000 66
8€'97T'ST SI M 1207/¥2/60 HO 120TLSNODNY SAO04 IVLIS A'TOD  LO00066N 96700000 66
19°86%°S SI M 120T/¥2/60  HO 12021S1ONV AIVA AOOMLATIA  $000066N §S200000 66
1681€°1 ST M 1202/v2/60 HO 120TAINS AIVA AOOMLATIA  #000066N 5200000 66
00081 SI  MIN 12027/¥2/60 HO 12021SNHOHNV dI'Td N4 ¥1000664 £5700000 66
00081 SI M 1202/¥¢/60 HO 120TATINL dI'14 H04 71000664 ¢ST00000 66
00008°¢ SI M 120T/¥T/60 HO P8LE 1SIAQ TOOHDS ALID JHILLIHM 1SVH  £900066A 1$200000 66
00'00L°9 SI M 1202/¥2/60 HO 690.L29 % ANNA'VAOTNOSTAANV 'NOSNILLY  0Z00066A 05200000 66
00'0£8°SE SI M 1207/€2/60 HO P8121-¢0 HdA DHLIHOYV d1V.LS dHL 40 NOISIAIA  6500066A 67200000 66
00°009°1 SI M 1207/€2/60 HO 99¢1 T “IONATIAIXH MON SI SSANIddVH  £PTE066A 8¥700000 66
00 8L V1 SI M 1202/22/60 HO 81y ANVIANOD FA41VH £100666d L¥T00000 66
0Z'SOLST SI M 120T/TT/60 HO yesy SLOHIIHOYVY NONNVE 4dOV.LVHD 11006669 9700000 66
£5'¥9L°958 SI MW 1202/¢T/60 HO 12/0¢/8 ‘6#ddV NOLLDNALSNOD TIVH-NOSIDIIH 01006664 SY200000 66
69'€95°8C SI M 1202/12/60 _HO 1Z80L0°4.LIS NOSIAT VINIOAITVO NIFHLNOS 00006601 200000 66
junouy a9y snjels ua%h‘ e [9uUr)) e YYD sqn§ LY JdWeN wwhﬂﬂﬂ ai OO%NM HYD

1202/0€/6 03 TT0T/1/6 WOy

19)SIS3Y MI9YD) pajepIosuo))

dS INIOf TTIMOX



8€:L1:60 WL JULIND 1915189 Jo9YD) pajepljosuc)) :so0ed eday
1202/61/01 e Iud1iny ZopueuldH dUSe( - ZAANVNIIHA <4950

T €58°T66°1 ‘[ejo ], puedd

TV €58°T66°1 [e30], queq 66

W €S8°T66°1 :pomnss|
00°00¢ Sl MIN 1202/62/60 HO NWAJIFAOANAA SADIAYAS 130ddNS LOHIO¥Ud ST10066A L6T00000 66
1€618°C SI M 1202/67/60 HO Pere10c SYANIV.INOD HOVIOLS AVMVINVH 6770664 96200000 66
97°9C1 SI M 1207/67/60 HO HAILOVAATIY YAJ00D ¥04 STOOHDS 40 HONVITIV 0T00066A $€6700000 66
9T9L SI M 1207/62/60 HO SSVID dSATAS AAJO0D YOI STOOHOS 40 HONVITIV 0100066A 6200000 66
8L'8LE SI M 1207/67/60 HO JALLOVAATY AAJO0D Y04 STOOHOS A0 HONVITIV 0100066A £6200000 66
$6°50€°T ST MIN 1207/67/60 HO YLIETS SO11L0490Y XdA £0T0066A 76200000 66
eLTYS SI M 1202/627/60 HO 1202€0-88109101d ANVINOD HONVANSNI 41T NN 00Z0066A 16200000 66
0001981 SI M 1207/67/60 HO  AA-L11-9-ANI THINAL 6610066A 06200000 66
9L’ SEl SI M 120T/67/60 HO 1T6T806L8VELS] SLLATAIAVAS 0810066A 68700000 66
SL'SY SI M 1207/67/60 HO SA004d ATYNOUJOWN TAYIHS 68100664 88700000 66
8T eVl SI M 120T/6T/60 HO G8E€TC9TEO0HTO ATLSAN A9 HSTIATIAAVIYT PST0066A L8T00000 66
142214 SI M 1202/62/60 HO 7991 106N "ONI VSN HONISVET LNAIAVNO 6v10066A 98700000 66
£9°%89 SI MW 1207/67/60 HO 7991106N "ONI VSN ZDONVNIA INFIAVNO 8¥10066A $8700000 66
T198Le SI M 1207/62/60 HO 96£96¢£556 1dNODAVH NI'TIAIN NOLHDNOH ¥800066A ¥8200000 66
9¢°6¢1 SI MW 1207/67/60 HO SHI'1ddNS YHANVId ATIOH ¥,00066d £8200000 66
00°00%°1 SI M 1202/6T/60 HO 120 SHAT vdddd L0000661 78700000 66
S69LY'Y SI MW 1202/67/60 HO NI-TSTLT SNOISSTAdNI V1Vd £S00066A 18200000 66
78'01¢C SI M 120T/6T7/60 HO LELSY006 SHLVIDOSSY WN'TNITIIND T0TL066A 08700000 66
68°79%°S S MIN 1207/67/60 HO 901¢¢ SASTILIHALNA TVLSVOD POTE066A 6L700000 66
00°Sey SI M 120¢/62/60 HO 01200000¢ TOOHOS ALVNOTIAV Y01 NOLLI'TVOD 8€00066A 84200000 66
junowry YD) smyeyg 2dA1, e PIue) Ayr(g APY) sqng uaIYY JweN e I 334Aeg YD

1202/0€/6 03 170T/1/6 W01y

I9)SISY I3 PIIepI[osuo)

ds INIOI TTIMO'T



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS PERSONNEL REPORT 2021/2022 #4

November 1, 2021

I. CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES

A.

NAME
Warner, Elenor

NAME/
EMPLOYEE ID

Naples, Deborah

@

NAME

Sachs, Teddy
Sach, Teddy
Perumean Stacy
Irving, Tamara
Long, Katelyn
Wilkens, Melissa
De la Haye, Melissa
Morrison, Dana
Fonti, Allison
Garduno, Adam
Castillo, Barbara

D.

NAME/
EMPLOYEE ID
Oke, Melissa

Miller, Cameron

Brimmage, Mary

Carty, Lyn

CONTRACTS 2021/2022

EFFECTIVE CLASS/COL
DATE [STEP SITE COMMENTS
11/01/2021 C1/81 OL Temporary Contract Transitional Kindergarten
Teacher - Olita

B. RETIREMENT / RESIGNATION

EFFECTIVE END
DATE DATE SITE COMMENTS
10/29/2021 OL Resignation

CHANGE OF STATUS

EFFECTIVE END DATE

DATE SITE COMMENTS
10/06/2021 10/15/2021 RS  (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
10/25/2021 10/29/2021 RS (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
10/25/2021 11/19/2021 MG  (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave
09/15/2021 11/25/2021 RS  (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
10/18/2021 10/29/2021 OL  (AB375) FMLA Baby Bonding Leave
11/29/2021 12/10/2021 MG  (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave
11/29/2021 12/17/2021 EP  (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave
11/01/2021 12/17/2021 EP  (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave
10/04/2021 11/25/2021 MA  (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave
11/12/2021 12/03/2021 RS  (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave
12/06/2021 12/17/2021 EP  (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave

EXTRA DUTY PAY/STIPENDS

EFFECTIVE END
DATE DATE SITE COMMENTS
10/01/2021 12/31/2021 RS To be paid $250.00 per month, not to exceed

$750.00 for serving as ASB Coordinator. To be paid
from the Rancho-Starbuck General Site Account.
10/01/2021 12/31/2021 RS To be paid $250.00 per month, not to exceed
$750.00 for serving as ASB Coordinator. To be paid
from the Rancho-Starbuck General Site Account.
08/16/2021 04/30/2022 EP  To be paid to be the Campus Teacher for the
Disney Musical in Schools for Lowell Joint
School District for the 2021-2022 School Year,
not to exceed $1500.00 ($750 October, $750
February), to be paid by the ELOP funds.
08/16/2021 04/30/2022 EP To be paid to be the Campus Teacher for the
Disney Musical in Schools for Lowell Joint
School District for the 2021-2022 School Year,

X-C1-2



Hinsky, Chrissy

Abel, Amy

Langer, Garrick

Garduno, Adam

Artukovich, Nick

Chittum, Eric

Anderson, Ryan

Champion, Rebecca

08/16/2021

08/16/2021

08/16/2021

08/16/2021

08/16/2021

08/16/2021

08/16/2021

10/01/2021

04/30/2022

04/30/2022

05/31/2022

05/31/2022

05/31/2022

05/31/2022

05/31/2022

02/28/2022

EP

EP

RS

RS

MO

RS

RS

DO

not to exceed $1500.00 ($750 October, $750
February), to be paid by the ELOP funds.

To be paid to be the Campus Teacher for the
Disney Musical in Schools for Lowell Joint
School District for the 2021-2022 School Year,
not to exceed $1500.00(3750 October, $750
February), to be paid by the ELOP funds.

To be paid to be the Campus Teacher for the
Disney Musical in Schools for Lowell Joint
School District for the 2021-2022 School Year,
not to exceed $1500.00($750 October, $750
February), to be paid by the ELOP funds.

To be paid a total of $700.00 monthly, not to exceed
$2100.00 for the 2021/22 school year, for Coaching
After-School Sports — Boys’ Soccer, Girls’ Soccer
and Flag Football. Monies to be paid from the LJEF
donation in the General Fund.

To be paid a total of $700.00 monthly, not to exceed
$1400.00 for the 2021/22 school year, for Coaching
After-School Sports — Boys® Soccer and Girls’
Soccer. Monies to be paid from the LJEF donation
in the General Fund.

To be paid a total of $700.00 monthly, not to exceed
$2100.00 for the 2021/22 school year, for Coaching
After-School Sports — Boys® Basketball, Girls’
Basketball and Flag Football. Monies to be paid
from the LJEF donation in the General Fund.

To be paid a total of $700.00 monthly, not to exceed
$1400.00 for the 2021/22 school year, for Coaching
After-School Sports — Boys® Basketball and Girls’
Basketball. Monies to be paid from the LJEF
donation in the General Fund.

To be paid a total of $700.00 monthly, not to exceed
$2100.00 for the 2021/21 school year, for Coaching
After-School Sports — Boys’ Basketball, Girls’
Basketball and Flag Football. Monies to be paid
from the LJEF donation in the General Fund.
Stipend to be paid $1000.00 a month not to
exceed $5,000 for support needed with the
upcoming Science adoption to be paid from the
action item in the LCAP (0101-0000-0-1130-
0000-2150-00000106 2150 - Instructional
Support 106 - LCAP Goal 1 Action 6)
identified for purchasing of textbooks
Correction of EER #3 2021-2022

*[t is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of $200.00 per day
and/or $35.00 an hour rate (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: Professional Development, Saturday

School, Site Support Duties and Intervention
**[t is further recommended that the individuals listed 1

Funds.

n Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 is approved to instruct in
the Intervention Programs. The rate of pay is $35.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or LCFF Supplemental Grant

X-C1-3



**1t is further recommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 serve as home school teachers,
if needed, for the 2021-2022 school year at a rate of $35.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student. Mileage
will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage Rate for the 2021-2022 school year.

D.

Employment of substitutes effective 08/16/2021 for the 2021-2022 school year @ 200 per day and $100.00per
half day rate and $35.00 per hour* (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: professional
development, Saturday school, and site support duties, and $250.00 long term sub rate.

Joseph Zapatta

Tyler Burns-Briscoe

Christine Ontiveros
Alyssa Jiminez
Lilian Jones
Gregory Wallace
Iliana Aguirre
Karen Nordell
Jerry San Martin

E. SUBSTITUTE CHANGE OF PAY

NAME

Zapata, Joseph

Vega, Sandy

Warner, Ellie

McCoy, Stacy

Mgrdichian,

Jennifer

Carr, Candice

Fiscus, Riley

Charman, Lauren

Boozer, Jessica

EFFECTIVE

DATE
10/18/2021

10/18/2021

10/18/2021

10/25/2021

11/29/2021

11/29/2021

11/01/2021

10/04/2021

11/12/2021

END DATE

06/30/2022

10/29/2021

10/29/2021

11/19/2021

12/17/2021

12/10/2021

12/17/2021

11/25/2021

12/03/2021

SITE COMMENT

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

DO

To be paid $250.00 long-term rate as a School
Psychologist.

To be paid special long term rate of $170.00 RSP
Teacher Olita.

To be paid special long term rate of $170.00 TK Grade
Overlap Olita.

To be paid special long term rate of $170.00 5/6 combo
Teacher Meadow Green.

To be paid special long term rate of $170.00 RSP
Teacher El Portal.

To be paid rate of $131.00 6" grade Teacher Meadow
Green.

To be paid special long term rate of $170.00 4™ grade
Teacher El Portal.

To be paid rate of $131.00 3™ grade Teacher Macy

To be paid rate of $131.00 Science Teacher Rancho
Starbuck

*1t is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of $131.00 per day and/or $35.00 an hour rate
(not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: Professional Development, Saturday School, Site Support Duties and Intervention

X-Cl1-4



*+It is further recommended that the individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 is approved to instruct in the Intervention Programs.
The rate of pay is $35.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or LCFF Supplemental Grant Funds.

**[t is further recommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 serve as home school teachers, if needed, for the 2021-
2021 school year at a rate of $35.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student. Mileage will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage Rate
for the 2021-2022 school year.

II. CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES  October 4, 2021

A. MONTHLY — GENERAL FUND

NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE COMMENTS
Barron, Guillermo 04/30/22 R27/S8 MNT Utility Worker/Longevity
+2.5% Increase
Fiscal Services Clerk/
Bautista, Selah 10/01/21 R23/S8 DO  Performance Recognition
Increase
RI/SS Administrative Assistant Business
Dumadag, Margaret ~ 12/02/21 o DO  Services/Classified Personnel /
+2.5% :
Change to Retirement Date
Dumont, Thomas 10/01/21 R21/S8 MG Day Custodian/Longevity
0 Increase
+10%
Grussmeyer, Jimmy ~ 07/01/21 R1 8(/) S8 MG Night Custodian/Longevity
+5% Increase
@ Tazola Jehn 10/01/21 R28/088 MNT Maintenance General/Longevity
+10% Increase
‘Trevine) Jeanctic 04/16/22. R23/S8 DO Fiscal Services Clerk/Longevity
+2.5% Increase
R26/S8 Administrative Secretary-
Verbeck, Renee 10/11/21 01/03/22 7 5% DO Educational Services/FMLA
B. HOURLY — GENERAL FUND
NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
EMPLOYEE [D# DATE DATE STEP SITE COMMENTS
Allsman, Marcella 10/14/21 06/03/22 R14/S3 RS Special Education Support Aide/
Unpaid Leave of Absence
Armijo, Lauren 10/25/21 R16/S1 DO Clerk Typist/Substitute
Armijo, Lauren 10/25/21 $14.00/hr DO Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute
Barber, Stephanie 10/04/21 11/19/21 RI/S2 DO Assistant to the Superintendent’s
Office/Administrative Assistant,
Business Services/Classified Personnel
— Temporary Upgrade
Calleros-Wiltzen, 09/30/21 $14.00/hr DO Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute
Esther
Calleros-Wiltzen, 09/30/21 R14/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Esther
Calleros-Wiltzen, 09/30/21 R15/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Esther
Cardenas, Lauren 10/22/21 $14.00/hr DO Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute

X-CI1-5



Cardenas, Lauren 10/22/21 R16/81 DO
Cardenas, Lauren 10/22/21 R07/S1 DO
Davis, Lynn 10/01/21 R15/S8 MG
+7.5%
Davis, Summer 01/03/22 06/03/22 $14/hr JO
Fiscus, Regina 08/01/21 R23/S8 EP
+7.5%
Fiscus, Regina 10/20/21  01/03/22  R26/S8 DO
+7.5%
Flores, Maria 09/01/21 R15/S8 MA
+5%
Hernandez, James 08/17/21 06/03/22 R16/81 RS
Kennedy, Joelle 09/27/21  06/03/22  RI16/S5 oL
Kim, Hannah 09/14/21 R16/S1 DO
Lickfelt, Rebecca 10/15/21 MG
Mora, Jill 10/25/01 R14.00/hr DO
Perine, Katie 10/25/21 $14.00/hr DO
Price, Sarah 07/15/21 R15/S8 MG
+5%
Quirarte, Selena 10/29/21 R15/S1 MG
Qureshi, Lovely 10/18/21 12/17/21  R15/S1 EP
Rickenbacker, Kim 10/20/21 01/03/22 R23/82 EP
Scoggins, Evelyn 10/12/21 $14.00/hr DO
Scoggins, Evelyn 10/12/21 R14/81 DO
Scoggins, Evelyn 10/12/21 R15/S1 DO
Trujillo, Mary 10/04/21 R15/S1 DO
. R14/S8
Ybarra, Mariana 12/02/21 +10% EP
C. HOURLY — CAFETERIA FUND
EFFECTIVE END  RANGE/
NAME/ -
EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE
Alarid, Emily 10/01/21  06/03/22  R7/S4 EP
PEIEs; Ferm 08/16/21  06/03/22  R7/S7 RS
€acioppo,.Sherrie 10/01/21  06/03/22  R7/S6 RS
Goodenow, Arlene 10/0121  06/03/22 RS  MA
Lawson, Jennifer 08/16/21 06/03/22  R7/S2 oL
Muravez, Alicia R14/87
10/01/21 06/0322 5 o, EP
CInCIE. IYoNe 08/16/21 09/25/21  R14/S7 JO

X-C1-6

Clerk Typist/Substitute

Cafeteria Worker/Substitute
Instructional Assistant/Longevity
Increase

Noon Duty Assistant/Unpaid Leave of
Absence

Office Manager/Longevity Increase

School Office Manager/Administrative
Secretary — Educational Services/
Temporary Upgrade

Instructional Assistant/Longevity
Increase

Instructional Assistant — ABA/
Temporary Reassignment from EP to
RS as Instructional Assistant-SE/Mod
Instructional Assistant — ABA/
Temporary Reassignment from EP to
OL as Instructional Assistant-SE/Mod
Clerk Typist/Substitute

Instructional Assistant/Resignation
Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute

Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute
Special Education Support Aide/
Longevity Increase

Health Technician/Resignation

Health Technician/Temporary Increase
of Hours

Clerk Typist/School Office Manager —
Temporary Upgrade

Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute
Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Health Technician/Substitute
Bilingual Instructional Assistant/
Longevity Increase

COMMENTS

Cafeteria Worker/Temporary
Increase of Hours

Cafeteria Worker/Temporary
Increase of Hours

Cafeteria Worker/Temporary
Increase of Hours

Cafeteria Worker/Temporary
Increase of Hours

Cafeteria Worker/Temporary
Increase of Hours

Satellite Cafeteria Worker/
Temporary Increase of Hours
Cafeteria Worker/Temporary
Increase of Hours



Ornelas, Ivonne
Ornelas, Ivonne
Rubio, Sandra
Sanchez, Kris
Swisshelm, Lisa

Talley Ludd, Angela

09/26/21

09/26/21

10/01/21

06/01/22

10/01/21

08/16/21

06/03/22

06/03/22

06/03/22

06/03/22

R14/S8
+2.5%
R14/S8
+2.5%
R14/87
+7.5%
R14/S
+2.5%
R14/S8
+5%

R14/85

X-C1-7

JO

JO

RS

MA

OL

MG

Satellite Cafeteria Worker/
Longevity Increase

Cafeteria Worker/Temporary
Increase of Hours

Satellite Cafeteria Worker/
Longevity Increase

Satellite Cafeteria Worker/
Longevity Increase

Satellite Cafeteria Worker/
Temporary Increase of Hours
Satellite Cafeteria Worker/
Temporary Increase of Hours



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To:
From:

Subject:

President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Organization of the Board of Trustees ACTION

The December 13, 2021, meeting of the Board of Trustees has been established as the annual
organizational meeting in accordance with Education Code requirements. At the annual
organizational meeting, it is necessary that the Board determine the organization of the Board
for the 2022 year, adopt a schedule of regular Board meetings and the Citizen Bond
Oversight Committee meetings, and designate a meeting place and time for the regular
meetings and CBOC meetings.

It is recommended that

(1)
@)

€)
4)

©)
(6)

Q)
(8)

Attachment

The President be elected from among the members of the Board of Trustees;
The Vice President be elected from among the members of the Board of
Trustees;

The Clerk be elected from among the members of the Board of Trustees;

The attached Schedule of Regular Meetings of the Board of Trustees of the
Lowell Joint School District, 2022 Organizational Year and the Regular
Meetings of the Citizen Bond Oversight Committee, 2022 Year be approved;
One member be elected to serve on the Nominating Committee for the

Orange Committee on School District Organization;

One member be elected to serve as an alternate member on the Nominating
Committee for the Orange County Committee on School District
Organization;

Approval of “Certification of Signature”; and

Two members be elected to serve on the Board of Directors of the Lowell
Joint Education Foundation; and authorize the Superintendent or designee to
execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

1I-H1-H8



S

Lowell Joint School District

Tradition of Excellence Since 1906
Home of Scholars and Champions

SCHEDULE OF REGULAR MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2022 ORGANIZATIONAL YEAR

Unless otherwise specified, all Closed Session meetings are held at 6:30pm and Open Sessions
held at 7:30 p.m. in the Board Room of the District Office, located at 11019 Valley Home,

Whittier, California.

First and Only Regular Meeting in December 2021
(Organizational Meeting)

Monday, December 13

TENTATIVE DATE - Pending Board Approval at December 13" the Board Organizational

Meeting

First Regular Meeting in January 2022

Second- Special Meeting in January, 2022

First and Only Regular Meeting in February, 2022
First and Only Regular Meeting in March, 2022
First and Only Regular Meeting in April, 2022
First and Only Regular Meeting in May, 2022

First Regular Meeting in June, 2022
Second Regular Meeting in June, 2022

JULY - DARK

First and Only Regular Meeting in August, 2022
First and Only Regular Meeting in September, 2022
First and Only Regular Meeting in October, 2022
First and Only Regular Meeting in November, 2022

First and Only Regular Meeting in December, 2022
(Organizational Meeting)

Monday, January 10

Tuesday, January 25 (By-Trustee A)
Monday, February 7

Monday, March 7

Monday, April 4

Monday, May 2

Monday, June 13 (2" Monday)
Monday, June 27 (4" Monday)

Monday, August 8 (2" Monday)
Monday, September 5

Monday, October 3

Monday, November 7

Monday, December 12 (2" Monday)



SCHEDULE OF CITIZEN BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE - CBOC (Measure LL)
OF THE LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2022 ORGANIZATIONAL YEAR

TENTATIVE DATE - Pending Board Approval at December 13" the Board Organizational
Meeting

First and Only Regular Meeting in March, 2022 Tuesday, March 8"
First and Only Regular Meeting in June, 2022 Tuesday, June 7"
First and Only Regular Meeting in September, 2022 Tuesday, September 6"

First and Only Regular Meeting in December, 2022 Tuesday, December 6"



9

LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Resolution 2021/22 No. 847, Support of First Amendment ACTION/

Right of “Freedom of Speech” and “the right of the people (RESOLUTION)
to assemble, and to petition the Government for redress of
grievances.”

Recently the United States Attorney General, Merrick Garland, issue&a memorandum

declared that the United States Department of Justice is “committed to using its authority and
————tl

resources to discourage'public discourse that it deems to be “[t]threats against public
servants” and to “prosecute them when appropriate” (the “Memorandum”).'Implementation
of the Memorandum will@the First Amendment rights of our constituents to engage in
free and open discussion of public issues, and it is a misuse of federal power in an area
traditionally governed by state and local authorities. The Lowell Joint SD Board of Trustees
are not afraid of open respectful discourse over issues of concern before our agency and do
not want or need federal law enforcement to intervene in that discourse.

The Lowell Joint School District is in full support of the First Amendment of the United
States Constitution, “Freedom of Speech” and “the right of the people to assemble, and to
petition the Government for redress of grievances.”

It is recommended that Resolution 2021/22 No. 847 supporting the First Amendment Right
of “Freedom of Speech” and “the right of the people to assemble, and to petition the
Government for redress of grievances.”, be approved, and that the Superintendent or
designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
ADOPTION BY MAJORITY ROLL CALL VOTE.

V-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION 2021/22 NO. 847

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
OF THE LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
OF LOS ANGELES AND ORANGE COUNTIES, CALIFORNIA,
SUPPORT OF FIRST AMENDMENT RIGHT OF “FREEDOM OF SPEECH”
AND “THE RIGHT OF THE PEOPLE TO ASSEMBLE,
AND TO PETITION THE GOVERNMENT FOR REDRESS OF GRIEVANCES.”

WHEREAS, to declare it our policy that United States Attorney General Merrick Garland should
withdraw his memorandum dated October 4, 2021, in which he declared that the United States
Department of Justice is “committed to using its authority and resources to discourage" public
discourse that it deems to be “[t]threats against public servants” and to “prosecute them when
appropriate” (the “Memorandum”). Implementation of the Memorandum will chill the First
Amendment rights of our constituents to engage in free and open discussion of public issues, and
it is a misuse of federal power in an area traditionally governed by state and local authorities. We
are not afraid of open discourse over issues of concern before our agency and do not want or need
the heavy hand of federal law enforcement to intervene in that discourse.

WHEREAS, the First Amendment to the United States Constitution guarantees to all Americans
the right of “freedom of speech” and “the right of the people to assemble, and to petition the
Government for redress of grievances.” These rights are exercised daily before our agency
through regular communications by our constituents with our members at public meetings, letters
and emails to our members, and one-on-one contact consistent with state law. As elected
officials, we learn from this free and open discourse even when we disagree with the message,
and it is essential to good government.

WHEREAS, the National School Boards Association (“NSBA™) recently sent a letter to the
White House stating: “The National School Boards Association respectfully asks for federal law
enforcement and other assistance to deal with the growing number of threats of violence and
acts of intimidation occurring across the nation.” The NSBA offers no proof of a “growing
number of threats of violence and acts of intimidation.” Communications by our constituents on
issues of interest to this agency seldom, if ever, rise to the level of criminal misbehavior, and
local law enforcement is more than capable of dealing with problems if and when they arise.

WHEREAS, in response to the NSBA letter, Attorney General Garland issued the Memorandum,
which declares: “In recent months, there has been a disturbing spike in harassment, intimidation,
and threats of violence against school administrators, board members, teachers, and staff who
participate in the vital work of running our nation's public schools.” The Justice Department has
offered no proof that such “harassment, intimidation, and threats of violence” have occurred in
numbers that justify federal intervention. Nevertheless, the Memorandum further declares: “The
Department takes these incidents seriously and is committed to using its authority and resources
to discourage these threats, identify them when they occur, and prosecute them when appropriate.
In the coming days, the Department will announce a series of measures designed to address the



rise in criminal conduct directed toward school personnel.” Although the Memorandum
acknowledges, as it must, that “spirited debate about policy matters is protected under the
Constitution,” it makes no attempt to define what behavior qualifies as “spirited debate” and what
constitutes “criminal conduct” that it plans to prosecute. Accordingly, when our constituents
engage in public debate, they act at their peril that federal law enforcement will deem what they
regard as an exercise in free speech to be a prosecutable offense. This will deter some constituents
from participating in the open debate to which we are committed.

WHEREAS, General Garland is proceeding on a path that will imperil the free speech rights of
our constituents. In addition to the constitutional guarantees of free speech and assembly, we deem
it essential that our constituents remain free to speak their minds because the free exchange of
ideas helps us to govern better. The threat of federal law enforcement to intervene in what they
perceive as “threats of violence and acts of intimidation” undermines the open dialogue that we
need to govern. If even one of our constituents is dissuaded by the heavy hand of the federal
government from openly expressing that person’s views, it is one too many.

WHEREAS, threats of violence and intimidation are not protected speech and should rightly be
condemned. But public discourse should not be subject to the threat of criminal prosecution just
because it is uncomfortable for elected officials to hear. Also, local law enforcement, not the
federal government, is best situated to address behavior that crosses the line.

WHEREAS, in the National School Board Association (NSBA) October 22, 2021 apology letter
to School Board members, left parents out of the apology. It also failed to ask Attorney General
Garland to retract his Memorandum (dated October 4, 2021), written in response to the NSBA
letter, directing the FBI to intervene in local public discourse by parents when they speak to school
boards. Parents across the state and nation, ask that the NSBA apologize to parents and remove
the staff responsible for coordinating the call for federal law enforcement to intervene with local
school board matters. Furthermore, parents ask Attorney General Garland to revoke his
Memorandum in its entirety. He specifically states, “The Department takes these incidents
seriously and is committed to using its authority and resources to discourage these threats, identify
them when they occur, and prosecute them when appropriate.

WHEREAS, as a local governing agency, we accept our duty to be responsive to our community
and listen to both positive and negative feedback. We are also committed to providing an open
forum for public meetings where there will be a free exchange of ideas. We are confident in our
ability to conduct open debate while maintaining decorum required by local law without the
intervention of the federal government.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED (1) we declare that this agency opposes the
intervention of federal law enforcement in the areas described in the Memorandum; (2) we
respectfully request that General Garland withdraw the Memorandum and discontinue Justice
Department plans for federal law enforcement to oversee public discourse before our agency; and
(3) we encourage our constituents actively to engage in free and open debate before this agency
without fear of criminal prosecution for expressing their views.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 13" day of December, 2021, at the regular meeting of the



Board of Education of the Lowell Joint School District.
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 13" day of December, 2021, by the following vote:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

I, Jim Coombs, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Lowell Joint School District of
Los Angeles and Orange Counties, California, hereby certify that the above foregoing resolution
was duly and regularly adopted by the said Board at a regular meeting thereof held on the

13" day of December, 2021, and passed by a unanimous vote of those present.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this 13" day of December,
2021.

Jim Coombs
Secretary to the Board of Trustees



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Los Angeles County Office of Education (LACOE), ACTION/
Contract to Participate in School-Based COVID-19 Testing (RATIFICATION)
2020-2023

Lowell Joint School District (LJSD) has applied to participate in a voluntary COVID-19
testing grant, which provides the necessary resources to cover the costs of voluntary COVID-
19 testing for all staff free of charge. The grant is designed to cover all cost associated with
providing COVID-19 testing for staff and students.

In partnership with the LACOE COVID-19 Testing grant, Lowell Joint School District is
able to continue to operate in compliance with all legal requirements related to COVID-19,
which includes voluntary testing for all staff, students, and parents, who wish to participate.
In compliance with Governor Executive Order, LISD also requires all non-vaccinated staff to
have a COVID-19 test once per week.

It should be noted that Lowell Joint School District has also been able to partner with the
City of La Habra for free COVID-19 testing.

It is recommended that the Board of Trustee approve the LACOE School-Based COVID-19
testing grant and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

V-Bl1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 15, 2021

To: President Hinz, and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of a Positive Certification for the First INFORMATION/
Interim Reporting Period to comply with the December ACTION

15, 2021 Education Code Deadline.

Education Code Sections 35035(g), 42130, and 42131 require Board approval of the
District’s First Interim Report 2020/21 and certification by the Board as to whether or not the
District will maintain positive cash and fund balances for the current and subsequent two
fiscal years. This Board approval of a positive certification is due to the Orange County
Department of Education by December 15, 2021.

Due to the financial and human resources systems conversion with the district’s move to the
Orange County Department of Education effective July 1, 2021, there is a delay in producing
an updated First Interim Budget file. Therefore, the board is asked to approve an updated
budget projection shown below with the adjustment of the district’s estimated beginning
balances to now reflect the 20/21 unaudited actuals ending balance for the General Fund. An
updated First Interim budget file, along with the multi-year projections, will be presented to
the board at the January 10, 2022 board meeting and submitted to OCDE for review.

Beginning Balance | $12,332,803
Revenues $34,509,004
Expenditures $33,127,005
Ending Balance $13,714,802

It is recommended the Board of Trustees approve a “Positive Certification” for the First
Interim reporting period to comply with the December 15, 2021 Education Code deadline
and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
VI-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees

From:  Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Ratification of Scope Amendment No.2 to Provide ACTION/
Architectural/Engineering Services for Meadow Green (RATIFICATION)

Elementary and Rancho Starbuck Intermediate Schools with
Ghataode Bannon Architects (GBA) for Anticipated
Modernization Projects

Background:

The Board of Trustees approved a Master Architectural Services Agreement with Ghataode
Bannon Architects (GBA) on October 7, 2019 to provide architectural and engineering services
to assist with modernization projects at various sites as the District administers the facility
upgrades identified as part of the Measure LL approved bond campaign.

Current Considerations:

In June 2016, the District engaged a design firm to develop drawings for the District’s major
modernization project at Olita Elementary and in May 2019, the District engaged the services
of the same design firm for the Maybrook Interim Housing project. During the delivery of the
Maybrook Interim Housing project and the Olita Elementary major modernization project, the
District became dissatisfied with the previous design firm’s performance.

Although that prior firm was also under contract to draw for Meadow Green and Rancho
Starbuck, the District began discussions to accept the minimal architectural work done to date
for Meadow Green and Rancho Starbuck from that prior firm and asked Ghataode Bannon
(GBA) to take over the design for both schools. Ghataode Bannon, who had also been working
with the District on Measure LL projects, had a quantifiably better performance record for their
design and contract administration capabilities from both the El Portal, Macy and on-going
Jordan projects.

A separate Scope Amendment form for each site and/or project is required in this Master
Architectural Services Agreement.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-BI1-1



Meadow Green has been drawn and submitted to DSA for approval, which allows the District
to apply for matching funds from the State Facility Program (SFP). Applications for State
funding in the SFP cannot be submitted until plans are approved by DSA.

Ghataode Bannon Architects is forecasting a submittal of plans to DSA for the Rancho
Starbuck project for Fall, 2022.

This ratification of Scope Amendments No. 2 with Ghataode Bannon Architects (GBA)
facilitates the issuance of the required contractual obligations with both the District and the
Division of State Architect (DSA) to move forward.

The District and the Architect have negotiated a fixed fee for the scopes of work provided in
the Architects proposal’s dated November 8 and 9, 2021. The fixed fee calculations are based
on the State Sliding Scale for Modernization projects and the estimated construction costs as
approved in the District’s Facilities Master Plan dated August 2, 2020. In addition to the
Architect’s fees listed below, each of the two sites will also carry a $15,000 cost for
reimbursable expenses that are not part of the Architects compensation.

Fiscal Implications:

Financial Impact: Meadow Green Elementary School: $562,425.00
Financial Impact: Rancho Starbuck Intermediate School: $887,344.00

Funding Source: Measure LL General Obligation Bond — Fund 21.0

Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees ratify Scope Amendment No 2 with Ghataode
Bannon Architects (GBA) to provide Architectural/Engineering Services for Meadow Green
Elementary and Rancho Starbuck Intermediate Schools for anticipated modernization projects
and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

AR/ew

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VI-B1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of The Plan for Educator Effectiveness ACTION

Block Grant

The plan is intended to address identified needs within the District. As such, actions developed
within the LCAP to meet District Goals and State Priorities that align with the criteria for the
Educator Effectiveness Block Grant have been identified and prioritized for the professional
development plan. The criteria for the Educator Effectiveness Grant includes:

Coaching and mentoring of staff.

Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in
literacy across all subject areas.

Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning.

Strategies to implement social-emotional learning.

Practices to create a positive school climate.

Strategies to improve inclusive practices.

Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition
programs for English learners.

New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-
related professional learning network.

Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate curricula adopted pursuant to Section
51226.7.

Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early
childhood education, or childhood development.

Funds are allocated based on a formula related to District FTE with our apportionment being
$633,906.

It is recommended that the Educator Effectiveness Block Grant plan be approved and that the
Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

VIII-Al-1



pue jen3uijiq aseatout 03 Aydeded Suiuayiduasys pue Suipjing pue ‘seale JuUdjuod Ssolde pue uiyum juswdojanap aSen3ue| pajesdajul
apn)pul Aew yaiym ‘siduaea) ysiSug 1oj sweadoad uoiisinboe agendue| andayys Sunuaws|dwi poddns 03 uoIIEINPD pue UoKINJISU] "L

-spaau [euo3dadxa yum sjenpiaipul Joy swiesSoad uonednpa pazijenplatpul jo Juawdo|anap pue
‘uonyeaiyauapl Ajies 1oy saddead 1saq ‘Suiuiea) Joj usisap [eSI9AIUN 0} paHwi| Jou Ing ‘Suipnjoul ‘sganoesd aaisnjpul aaosdwi 0} sa1331e0S "9
'YI4311¥D SSINIAILIIIEAT ¥O1vINna3l

‘uonesunwwo) pue sdiysiauiied Arunwwo)/Ajiuie,/[00yds

PUE 9DUS[[90XF JIWAPBIY JO S[e0N) pleog 3y Sassappe os[e sy, (sswooing [idnd) uswaadiypy idnd v# Aol aels

se [[om se (Suruaesr Joj SUORIPUO)) Splepuels 33els Jo uonejuawadw] z# A1L1011d 9181S 4401 94l SS3Ippe 03 sdjoy [eo8 syl
:sallIold 91e1s

‘wnuur 3e dyo'

S1Y3 JO 9Ad 3y ySno.y) snooj 1e3eaas Jo eale ue aq [[1m syl Suneddnue aae am ‘sjooydsald [ed0] Ino jo Auew 1oJ durjooyos
paidnusip ayp yaim Suofe srwspued ay3 03 anp Surjooyos ojur Anus pauodisod jeyy s}USPMIS [EUONIPPE dARY ABW 9M TR1)
UDALY) "V €F JO 9SBI9AR 1DLIISIP B 10] Ypf-7 U9IMID] UL JBY) S[OAS] 9PRIS 1910 oY) ey Joys1y Apuesyrudis si siyl, ‘%9 9A0qe
sopeis puz pue 1ST Y10q 1M %6 J9A0 JO 91l 933UISE DIUOIYD B Py JUSpnIs UsESIopuUn InQ JUswa3esus pue sduepuane
JO suLIa) Ut pajoeduur 150w 9y} 919m sape.s ArewLid Ino ‘SaINso[d [00YDs aY) Suing IPLHSIP Y3 UM Spasu Aoera A1es
puno.e juswidofosap feuoissajod apiaoid pue Jueld oy 10j SA[qeISAIRP oY1 1oddns 03 pady sem (VSO.L) JuowugIssy [ewads
U0 JaYPea ] V "ANUNumuod Ino jo spaau Aoe1a3] A[1ea a3 199Ul 19113 03 uruued YiIm pIemloj 940Ul 0] PINUNUOD 9ABY M
‘ooypsald e 1oy Suipunj-a1eIs YILm p[oy Uo [[I3s SIIDLISIP a3 3[1ym 0§ *Ade1a] Ates 11oddns 191394 03 sadlales pue sweidoad
dojaaap 03 JueIs pooyp[iy) Aj1eq Ue paAadal 9m ey} 0s Surpunj Jo punod isef oY) ul Sn papnpul DO AL Is114 ‘Apprewnn
pue ‘qooyasaid papunj-aie1s e 105 uonesidde 1no jo Sunum ayy 1oddns 03 syuelnsuod paplaoad DO 2414 3s11] o1wepued

a3 03 Jorid 12LISIp N0 10j STY) puny 03 19Y312503 HIoM 0 J[(E dI9M ) AL ISIL] PUE Y] SAL] 3511 ‘[[oM SE S[0OYIS AJUN0d
so[e8uy S0 N0 IpN[IUl 03 PIBU Y3 AIM IILISIP INO 10j UOIBULIOJUT 31} SUISN JNOCE SUOISSNISIP 0] PI[ SIY], "B1qeH BT jO

£ a1 J10J B1Ep dA1susyR1dwod apiaoad 03 J9plo ur syuspnis uariedtapury 03 (1qd) xepu] [eyuswido[asq ATedq a3 Joistutupe
0] PaYSE U3YM UOISSIWWO,) SAI[IUIe,] pue ualp[iy) :A1uno) aguel( Al 3SI1] 3Y) YIIM PIA[OAUL SWEISQ I SN Jey

1e [00Y0sa1d B 11M PIEM.IOJ 9AOW 03 A[qEUN JI2M dM ‘0Z0Z JO YoIey ul swerdord mau 03 Suipuny Jo 3UIZaal) ) Y "Sal|IuIe)
INO WO.j PIauU B Sk paynuapl sem siyy ‘orwepued ay3 310j2q uaad Suisod eate sy U1 spooydsaid omy Yap ‘wesdoad jooyosaud
papunj-91e3s e 10j 9100 3[qepUN] B PAAI9IAI pue Joj parjdde pey IDLISIP 3Y3 ‘0Z0Z JO Y2IB Ul S2.MSO[D [00YdS Y] 03 10Lid
‘spaau [erads y31m SjUapNIS 3D1AIS 03 [00YdsaId € sund os[e PLISIp Y], 9IS AIejuawia[s yoes Je pausdo Uasq dAeY SISSE[D
uayIeSIopury [EUONISURL], ‘S84 MaJ ISE[ 93 J9A(Q "SIUIPNIS SUIWIodu] 10J S[[BS Ssaulpeas [ooyds dofeasp 03 sapunitoddo
210U ap1a0.1d 0] SPaSU JUIO| [[9MO’] B3 JUSPIAD dW0D3] SV I ‘SIedA M3 ISe] 9l I9A0 PIYIYS dAEY SPIIU AIUNWWIOD 3] SY

Z TV0D dVDT-Aoerar] Apreq

1Z07Z-1UeIy) SSOUIANIYJH J1ojednpy




‘s1eak SuIOD aY] Ul SJU3PNIS Suldey SaSUI||BYD PaLieA Y3 PUEB UOIIUBAIRIUI BUIPI3U STUSPNIS JO JBquInU 1918348 3y3 Y104 ssappe 031 paudisap
SuOI1o. [EUOKIPPE SE [j9M Se Jiwdpued ayy 03 Jold siuapnis Sunioddns Ajnjssaddns usag aney jeyl s9a110e4d Sul08uo ay3 JO SWOS d.e |eo3

SIY} ul pajuasaldal oS I ndip Sululed] upjew sisliieq Jaylo pue ‘Suiuses| saue)sIp Ul @2130ead |euoilINASUL Ul SZueYd ‘Buljooyds paidnuisiul
01 anp padojanap Ajjny uaag dAeY Jou ABW 1YL $13S ||1S punoJe 3ulules) 1o} sanunjioddo apinoid 03 de|d 9xel 03 pasu Aew jeyl uoidnisul
1534 ‘15413 18] Ul saSueyp jeipusiod 0} uoiuANE BY1 S| JueLodwl Se ISN( 'SeaJe 53] Ul PISU PISEAIDU! BY) pue SJUSPN3S INO 104 1X23U0D JUBIINI
ay) uaAI8 sease asay} ySirods 03 Juepodwi sem 31 ‘Loddns Jo WaISAS PISIL-IINIAL BY3 UM [[B) 353U S)IUM ‘Aoes2117 Aje3 10} pue sjuapnis
JO SP3U Y1|RAH |BIUBIAl PUB [EUOIIOW [B1D0S 3Y} 10J PIlIIUP! UBS] dAeY sjeo8 pajadiel asow 12ads “1eaA j00Yds 7z0g-TZ0T 2Yi ul dwn

Ny sasndwied 03 uinial am se 3ulag-|jom pue Yyimoud s,3uspnis Joj UI3du0d passaidxa aney siapioyajiels ||y “uonendod Juapnis INo 4O spasu
SuiSueyd-JaAa ay) pue elep uo paseq paulyds Sulag AjJueISUOD St WIsAs ||BISA0 3Y L 'SPI3U Y} ESH [EIUSIA/jBUOIIOWT |BIDOS MOU pUR JoIARYIg
1oy spoddns ay3 apjoey 03 uedaq am ‘a3eyd ul Ind 219M SWIsAs 9SOY] SY ‘PISU UO PISEq SIUSPNIS JO sdnoig pajasiel a1ow ‘Ja)jews ssaippe o} ul
paJaAe| pue pado|anap a1am (g 4a1L pue g Ja11) suoddns [euoilppe uayl T JoIL SB UMOUX Osje si Sy "Sjuspnis 40 Ajolew ay3 jo spasu ayl 12w
PINOM 1B} WOOJSSE|I Y3 Ul UOKONIISUI 1599 ‘1S414 Loddns 01 SaAleIul 3PIM-1ILIASIP SuiAiuap! yum uesaq yiom ay] ‘(SSLIN) voddns jo wa1sAs
paJalL-1NIAl B JO B|j2quin Ja8Je| 3y} Japun SIeaA M3y 15e| 3y} JIA0 BuluIeD| |BUOHOWS |BIJ0S pue ‘J01ABYD( ‘SOILWIBPEIE U} SJuapnis oy Joddns
JO s|aAa} Jeajd Suidojanap UO SN0y B U] SeY 213y} ‘IHISIQ |00YIS JUIOF |[IMOT Y3 UIYIIM SIUSPNIS |[e JO Spasu anbiun ay3 193w 01 JapJ0o U|

¥ TV0D dvDT1-310oddng Jo wialsAS paJalL-BNNA

000°00T B34V SIy} Ul |e3o| paldafoid
sjuawaaide
jueynsuod 3[qissod pue '6-0 sade ualpjiyd Yyum saijiwe; Suioddns
000°0€ $3924n0SaJ ‘saynusqns ‘Bujutes] pue syuapnis [00ydsaud Joy sad1oeld 158 punose JUSWAO|IAIP |eUOISS3J0.d
sjuswaaJde
jueynsuod 3[qissod pue
000'SE $924N0saJ ‘sa1nyIsqns ‘Suiutes] ‘looyasaud 10} gy19 322[0.d ul Buiuiel |,
$92JN0s3a (Z-35:DSV) |euoilOwW [B120S (S8J1eUUO0IISaND
000°‘S pue ‘sainsqns ‘Sujuies) so3els pue sa8y pue (€-DSY) $241BUUOIISIND sage1s pue s93y uo 3ujuied)
"Buiulea) 104 USISAP |ESIDAIUN PUE ‘SJUDBPNIS SPIBU (RIS YUM
sjuswaaide Sunjiom 1oy s31891..35 ‘sao1eId SAISN|OUI UO YR)S J0j Bulule.) 91BHISSIIAU ||IM
jueynsuod 9|qissod pue syl jooyasasd uoneanpa |eads ay3 woy uappyd age jooydsald wealjsulew
000°0€ ‘s321n0saJ ‘saInyisqns ‘Sulutes| 01 3| 3¢ ||!M 12L3SIP 3y} ‘tooydsasd uonednpa jesauas e jo Juiuado syl Yyum
SS2UIAIIIAYT 101E2NP] 10} sasuadx] pauuejd uonduisag

Juawdo|aA3ap POOYP|IY2 1O ‘UOREINPA POOYP|IYD AjJES Ul SI0JEINPS PAKISSE|d PUB PAIEIILIaD 10) S3IFa1e.1s pue ‘UoneINpd ‘UoldNAsU| "0T#

‘Aduapijoad ajesal|iq

1Z07Z-1URID SSaUIANIJYJH J0)ednpy




pUE [E4N}|ND 3SISAIP SAN|BA JBY} 2UO 0} 24N}N3 S,3)Is-]ooyds e Sujuiojsuel) ‘poddns Jo swalshs pasan-nnw ‘spoddns Jesoiaeyaq aanyisod
3uipinoad ‘seiq 3o1dwi punoJe Sujuiesy ‘ad13snl 9A13EI0ISI ‘03 PaNWI| Jou N ‘Bulpnjoul ‘a3ewl|d |00YIs aniysod e 218212 03} saddeld “GH

‘Suiaqg-jjam j1dnd anoaduwi jey) sayoeoadde Jayro
pue ‘S22IAJ9S Y){EaY [EIUSW O} SSIIIE ‘UOIIUAA3Id apidINs ‘sad13oeid pawniojul-etunel) ‘Sulules) jeuoljows-|epos uawajdwi 03 sa1891e01S ‘it

-Suluses) pajesajadde o) peaj pue sjidnd ade3uaa. Jey) saidajel)s pue sadlpdeld "€

-3ouaIds Ja3ndwod pue ‘sopewsaylew ‘Suliasuisud ‘Adojouyaal ‘adudlds ‘@ud1dS jeos-Atolsiy ‘sue aSendue| ysijdu3
Suipnpoui ‘sease 109[gns ||e ssosde Adeiali) Ul UOIINIISUI dA0idwi pue uoIdNIISU] paudije-spiepuels ‘an1103)49 0) ped)| Jey) sweidold “z#

*3ouariadxa Sulydea) woolssed |njSujueaw

e ul 25e3ua 03 sJ03e2NPa 104 SARIUNWWOD Sulules| Suuoddns pue ‘s13l0 pue §|3s ,9U0 INOGE S$§31|13q pue sSpnjIe 1aydes} Suinoadwiy
‘sjinis Supjew uoisPdp a|qisuodsaa pue ‘sdiysuone|al ‘ssauaieme |e10S quawoSeuew-4|as ‘ssoualeme-}|9s Jaydea} Suijowoud ‘0} papwl]
30U Inq ‘Suipnjoul ‘Sujuiea)| [eUOIIOW-[BID0S punoie paziuesio swajsAs 3ulydeod pue }Ieqpady painidnils Suiiayo pue ‘siayaeal Suiulelas
uo sndoy e Yyim suonendod [idnd jje aa1as ued Jey) S1aYdeal Joj pasu |BI0] B SSAIppE jeyl suoiRnjos Sunojuaw pue 3uiydeod ‘o3 pajiwi|

10U Ing ‘Sulpnjoul ‘UoKdNPU] JOJRASIUIWPE JO Jayded) SuluuiSaq pue SuilIas [euoildnisul ue ut Suinias yeis jo Sulojusw pue 3ulyoeo) T
'VINALIHD SSAINTAILIIIET HOL1vINa3

“SJUBIUOJIAUD SuluJea| |nj1dadsal ‘aAisod ‘AjJaplo ‘ajes pue ‘@a1n9s Ayijenb ysiy Buipiaoid yes Anjenb ysiH ‘voneaunwiwio)

pue sdiysiauiied Aylunwwo)/Ajiwed/|ooyds ‘83us||30x3 diwapedy punole suolje123dxa pleog 1@3w 0} paudisap sl |eos3 s1y) ‘[9A3) |ed0)

euQ ‘(sawodnQ |idnd) sawonn jidnd 19410 :8 Alioud pue ‘(Sululea jo SUONIPUO)) SS320Y 3sIN0) :£ Aioud ‘(Juswadesdul) azewt|) [ooyds
:9 Ajiond ‘(3uawagesu3) uswadedu] uapms :§ Aliold ‘(Suluses jo SUOIIPUO)) SpaepuR]S 1B 17 SAIIL0L 91B1S 4407 9yl sassalppe syl

“1e2/A SUILLOD 3] 1O SUOISIIAP Yew O] ‘Mou 3|ge[ieae SuiL0d( S YdIym

‘e1ep AAIIBWIWING DY 4T3 PUe BIep JYgS Jua.ind azAjeue 01 SN MO||e OSje [{IM SIYL -spoddns Jaulea) ysiju3 Jno o3 suswisnipe Asessadau Aue yum
1e9A [00Y2s 7Z0Z-T20T Y} Suluui8aq 10} JSWWINS 3Y) JSA0 Y1im ue|d 0} UOIeLIIOJUI BUII3SE] SB BIEP 3} 1B YOOj ||IM am ‘1e2A 3Y3 JO 1IN0 350)2
3Y1 YA "SIU3 JOJ MOJ|B 30U PIP S3INSOJD [00YIS pue gIAOD 03 np sAejap ‘Janamoy ‘sasodind Suiuue)d 10j Arenugad uj eyep ayy aaey 0} padoy
pey o\ “1edA 1xau S13uJed)| Ysij8u3 N0 J0) SNJ0J 3Y} SUIWIIIIBP 01 JUBISSISSE SHUIT SV 3Y) WoJj e1ep sy} Sunenjead AjJuauund aJe I\ “||aMm se
YINOA J31S04 INO JO SPI3U [BUOIIOWI-OID0S PUE JIWIPEIE. Y} Y}0g JOHUOW 0} 3NUIIUOD 0} JUBM B\ "SjUapNls paSejueapes|q Aj|e21WOU0301308
pue siautea) ysySu3 Jno 1oy anul Ajje1aadsa si Sty “101ISIP Y3 104 SBLIDAR ||RISAO 34} MO|3q 3Je ey sdno.g juapnis asay) Jof Sulojuow

pue 110ddns pa1asie} 210w 10§ MOJ(E ||IM YIIYM ‘Sdan Jno 4oy spuoddns jedidojoydAsd pue Suijasunod [euollppe awos Suippe aJe IM "Yimou3
Sujutejurew o} pasoddo se deS JuawsAsiyde 3y} SSOJI 0} SIUSPNIS JOJ UOIIUDAISIUL [RUOINIPPE 3pIAId 0 paau e Ajeajd s1 auayy ‘aead uond sy
woJy spoddns sy} paulelulew am SIYA "SS1JIGRSIJ UM SJUIPNIS PUe SIau1ea] ysijSul Jno Joj SUOITUSAISIUI pUe SIDIAISS [euoilIppe Suidojanap
1B 3\ 'S|9A3] ||B 1B SIUSPNIS JO Spaau 3y Suissaippe Jo sueaw SuloSuo ue aq 03 sanuuod poddns Jo W31SAS pPalall-I}NN ||BJDA0 Jn0 Fululyay

T Z207Z-3uelrn SSouaAld3J]y J10jednpi




$92JN0S34 [eUOIIINIISUI 3y} 03Ul ASojouyda) 31e3a3ul 01 Alessadasu st Suliouaw pue
000°0T pue ‘sa1n1sqns ‘Suules| ‘Suijapow ssej-u1 ‘Suryoeod SujoSuo ‘SadIASP |BI1S0jOUYI} Ul 3SEUDUL 3YL YU

SaAleniul spim

-10141S1P UO SJBped| J3Yydea)
dojansp 01 saiunuoddo
Jauiel) Jo Jauled|

*sJ1aad

SJaydea) mau 4oBO0I pUE J0IUSW 0} SI3PEe3| Jaydeal Joj saljunlioddo se ||am se Suiuuejd-0o

Joj poddns pue jedipuld pue Suilapow SSe[o-ul Joj SYSOL wodj oddns sapnppul siyl "1IMISIP Y3 UIYyHm

00002 M3U 3u0 1o} Suydeo) slojelisiulpe pue siaydeal mau 1o} Loddns 3uiydeod pue Suliojuaw 3pirold

SSBUIAIIAY] Jolednp] Joj sasuadx] pauue|d uondiasag

w:iS:«E c:w m:——_umou

102 om mcsq uo peas :o_uumm jeyl se mm mcm._...._m :o_uumm ._oE._e _ocm...
‘0202 ‘O duN[ UO Pe3J SUOI}DIIS BSOY] Se ‘£°9ZZTS UO01IAS 0} Juensind pajdope wnNdLIND [9pow 3y} pue ‘TT°S0909 PUe ‘8°50909 ‘v°S0909
‘€'50909 ‘2°S0909 ‘T°S0909 ‘S0909 ‘9ZZTS SU0112as 03 Juensind pajdope spiepuels Jua)UOD JjWapede 3y} 03 paudije aq ‘a|qedyjdde sy (z)
‘uoljelnp paulelsns Jo 3q pue ‘uoilda|}al pue )Ieqpaady 1a)jo ‘Loddns
1adxa pue Suiydeod apinoad ‘93130e4d 3AIIBYD JO S|apow 3sh ‘uoneloge)jod Hoddns ‘Sujuses) aA1de djesodiodut ‘pasnioy Juauod ag (1)
:8uimojjos ay3
JO Y304 Op [jeYs UOI3I3S Iy} 0} Juensind papinoad Suiulea| [euoissajoud “Sujules| |euoissajoud o saido) Jo d1do) ay3 Ajipuapi 03 Jels JuUajuod
pue 2}IS|00Yds MOjje 0} paSeinodua ae sapuade [ruoiIEINPA [BI0] ‘spaau jidnd pue J01eINnpa s}2aw JuawdoaA3Pp |euoissajoad ainsus o] (2)
‘() uoisiaipgns Jo syuawaJiinbaJ ay3
poddns 03 y4om3au Suluiea] jeuoissajoid paje|as-uoileanpa ue uj padeSua Apealje J0u S103eINP3 10} SHI0MIdU Suluied) |euoissajoid MaN “g#

*Asudpjoad ajesanjiq
pue |en3uljiq aseatoui 03 Aydeded SujuayiSuaals pue Sulpjing pue ‘seale JU33U0D SS0IOe pue UlyIM Judwdoldaaap aSen3uel pajesdalul
apnpui Aew yaym ‘siduled] ysidu3 Joy swesSoad uonisinbdoe aSenSue| aa1309442 Sunuawajdwi poddns 0} uoI1EINP3 pue UOIIINASU] "L

‘spaau |euondacxa Ym s|enpiaipul 10j swelSoad uoljeanpa pazijenplaipul J0 Juawdojaaap pue
‘uonyesiyyuapi Ajies 10y saddesd 3saq ‘Sujusea) 104 uSisap [BSIaAIUN ‘0) pajiwi| 30U Ing ‘Suipnipul ‘sadizded aAISN|dUL dAodw) 0] sa1dalens “9#

‘uoNeIUSLIO [BNXSS 10 ‘UoISHa4 “A3IDIUY3a 40 adea ‘Ajijeuonieu ‘a8enSue| ‘uotlssaldxa 1opuas ‘Ayijuapl Japuad ‘Japuas ‘Ayjigesip Suipnjoul
‘sa1s14910R.IBYD PAAIRIIad JO [BNYOE UO paseq uolepiwiul pue ‘SulA|ng ‘quawisseley ‘uoljeuIwISIp Suluaaald pue ‘spunoidxydeq dtuyls

1Z07Z-1URIN) SSaUIANDIJJJF J03ednpy



000°0Y

13Ye Sujuiesy 1o} sinoy
pied jeuollippe 40 pue ‘s1sod
31N31ISQNS ‘S93) JURYNSUOD

‘Bululed] 01 SJ21IIEQ JIWIPEILUOU JB3Y10 pue ‘yljeay
jelusw ‘Joiaeyaq 1oy uonuasialul Suipinoad Ag ssniuniioddo Suiuies) |njSuluesw
ul syuapnis 98e8ua-al 01 |08 Auewiid e se Jjels J0) ygy ul Sululel) jeuoilppy

SS2U3AAI}IY3] J0jeINp] J0) sasuadxy pauue|d

uonduasag

souiodinQ jrdnd

000001 231V SIY} Ul |e30] pa)da(oid
1VO-
(4eaA yoea Hog¢ Suiuaea Joj udisaqg |essaalun-
e s1eaA ¢) aAleniul siy3 uo Apeayi-
Supjiomiau soyoea)y Juoddns Suluui8ag ay3y wouy 1AA-
0} wiopre|d Ayunwiwo) sdey Supjuiyl-
Suiuisea sdey Sunjuiyy }4O0MISN SSLIN-
DAL 2Y3 sapnjoaul siyl (av1o 1aloud) udisag uonsinbay a8en3ueq papino -
{(1g3) uondNNsu| PG HINdXI-
$324N0sal $301N0S3Y [BUOISSDJOId-
pue ‘syuejjnsuod ajqissod uiuies s|qISIA-
000'S€? ‘sa1n11Isqns ‘Suiuiel| :01 payIWi} 10U Ing Bupn|dui ‘sadndesd 1saq 104 1oddns o/pue Suiutey 3ulo8uQ
‘swesSoud uonuaaIalul udisap pue ‘sad11oead 1saq
000°s? $32JN0S3aJ pue sa1nsqns noge anSojeip ‘ssasSoud uapnis Joliuow 03 Aleindal 91e400e||0d ||IM Siaydea)
$92JN0S3. ‘av1o 123(oud pue wessoid aSen8ueq jenqg sy}
pue ‘syueynsuod ajqissod | 1oy poddns sapnjoui Sy “spiepuels i3 2yl pue ‘suoddns uolusAlalul ‘sjelsarew
000°00T ‘saniiisqns ‘Suiuiel) Suipn)oui ssaused) yst8u3z yum 3upiom oy poddns pue Suiuiesy SuiosuQ
'dvo18yljo g
|EOD) 10} UOIID3S A3 J3pun papnjoul si IAYILS Sunadiel Juswdojaasp |euotssajoud
J4193ds ay3 JO awoS *sease 133[gns |je ssouoe Juswdojansp Adessll| Loddns
saounosal | 01 SuluuiSag ayl woly ayuAA pue sdejy Supjuiy) 104 Joddns Sui03uo sapnjdul siy|
000°0T pue ‘sainyiisqns ‘Suluies] ‘spJepue)s a3e3s ul Juawdo|anap |euoissajold |euonippe apinoid

SS9UIAIILYT 10}8INp]T 404 sasuadx3y pauue|d

uondunsag

uonoNnsuj pausdijy splepuels

‘weidoud

1 Z0Z-1UkIy SSIUIANIIJJT 10jeInpq




*VI¥3LIY) SSINIAILII443 HOLVYONA3

*221/3s Allenb ysiy Suipiaoad geas Aljenb ySiH pue 92uU3)|32X3 JIWSPRIY PUNOLB SU0I1R}I3dXa Pieog 183W 01 pau3Isap SI [e03 SiY) ‘|9A3| [eIO|
B UQ (SPW02InQ |1dnd) SBW021nQ |1dNnd J13Y30 8 AllIoud pue ‘(Sujuiea Jo SUOIIPUOD) $S922Y 3sIn0) 1/ Ajliold ‘(Juswadedul) a1ew)|) jooyds
:9 Alond ‘(auawadedu]) Juswade3du] Juapnis :§ Aluold ‘(3ujuiesT JO SUoIPUOD) Spiepuels B)eI1S 17 S3II0N 31eIS 4407 Y3 SIssalppe siyL

"sa1ljiqe pue sjuale} anbiun 118yl 35eIMOYS 01 S13]1N0 pue santunyoddo

diysiapes| ‘AVILS pue SuIpod ‘S1ie 3yl PUE JiSNW 0} SSBIIE 3ABY PINOYS SIUIPNIS || JBY) 9A31|a] 0} SNUIIU0D SN “uoijedidilied 1o) uonedyiuapl
31V9 aJinbas 1ou op jeyi sainunyioddo Juswyduua Suineald pue ‘Aep ay3 ulylm uoidnlsul 3oedwi 01 SJUIPNIS JLYO Yyum Suppiom Joj saonoesd
153Q Ul Ss13yoea] [|e Suiuiel) ‘UoIIRIIIIUBP! JLYD JO) SWIOU [BIO] pUe Saunseaw ajdiynw SapN|dul 1By} WIISAS UOI1EIIIIUBPI BAISUBYaIdwod

e Suidojanap S1101ISIP 3Y3 ‘PUIW UI SIYY YIUAA "SIUSPNIS T1VO paiyiuap) Ajjewsoy 1snf 01 ssadoe Suniwi| 10u sjiym weissosd 3AIS9YO0D 310w e pue
saijiunyioddo a1ow dojanap 01 pasu am eyl yoeqpasy papinoid aaey syualed pue yjels ylog ‘wesdoid 31y9 pazijewloy e 1noyim jusawdolansp
juaje} pue Juawyduiua uoddns 03 swesSoid ppe 01 PaNUITUOD SBY JUIOf [[9MO] ‘IOLIISIP B Sy "10U 9Je 9Wos pue apiaoid 01 3|ge aJe saijiue)

awos 1eyl shemyied 03 Ssad2e a1inbas uayo YaIym s||iys Ainjuad 1sTz dojanap pue adualadxa 031 [00YIS JO apIsIno saiiunlioddo 03 ssadde |enbs
BABY SIUBPNIS || 10U Jeyl diwapued ayl Sulnp 1UuapiAd AJA dWeIaq } ‘S3WOY SWOdUI MO| WOoJJ BUILLOI SIU3PNIS INO JO %0t UBYl 210W YHAA

G [R0Y dV)T-Iuawido[aaa( [[S AINJua) ISTZ PUE JUIWILIUT

000°€S

eaJy SIy} Ul [e30 ) pardaloid

000°¢

‘papasau
1 S1S02 91NISgNs pue
uoljensi3al 104 ase spun4
"1500 [RWIUIW 1B P3IBJ0
s3uluieu} [eauswajddns
aJe 219y} 1anamoy

“Juess ay3 y3nouayy 10y pied
2Je $3502 J0 Alsofew ay|

*AJuno) asuesQ 03 SUIAOW BIUIS SN J0J HI0MIBU MBU B S| YdIYm
‘(3ueJ8 $321A13S Y3jeay jeruaw) YSSHIA 3000 343 y3nouyl 1oddns pue Suluies)

000°s

‘|leod

poddng Jo waisAs paJal]
-BINIA 8yl Japun dvJ1 =yl Jo
1ed se papnjaul aJe siyl 4o}
$1S02 |RUOINPPY 'S2INISONS
pue uotiessi3al 104 S1S0D

‘seaJe 3sayi ui spoddns apiaosd 01 SwWooussed
01Ul ysnd 1eyy suiajut yoAsd pue Suiasunod sapnjoul siyj “Sululesj jeuoizows
je100s pue ‘a3130e.d pawiojul-ewned) ‘Sigd uo Jeis o) Juawdo|aAIp jBUOISSD401d

000°s

"S91N1ISQNS pue uojjesisisdal

10J S1502 Yy1IM 3000
y3noayl pasayo ujuies)

-Buiyoeay-od punoue
s19y2ea} 4o} s1ioddns yum 3uoje spaau |e12ads yHm S1uspnis JNo Yim SuiyIom
Ul S|9poW papua|q 40} $31393e41S |BUOIIONIISUI UO JUBWAO|SAIP [BUOISSBLO01d

|[ooyds

1 Z0Z-IUe.I5) SSaUdANIJJT 103ecnpy




"IV.LOL

L60°€€9$

000001 B3JY SIY3 Ul |eYO] pajdslold
"yuo} 0s pue sdn-}as uaa.ds uaI3
-saiunuoddo | ‘siaiund Q€ ‘WOOISSE|D 3Y) U) SPJeOg JIUOSMBIA ‘Bulpod Joj $1000z0 pue sosayds
juawdojanap |euoissajosd | i SduaLIBAX3 UO-Spuey ul syuspnls age3ua 01 3|qe|ieAR $321N0S3J 3} JO dWOS
|eusajul 03 uolippe | uo Sujuied) SIPNJOUI SIY] "SPJEPUR]S BAJE JUU0I JO Sulpuelsiapun daap dojanap
ul 3N SE Ydns saouatdjuod 01 sAem |njSulueaw u] weaSoad [euondnaisul syl uiyum ASojouyray ajesdajul
00009 | pue s3uluien) 1e dULPUINY 0] Auessadau st Suiuiesy Sulo8uo ‘sad1Aap |e3180j0uyIa} Ul BSeIIIUI BY) YU
‘8uiuiesy jennul
01 dn mo|jo} Suio8uo ay) jo Hed se ul s1edidiied o] ajge aJe s1aydeal 1eyl 3410
'saINUISgNS ySnouyl HI40MIaN JLYO MU e st auayL “AjSuipiodde uoidniisut alelusIayIp
pue JueljNsuod apn|dul UBJ pue SJ2Uled) pajuadle) pue payid Jo spaau anbiun ay) spuelsiapun
$1500) "SI3UIDIIS [BSIBAIUN oym Jayoeal paijijenb AjySiy e 01 SS930. SARY ||IM SJUIPNIS ||B 1RY] SAUNSU3 SIY |
3y} JO uonessiuiwpe | "s1ayoeal j|e ules) 03 Juepodwi si 1 ‘9IS 1ad jaA3) apes3 e je s1aydea) om) AjjedidAy
ul Suiuiesl pue Y3IM J0L1SIP [[BWIS B S "SIUPNIS ||€ S)1JaU] WO0ISSe|d 3y Ul 1031 JO S|aA3)
000°0¥ Suiuiey vonead) 31V ysSiy pue Supjuiyl (oD poddns 01 Ayixajdwod pue yidap ul siaydes) Sululesy

SS9UIAII3M ] Jojednp] 10} sasuadxgy pauue|d

uonduasag

*(2) uoisialpgns jo syuawaJinbal ay3

poddns 0} y4omiau Sululea) jeuoissajold pajejal-uolzeonpa ue ui paSeSua Apeadje Jou S103eINPD 10} SHI0M]IBU Sululed] [euoissagold MaN g#

‘3uiuied) pajesaadde o} pedp pue sjidnd aSe8usaad jey) satdajelys pue sadoeld ‘g#

*22ua2s Ja3ndwod pue ‘saijewaylew ‘Suliaauidua ‘ASojouyday ‘@aualds ‘aIudlds |eDos-Alolsiy ‘sue adendue) ysijSul
Suipnpui ‘seaJe 323[gns |je ssoJde Adelay| ul uodNJIsuUl dAosdw] pue uondNIIsUl pausdije-spiepuels ‘9A1329449 0} ped] Jey) sweisSold “Zi

TZ207-lUe.lr) SSOU9AI}Ial]H J0)JednpH




LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Authorization to Utilize National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance ACTION

Agreement with Howard Technology Solutions, a Division of
Howard Industries, Inc., (RFP #11-15, Contract 01-45) for the
Purchase of Electronic Display Technology at Jordan Elementary

Backeround and Current Considerations:

The National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance (NCPA) program contracts are established using products,
services, and prices from already existing competitively assessed and cost compared to multiple award
contracts. Public Contract Code Section 10298 allows public agencies including K-12 schools, to utilize such
contracts without going to bid. NCPA Contract #01-45 with Howard Technology Solutions, a Division of
Howard Industries, Inc., is approved to utilize the above NCPA contract for the purchase, warranty, and
installation of electronic display technology as-needed by the District. The NCPA contract with Howard
Technology Solutions, a Division of Howard Industries, Inc., has been extended and is valid October 1, 2015
through October 31, 2023.

Upon acceptance and approval of the NCPA contract with Howard Technology Solutions, a Division of
Howard Industries, Inc., by the Board of Trustees, the District will execute the necessary authorization and
issue the requisite purchase order(s).

Financial Implications:

The cost of the equipment is $19,288.24 for the marquee at Jordan Elementary. Installation will be through
Erickson-Hall Construction on an add services basis. Costs associated with this agreement will be paid out of
Fund 40.0 Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects

Financial Impact: $19,288.24

Funding Source: Fund 40.0 Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects
Fund 21.0 Measure LL General Obligation Fund

Recommendation:

It is recommended that authorization to utilize the NCPA contract with Howard Technology Solutions, a
Division of Howard Industries, Inc., (RFP #11-15, Contract 01-45) for the Purchase of Electronic Display
Technology at Jordan Elementary be approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to
execute the necessary documents.

DB/ds

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

IX-Al-1



5 i i

Region XIV Education Service Center

1850 Highway 351
Abilene, TX 79601-4750
325-675-8600

FAX 325-675-8659

Thursday, July 1%, 2021

Howard Technology Solutions

ATTN: Yareasia D. Ellis

PO Box 1590

Laurel, MS 39441

Re: Annual Renewal of NCPA contract #01-45

Dear Robert:

Region XIV Education Service Center is happy to announce that Howard Technology
Solutions has been awarded a two-year term contract renewal for Technology Solutions based

on the proposal submitted to Region XIV ESC.

The contract will expire on October 31%, 2023, completing the eighth year of a possible eight
year term. If your company is not in agreement, please contact me immediately.

If you have any questions or concerns, feel free to contact me at 325-675-8600.

Sincerely,

S Akl

Shane Fields
Region XIV, Executive Director



Phone;: 1.888.912.3151 Howard Computers

Fax: 1.601.399.5077 " P.O. Box 1588
Online: www.howardcomputers.com Laurel, MS 39441

TECHNOLOGY SOLUTIONS

Online Quotation

Quote No: KJ2 1160752.00 Quote Date: November 08, 2021
Customer Name: Alan Mao Phone Number: 5629430211
Company Name: Lowell Joint School District Fax Number:
Quote Name: Optec Displays
Category Description Qty. Unit Price Ext. Price
System Type: Accessories
1: Display Specifications Product Line: Infinity LED Pixel Pitch: 10.0mm Matrix Size: 120 x 256

Viewing Area: 3' 11 1/4' x 8' 4 13/16' Cabinet Size: 3' 11 1/4' x 8' 4 13/16' x 6 11/16' Color:

RGB Color Processing: RGB 281 Trillion Levels-M LED's per pixel: Red: 1 Green: 1 Blue: 1

Total # of LED's: 92160 Character Size: 2.75 Inches # of Lines/Char. Line; 17 line(s), 42

characters Brightness: 8000 NIT's (+-5%) Viewing Angle: 160 Degrees Horizontal Display

Configuration: Single Face (1 Cabinet - Master) Maintenance Door: Front Cabinet Design: 1 $17,495.00 $17,495.00
Module Display Net Weight: 393,94 Ibs. per face (+/- 10%) Ventilation: Rear Vent Standard

Features Dimming Levels: 100 - Auto & Manual Dimming/Temp. Sensor: Included Crate:

Included Software: MeCloud Software Upgrade: 5 Years Software Upgrades Software

Training: Webinar

MPN: HB 10mm SMD Full Color

Sub-Total: $17,495.00

Shipping & Handling : Included
Taxes: $1,793.24

Enviromental Fee: $0.00
Total for ltem 1: $19,288.24

This quote will expire December 08, 2021.
To expedite your order, please include your quote number with your Purchase Order.

Total for all pre-configured items

Sub-Total: $17,495.00

Shipping & Handling : Included
Taxes: $1,793.24

Enviromental Fee: $0.00
Total: $19,288.24

Notes:
Payment Term: 50% Deposit

Pricing and availability subject to change without notice. Packaging, Shipping, and Handling fees are not included unless
specifically stated. Prices and lease payments do not include applicable taxes. Ship dates are approximations and are not
guarantees. Quick ship items not available in Alaska, Hawaii, or outside the United States. Specific state laws may affect
shipment of products.

Any order for kiosks must be canceled prior to 21 days from the scheduled date of shipment to avoid incurring a 50% cancellation
fee. Any cancellation made within that 21-day window will automatically incur a charge equivalent to 50% of the tota! kiosk order
being canceled.



Howard reserves the right to charge a 25% restocking fee for cancellation of a purchase order after Howard has commenced
fulfillment of the order. Howard may, with notice, cancel any purchase order at any time without any liability to the Purchaser.
Howard reserves the right to charge the Purchaser full purchase price for delaying shipment of a purchase order for an extended
period of time which then results in the cancellation of said order.

Given the current uncertainties related to international trade, Howard hereby reserves the right to unilateraily revise the prices
quoted herein in the event its manufacturing or procurement costs for such goods increase due to the imposition by the United
States or any other country of new or higher tariff(s) or of any other similar tax, fee or charge.

If Purchaser fails to pay any invoice in full within the time quoted herein, Howard may, without notice, accelerate the due date of
all outstanding invoices and require that all outstanding invoices, including any interest thereon, be immediately due and payable
in full.

Howard's product warranties and return policies and related information, which are available at
https:/iwww.howardcomputers.com/support/warranties.cfm and https://www.howardcomputers.com/support/returnpolicy.cfm, are
fully adopted and incorporated herein by reference. These may also be obtained by calling 1-888-912-3151 or emailing
webmaster@howardcomputers.com.

THIS QUOTATION IS EXPRESSLY LIMITED TO, AND EXPRESSLY MADE CONDITIONAL ON, PURCHASER'S ACCEPTANCE
OF THE TERMS SET FORTH OR INCORPORATED HEREIN; HOWARD OBJECTS TO ANY DIFFERENT OR ADDITIONAL
TERMS.



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From:  Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject: Ratification of Change Order No. 3 with Silver Creek Industries ACTION/

for Relocation of Gas Line on the Modular Building Project at (RATIFICATION)
Jordan Elementary School

Background:

On June 11, 2018, the Lowell Joint School District Board of Trustees approved Resolution 2018-19
No. 724 ordering a School Bond Election. On November 6, 2018, the voters in the Lowell Joint
School District passed measure LL. A part of Measure LL includes the repairs and upgrades to
District facilities. This expenditure is subject to the purview of the Citizens Bond Oversight
Committee.

Current Considerations:

On May 3, 2021, the Board of Trustees approved the contract with Silver Creek Industries
for $3,680,506.94 for the purchase and installation of Division of State Architect (DSA)
approved modular buildings. During the placement of the buildings it was noted that the gas
line to the Administrative building required re-routing. Change Order No. 3 addresses the
issue.

Financial Implications:

Financial Impact: $2,652.73
Funding Source: Measure LL General Obligation Fund — Fund 21.0
Recommendation:

It is recommended that the Board of Trustees ratify Change Order No 3 with Silver Creek Industries
for the Modular Building Project at Jordan Elementary School, effective December 14, 2021, through
December 13, 2022, not to exceed $2,652.73, (21.0-00000-0-00000-85000-6230-0000400), Measure
LL, (21.0 Bond Fund), and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

IX-B1-1



=" SILVER
CREEK

Building for the Next Generation

Change Order 3

Owner Change Order E In House Change Order :

Date: Monday, November 29, 2021
Project Name: 11361 - Jordan ES
Owner: Lowell Joint School District

Silver Creek Industries Inc. proposes to furnish all material and labor to perform the following at 8

the above stated site for the sum of: ey
Description Of Work: |Reroute gas line and stub out at Admin building per District's request and preference.

Total of all Sub Contractor Work: $ 1,912.00

Sub Contractor Markup: 5% S 95.60

Sub Total: $ 2,007.60

Total Work by General $ 340.00 See Page 2
General Contractor Markup: 15% S 51.00

Sub Total: S 391.00

Total Work to be Completed $ 2,398.60

Sales Tax (60% exclusion) 9.50% S 227.87

Sub Total S 2,626.47

Bonds not to exceed 1% 3 26.26

Grand Total: S 2,652.73

This Change Order will Require 3 Additional Days to complete this project and are included in this COR
* Not including days accrued from the date COR is submitted and
returned to originator, signed & approved.

Submitted By: Karen Barzilai Date: 11/29/21
Project Manager
Title
Approved By: Date:
Title

2830 Barrett Ave. Perris, CA 92571 Phone: (951) 943-5393  Fax: (951) 943-2211



Item Quanity  Cost Per Qty Total

Site Labor Reroute Gas line in Admin building 1 $ 1,912.000 $ 1,912.00
Site Labor Remove and Reinstall Exterior Sheathing 4 $ 85.000 $ 340.00



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Agreement with California School ACTION

Boards Association, for Gamut Services (Gamut
Meetings and Policy) and Policy Development
Workshop for the District Beginning in the
2021/2022 School Year.

GAMUT Meetings is an online agenda and meeting management system that gives the
District an easy and efficient way to create and manage meetings online. GAMUT’s
paperless board meeting management application helps streamline meeting preparation and
provides easy and secure access to meeting materials. Features include: multiple meeting
types that allow you to manage all your meeting 4/12/21types in one convenient location;
advanced search so you can quickly sort by meeting type, date, and more; private, secure
personal notes on individual agenda items; customizable roles and permissions for users,
meetings, and items; meeting minutes and voting; custom printing that allows you to
integrate attachments and exhibits with your agenda; and advanced safety and security.
Packed with time-saving features, GAMUT's paperless board meeting management software
automates and simplifies routine tasks associated with meeting development and delivery.

GAMUT Policy is an online policy information service that offers quick access to 750-plus
sample board policies, regulations, bylaws, and their legal references, including the entire
Education Code, Title 5 regulations and other referenced state and federal code sections.
GAMUT Policy also features advanced search features, built in translations, and the ability to
download sample policies and regulations to word processing programs for editing. The CSBA
sample polices on GAMUT are updated regularly and GAMUT Policy users will receive email
notifications to alert them when the CSBA sample policy manual has been revised.

Policy Development Workshop (PDW) is for the District to develop a new policy manual or have
comprehensive updates to their existing policy manual to help address key issues and achieve
compliance with state and federal mandates. The 2-3 day on-site workshop pairs the knowledge
and experience of Lowell Joint SD administrators and board members with the expertise of a
CSBA consultant to generate a clear, user-friendly policy manual that complies with state and
federal law and meets local needs.

The ongoing yearly agreement will not exceed $18,000 and will be paid from the
Superintendent Budget.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-Al-1



It is recommended that the agreement with CSBA, for Gamut services for the District
beginning in the 2021/2022 school year, at a total amount not to exceed $18,000, be
approved, and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-Al-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 1, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Purchase Order Listing Report 2021/22 #5 ACTION/

(RATIFICATION)

In accordance with the law, Purchase Order Report 2021/22 #5 is recommended for approval.
The report lists all purchase orders issued October 1, 2021, through October 31, 2021.

AR:sb

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-Bl1-1



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 12/13/2021 FROM 10/01/2021 TO10/31/2021

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99A0006 SENTRY SIGNS & PRINTING 282.24 282.24 0109120005 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99A0007 BUENA PARK PLAQUE & TROPHY 2,135.84 2,135.84 0100000065 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99B0028 SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 44,993.01 44,993.01 2100000009 6230 Construction
R99B0030  A-TECH CONSULTING INC 8,529.00 8,529.00 2100000009 6282 Consultant/Contractor
R99B0031 ELITE MODULAR LEASING & SALES 82,600.00 82,600.00 2100000004 5620 Lease/Portables
R99F0036 LOWES 39.55 39.55 0100000089 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0037 PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET 651.82 269.71 0100000092 4300 Materials and Supplies
382.11 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0038  US NATIONAL CORP 73,800.00 73,800.00 1400000007 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
RY99F0039  AAA ELECTRIC MOTOR SALES & SER 319.12 219.12 0100000094 4300 Materals and Supplies
100.00 0100000094 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
RY99F0040 AAA ELECTRIC MOTOR SALES & SER 448.21 323.21 0100000094 4300 Materials and Supplies
125.00 0100000094 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0041 A-1 FENCE COMPANY 1,390.00 1,390.00 0100000091 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
RY99F0042 THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 430.50 430.50 0100000094 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY9F0043 UNITED REFRIGERATION INC. 1,107.41 1,030.74 0100000094 4300 Materials and Supplies
76.67 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99F0044 HAUFFE COMPANY 125,000.00 125,000.00 4000000018 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
RY99F0045  ABES PLUMBING INC. 4,100.00 2,100.00 0100000089 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
800.00 0100000093 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
1,200.00 0100000094 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0046 ALPHA & OMEGA LOCK & KEY LLC 125.00 125.00 0100000108 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
RY99F0047 F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 247.50 247.50 0100000094 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0048 T3 CONTRACTORS 1,200.00 1,200.00 1400000005 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 1 Current Date: 12/03/2021
Report ID: PO010 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 08:55:42



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 12/13/2021

FROM 10/01/2021 TOQ10/31/2021

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99F0049 F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 345.00 345.00 0100000096 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0050 BUG FLIP 205.00 100.00 0100000121 5570 Pest Control

50.00 0100000138 5570 Pest Control

30.00 0100000141 5570 Pest Control

25.00 0100000142 5570 Pest Control
R99F0051 CANNINGS HARDWARE LA HABRA 236.43 236.43 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0052 DANIELS TIRE SERVICE INC. 70.91 70.91 0100000098 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99F0053 LOWES 73.90 39.55 0100000089 4300 Materials and Supplies

18.05 0100000093 4300 Materials and Supplies

16.30 0100000098 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99F0054  ALPHA & OMEGA LOCK & KEY LLC 214.99 214.99 0100000108 4300 Materials and Supplies
R9910001 US NATIONAL CORP 113,800.00 113,800.00 1400000003 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R9910002 COLLEEN PATTERSON 8,500.00 8,500.00 0100000071 5850 Conslt/Ind Contractors(NonEmp)
R99M0045 APPLE INC. 333.65 333.65 0109110014 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0046 AMERICAN EXPRESS 673.19 673.19 0100890003 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0047 AMERICAN EXPRESS 38.50 38.50 0100000056 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0048 AMERICAN EXPRESS 330.74 330.74 0156400020 4300 Materials and Supplies
R9IM0049 AMERICAN EXPRESS 358.94 358.94 0100000298 4300 Materials and Supplies
R9IM0050 AMERICAN EXPRESS 28.87 28.87 0156400010 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0051 AMERICAN EXPRESS 162.07 162.07 0100000058 4300 Materials and Supplies
R9IM0052 AMERICAN EXPRESS 158.73 158.73 0105110044 4300 Materials and Supplies
RYIM0053 AMERICAN EXPRESS 53.90 53.90 0156400007 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0054 AMERICAN EXPRESS 2,812.35 2,812.35 0156400005 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99IMO0055 AMERICAN EXPRESS 42.07 42.07 0156400009 4300 Materials and Supplies
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 2 Current Date: 12/03/2021
Report [D: PO010 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 08:55:42



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 12/13/2021

FROM 10/01/2021 TO10/31/2021

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99IM0056 AMERICAN EXPRESS 688.81 110.21 0174250040 4300 Materials and Supplies
110.21 0174250041 4300 Materials and Supplies
137.76 0174250042 4300 Materials and Supplies
110.21 0174250043 4300 Materials and Supplies
110.21 0174250044 4300 Materials and Supplies
110.21 0174250045 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0057 AMERICAN EXPRESS 269.95 150.92 0156400017 4300 Materials and Supplies
119.03 0156400022 4300 Materials and Supplies
R9IM0058 AMERICAN EXPRESS 51.78 51.78 0108110003 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99M0059 AMERICAN EXPRESS 126.62 87.96 0156400007 4300 Materials and Supplies
38.66 0165000012 4300 Materials and Supplies
R9IMO0060 AMERICAN EXPRESS 445.00 445.00 0100000065 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99M0061 AMERICAN EXPRESS 2,201.47 2,201.47 0100000065 5200 Travel and Conferences
R9IM0062 AMERICAN EXPRESS 625.00 625.00 0100000065 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99M0063 AMERICAN EXPRESS 1,576.47 1,576.47 0100000065 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99M0064 AMERICAN EXPRESS 54.02 54.02 0130100010 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99MO0065 AMERICAN EXPRESS 274.52 274.52 0100000301 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0106 IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 56.92 56.92 0105110041 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0107 IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 378.40 378.40 0105110019 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0109 IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 26.06 26.06 0105110041 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0111 PTM DOCUMENT SYSTEMS 979.02 979.02 0105110003 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0112  ASSOCIATION OF CALIF. SCHOOL A 750.00 750.00 0156400005 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0113  WILLIAM V.MACGILL & CO. 73.85 73.85 0100000058 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0114 STUDIES WEEKLY 161.85 161.85 0163000002 4130 Testbooks
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 3 Current Date: 12/03/2021
Report ID: PO0O10 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 08:55:42



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 12/13/2021

FROM 10/01/2021 T(Q10/31/2021

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
RY99R0115 TONY PAINTING 19,850.00 19,850.00 1400000009 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99R0116  BRAINPOP LLC 3,050.00 3,050.00 0100590006 5810 Licenses/Technology
RY99R0117 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT 504.73 504.73 0163000003 4130 Testbooks
RY99R0118 SUPER DUPER PUBLICATIONS 1,131.18 784.98 0156400022 4300 Materials and Supplies
346.20 0165000029 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0119 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT 12,675.00 12,675.00 0132120034 5810 Licenses/Technology
R99R0120 CURRICULUM ASSOCIATES 6,000.00 6,000.00 0140350028 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0121 BARNES & NOBLE BOOKSTORE 713.53 713.53 0105110006 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0123 HOUGHTON MIFFLIN HARCOURT 3,600.00 3,600.00 0100510004 5810 Licenses/Technology
R99R0124  SOCIAL THINKING 270.00 270.00 0156400022 5200 Travel and Conferences
RY99R0125 PRO-ED 80.48 80.48 0156400032 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0126 EAST WHITTIER GLASS & MIRROR 444.00 444,00 0100000094 5630 Repairs or Maintenance
R99R0127 DEAD AND BURIED INC. 1,102.50 1,102.50 0105110044 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0128  J.W.PEPPER & SON INC. 94.76 9476 0105110037 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0129  J.W.PEPPER & SON INC. 100.85 100.85 0105110037 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0130 VEX ROBOTICS 550.15 550.15 0105110044 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0131 SCHOOL DATEBOOKS 878.27 878.27 0100980006 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0133 SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES 1,799.90 1,799.90 0100590006 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0134 ORANGE COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD ASS 55.00 55.00 0100000068 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0135 CDW GOVERNMENT INC. 193.14 193.14 0100880004 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0136 NEARPOD INC 5,200.00 5,200.00 0130100031 5810 Licenses/Technology
R99R0137 PRO-ED 788.30 579.92 0156400022 4300 Materials and Supplies
208.38 0165000029 4300 Materials and Supplies
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 4 Current Date: 12/03/2021
Report ID: PO0O10 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 08:55:42



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 12/13/2021

FROM 10/01/2021 TO10/31/2021

Report ID: PO010

<Ver. 020703>

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
RY9R0138  *** CONTINUED ***
R99R0138  GP GRAPHICS 570.00 570.00 0100590005 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
RY99R0139  WPS 345.09 281.14 0156400022 4300 Materials and Supplies
63.95 0165000029 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0140 SUPER DUPER PUBLICATIONS 1,150.89 950.30 0156400022 4300 Materials and Supplies
200.59 0165000029 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0141 LA HABRA MUSIC CENTER 417.85 417.85 0105110036 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0143 BALFOUR YEARBOOK 272.07 272.07 0105110034 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0144 IBEE GROUP LLC 2,495.50 2,495.50 0109110004 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0145  SDI INNOVATIONS 800.48 800.48 0100590006 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0146 DATA IMPRESSIONS 3,676.80 3,676.80 0100510007 4400 Non Capitalized Equipment
RY99R0147 DATA IMPRESSIONS 88,228.54 24.00 0174250040 4300 Materials and Supplies
14,680.76 0174250040 4400 Non Capitalized Equipment
24.00 0174250041 4300 Materials and Supplies
14,680.76 0174250041 4400 Non Capitalized Equipment
24.00 0174250042 4300 Materials and Supplies
14,680.76 0174250042 4400 Non Capitalized Equipment
24.00 0174250043 4300 Materials and Supplies
14,680.76 0174250043 4400 Non Capitalized Equipment
24.00 0174250044 4300 Materials and Supplies
14,680.76 0174250044 4400 Non Capitalized Equipment
24.00 0174250045 4300 Materials and Supplies
14,680.74 0174250045 4400 Non Capitalized Equipment
R99R0150  FITNESS FINDERS INC. 343.97 343.97 0100590006 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0151 DASH MEDICAL GLOVES 206.06 206.06 0100000058 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0152 MONOPRICE INC. 71.47 71.47 0108880020 4300 Materials and Supplies
User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 5 Current Date:

Current Time:



LOWELL JOINT SD

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 12/13/2021 FROM 10/01/2021 TO10/31/2021

PO PO ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
NUMBER VENDOR TOTAL AMOUNT NUMBER OBJECT DESCRIPTION
R99R0154 SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIFORNIA 260.00 260.00 0100000071 5200 Travel and Conferences
RY99R0155  J.W.PEPPER & SON INC. 197.99 197.99 0105110037 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0156 J.W.PEPPER & SON INC. 60.64 60.64 0105110036 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0157 J.W.PEPPER & SON INC. 166.23 166.23 0105110037 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0158 YORKTOWN 353.00 353.00 0100000065 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0159 BEARCOM 34.13 34.13 0100590006 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0160 COYOTE FFA ALUMNI & SUPPORTERS 60.00 60.00 0100000068 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0161  COALITION FOR ADEQUATE SCHOOL 691.00 691.00 0100000098 5200 Travel and Conferences
R99R0162 SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES 1,799.90 1,799.90 0100590003 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99R0163 IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 2,028.76 2,028.76 0100000199 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99R0164 IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 220.84 220.84 0100000199 4300 Materials and Supplies
R99S0003 GALLAGHER PEDIATRIC THERAP 146,632.50 146,632.50 0165000022 5100 Subagreement for Serv
R9950004 ADMINISTRATIVE SERV. CO-OP 28,665.00 28,665.00 0165000022 5100 Subagreement for Serv
R99T0026 NMK CORPORATION 1,323.00 1,323.00 0108880020 5800 Prof/ConsultingServ&Oper Exp
R99U0007 TIME WARNER CABLE 30,000.00 30,000.00 0108880045 5910 Communications
R99U0008 WARE DISPOSAL 5,100.00 5,100.00 0100000287 5560 Waste Disposal
R99U0009 T-MOBILE 31,500.00 22,000.00 0108880045 5910 Communications

9,500.00 0132120022 4300 Materials and Supplies
RY99X0017 ATKINSON ANDELSON LOYA RUUD & 125,000.00 125,000.00 0100000068 5820 Legal, Audit, & Election Costs
R99Z0003  GLASBY MAINTENANCE SUPPLY 13,172.39 4,032.43 0185100005 4300 Materials and Supplies

834.75 0185100006 4300 Materials and Supplies
4,588.70 0185100007 4300 Materials and Supplies
2,477.98 0185100008 4300 Materials and Supplies
422.75 0185100009 4300 Materials and Supplies

User ID: DHERNANDE Page No.: 6 Current Date: 12/03/2021
Report ID: PO010 <Ver. 020703> Current Time: 08:55:42



PO
NUMBER

R99Z,0003

R997.0004
R997:0005
R99Z:0006

R99Z0007

PURCHASE ORDER DETAIL REPORT

VENDOR

*+% CONTINUED ***

THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO.
BEST LAWNMOWER INC,
CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION

THE HOME DEPOT PRO INSTITUTION

Fund 01 Total:
Fund 14 Total:

Fund 21 Total:
Fund 40 Total:

Total Amount of Purchase Orders:

LOWELL JOINT SD

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 12/13/2021

PO
TOTAL

168.39
1,620.62
7,414.36

1,606.96

570,542.39
208,650.00

136,122.01
125,000.00

1,040,314.40

ACCOUNT ACCOUNT
AMOUNT NUMBER

815.78
168.39
1,620.62

1,974.50
1,067.89
1,652.02
1,613.61
1,106.34

120.45

14.62
410.48
372.06
189.94
499.41

0185100017 4300
0100000089 4300
(0100000108 4300

0100000091 5630
0100000092 5630
0100000093 5630
0100000094 5630
0100000098 5630

0100000092 4300
0100000093 4300
0100000094 4300
0100000095 4300
0100000096 4300
0100000098 4300

FROM 10/01/2021 TO10/31/2021

OBJECT DESCRIPTION

Materials and Supplies
Materials and Supplies
Materials and Supplies

Repairs or Maintenance
Repairs or Maintenance
Repairs or Maintenance
Repairs or Maintenance
Repairs or Maintenance

Materials and Supplies
Materials and Supplies
Materials and Supplies
Materials and Supplies
Materials and Supplies
Materials and Supplies



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Consolidated Check Register Listing Report ACTION/
2021/22 #4 (RATIFICATION)

The Consolidated Check Register Listing Report 2021/22 #4 is recommended for approval.
The consolidated check register lists all warrants issued October 1, 2021, through October
31,2021.

AR:sb

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-B2-1



LOWELL JOINT SD

Consolidated Check Register
from 10/1/2021 to 10/31/2021

Check Payee ID  Payee Name Reference Subs Check Date Cancel Date Type Status Check Amount
99 00000298 V9903217  EDGENUITY, INC. 828905 OH 10/01/2021 MW IS 55,400.00
99 00000299 V9903240 GAMA CONTRACTING SERVICES, INC 6251 OH 10/01/2021 MW IS 2,450.00
99 00000300 U9900001  CITY OF LA HABRA WATER DEPARTM 08050904 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 4,764.42
99 00000301 U9900002  FRONTIER 0910100921 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 1,229.51
99 00000302 F9900033 GLASBY MAINTENANCE SUPPLY 318001 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 13,172.39
99 00000303 F9900047 LOWES 901937 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 39.55
99 00000304 E9900144  MAYRA RODRIGUEZ 080621REIMB OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 42.21
99 00000305 9900003  MCI A VERIZON COMPANY 409062241 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 12.86
99 00000306 V9903234  MOON VALLEY NURSERY 45187 OH 10/07/2021 MW RV 3,515.00
99 00000307 F9900054  PLUMBING WHOLESALE OUTLET $100523256.001 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 651.82
99 00000308 U9900004 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON JULY-AUG21 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 40,130.14
99 00000309 U9900005  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO AUG-SEP21 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 1,679.73
99 00000310 U9900008  T-MOBILE 0821092021 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 924.41
99 00000311 F9900060  THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 57026 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 168.39
99 00000312 U9900009  VERIZON WIRELESS-LA 9888588588 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 950.65
99 00000313 U9900010  WARE DISPOSAL 784073 OH 10/07/2021 MW IS 729.08
99 00000314 F9900002  AAA ELECTRIC MOTOR SALES & SER 49882 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 237.79
99 00000315 F9900002 AAA ELECTRIC MOTOR SALES & SER 47403 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 31042
99 00000316 F9900002  AAA ELECTRIC MOTOR SALES & SER 49882 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 219.12
99 00000317 V9900008  ADMINISTRATIVE SERV. CO-OP 8121-1,3,4,5 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 19,292.00
99 00000318 E9900115  KRISTA VAN HOOGMOED 09222021 | OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 112.28
99 00000319 V9900103 LAKESHORE LEARNING MATERIALS 434940090921 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 1,488.59
99 00000320 V9900104  LEADER SERVICES CDS 5645 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 63.12
99 00000321 E9900143  MATTHEW CUKRO 092721.1 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 324.35
99 00000322 V9900129  NCS PEARSON INC. 16109856 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 3,633.23
99 00000323 V9900134  OCDE 94RI1063 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 400.00
99 00000324 U9900006  SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 180071233235 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 19,648.56
99 00000325 F9900055  PQ BIDS, INC. LISDO003 OH 10/08/2021 MW IS 10,000.00
99 00000326 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 21/22 PROP/LIAB OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 247,672.00
99 00000327 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 5979WC OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 82,031.00
99 00000328 V9900013  AMERICAN EXPRESS R99R0043 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 12,995.53
99 00000329 19900011 GINA TRINIDAD 913202-R99R0076 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 273.75
99 00000330 V9900088  IMPERIAL BAND INSTRUMENTS 62136 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 456.44
99 00000331 V9903254  J&C BOOKS, LLC 1-2282 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 992.25
User: DHERNANDEZ - Darlene Hernandez Page Current Date: 12/03/2021

Report: BK3005: Consolidated Check Register 1 Current Time: 08:49:21



LOWELL JOINT SD

Consolidated Check Register
from 10/1/2021 to 10/31/2021

Check Payee ID Payee Name Reference Subs Check Date Cancel Date Type Status Check Amount
99 00000332 E9900115 KRISTA VAN HOOGMOED REIMBURSEMENTOH 10/11/2021 MW IS 1,658.19
99 00000333 V9900104 LEADER SERVICES CDS 5585 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 24831
99 00000334 V9900126  N2Y INV-1042250 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 1,875.72
99 00000335 V9900134  OCDE 94P14421 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 235,544.91
99 00000336 V9900142 POWER SCHOOL GROUP LLC INV270767 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 3,649.95
99 00000337 S$9990005 SONOVA USA, INC. 5134583166 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 2,499.33
99 00000338 V9900180  SPARKLETTS 15734879092621 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 163.77
99 00000339 U9900007 TIME WARNER CABLE 0846243081421 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 1,596.65
99 00000340 U9900007  TIME WARNER CABLE 0846243091421 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 8,033.02
99 00000341 N9900014  UNITED REFRIGERATION INC. 81198146 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 1,107.42
99 00000342 U9900010  WARE DISPOSAL 804523 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 1,779.53
99 00000343 V9900206  WHITTIER CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 40370 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 450.00
99 00000344 V9900212  WPS WPS-358493 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 301.97
99 00000345 N9900004  DRIFTWOOD DAIRY SEPT2021 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 10,095.63
99 00000346 N9900007  GOLD STAR FOODS JULY2021 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 1,976.13
99 00000347 N9900007  GOLD STAR FOODS SEPT2021 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 28,135.46
99 00000348 B9990014  KING OFFICE SERVICES K0-20559-1-002 OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 12,844.00
99 00000349 U9900006 SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS 21-4205-JORDAN OH 10/11/2021 MW IS 44,993.01
99 00000350 V9900020  ATKINSON ANDELSON LOYA RUUD & 631535 OH 10/12/2021 MW IS 12,917.50
99 00000351 V9900039  CODESP 4865 OH 10/12/2021 MW IS 2,200.00
99 00000352 E9903244 CRISTIAN BOGDAN MILEAGE-SEPT20 OH 10/12/2021 MW IS 57.65
99 00000353 V9900056 DELTA DENTAL BE004643687 OH 10/12/2021 MW IS 1,780.89
99 00000354 F9900031 F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 42986 OH 10/12/2021 MW IS 6,177.94
99 00000355 E9900087 JOHN ZAPPULLA MILEAGE-SEP20210H 10/12/2021 MW IS 68.43
99 00000356 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 5920CIP OH 10/12/2021 MW IS 286,346.00
99 00000357 F9900001  A-1 FENCE COMPANY 68154 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 1,390.00
99 00000358 V9903238  POLAR 331625615 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 12,071.75
99 00000359 V9903205  PACIFIC CONTRACTORS APP#1 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 105,450.00
99 00000360 V9903211 TONY PAINTING APP#1 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 18,857.50
99 00000361 V9903206  US NATIONAL CORP APP#1 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 70,110.00
99 00000362 B9990010 ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION PAY APP#10-MA OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 20,787.90
99 00000363 B9990010  ERICKSON-HALL CONSTRUCTION PAY APP#10-JO OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 1,704,279.10
99 00000364 B9990011 GHATAODE BANNON ARCHITECTS 4552 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 4,597.29
99 00000365 B9990011 GHATAODE BANNON ARCHITECTS 4561 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 1,142.64
User: DHERNANDEZ - Darlene Hemandez Page Current Date: 12/03/2021

Report: BK3005: Consolidated Check Register 2 Current Time: 08:49:21



LOWELL JOINT SD

Consolidated Check Register
from 10/1/2021 to 10/31/2021

Check PayeeID  Payee Name Reference Subs Check Date_Cancel Date Type Status Check Amount
99 00000366 B9990011 GHATAODE BANNON ARCHITECTS 4582 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 8,119.80
99 00000367 B9990013  HAUFFE COMPANY 420 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 14,112.00
99 00000368 V9900160  RMA GROUP 76324 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 8,560.75
99 00000369 V9900160  RMA GROUP 76757 OH 10/13/2021 MW IS 3,994.50
99 00000370 F9900011 BEST LAWNMOWER, INC. 105536 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 1,672.32
99 00000371 F9900014  BUGFLIP 474633 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 310.00
99 00000372 F9900015  CANNINGS HARDWARE LA HABRA 490478 OH 10/15/2021 Mw IS 236.43
99 00000373 F9900018  CINTAS FIRE PROTECTION 0F19624282 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 7,414.37
99 00000374 19900004 COLLEEN PATTERSON LOWELL093021 OH 10/15/202t MW IS 5,822.50
99 00000375 F9900023  DANIELS TIRE SERVICE, INC. 140102255 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 70.92
99 00000376 19900007 DEBRA LEES 022A OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 1,400.00
99 00000377 V9900137  ORANGE COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD ASS 10142021 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 55.00
99 00000378 F9900059  THE HOME DEPOT PRO INSTITUTION 644057648 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 1,606.94
99 00000379 F9900060  THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. 15317 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 430.50
99 00000380 V9903235  US BANK 6037049 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 250.00
99 00000381 U9900010  WARE DISPOSAL 804525 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 1,061.58
99 00000382 B9903230  TWINING CONSULTING 10418 OH 10/15/2021 MW IS 1,495.18
99 00000383 E9900023  AUDRA SCHAAP 09292021 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 637.73
99 00000384 E9900084  JIM COOMBS 10/9/21REIMBURS OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 302.17
99 00000385 V9903234  MOON VALLEY NURSERY 45187RE OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 3,515.00
99 00000386 V9900129  NCS PEARSON INC. 16025678 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 1,614.89
99 00000387 V9900134  OCDE 94RI10330 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 5,000.00
99 00000388 V9900144  PRO-ED 2905976 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 306.64
99 00000389 E9900189  SHERYL MCDONALD 09/29/2021 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 7.82
99 00000390 F9900045  LADY BUGS ENVIRONMENTAL TERMIT SEPT2021 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 55.00
99 00000391 V9903228 LOVE TO SNACK LLC SEPT2021 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 1,179.36
99 00000392 N9900009 P & R PAPER SUPPLY COMPANY SEPT2021 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 5,701.47
99 00000393 N9900013  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PIZZA SEPT2021 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 9,753.20
99 00000394 N9900015  VALPRO INC. SEPT2021 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 2,947.91
99 00000395 B9903229 HAULAWAY STORAGE CONTAINERS 2018019 OH 10/18/2021 MW IS 539.96
99 00000396 V9903214 806 TECHNOLOGIES INC. 10511 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 5,500.00
99 00000397 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 100121DDR OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 1,670.44
99 00000398 V9903256  ALPHA & OMEGA LOCK & KEY LLC 34924 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 125.00
99 00000399 V9900014  AMPLIFIED IT 35771 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 7,680.00

User:

DHERNANDEZ - Darlene Hernandez
Report: BK3005: Consolidated Check Register

Page

Current Date: 12/03/2021
Current Time: 08:49:21



LOWELL JOINT SD

Consolidated Check Register
from 10/1/2021 to 10/31/2021

Check Payee ID Payee Name Reference Subs Check Date Cancel Date Type Status Check Amount
99 00000400 V9900015 APPLE INC. AG00497023 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 1,000.94
99 00000401 V9900006  ASSOCIATION OF CALIF. SCHOOL A INV21992 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 750.00
99 (00000402 V9900024 BEARCOM 5249626 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 72.96
99 00000403 V9900026 BRAINPOP LLC US243136 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 3,050.00
99 (00000404 V9903233 BRUCE HEYING PIANO-TUNING OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 435.00
99 00000405 V9900028 BUENA PARK PLAQUE & TROPHY 14774 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 2,135.84
99 00000406 V9900037 CENGAGE LEARNING 75777911 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 1,729.06
99 00000407 V9903241 DATA MAKES THE DIFFERENCE LLC QUOTEH# 29386 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 179.99
99 00000408 V9900055 DEAD AND BURIED INC. 82192 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 1,105.00
99 00000409 V9900071 FED EX 7-496-84540 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 26.00
99 00000410 V9900072 FIRST BUSINESS MACHINES INC. 225164/212949 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 4.543.70
99 00000411 V9900093 INTRADO INTERACTIVE SERVICE 224381 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 2,729.64
99 00000412 V9900125 MYSTERY SCIENCE SP-5925 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 6,136.29
99 00000413 V9900137 ORANGE COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD ASS 09302021 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 250.00
99 00000414 V9903239 OSI HARDWARE, INC. INV-US65442 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 5,966.69
99 00000415 V9903206 US NATIONAL CORP APP#1 US NAT OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 108,110.00
99 00000416 B9903226 ALL AMERICAN INSPECTION, INC. 7243 OH 10/19/2021 MW IS 2,200.00
99 00000417 F9900003 ABES PLUMBING, INC. 21079 OH 10/20/2021 MW IS 4,100.00
99 00000418 F9900031 F.M. THOMAS AIR CONDITIONING 42915 OH 10/20/2021 MW IS 2,825.41
99 00000419 F9900001 A-1 FENCE COMPANY 20126 OH 10/20/2021 MW IS 1,783.00
99 00000420 V9903264 DIANA GONZALEZ 10/4-10/18/21 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 189.72
99 00000421 S9990002  GALLAGHER PEDIATRIC THERAP 9226 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 911.36
99 00000422 V9903263 iBee Group LLC 901 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 2,263.50
99 00000423 V9900094  J.W.PEPPER & SON,INC. 363520915 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 207.59
99 00000424 V9900129  NCS PEARSON INC. 16267678 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 4,560.96
99 00000425 V9900129  NCS PEARSON INC. 16201659 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 1,582.11
99 00000426 V9903262 NEARPOD INC INV47518 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 5,200.00
99 00000427 V9903237 POSITIVE ACTION, INC. 52572 OH 10/21/2021 MW IS 8,334.35
99 00000428 V9900053 DATA IMPRESSIONS 17343-IN OH 10/22/2021 MW IS 88,228.54
99 00000429 E9900003 ADRIANA PONCE 083021 PURCH REIOH 10/26/2021 MW IS 273.88
99 00000430 V9900010 ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 5908WC OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 82,031.00
99 00000431 E9900011 AMY LILES 081121 PURCH REIOH 10/26/2021 MW IS 106.80
99 00000432 19900002 FRONTIER 101021 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 1,214.18
99 00000433 19900011 GINA TRINIDAD R99X0015-002 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 514.65

User:

DHERNANDEZ - Darlene Hernandez
Report: BK3005: Consolidated Check Register

Page

Current Date: 12/03/2021
Current Time: 08:49:21



LOWELL JOINT SD

Consolidated Check Register

from 10/1/2021 to 10/31/2021

Check Payee ID Payee Name Reference Subs Check Date Cancel Date Type Status Check Amount
99 00000434 E9900116  KRISTEN COOKE 083021 REIMB OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 112.50
99 00000435 E9900138 MARIKATE WISSMAN 083021 PURCH REIOH 10/26/2021 MW IS 55.03
99 00000436 U9900003  MCI A VERIZON COMPANY 409063463 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 11.42
99 00000437 V9900151 RAPTOR INV22435 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 4,268.99
99 00000438 V9900159  RIVERSIDE INSIGHTS INV094861 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 3,226.57
99 00000439 V9900163  ROCHESTER 100 INC. INV91721 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 841.75
99 (00000440 V9900168  SCHOLASTIC INC. M7176100 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 2,752.26
99 00000441 V9903224  SCHOLASTIC MAGAZINES M7076746 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 1,799.90
99 00000442 V9900173  SCHOOLYARD COMMUNICATIONS 21-710365 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 3,132.83
99 00000443 V9900175  SENTRY SIGNS & PRINTING 3446 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 661.22
99 00000444 U9900004  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON SEP.OCT OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 37,328.00
99 00000445 U9900005 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO AUG.SEP OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 940.18
99 00000446 V9900178  SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA NEWS GROUP REF0011481770 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 173.00
99 00000447 U9900006  SUBURBAN WATER SYSTEMS SEP.OCT OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 6,183.28
99 00000448 U9900008  T-MOBILE OCT21 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 808.00
99 00000449 V9900197 TOOLS4EVER 16847 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 1,652.79
99 00000450 V9900214  YORKTOWN 413770Y-IN OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 147.83
99 00000451 E9900218 YUMI YAMAMOTO 083021LIBRARY OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 8.20
99 00000452 F9900058 SUPREME ASPHALT SERVICES, INC. 2263 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 2,040.00
99 00000453 B9903230  TWINING CONSULTING 10753 OH 10/26/2021 MW IS 2,065.94
99 00000454 F9900064 TURF STAR, INC. 3310193-00 OH 10/27/2021 MW IS 13,798.27
99 00000455 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 100121VR OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 6,341.59
99 00000456 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 100121DD OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 29,000.00
99 00000457 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 100121 VLADM OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 1,223.49
99 00000458 V9900042  COMPLETE BUSINESS SYSTEMS 159540 OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 1,980.00
99 00000459 V9903264  DIANA GONZALEZ MILEAGE OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 108.42
99 00000460 V9900081 GP GRAPHICS 324 OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 2,162.43
99 00000461 U9900007 TIME WARNER CABLE 0846243101421 OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 1,667.41
99 00000462 U9900010  WARE DISPOSAL 824589 OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 2,270.36
99 00000463 U9900010  WARE DISPOSAL 845535 OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 2,431.48
99 00000464 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 100121VL OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 259.52
99 00000465 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 100121VL OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 129.76
99 00000466 V9900010  ALLIANCE OF SCHOOLS FOR COOPER 100121VLADM OH 10/28/2021 MW IS 133.65

User:

DHERNANDEZ - Darlene Hermandez
Report: BK3005: Consolidated Check Register

Page

Current Date:

12/03/2021

Current Time: 08:49:21



LOWELL JOINT SD

Consolidated Check Register
from 10/1/2021 to 10/31/2021

Check Payee ID Payee Name Reference Subs Check Date Cancel Date Type Status Check Amount
Issued: 3,705,296.79
Reversed: 3,515.00
99 Bank Total: 3,708,811.79
Grand Total: 3,708,811.79
User: DHERNANDEZ - Darlene Hernandez Page Current Date: 12/03/2021

Report: BK3005: Consolidated Check Register 6 Current Time: 08:49:21



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject: Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021/2022 #5 ACTION/
Which Includes Hiring, Resignations, Contract Adjustments, (RATIFICATION)
and Retirements for Certificated, Classified, and Confidential
Employees

The attached Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021/2022 #5, which includes hiring,
resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated, classified, and confidential employees
has been completed without irregularities and in compliance with the law, District policy, administrative
regulations, rules, procedures, and direction of the supervisor and all information has been fully disclosed.

It is recommended that Employer-Employee Relations/Personnel Report 2021/2022 #5, which includes
hiring, resignations, contract adjustments, and retirements for certificated, classified, and confidential
employees, be ratified.

Attachment

JC/me

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-C1-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT

EMPLOYER-EMPLOYEE RELATIONS PERSONNEL REPORT 2021/2022 #5
December 13, 2021

L. CERTIFICATED EMPLOYEES

A.

NAME
Castillo, Barbara
Fonti, Allison
Galli, David

Galli, Jessica
Garduno, Adam

Irving, Tamara

Perumean Stacy

B.

NAME/
EMPLOYEE ID

CHANGE OF STATUS

Allsman, Katie

Bernhard, Carol

Borsari, Julie

Chavez, Karen

Cooke, Kristen

Desmond, Andrea

EFFECTIVE END DATE
DATE SITE COMMENTS
12/06/2021 01/14/2022 EP (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave Updated EER #4
2021-2022
10/04/2021 01/02/2022 MA  (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave Updated EER #4
2021-2022
12/03/2021 12/17/2021 RS (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave
11/08/2021 12/17/2021 RS (AB375) CFRA Medical Leave
11/19/2021 12/03/2021 RS (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave Updated EER
#42021-2022
09/15/2021 01/02/2022 RS (AB375) FMLA Medical Leave Update EER #4
2021-2022
11/29/2021 01/07/2022 MG (AB375) CFRA Baby Bonding Leave
EXTRA DUTY PAY/STIPENDS
EFFECTIVE END
DATE DATE SITE COMMENTS
08/23/2021 10/15/2021 OL  To be paid a total of $150.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Biola University (August -
December). To be Paid by check from Biola
University.
10/18/2021 12/17/2021 MA To be paid a total of $150.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Biola University (August -
December). To be Paid by check from Biola
University.
08/23/2021 10/15/2021 OL  To be paid a total of $150.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Biola University (August -
December). To be Paid by check from Biola
University.
08/23/2021 12/17/2021 ~ OL  To be paid a total of $250.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Cal State Fullerton
University (August - December). To be Paid
by check from Cal State Fullerton University.
08/23/2021 12/17/2021  JO To be paid a total of $250.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Cal State Fullerton
University (August - December). To be Paid
by check from Cal State Fullerton University.
08/23/2021 12/17/2021  JO  To be paid a total of $250.00 for being a

X-Cl1-2

Master Teacher for Cal State Fullerton



[linsky, Chrissy

Jacobs, Diana

Kosareff, Breauna

Lee, Sylvia

Palmer, Margaret

Peloquin, Karen

Valdez, Michelle

10/18/2021

08/23/2021

08/23/2021

10/18/2021

08/23/2021

08/23/2021

10/18/2021

12/17/2021

12/17/2021

10/15/2021

12/17/2021

12/17/2021

12/17/2021

12/17/2021

EP

JO

JO

OL

OL

University (August - December). To be Paid
by check from Cal State Fullerton University.
To be paid a total of $150.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Biola University (August -
December). To be Paid by check from Biola
University.

To be paid a total of $250.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Cal State Fullerton
University (August - December). To be Paid
by check from Cal State Fullerton University.
To be paid a total of $150.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Biola University (August -
December). To be Paid by check from Biola
University.

To be paid a total of $150.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Biola University (August -
December). To be Paid by check from Biola
University.

To be paid a total of $250.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Cal State Fullerton
University (August - December). To be Paid
by check from Cal State Fullerton University.
To be paid a total of $250.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Cal State Fullerton
University (August - December). To be Paid
by check from Cal State Fullerton University.
To be paid a total of $150.00 for being a
Master Teacher for Biola University (August -
December). To be Paid by check from Biola
University.

*[t is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of $200.00 per day
and/or $35.00 an hour rate (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: Professional Development, Saturday

School, Site Support Duties and Intervention

**]t is further recommended that the individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 is approved to instruct in
the Intervention Programs. The rate of pay is $35.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or LCFF Supplemental Grant

Funds.

**]t is further reccommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 serve as home school teachers,
if needed, for the 2021-2022 school year at a rate of $35.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student. Mileage
will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage Rate for the 2021-2022 school year.

D.

Employment of substitutes effective 08/16/2021 for the 2021-2022 school year @ 200 per day and $100.00 per
half day rate and $35.00 per hour* (not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: professional
development, Saturday school, and site support duties, and $250.00 long term sub rate.

Catherine Millward

Betty Kimes
Crystal Wu

X-C1-3



E. SUBSTITUTE CHANGE OF PAY

NAME EFFECTIVE END DATE SITE COMMENT
DATE
Boozer, Jessica 11/19/2021 12/03/2021 DO To be paid rate of $200.00 Science Teacher Rancho
Starbuck Updated EER #4 2021-2022
Brooks, Edward 11/08/2021 12/17/2021 DO To be paid rate of $200.00 Science Teacher Rancho
Starbuck
Charman, Lauren 10/04/2021 12/17/2021 DO To be paid rate of $200.00 3™ grade Teacher Macy

Updated EER #4 2021-2022

McCoy, Stacy 11/29/2021 01/07/2022 DO To be paid special long term rate of $250.00 5/6 combo
Teacher Meadow Green.

Mgrdichian, 12/06/2021 01/14/2022 DO To be paid special long term rate of $250.00 3™ grade

Jennifer Teacher El Portal. Updated EER #4 2021-2022

Scarciotti, Alyssa 09/15/2021 12/17/2021 DO To be paid rate of $200.00 English Teacher Rancho
Starbuck

Tyler Burns-Brisco 12/03/2021 12/17/2021 DO To be paid special long term rate of $250.00 Social

Studies Teacher Rancho Starbuck.

Vega, Sandy 11/29/2021 12/17/2021 DO To be paid special long term rate of $250.00 RSP
Teacher El Portal.

*t is further recommended that these individuals be approved for substitute teaching at the rate of $200.00 per day and/or $35.00 an hour rate
(not to exceed six hours) as applicable and to include: Professional Development, Saturday School, Site Support Duties and Intervention

*]t is further recommended that the individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 is approved to instruct in the Intervention Programs.
The rate of pay is $35.00/hour and will be paid from Title I or LCFF Supplemental Grant Funds.

**[t is further recommended that individuals listed in Certificated Salaries for 2021-2022 serve as home school teachers, if needed, for the 2021-
2021 school year at a rate of $35.00/hour, not to exceed five hours per week, per student. Mileage will be paid at the IRS Standard Mileage Rate

for the 2021-2022 school year.

IL. CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES December 13, 2021

A.MONTHLY — GENERAL FUND

NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE COMMENTS

Administrative Assistant Business
Barber, Stephanie 11/09/21 RI/SS DO  Services/ Classified Personnel/
Replacement for Vacancy
Administrative Assistant Business
Dumadag, Margaret  12/03/21 RI/S8 DO  Services/ Classified Personnel/
Substitute

X-Cl1-4



X-C1-5

Day Custodian/Requesting

D
umont, Thomas 01/03/22 R21/S8 MG Transfer from Meadow Green
Dumont, Thomas 01/03/22 R21/S8 OL  Day Custodian/ Transfer to Olita
Rivera, Ismael 01/03/22 R18/S5 RS Night Custodian/Promoting to
Day Custodian
Rivera, Ismael 01/03/22 R21/85 MG  Day Custodian/Promotion
Vega, Eddy 12/30/21 R21/S8 OL Day Custodlan/ Resignation due
to retirement
Villalovos, Mary Assistant to the Superintendent’s
’ 1
Jane 10N RS . Office/Replacement for Vacancy
B. Due to the minimum wage increase to $15 per hour on January 1 2022, all Substitute Cafeteria Workers
will be paid at RO7/S1 effective January 1, 2022.
C. HOURLY - GENERAL FUND
NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/

EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE COMMENTS
Allsman, Katelyn 11/29/21 R14/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Allsman, Katelyn 11/29/21 R15/81 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Allsman, Katelyn 11/29/21 R16/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Castro, Claudia 11/02/21 $14.00/hr DO Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute
Castro, Claudia 11/02/21 R14/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Castro, Claudia 11/02/21 R15/81 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Ebel, Lexi 11/02/21 $14.00/hr DO Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute
Ebel, Lexi 11/02/21 R14/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Ebel, Lexi 11/02/21 R15/81 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Garcia, Lisa 12/07/21 R23/S1 OL Clerk Typist/Working out of Class as

Office Manager
Navarro, Amber 01/16/21 06/03/22  $1,200/Mo DO School Counselor/Intern
Pascual, Kelly 11/02/21 $14.00/hr DO Noon Duty Assistant/Substitute
Pascual, Kelly 11/02/21 R14/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Pascual, Kelly 11/02/21 R15/S1 DO Health Technician/Substitute
Sato, Kay 11/12/21 R14/81 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Sato, Kay 11/12/21 R15/S1 DO Instructional Assistant/Substitute
Schaap, Audra 12/7/21 R23/S8 OL Office Manage/FMLA/Medical Leave
Trevino, Jessica 11/12/21 R21/S1 DO Day Custodian/Substitute
Trevino, Jessica 11/12/21 R18/81 DO Night Custodian/Substitute
D. HOURLY — CAFETERIA FUND
NAME/ EFFECTIVE END RANGE/
EMPLOYEE ID# DATE DATE STEP SITE COMMENTS
Davis, Christina 11/22/21 11/24/21 R16/S6 NS Nutrlt'lon Services Clerk/
Substitute
Davis, Christina 11/29/21 R16/S6 NS Nutrition Services Clerk/Rehire-
Replacement for Vacancy
Lawson, Jennifer 1/03/21 R07/S4 NS Ca_fe'terla Worker/Increase Due to
Minimum Wage Increase.
Trevino, Jessica 11/12/21 R0O7/S1 DO Cafeteria Worker/Substitute
Trevino, Jessica 01/01/22 R0O7/84 DO Cafeteria Worker/Substitute



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of the Classified Salary Schedule to reflect ACTION

the State of California Minimum Wage Increase for
Step 1, effective January 1, 2022.

The 2021/2022 Classified Salary Schedule, effective January 1, 2022, is submitted for Board
approval. The Classified Salary Schedule reflects the State of California minimum wage
increase for Step 1, Ranges 1-9.

It is recommended that the Classified Salary Schedule reflecting the State of California
minimum wage increase for Ranges 1-9 for Step 1, effective January 1, 2022, be approved,
and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

AR:sb

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-C2-1



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
2020/21 CLASSIFIED CONFIDENTIAL SALARY SCHEDULE
Effective July 1, 2020

Effective July 1, 2020, employees shall receive a 2% increase (o their base salary earnings (excluding stipends and other remuneration).

PERFORMANCE RECOGNIION INCREASES
RANGE 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
(A) 3,560 3,738 3,925 4,121 4,327 4,543 4,771 5,009
(B) 3,662 3,845 4,048 4,245 4,464 4,694 4,933 5,183
(C) 3,754 3,941 4,148 4,358 4,580 4,810 5,055 5,306
(D) 3,858 4,051 4,246 4,464 4,694 4,933 5,183 5,440
(E) 3,953 4,149 4,359 4,580 4,810 5,055 5,306 5,578
(F) 4,047 4,249 4,465 4,694 4,933 5,183 5,440 5,716
(G) 4,147 4,355 4,580 4,810 5,055 5,306 5,578 5,857
(H) 4,245 4,457 4,695 4,933 5,183 5,440 5,716 6,011
() 4,358 4,577 4,810 5,055 5,306 5,578 5,857 6,155
Q)] 4,464 4,687 4,933 5,183 5,440 5,716 6,011 6,310
X) 4,580 4,808 5,054 5,306 5,578 5,857 6,155 6,473
L) 4,694 4,929 5,185 5,440 5,716 6,011 6,310 6,630
M) 4,810 5,051 5,305 5,578 5,857 6,155 6,473 6,798
N) 4,933 5,180 5,440 5,716 6,011 6,310 6,630 6,967
(O) 5,055 5,307 5,578 5,857 6,155 6,473 6,798 7,143
(P) 5,183 5,442 5,715 6,011 6,310 6,630 6,967 7,320
(Q) 5,306 5,571 5,858 6,155 6,473 6,798 7,143 7,503
(R) 5,440 5,711 6,011 6,310 6,630 6,967 7,320 7,697
(S) 5,578 5,858 6,155 6,473 6,798 7,143 7,503 7,881
(T) 5,716 6,001 6,309 6,630 6,967 7,320 7,697 8,076
) 5,857 6,150 6,473 6,798 7,143 7,503 7,881 8,277
V) 6,011 6,311 6,629 6,967 7,320 7,697 8,076 8,493
(W) 6,155 6,463 6,798 7,143 7,503 7,881 8,277 8,701
(X) 6,310 6,625 6,967 7,320 7,697 8,076 8,493 8,916
Y) 6,473 6,796 7,143 7,503 7,881 8,277 8,701 9,134
() 6,630 6,963 7,321 7,697 8,076 8,493 8,916 9,367
CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES RANGE LONGEVITY

Length of service shall be additionally
compensated at the following rate after

Administrative Assistant - Business Svcs/Classified Personnel I completion of:

10 years of service 2.5%
15 years of service 5 %
20 years of service 7.5 %
25 years of service 10 %
30 years of service  12.5%

Executive Assistant and Secretary to Superintendent N

Assistant to the Superintendent's Office F

" 15 5\

Board Approved: December 13, 2021 Prepared by Andrea Reynolds



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees

From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools

Subject:  Approval of the 2021/2022 Revised Confidential ACTION/
Salary Schedule, Clerical Error in Unit Range F, (RATIFICATION)
Column #3.

The 2020/2021 revised Confidential Salary Schedule is submitted for Board approval. The
revised Confidential Salary Schedule reflects a change to unit Range F, Column 3, due to a
clerical error.

It is recommended that the revised 2020/2021 Confidential Salary Schedule reflecting the
correction of the clerical error to unit Range F, Column 3, be approved, and that the
Superintendent of designee be authorized to execute the necessary documents.

AR:sb

Attachment

Superintendent’s Comment:

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.
X-C3-1



2020/21 Classified Salary Schedule

Effective July 1, 2020

Effective Iuly 1, 2020, employees shall receive a 2% increase to their base sulary carnings (excl uding stipends und other remuneration).

Adfustments made 10 reflect $15.00 minimum wage effective Junuary 1, 2022

PERFORMANCE RECOGNITION INCREASES
RANGE 6 7 8
1 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) [ 2,640  (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,737 (15.54) | 2,873 (16.32) | 3,021 (17.16)
2 2,640  (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640  (15.00) | 2,670 (15.17) | 2,804 (15.94) | 2,953 (16.78) | 3,100 (17.61)
3 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640  (15.00) | 2,737 (15.54) | 2,873 (16.32) | 3,021 (17.16) | 3,182  (18.09)
4 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,772  (15.94) | 2,953 (16.78) | 3,100 (17.61) | 3,253 (1847
5 2,640  (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,737 (15.54) | 2,873  (16.32) | 3,021 (17.16) | 3,182  (18.09) | 3,338 (18.97)
6 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,670 (15.17) | 2,804 (1594) | 2,953 (16.78) | 3,100 (17.61) | 3,253  (1847) | 3,414 (19.39)
7 2,640 (15.00) | 2,640 (15.00) | 2,737 (15.54) | 2,873 (16.32) | 3,021 (17.16) | 3,182 (18.09) | 3,338  (18.97) | 3,491 (19.85)
8 2,640 (15.00) | 2,670 (15.17) | 2,804 (15.94) | 2,953 (16.78) | 3,100 (17.61) | 3,253 (18.47) | 3,414 (19.39) | 3,584 (20.37)
9 2,640 (15.00) | 2,737 (15.54) | 2,873 (16.32) | 3,021 (17.16) | 3,182 (18.09) | 3,338 (18.97) | 3,491 (19.85) | 3,678  (20.87)
10 2,670 (15.17) | 2,804 (15.94) | 2,953 (16.78) | 3,100 (17.61) | 3,253 (1847) | 3,414 (19.39) | 3,584 (20.37) | 3,769  (21.40)
11 2,737 (15.54) | 2,873 (16.32) | 3,021 (17.16) | 3,182 (18.09) | 3,338  (18.97) 3,491  (19.85) | 3,678 (20.87) | 3,866  (21.96)
12 2,804 (15.94) | 2,953 (16.78) | 3,100 (17.61) | 3,253 (18.47) | 3,414 (19.39) | 3,584 (20.37) | 3,769  (21.40) | 3,954 (22.46)
13 2,873 (1632) | 3,021 (17.16) | 3,182  (18.09) | 3,338 (18.97) | 3,491 (19.85) | 3,678 (20.87) | 3,866 (21.96) | 4,060 (23.04)
14 2,953 (16.78) | 3,100 (17.61) | 3,253  (18.47) | 3,414 (19.39) | 3,584 (20.37) | 3,769 (21.40) | 3,954 (2246) | 4,162  (23.61)
15 3,021 (17.16) | 3,182  (18.09) | 3,338 (18.97) | 3,491  (19.85) | 3,678 (20.87) | 3,866 (21.96) | 4,060 (23.04) | 4,272 (24.29)
16 3,100 (17.61) | 3,253 (1847) | 3,414 (19.39) | 3,584 (20.37) | 3,769 (21.40) | 3,954 (22.46) | 4,162 (23.61) | 4,377 (24.89)
17 3,182 (18.09) | 3,338 (18.97) | 3,491 (15.85) | 3,678  (20.87) | 3,866 (21.96) | 4,060 (23.04) | 4,272 (24.29) | 4,488 (25.49)
18 3,253 (1847) | 3,414 (19.39) | 3,584  (20.37) | 3,769  (21.40) | 3,954 (22.46) | 4,162 (23.61) | 4,377 (24.89) | 4,597 (26.11)
19 3,338 (18.97) | 3,491 (19.85) | 3,678 (20.87) | 3,866 (21.96) | 4,060 (23.04) | 4,272 (24.29) | 4,488 (2549) | 4,714  (26.80)
20 3414 (19.39) | 3,584  (20.37) | 3,769  (21.40) | 3,954 (22.46) | 4,162 (23.61) | 4,377 (24.89) | 4,597 (26.11) | 4,840 (27.49)
21 3,491 (19.85) | 3,678 (20.87) | 3,866 (21.96) | 4,060 (23.04) | 4,272 (24.29) | 4,488  (25.49) 4,714  (26.80) | 4,948 (28.10)
22 3,584 (20.37) | 3,769 (21.40) | 3,954 (22.46) | 4,162  (23.61) | 4,377 (24.89) | 4,597 (26.11) | 4,340 (27.49) | 5,073 (28.84)
23 3,678  (20.87) | 3,866  (21.96) | 4,060 (23.04) | 4,272 (24.29) | 4,488 (25.49) | 4,714 (26.80) | 4,948  (28.10) | 5,202  (29.55)
24 3,769 (2140) | 3,954  (22.46) | 4,162 (23.61) | 4,377 (24.89) | 4,597 (26.11) | 4,840 (27.49) | 5,073 (28.84) | 5,326  (30.25)
25 3,866  (21.96) | 4,060 (23.04) [ 4,272 (24.29) | 4,488 (25.49) | 4,714 (26.80) | 4,948 (28.10) | 5,202 (29.55) | 5,469 (31.05)
26 3,954 (22.46) | 4,162  (23.61) | 4,377 (24.89) | 4,597 (26.11) | 4,840 (27.49) | 5,073 (28.84) | 5,326 (30.25) | 5,602 (31.82)
27 4,060 (23.04) | 4,272 (24.29) | 4,488 (2549) | 4,714 (26.80) | 4,948 (28.10) | 5,202 (29.55) | 5,469 (31.05) | 5,752 (32.66)
28 4,162 (23.61) | 4,377 (24.89) | 4,597 (26.11) | 4,840 (27.49) | 5,073 (28.84) | 5,326 (30.25) | 5,602 (31.82) | 5,884 (33.43)
29 4272 (24.29) | 4,488 (25.49) | 4,714 (26.80) | 4,948 (28.10) | 5202  (29.55) | 5,469 (31.05) | 5,752 (32.66) | 6,038  (34.29)
30 4,377 (24.89) | 4,597 (26.11) | 4,840 (2749) | 5,073 (28.84) | 5,326 (30.25) | 5,602 (31.82) | 5,884 (33.43) | 6,179  (35.10)
A .4.\\ _.“Ji_"aI.V/V/
(M

Board Approved: December 13, 2021

Prepared by

Andrea Reynolds



LOWELL JOINT SCHOOL DISTRICT
December 13, 2021

To: President Hinz and Members, Board of Trustees
From: Jim Coombs, Superintendent of Schools
Subject:  Approval of Agreement with Orange County ACTION

Department of Education for GATE Certification
Training during the 2021-22 School Year

Arrangements have been made with Orange County Department of Education to provide
GATE Certification Trainings with 20 teachers. There will one face-to-face training in the
spring of the 2021-22 school year. This training is to certify teachers in gifted instruction
using the CA GATE Standards and high yield GATE Strategies. Teachers will learn about
the academic, behavioral and social emotional needs of students who are gifted. The cost of
the training will not exceed $4,200.00. Funding will be through Expanded Learning
Opportunities Grant which includes a focus on differentiated instruction and teacher
development.

It is recommended that the Agreement with Orange County Department of Education for
GATE Certification during the 2021-22 school year for a total not to exceed $4,200.00 be
approved and that the Superintendent or designee be authorized to execute the necessary
documents.

Superintendent’s Comment:
APPROVAL RECOMMENDED.

X-D1-1



